
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Tuesday, July 06, 2021 at 4:30 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS 

To join the meeting online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81671550630 

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833 
Webinar ID: 816 7155 0630 

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE 

____ Jessica Perreault   ____ Joe Borton   ____ Brad Hoaglun 

____ Treg Bernt   ____ Liz Strader   ____ Luke Cavener 

____ Mayor Robert E. Simison 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1. Approve Minutes of the June 22, 2021 City Council Work Session 

2. Approve Minutes of the June 22, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting 

3. Bainbridge Subdivision No. 12 Water Main Easement No. 2 

4. Idaho Central Credit Union - Ten Mile Branch Water Main Easement No. 1 

5. Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 1 

6. Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 
No. 1 

7. Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Water Main Easement No. 1 

8. Lost Rapids Subdivision Water Main Easement No. 2 

9. Millbrae Subdivision Pedestrian Pathway Easement No. 1 

10. Final Order for Aegean Estates No. 3 (FP-2021-0031) by Engineering Solutions, 
LLP, Located at 4306 N. McDermott Rd. 

Page 1



11. Final Order for Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 (FP-2021-0035) by Toll Southwest, 
LLC, Generally Located at 6180 W. McMillan Rd. 

12. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-0021) 
by Schultz Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd. 

13. Development Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Shafer View North, LLC 
(Owner/Developer) for Shafer View Terrace (H-2020-0117) Located at the East 
Side of S. Meridian Rd./SH 69, Midway Between E. Amity Rd. and E. Lake Hazel Rd. 

14. Addendum to Development Agreement (Instrument#2019-0028376 recorded 
April 10, 2019) Between the City of Meridian and High Desert Development Linder 
Village, LLC (Owner/Developer) Located at 6308 N. Linder Rd, at the Northeast 
Corner of N. Linder Road and W. Chinden Blvd. 

15. Second Addendum to Development Agreement Between the City of Meridian and 
William Bienapfl (Owner) and Flexspace, LLC (Developer) for Movado Mixed Use 
(H-2020-0123), Generally Located on the South Side of E. Overland Rd. Between S. 
Eagle Rd. and S. Cloverdale Rd. 

16. Agreement Between City of Meridian and Nampa and Meridian Irrigation District 
for Five Mile Pathway along Five Mile Drain at Quartet Subdivision Northeast No. 1 

17. Artwork License Agreements for the Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 
Series 

18. First Addendum to Professional Services Agreement Between the City of Meridian 
and Sensus USA Inc. for Monitoring and Data Collection 

19. Professional Service Agreements for West Ada School District Student Artwork for 
Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 Series 

20. Subrecipient Agreement Between City of Meridian and NeighborWorks Boise for 
Program Year 2019 Community Development Block Grant Funds 

21. Task Order #3 for February 2, 2010 Professional Services Agreement with Idaho 
Information Consortium, LLC, dba Access Idaho, for Electronic Transactions and 
Access for Transaction Payments to Meridian Police Department 

22. Resolution No. 21-2272: A Resolution Vacating a 5-Foot Drainage, Utility 
Construction and Maintenance Easement Within a Portion of Lots 2 and 3 as 
Shown on Heritage Subdivision No. 2, Book 23, Page 1453, Within the Southwest ¼ 
of the Northwest ¼ of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, 
City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho; and Providing an Effective Date 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 

23. Resolution No. 21-2273: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City 
of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Northern 
Gateway Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and 
Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; 
Determining the Area Identified in the Report to be a Deteriorated Area or a 

Page 2



Deteriorating Area, or a Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 
50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 
Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to 
Commence the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan for the Area Subject to 
Certain Conditions, which Plan May Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All 
or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective Date 

24. Resolution No. 21-2274: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City 
of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Idaho Block 
Annexation Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and 
Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; 
Determining that the Area Identified in the Report as the Proposed Amendment 
Area Adjacent and Contiguous to the Existing Union District Revenue Allocation 
Area Within the City of Meridian, to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, 
or a Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-
2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Meridian, Idaho, also 
Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to Commence the Preparation 
of an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment, which Plan Amendment May Include 
Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an 
Effective Date 

25. Mayor's Office: Budget Amendment in the Amount of $4500.00 for Production 
Room Computer Replacement, Software and Equipment 

26. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2021 Action Plan 
Presentation 

27. Transportation Commission: Pathway Crossing Concerns 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the June 22, 2021 City Council Work Session

Page 4

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session                               June 22, 2021. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  4:39 p.m., Tuesday,  June 
22, 2021, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison, Luke Cavener, Treg Bernt, Jessica Perreault, Liz 
Strader and Brad Hoaglun. 
 
Members Absent:  Joe Borton. 
 
Also present:  Adrienne Weatherly, Cameron Arial, Warren Stewart, Emily Kane, Brandon 
Frasier Jamie Leslie, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     _____ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener (4:48 p.m.) 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call the meeting to order.  For the record it is June 22nd, 2021, 
at 4:39 p.m.  We will begin this afternoon's Council work session with roll call attendance. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Simison:  Next item is adoption of the agenda.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  It's my pleasure to make a motion to adopt the agenda a published.   
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as published.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes have it.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  
 
 1.  Approve Minutes of the June 8, 2021 City Council Work Session 
 
 2.  Approve Minutes of the June 15, 2021 City Council Special Meeting 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 2 of 23 

 3.  Dovetail Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1 
 
 4.  Hill's Century Farm North No. 1 Full Release of Sanitary Sewer and  
  Water Main Easement 
 
 5.  Hill's Century Farm North No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main  
  Easement No. 1 
 
 6.  Utility Easement for Pressure Reducing Valve 
 
 7.  Final Plat for Aegean Estates No. 3 (FP-2021-0031) by Engineering  
  Solutions, LLP, Located at 4306 N. McDermott Rd. 
 
 8.  Final Plat for Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 (FP-2021-0035) by Toll  
  Southwest, LLC, Generally Located at 6180 W. McMillan Rd. 
 
 9.  Approval of Award of Bid and Construction Contract Between City of  
  Meridian and Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC for Well 9B Construction for 
  the Not-to-Exceed Amount of $454,051.00 and Authorize Procurement 
  Manager to Sign Purchase Order for the Not-to-Exceed Amount of  
  $454,051.00 
 
Simison:  I didn't know if we were adopting the agenda or -- yeah.  Next item is our 
Consent Agenda.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we adopt the agenda as published, for the Mayor to sign and for the 
Clerk to attest.   
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the Consent Agenda.  Is there any 
discussion on the motion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The 
ayes have it.  The Consent Agenda is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
Simison:  There were no items moved from the Consent Agenda.  
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 

Page 6

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 3 of 23 

 10.  Community Development: Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Amendment in the 
  Amount of $35,963.00 for Reclass of Administrative Assistant to  
  Economic Development Business Liaison   
 
Simison:  So, we will move onto Item 10, which is Department/Commission Reports and 
first up is our Community Development fiscal year 2021 budget amendment in the amount 
of 35,963 dollars.  I will turn this over to Mr. Arial.   
 
Arial:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, really excited to be with you right now, 
particularly with this budget amendment in front of you for your consideration.  This 
represents a big step forward in our economic development program and we are excited 
for what this means and the service that we can bring now to support our -- our business 
community.  So, with that, just to be brief, this 36,000, roughly, represents the money 
necessary to elevate our currently approved admin position that is vacant, into a -- reclass 
it into an economic business liaison position.  So, really, the purpose is to start to advance 
some of our Comprehensive Plan, strategic plan, economic development plan initiatives 
around supporting our small businesses at a higher level and we are -- we are really 
excited about adding these services and as you all know, it's been a trying time for our 
economic development division, a division of one, Tori, especially through COVID and 
some of those things.  But, again, just coming out on top and kept swinging and really 
moving our -- the economy of our city forward and this is just a great advancement 
towards our goals in this direction.  So, with that I will stand for any questions, Mr. Mayor 
and Council, and look forward to your thoughts and discussion.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Cameron.  Council, any questions?   
 
Bernt:  Much needed.   
 
Simison:  With that do I have a motion?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we adopt -- or approve Item 10, fiscal year 2021 budget amendment 
in the amount of 35,963 dollars for reclass of administrative assistant to economic 
development business liaison.   
 
Perreault:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the budget amendment.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, absent; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; 
Strader, yea. 
 

Page 7

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 4 of 23 

Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carried and the item is agreed to.  Thank you. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 11.  Police Department: Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Amendment in the  
  Amount of $4000.00 for Dairy Days Parade Traffic Control 
 
Simison:  Next up is Item 11, which is the Police Department Fiscal Year 2021 Budget 
Amendment in the amount of 4,000 dollars for Dairy Days.  Turn this over to Mr. Leslie.   
 
Leslie:  I think so.   
 
Simison:  Okay.   
 
Leslie:  This is what was in front of us a couple of weeks ago when the Dairy Board came 
in and discussed the issues we were having with traffic control and -- and the additional 
resources that they are utilizing, instead of volunteers.  So, this is to amend our current 
budget of 5,000 to 9,000.  So, we are asking for 4,000 so we can be able to handle the 
parade and move forward.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Bernt:  I don't think now would be the appropriate time to say no.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then, with that, do I have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move approval of the police department's fiscal year 2021 budget amendment 
in the amount of 4,000 dollars for Dairy Days parade traffic control.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the budget amendment.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, absent; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; 
Strader, yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carried and the amendment is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 

Page 8

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 5 of 23 

 12.  Police Department Report: Proposed Off-Highway Vehicle Ordinance 
 
Simison:  Our next item up is a police department report regarding proposed off highway 
vehicle ordinance.  Let's turn this over to Officer Frasier.   
 
Frasier:  Good afternoon, Mr. Mayor, Council Members.  Thank you.  It's a pleasure to be 
here this afternoon to further the discussion of the ATV, UTV ordinance the Transportation 
Commission has been working on now for the better part of a year.  When I first brought 
this issue to the Transportation Commission we were in a little bit different landscape  
statutorily.  There has been some development in this area in the last legislative session 
at the Idaho State House, but, really, the same question remains and that is what, if 
anything, is the city going to do differently to address these vehicles on a roadway.  The 
police department sees an uptick in the number of golf carts, ATVs, and UTVs operated 
upon the roadway.  Sometimes this is in blatant violation of the law.  Vehicles driven by 
juveniles that don't have a driver's license, things of that nature.  And prior to the last 
legislative session there were some real gray areas of the law also and our officers had 
to really take a lot of time to educate the public on those matters.  With respect to golf 
carts we have a city ordinance that prohibits them anywhere except for the Lakeview golf 
course area and we do see a huge uptick in residents in many other subdivisions -- some 
of those even that have golf courses now -- riding their golf carts within their subdivision, 
thinking that they are in compliance with the law or I have been told that the golf cart 
salesman said that it was legal to operate on the roadway, so it must be.  So, it was a 
time to look at that golf cart ordinance to see if it still reflects the stance of our city as a 
whole and, then, try to address some of the safety issues and other legal issues that we 
saw with regard to ATV and UTV operation.  Prior to the last legislative session state law 
already prohibited the usage of ATVs and UTVs on most roads in Meridian.  It left open 
the usage of ATVs and UTVs on local roads and in the last legislative session House Bill 
129 changed that.  When that statute is effective ATVs would be allowed on all roadways 
within Idaho, unless a local authority makes an ordinance or some type of ruling 
otherwise.  So, that's the second part of this question is what do we want to do with ATVs 
and UTVs and what do we want to do with golf carts as a whole as they pertain to quality 
of life and safety issues within the community.  The police department does get complaints 
from citizens who see ATVs or UTVs or golf carts on the roadway.  They call us, because 
they don't want to see them.  They don't think they are legal.  We also have a fair number 
of people who want to be able to operate ATVs and UTVs the same as they would a motor 
vehicle.  We have people who try very hard to come in compliance with every area of the 
law that they can think of.  I have talked to folks that have put DOT certified tires on their 
UTVs and horns and turn signals and mirrors and all sorts of stuff in a good faith effort to 
be as legal as they can be on the street and, then, of course, we also talk to people that 
are scofflaws, essentially, and don't make any attempt to be in compliance with the law.  
So, it is kind of a big question.  When I brought this before the Transportation Commission 
I was seeking clarity for the police department on what the city wanted to do reference 
these issues, so that we can tell our officers how we can educate the public on the matter 
and take enforcement action when necessary.  I know Ms. Kane is here.  She may have 
just some discussion for the legal aspect and I will stand for any questions if you have 
any right now before she speaks, if she is going to.   

Page 9

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 6 of 23 

Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Officer Frasier, just -- just so that we can provide clarity to those who might be 
watching and paying attention, can you define the difference between an arterial collector 
or a local road?   
 
Frasier:  So, those designations are officially made by the Ada County Highway District.  
The easiest way to think about it is a local road is a street that goes from a house or a 
driveway to a bigger more major road, like a collector street.  So, if you are talking about 
a subdivision, the road that feeds into the subdivision that all the main traffic turns into 
generally would be a collector street.  The street that feeds that street would be an arterial 
or major street, like a Linder, Chinden, Ten Mile -- Chinden is a bad example, because it's 
a state highway.  But you get my point.  The local road, essentially, goes off of the arterial 
street to houses.  If you are operating only on -- upon a local roadway you are essentially 
by default going to stay within the subdivision.  We are talking about roads that go to golf 
cart -- golf courses, other houses, community pools, clubhouses and things of that nature.  
You would reasonably be unable in almost every case to get out of the subdivision to 
travel upon a bigger roadway.   
 
Bernt:  Perfect.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I was thinking along the same lines as -- as Council President Bernt as to 
whether or not the public would understand the difference and do we clarify that in the 
ordinance.  Do we have some definitions for what highway means?  When I first read this 
it was a little confusing, because, of course, when you say highway you think Interstate; 
right?  Not local roads.  So, wondering if -- if -- from a textual standpoint if we can make 
some more clarification in that ordinance for that.  And, then, also is there an element of 
the vehicle needing to be able to meet the speed limit.  So, you know, assuming a golf 
cart is not going to be able to get up to a certain mile per hour and from a safety standpoint 
do we differentiate say a UTV and RTV, which is, you know, significantly faster from a golf 
cart, do we make that kind of separation in the type of vehicle in this or is the -- is the 
anticipation of the Transportation Committee to lump them all into one and, essentially, 
make the same ordinance for every type of vehicle?   
 
Frasier:  I think the Transportation Commission tried to move as efficiently as possible 
and perhaps there is room for a little bit more clarity on the differences between local, 
collector, and arterial streets.  I know Ms. Kane and I talked about that.  We talked about 
it at a subcommittee level.  When you start trying to explain that it almost becomes more 
complicating than leaving it as is.  It's a very difficult thing to describe, other than to refer 
to Ada County Highway District's master list where you can easily tell what street is a 

Page 10

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 7 of 23 

local, arterial, or collector roadway.  I think from an enforcement standpoint we are not 
going to get deep in the weeds over a citizen's misunderstanding of local versus arterial.  
If a police officer would have a hard time differentiating, we would certainly expect a 
community member would be, but as I said earlier, the easiest way to think about it is stay 
in your subdivision and you are almost always going to be fine.  The golf carts speed limit 
issue, perhaps there is room for discussion there.  Golf carts generally don't travel any 
faster than 15 miles an hour.  UTV and ATV obviously they can go a lot faster.  However, 
the speed limit on every local road that I can think of is 25.  Fifteen miles an hour in the 
case of a golf cart doesn't really create a safety hazard there, as it would on a street 
where the speed limit is 35 or higher.  I think out of the spirit of moving efficiently, the 
Transportation Commission opted to repeal and replace the existing golf cart ordinance 
and loop ATVs and UTVs in as an effort for clarity even though it does leave a couple 
things potentially not so clear.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Can you help us understand the -- the fine amount and how that came to be.  
The 25 dollar fine.  What -- what was it prior to this and is that sufficiently -- I mean I 
personally, you know, wouldn't think that would be that prohibitive for people.  I would 
think a higher fine would and -- then, of course, obviously, the police department's great 
about giving warnings if it's clear the person -- that the individual did not understand that 
there was an ordinance.  But the second time around I would think that a fine higher than 
that would -- would make a lot more sense.  I'm not sure if there was a specific reason 
that that fine amount was chosen.   
 
Frasier:  I would agree that's a fairly low fine, 25 dollars.  I'm not sure where that number 
came from.  It may have just been a holdover from the fine of the current golf cart 
ordinance.  But I know there was an effort on behalf of the Transportation Commission, 
after hearing public input, they didn't want to take actions that would be construed as 
overly punitive or money making in this endeavor to regulate ATVs or UTVs.  I'm also of 
similar mindset.  A higher fine may be in order in a situation where a citation would be 
warranted.  Across the board when we look at similar violations in city ordinance, the fine 
amounts are not overly high.  Parking comes to mind.  Texting and driving was a little bit 
different thing when that ordinance was in play.  But it also kind of is in line with the fee 
schedule for other things at a city ordinance.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thanks, Officer Frasier.  I will just be really open.  I -- I watched the 
Transportation Commission meetings.  I have read all the materials.  I'm really struggling 
on this concept.  I'm not convinced there is a huge problem and I'm also concerned that 
the problem statement that underlies the need for this ordinance is shifting around a little 

Page 11

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 8 of 23 

bit.  In some of the Transportation Commission meetings it was said that Commissioner 
Smith said that these vehicles are inherently unsafe and that the real issue is people are 
not following the existing laws, which to me sort of begged the question.  Are we not 
enforcing existing laws and do we have some data behind the number of crashes in 
Meridian involving UTVs and golf carts that would sort of justify the need for this 
ordinance.   
 
Frasier:  Thank you.  I do remember that comment in that meeting.  One could make an 
argument that perhaps an ATV or UTV is unsafe.  Is it any more unsafe than any other 
roadworthy vehicle?  That's certainly worth discussion and in some cases they are, some 
cases they are not.  We don't -- the -- the purpose that was issued to the Transportation 
Commission by the police department was at the time, prior to the passage of House Bill 
129, the state statute in effect at that time was very difficult to explain to people to make 
them understand that their actions were unlawful under state code.  Really, it took an 
experienced officer who had to compile multiple pieces of state statute to explain why that 
activity was not legal and oftentimes people thought it was legal.  We didn't issue a lot of 
citations for that, because it was an educational piece.  There is a lot of people who 
genuinely didn't know it was illegal at the time.  With regard to crashes, we don't have a 
statistical bombshell, if you will, to indicate that we have all these crashes involving ATVs 
and UTVs.  My standpoint was at the time and has been since then that it's more of a 
quality of life issue regarding people in subdivisions calling and saying my neighbor is 
riding their UTV up and down the street.  I don't like it.  Do something about it.  At the time 
there were times when the activity was unlawful, there was times when it wasn't, but 
having that discussion and having a clear and concise ordinance or direction from the city 
to point our citizens to and our law enforcement officers, it was difficult to have those 
discussions.  That changed with the passage of HB 129.  We are in a different place now.  
I think the -- what's left is for the city to come to a consensus about how we want to treat 
these vehicles and make changes to our existing golf cart ordinance.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Yeah, I appreciate what you are saying about, you know, there was a change in 
state law and so that -- that also to me sort of begged the question of, you know, are -- I 
don't want to simplify it by saying are we a solution looking for a problem, but it occurred 
to me that, you know, if under state law it's legal to have these vehicles and specific to 
Meridian we make it illegal on certain roadways to have these vehicles operating, it just 
seems like it's creating a little bit of a quagmire, instead of maybe advocating for a solution 
at the state level.  So, I -- I get what you are saying.  I guess I'm concerned about 
legislating about quality of life issues when, in my opinion, just as a layman, when we 
have motorcycles -- and I think there was a gentleman that testified about this, you know, 
you can have a Harley going by at any time that's quite loud and so why are we picking 
on certain vehicles and not others.  So, I don't know, I'm just -- I know you are looking for 
clarity from us, but I guess I'm struggling a little bit.   
 

Page 12

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 9 of 23 

Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Just to kind of follow up on that question, officer, can you explain the difference 
between licensing a motorcycle versus licensing an ATV, UTV?  Just leaving golf carts 
out of it.  Just so we understand what is required to drive one of those vehicles differently 
on our roads.   
 
Frasier:  Sure.  A motorcycle can be registered a couple of different ways, depending on 
what type of equipment it has on it and the size of the motorcycle.  Generally, you know, 
if we think about Harley's versus an all out dirt bike, an all out dirt bike is not able to be 
licensed for use upon a road like a Harley would be.  However, you can get a restricted 
use license plate for that dirt bike.  That's the same license plate you could get for an ATV 
or UTV and that is the license plate that falls into the category of off highway vehicle 
usage, which brings us to this discussion.  There are motorcycles out there that might 
start out as a dirt bike, but you can make changes to them to make them roadworthy and, 
then, you can get a red and white motorcycle license plate, just like you would for the 
Harley and, then, you are good to go, same as a Harley.  At the state level there is no 
remedy to be able to buy a red and white license plate for your ATV or UTV and, hence, 
the lack of clarity at the state level.  So, even if you wanted to, the best you could do on 
an ATV or UTV is to get a restricted use license plate that falls into the category we are 
talking about and it doesn't openly -- or didn't openly allow you to drive that vehicle on the 
roadway, the same as you would like a street motorcycle or the Harley.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  And I appreciate that.  So, in -- in -- on that subject, if an ordinance 
is not passed, if we choose to leave it as it is, how does the enforcement work on your 
side if -- just by -- based on the licensing does it give it -- does it allow you to enforce 
speed limits and -- you know, my -- my thought is -- and I see -- I am seeing more of these 
vehicles on the road myself -- is that they tend to -- the same with dirt bikes, they tend to 
cut around traffic, they drive on the shoulders, they go quickly in subdivisions where there 
is children playing.  There is a variety of behaviors that happen just because it's a smaller 
size of vehicle and, then, we oftentimes have 16 -- you know, 15, 16 year olds that are 
driving them.  So, I think the type of vehicle does lend to a different driving style and 
challenge than a regular car or truck would.  What can you enforce if there isn't an 
ordinance?   
 
Frasier:  So, any motor vehicle on the roadway, the driver of the motor vehicle has to have 
a valid driver's license.  The vehicle has to have some level of registration to operate upon 
the roadway.  A restricted use license plate under Idaho statute -- under the new house 
bill does allow you to operate it upon the roadway and you have to have liability insurance.  
If all those things are in place, then, it becomes the same as a car would.  You have got 
to follow the speed limit.  You have to signal turns.  You have to have -- the amount of 
equipment you would have to have on it is open for discussion, but at a basic level you 
need some type of way to signal your turns.  You need a brake light.  You need a mirror 
and a horn.  If you have all of those things you have to follow the rules of the road, the 

Page 13

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 10 of 23 

speed limits and all of those things.  Essentially, we would be pulling over those vehicles 
for violations -- the same violations we would be pulling over a car for and we do see 
those -- we have seen those in history and we take enforcement action at that time.  The 
-- the overarching concept of clarity, since it's come up -- I'm not -- or I should say I will 
freely admit that we received a bit of clarity since this endeavor began and the clarity that 
I'm looking for is not necessarily advocating one way or the other what we do as a law 
enforcement professional who oversees the traffic control -- or the traffic enforcement 
team for the department, that clarity is telling my team this is what the city wants to do.  
Whatever the answer is.  And, then, we have that answer.  I made it very clear to the 
Transportation Commission I was advocating for an answer at the city level, not 
necessarily going down one avenue or another.  At that time the landscape was much 
less clear, but that quest for an answer on the concept from the city is the same.   
 
Simison:  And I will give my unsolicited advice.  Trying to educate the community about 
all those requirements -- when someone sees a UTV going down the road, people are 
going to say, well, I got one of those, I can go down the road, too.  I mean that's -- that's 
the reality of the situation.  If we -- if we -- if we allow them to freely go on arterials and 
that's -- that's my viewpoint.  I think they are going to spend a lot more time trying to 
educate a lot more people about all the reasons why they can't, as compared to the few 
who might understand how they can.  That's my two cents.  Because I think those that 
really want to do it will follow -- will do what they can to follow the law.  There is going to 
be everyone else who doesn't understand the law at all.  They are not going to see the 
license plate.  They are not going to see a thing.  They are just going to go hop on the 
road and drive down the road, in my opinion.  I think that's human nature.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Major?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  So, I was down to the Capitol this last legislative session when they were 
discussing this bill and the gentleman from Donnelly who proposed this legislation had 
concerns about UTVs and such, you know, in their -- in their small towns up in the 
mountains and I totally get that and I don't have any problems with the means in which 
they -- you know, folks who are visiting and live there use UTVs, but I think the reason 
why the state legislature -- the state legislature decided to give autonomy to locals was 
because of this reason.  I don't think it's appropriate personally to have ATVs or UTVs 
driving down our roads -- our arterial or collector roads.  In fact, I saw two weeks ago an 
ATV -- a gentleman on an ATV that was on the intersection of Franklin and Locust Grove 
and it just -- it just -- it just didn't seem right.  You know, looking over and seeing this 
gentleman with -- had no protection, no helmet, is revving up at that intersection right next 
to the other cars and I don't mind that these UTVs or golf carts are used on local streets.  
There is a lot of people in our neighborhood that do.  I have never seen a problem and I 
think that it's important to allow these types of uses, especially when there are golf 
courses in the subdivisions and so I'm in support of -- of this -- of this ordinance.  We have 
to do something, because right now I believe this law may go into effect July 1, if it wasn't 
an emergency type order from the governor.  I'm not sure if it's law currently, but if it's not 

Page 14

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 11 of 23 

it will be soon and it's an extreme safety hazard, in my opinion, to see these type of uses 
on -- on our busy streets.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Maybe just to give us something to chew on, maybe just a little bit of an opposing 
opinion or different opinion.  So, I would think as an owner of an ATV or UTV that safety 
for yourself would already be a limiting factor of what roads you would go on; right?  There 
is a natural consequence for making a bad decision about it.  People can make decisions, 
like -- right?  I mean I -- I could make a decision whether or not to go on a -- on a collector 
road or an arterial road with a UTV pretty easily by the natural consequences that could 
happen for me taking a vehicle that is inherently less safe on those roads.  But I guess I 
would just say how would you, you know, compare that to -- to a motorcycle -- and a 
motorcyclist may not be wearing a helmet and we have bicyclists in the -- in the roadway 
all the time that may or may not have a helmet.  I guess I'm just concerned that it -- maybe 
it's a comfort level with what we are used to seeing and I might go the other way of, okay, 
state law takes effect and can we see the data and if we have a huge amount of crashes 
or a huge amount of data that shows us we have a major problem that I -- then at that 
point I would lean toward making a change personally.  Anyway, that's enough for me.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Sergeant Frasier, I wanted to ask you -- you talked about operating these 
vehicles within the confines of a subdivision and that -- and that makes sense to keep 
them with -- within that area, but we are -- I struggle a little bit on that, because of the fact 
that in our subdivision we have an east-west arterial and there is a street that connects 
and it's a collector and, then, it goes out and around and connects to a north-south arterial.  
Well, it's the spine for the subdivision and all these, you know, circular areas are in and 
out, you know -- you know, a couple of entrances for fire protection, whatnot, but, you 
know, if you -- if you want to go from this particular area to this particular area, you have 
to go on that collector and so -- and I don't have an issue with them, because it is within 
the confines of the -- it's 25 miles an hour.  You see people are working on their stuff, they 
go out and test drive it, go back, but if someone has a real issue with it -- if we say it's 
prohibited on a collector street and there was a complaint and, then, you have to enforce 
the law, so I'm like, hum, you know, how to -- but, yet, to do any sort of -- within the 
subdivision going from their house to the pool, you know, the community pool there, they 
are -- they are in violation that way.  So, it's just trying to find that -- that -- that happy 
medium, but -- because, you know, people will complain.  Most people aren't going to 
complain about it.  Although Sunday we are out on the patio having a Father's Day dinner 
with my folks and an ATV goes up the collector street going 25 miles hour, but they didn't 
have much of a muffler on there, if any.  I mean it interrupts your conversation and we are 
a good distance away from that collector street.  So, that's a -- that's a whole other issue 

Page 15

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 12 of 23 

with noise of some of these vehicles that we are seeing out on our streets.  But that 
collector street issue just gives me pause on certain areas.  It's part of that subdivision to 
a way that there is no way to get around that, to go any place.  So, just -- just your thoughts 
on how -- how do you handle enforcement with that.   
 
Frasier:  Sure.  I totally understand that.  I know the TC spent some time discussing -- 
discussing different options.  Obviously, the easiest way to enforce that -- or the easiest 
is to say you can't drive them anywhere.  Absent that, anytime you start allowing 
exceptions to that it becomes very difficult, because there is always something -- as you 
said -- I understand that completely and there is certainly logic to that statement.  You are 
still in the subdivision, it's still a 25 mile an hour road and the person might not even know 
it's a collector street anyway.  I think in that situation enforcement -- or a police presence 
in that situation has more to do with education and public service.  We are not looking to 
write a bunch of tickets for this, but it does help address some of the issues that you have 
-- you have highlighted.  The TC discussed having an exception to be able to operate a 
ATV or UTV within a section mile, which would basically allow you to stay in the arterial 
box of the subdivision that you live in, but even that was problematic, because what do 
you tie that to?  Do you tie it to the registered owner?  Do you tie it to the driver?  Do you 
tie it to whatever house it originated from?  So, there is always something.  It's very difficult 
to craft an ordinance that is perfect in every way when you are talking about restricting 
the use of a vehicle like that.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  So, along those lines, did the Transportation Commission discuss limitation on 
streets that had a speed limit -- so, could we say they are not permitted on streets that 
are higher than a 25 an hour -- mile an hour speed limit, does that then -- now we are not 
talking about definitions of collector and arterial, but we are addressing safety challenges 
that might be created?  Does that also come with an equal amount of difficulties with 
exceptions?   
 
Frasier:  I would say that's a lot easier to explain to a citizen and to observe.  That was 
an idea I proposed at the TC.  Didn't really go that direction, because it is very clear, if it's 
25 and under you can operate on that road.  If it's higher, then, you can't.  The only other 
thing that adds with is -- it would open up, you know, streets like Pine in the downtown 
corridor would be open ATV, UTV usage.  Some collector streets would be.  Again, that's 
not a decision I'm endeavoring to make as part of the overall mission for the city to decide 
what, if anything, the police department -- what type of action we should take about these 
things.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 

Page 16

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 13 of 23 

Cavener:  Good questions from my -- my colleagues and a lot of what was touched on by 
the Transportation Commission.  Sergeant Frasier, I'm sorry, I was delayed from your 
presentation.  I appreciate you being here and I'm sorry I only caught a portion of it, so if 
you touched on this, again, my apologies.  And I think Council the big question I think that 
we need to ask ourselves -- and it's what I'm going to ask you, Sergeant Frasier, what is 
the -- what is the problem that we are trying to fix?  I recognize we have got some logistical 
issues as a result of the legislature, but is the intention of -- of this proposed ordinance to 
solve a -- as Council Member Hoaglun pointed out -- a noise issue or is it really a public 
safety issue and if it's a public safety issue, which is what I -- what I assume it is, I need 
some greater clarification about how these UTVs and ATVs pose a greater public health 
or safety threat than other motorized vehicles that are on our streets.  So, can you help 
me understand that?  What's the problem?  What's really the problem that we are trying 
to solve and what do these pose that are different than other vehicles that are registered, 
licensed and insured as well?   
 
Frasier:  And that's been a common -- common question or theme is what is the problem.  
The problem is now two prong.  One of them is we have an ordinance that prohibits the 
usage of golf carts anywhere in the city, except for one square mile, essentially.  We have 
golf carts being driven all over the city.  The problem there is what action would the city 
like to take?  Does the city want the police department to write all those people tickets  
because they are in violation of that ordinance or do we want to change the ordinance as 
it pertains to golf carts to some degree, because we have more than one golf course -- 
golf course in the city now and people driving those golf carts to community pools, which 
weren't really a thing back in 1994 when this ordinance was first written.  The problem as 
it pertains to ATV and UTV usage, again, has changed since the passage of -- passage 
of HB 129.  Whereas before a police officer couldn't effectively explain to a person what 
was legal and what was not and we had a conglomeration of quality of life issues 
complaints on both sides of the fence.  Citizens who demand we take action against ATV 
and UTV riders for riding in their subdivision or riding down Eagle Road to get gas or 
using it the same as a vehicle.  We did not have a clear path forward in what the city's 
expectations were.  So, really, part of that is it was time for a revisit of this is what we are 
seeing, this is what we have been doing, is that what we want to continue to do.  If the 
Council wishes to take no action on the ordinance that is the answer to my question.  I 
can't stress that enough.  Because it answers the question for the police department.  This 
is what the city wants us to do about these issues we are seeing.  With respect to public 
safety, I think most people make the argument that an ATV or UTV would be less safe to 
operate than a car or a pickup truck.  As Council Woman Strader brought up, is it any less 
safe than a motorcyclist without a helmet or a bicyclist?  Yes or no.  It depends on the 
situation and you would be hard pressed to find a steadfast reason to take action on an 
ordinance like this based solely on public safety.  I can't point to a list of crashes and say 
we have people dropping left and right from crashing these vehicles.  If we are going off 
public safety, then, we should probably adopt an ordinance that outlawed cars, because 
those things are crashing all the time; right?  So, it's the conglomeration of many things, 
with the ultimate question posed to the Council of what do you want the police department 
to do.   
 

Page 17

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 14 of 23 

Simison:  And I don't know if this is you or Emily or -- or somebody else, but what about    
--  if an accident does occur -- I mean these are unlicensed vehicles, not -- you know, 
ATV.  They are not -- they are not licensed, they are not registered.  Do they carry 
insurance?   
 
Frasier:  They can.   
 
Simison:  I mean that's -- is that -- are those requirements -- again, those are some of the 
underlying things what -- what would occur in an accident from that standpoint.  Even the 
expectations if we do nothing.  We say -- we have no -- no requirements, we just let 
everyone go, accident occurs, what is the -- you know, if I get hit or I hit somebody, what's 
the recourse?  All the property insurance?   
 
Frasier:  We would treat that ATV or UTV in that hypothetical, the same as a car.  You 
have to have some level of registration.  Under HB 129 a restricted use license plate 
would allow you to operate in that situation.  You would have to have liability insurance 
and the operator would have to have a driver's license.  So long as all that is -- is in effect  
in a crash it's essentially no different than a car.   
 
Simison:  So, you can get -- you can get insurance through -- for that for roadways?   
 
Frasier:  Yeah.   
 
Simison:  Any -- any other way.  I guess I go back to my question.  I think -- I think -- 
people --  I don't think the public is going to know the difference.  So, that's really what we 
are coming -- if the people are not aware of how to make it legal and you get into an 
accident, what -- what -- what, then, occurs?  Is it just like an unlicensed driver situation 
where it now falls upon me to deal with the ramifications of that because they didn't have 
insurance?   
 
Frasier:  Yeah.  Assuming the crash was deemed to be the fault of the ATV or UTV it 
would be a civil issue.  The person would get a ticket for not having insurance, then, 
anything else would apply the same as a car.  And in my experience it's a split bag.  There 
is a lot of folks out there, myself included, I have a UTV, it's got full insurance, it's 
registered, I'm a licensed driver.  There is just as many more people in my experience 
that have none of those things, but they still expect the same level of legality simply by 
getting a restricted use plate.  So, you can't use a big brushstroke and label everybody 
the same, because there is a lot of people out there doing all of those things in as much 
as they can.  They have turned their UTV into -- as close to a car as they can get it and, 
then, there is people that make no attempt at all.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 

Page 18

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 15 of 23 

Perreault:  Just -- I want to make sure I'm understanding for clarification.  So, currently 
the UTVs, ATVs are required to be licensed and carry insurance or they are not?   
 
Frasier:  They are not if they are not operated on a qualifying roadway.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.   
 
Frasier:  So, if you want to operate it on a street in your subdivision you would have to 
have all those things.  If you are riding it on private property or some locations of BLM 
land, you know, forest service roads do require at least a restricted license plate.  There 
are some provisions there.  But there are situations where it is legal to operate a UTV 
without registration, insurance, or driver's license.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I mean would an education campaign on existing law possibly solve some of the 
problem; right?  I mean if you want to operate your UTV or ATV in the roadway, it sounds 
like you have to have a driver's license.  The vehicle needs to be insured and you have 
to follow the exact same laws as everybody else.  So, I guess I'm just wondering if -- if an 
education campaign, you know, on -- on that topic and enforcing existing law helps get 
us part of the way there.  And, then, I guess separately it does sound like we have to 
make some sort of a change to our golf cart ordinance, just because we have golf carts 
and it's not updated at all.  I guess I'm just wondering if -- if enforcing existing law -- and 
maybe the state law changing just makes it much more clear that these are -- these are 
the guidelines.  If a 16 year old crashes an unlicensed UTV that's in violation of the law;  
right?   
 
Frasier:  Right.  I think an educational campaign does get you part of the way there, 
assuming the City Council as a whole decides no action is taken and they want to rely on 
what is or will be state law under HB 129.  It does leave the golf cart issue as you stated, 
though.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, I think one the things that I keep hearing all of 
you that -- and I can understand this from a lay person's perspective, like my own, it's 
really the public's understanding of what they can or cannot do.  Now, would it make more 
sense, Sergeant Frasier, to either -- prohibit them on an arterial, because that's clearly by 
far the most dangerous place to have these types of vehicles or could be the most 
dangerous for them, like a Fairview, Eagle Road, like that.  So, arterial, state highways, 
or on -- on any road that has more than two lanes of travel, because if you have -- you 
know, then -- then I can understand that.  If I'm a person, I read the ordinance and it says 

Page 19

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 16 of 23 

any road that's either -- if there is a -- if there is a delineation by speed limit, so if it -- if it 
has a speed limit above 25, that is normally on a collector, not on a neighbor -- or local 
street, or it has more than two lanes of travel, maybe excluding the turn lane, so you are 
going to have some streets -- like I can think of -- like in Council Member Hoaglun's 
subdivision area, they are pretty wide streets, they are not striped.  So, there are really 
only two lanes of travel like that.  But that might be easier.  Would that get the police a 
comfort level, because, then, driving that -- like through Bridgetower, crossing that -- that 
main roadway or driving on the edge of that main roadway to the pool isn't the problem 
that you are trying to address anyway, it's the more -- if they were to get on Ten Mile or 
they are going out on Linder or something like that where there is a lot more traffic and a 
lot more higher speed, would that maybe get closer to addressing the issue from the 
police perspective?   
 
Frasier:  There is a lot of things that are within the comfort level of the police department.  
Really a lot of them have been talked about that that is an option.  That comes with some 
technicalities, you know, can -- if you can only operate it on roads with no more than two 
lanes, well, can you cross a road that has more than two lanes on it to get to another road 
and -- and those things.  That was not the option the TC moved forward on.  I really can't 
speak any further than that.  Wouldn't want to over -- over speak for the Transportation 
Commission, but, really, you know, what I'm hearing is differing testimony from the Council 
Members, those who don't want ATVs and UTVs on arterials and collectors and those 
that don't see a problem with it, that is the ultimate question and it's not for me to decide.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Question.  I don't know if this is for you, Bill, or for Emily.  About -- I do want to 
be consistent, make it easy for everyone involved, and so to go back to that 25 mile an 
hour speed zone, 25 mile an hour or below, is that something from a legal perspective 
that is easier to enforce?  I mean it's more understandable for the citizens.  It's -- it's, you 
know, Sergeant Frasier and his team that he supervises, okay, here is -- here is what it is 
and I -- I don't know, I would like your thoughts on some of the things that we are -- you 
can even expand a little bit upon that, so --   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Hoaglun, that is a possibility.  Just to do -- delineate 
by speed limit or road type or road description, all of those are within your purview to do 
that.  As far as enforcement, I think it is just a matter of educating and there is a pretty 
well established community we have learned and so, you know, it's -- I wouldn't say it's 
easy to get the word out, but the word does travel.  So, that is a possibility.   
 
Simison:  And maybe even throw in one other option that was -- come up at some point 
in time in conversations is you could lower the speed limit to 20 miles per hour throughout 
the city and other areas to, again, make it more -- to make it safer for all these vehicles in 
subdivisions, which is the speed limit that Nampa has and Boise has.  So, it's not, you 
know, completely out there.   

Page 20

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 17 of 23 

Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  When licenses are issued does the county -- does DMV provide those 
individuals with any kind of written information on what city ordinance would be in the 
area that they live in?  So, are they obligated to sign any kind of, you know, disclosure 
that says you live in Meridian, therefore, you know, here is the rules that need to be 
followed?  Is -- I mean do they do that or is that -- I would imagine that if they were trying 
to enforce that for every city in Ada county it would be complicated, but is there any way 
to know when those get registered and at least send them some information if we are 
talking about an educational campaign, so that they have that available?   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Perreault, the Idaho Department of Parks and 
Recreation is the -- probably the agency that's most plugged into ATVs, UTVs, and other 
off highway vehicles.  The state statute that will go into effect in July requires that they be 
-- that that department be incorporated or notified of a city ordinance that's under 
consideration restricting or regulating OHVs.  So, that might be a better option for helping 
get the word out than DMV, because I don't believe that the DMV does provide any 
information or testing on local municipal regulations.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor, is this a situation where we would send this back to the 
Transportation Commission for more conversation based on what we have talked about 
today or is this a scenario where the decision should be made during this work session?   
 
Simison:  I don't think that we are to a decision point necessarily.  I think the question is 
is there further dialogue or an actual ordinance that we would bring forward for 
consideration.  From what my understanding is I think the Transportation Commission 
has discussed this enough that they are -- it's time for Council to determine whether or 
not this is -- what's an appropriate direction or not, would be my viewpoint from what I 
have heard.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I have -- I have went around the horn on this issue from a spot of get them all 
off the roads to put them all on the roads and somewhere in between.  I do think, though, 
that it's probably beneficial, because the amount of work that the Transportation 
Commission has put into this, it is a hot topic of conversation in our community to at least 
have a -- a public hearing.  I don't know if we want to have a public hearing on this 
proposed ordinance or if there is some Council Members that would want to make some 
requested modifications beforehand.  I'm certainly supportive of hearing from our 
community, particularly those that are UTV drivers and understanding the nuance.  I think 
what the Transportation Commission started -- I thought of just three wheelers, four 
wheelers and occasional side by side and learning about all the differences that are out 

Page 21

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 18 of 23 

there has been enlightening for me and it does make it more challenging to contextualize 
what is and what isn't a UTV and how it differentiates between a motorcycle or a trike or 
these -- I was looking at these cool sidewinders that Polaris makes.  I mean it can be 
confusing.  So, getting some added information from those that are owners and drivers 
of these vehicles I think would be helpful for us as we make a decision, if any.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I agree with Councilman Cavener.  I think they are getting the public -- getting 
public testimony would be important just to know what they have to say about it 
beforehand.  I think it would be -- it probably would make more sense to come up with a 
draft.  It would make sense to come up with something that we can present to the public 
for them to be able to have an opinion on.  I think that would be -- it would keep us more 
focused.  That would be my recommendation.  Come up with something that we can 
present and, then, have debate.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Question for the Council President.  Are you comfortable with at least putting 
out the draft that staff has put forth as presented or did you -- are there changes or tweaks 
that you would want to make before you put it out there?  First, I'm comfortable putting 
out the draft that staff has put out.  We may make changes after the public feedback, but 
unless anyone's feeling really passionately that we have got to make this change right 
here right now --  
 
Simison:  I would make a suggestion that -- I like the conversation.  We did the same for 
the scooters.  You know, people understand speed limits.  I don't understand -- I can't -- 
I'm trying to think if the road on my street is a collector or not into Tuscany.  I think it is.  
But I'm not positive.  That to -- either being more definitive on arterial or a speed limit, I 
think it helps clarify and so I would defer to maybe at the speed limit conversation for the 
draft, if people would be open to that for the consideration, as compared to arterial and 
collector definitions.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?  Sorry.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor, I think the conversation about speed limits is a -- is a separate issue.  
For the benefit of the Council that was also a topic that the transportation considered and 
they were not supportive of making any changes to the speed limits at this time.   
 

Page 22

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 19 of 23 

Simison:  I wasn't suggesting changing the speed limits.  I was saying we have got to 
define where they can be ridden.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Because it clarifies for the most part  -- the only -- I think Pine and Main are the 
only two collector roadways that I'm aware of that are near arterials that have the 25 mile 
per hour speed limit posted.  Everything else is 35 or higher, so -- Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor.  Yeah.  I think it would still be a draft.  It can always be changed.  
But I think doing it with a speed limit of, you know, no person shall operate an ATV on a 
street with a speed limit greater than 25 miles per hour, just says, okay, these are the 
streets -- and we can always add in -- except for, you know, designate Pine -- yeah, Pine 
and Main and those as off limits as well, if we feel the need to, but I just think having the 
speed limit designation makes it easier.  It sounds like from the beginning it was just 
difficult for officers to explain or difficult for people who understand it.  So, I'm just trying 
to find ways that we can say, okay, it's very simple and -- and -- and the sergeant has laid 
them out, you know, being licensed, liability, restricted license plate and you're operating 
at a speed -- a street that's 25 miles hour -- 25 miles an hour or less, so -- and, then, there 
might be more things that come out of it, but, again, it's a draft, but if that's something, 
Sergeant Frasier, you're comfortable with -- I mean I'm comfortable with moving forward 
and, then, getting the feedback from -- from our citizens saying, yea, nay, tweak this, 
tweak that and get that feedback, but your -- your thoughts, sergeant?   
 
Frasier:  Yes.  Thank you.  I'm comfortable with that.  It was an idea I proposed and it's 
an answer to the greater question is what is the city's stance on the issue.  Or would like 
to do about it, if that's what the city as a whole decides.  I'm comfortable with that.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Ms. Kane, thoughts?   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Bernt, that is easy enough.  Would the Council like 
that draft to come back for review and, then, set the matter for public hearing or just rewrite 
and set the matter for public hearing?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I would be satisfied with just receiving an e-mail copy prior to a public hearing.  
I don't know if the Council -- fellow Council Members have thoughts on that, but --  
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   

Page 23

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 20 of 23 

Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I think that leaves a significant lack of clarity regarding golf carts, which it seems 
like we have a flawed ordinance now.  I'm not supportive right now moving forward, unless 
we have some data that justifies a public safety reason for moving forward, which I have 
not seen.  I still think it's an improvement to have a speed limit -- I think if we are going to 
do it it's an improvement to have it done by speed limit and not by a definition of a type of 
roadway.  I would encourage us to include golf carts in the speed -- within the allowed 
alternative vehicles.  I see a lot of people in golf carts in my neighborhood.  It's never 
been an issue.  Any issue I have seen has already been illegal under existing law.  So, 
that's what my struggle is still.  So, I'm not supportive of moving forward with an ordinance 
right now, but I would say if you do want to do it, that's totally cool, but I would just make 
sure you address the golf cart question.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  And as I read through the draft -- and you might make sure I completely 
understand.  Under the definitions of off highway vehicle it included -- shall be defined as 
all-terrain vehicles, which are ATVs, motorbikes, specialty off highway vehicles and that 
was a golf cart for that definition there and, then, any UTVs or utility type vehicles.  Is that 
correct?  So, golf carts would be included as an OHV, as would be defined in -- as defined 
in this ordinance; correct?   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Hoaglun, yes, that is correct.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.   
 
Kane:  The state statute defines OHVs as specialty off highway vehicles, ATVs, UTVs, 
and motorbikes.  But our city code as drafted doesn't include motorbikes.  That's not an 
issue we are seeing at all.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Ms. Kane, if you might expound on motorbikes, because I did see something 
last night for the first time that -- it was a little more than an electric bicycle and it was 
going quite fast, but when I looked and it went past and there was no license on it 
whatsoever and two people and -- it was really beefed up.  So, is that a motorbike or what 
are we talking when you say motorbike now?   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Hoaglun, there is a distinction between an electric 
bike and a motorbike and a moped and a motorcycle.  So, who knows.  It's there.  It's all 
kinds of new gadgets out there and for the most part the state code covers them and 

Page 24

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 21 of 23 

makes some distinctions, but I think there are some things on the road that defy definition 
by the state code.   
 
Simison:  And, you know, I think where I have navigated to in this conversation, at least 
right now by most of the conversations, if you can license it and register it and have a 
license and insurance and have a licensed driver on it, that's one thing.  If you can't it's a 
different thing, you know, from where and how -- but it's -- still it's a huge -- it's -- I don't 
know how long it's taken in this world for people to understand that you can't -- I refer to 
the CR80 -- Honda CR80s that they were not street legal, but it probably took me until I 
was 15 to understand that different concept between seeing XR 250 and a CR80, why 
one could go down the road with knobby tires and why the other couldn't for a kid and I 
think we got to remember, it's our kids who are driving these things.  With or without 
parental knowledge or with or without parental supervision, that's -- that's who I see 
driving all of these.  I don't see adults, you know, from a practical standpoint.  So, what 
makes sense and we just want to make sure that they are -- if they are going to be on 
them that they understand where they can and can't and will they understand the 
difference when they see someone driving down the road, you know, down -- that to me 
is that educational component that I don't know if they will understand until what point in 
time -- oh, that has a mirror and a horn.  Who notices that?  Like, oh, they went to the 
store, I can go to the store.  Just driving in the subdivision, it's just down the street, so --  
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.  I would be okay with having you bring back a revised  
document specifying what we spoke about tonight and just having --  
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor, as part of that revision can we discuss if Council is in agreement 
with the current fine amount or if there is any interest in increasing it?  I have an interest 
in increasing it.  I think it will be more prohibitive, but I'm curious to hear what my fellow 
Council Members have to say.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Mayor, thanks.  So, I think I'm in a similar boat to Council Member Strader.  I      
-- the Mayor has got a good point.  It's licensed, registered, insured -- I don't know if we 
need to classify this as something special, but I guess I would suggest if the topic of 
increasing the fine is something Council is supportive of, let's -- let's present as close to 
what the Transportation Commission has worked on to the public and, then, after we have 
taken that public feedback if we want to make those changes, I think that makes sense, 
unless PD has a recommended fine.  I don't know what the fine structure is for you guys 
when you are citing people for excessive speed or a seatbelt, inattentive driving.  So, I 
wouldn't -- I would hate for us to start wading into unilaterally picking out what that fine 
should be without further guidance from PD.   
 
Simison:  Personally, you know, I'm not a police officer, but I view the fines as educational 
opportunities, rather than a deterrent to behavior.  Sometimes they are, but in this case I 

Page 25

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 22 of 23 

don't -- I don't know that it would deter.  You know, if you are not getting points on your 
license, if you are not being -- I don't know.  Maybe it will be, though.  If it's high enough 
it probably would be, but -- 
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  And I'm just thinking about myself as a youth and I'm 17 years old and I want 
to get somewhere and all I'm going to possibly risk is a 25 dollar fine, who cares.   
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Perreault, it's -- actually with court costs it's closer to 
85.  It's 83.50 if court costs are 58.50.  So, it would significantly increase with the court 
costs, if that matters.   
 
Simison:  Any direction?  
 
Kane:  Mr. Mayor, just to make sure I understood, Council President Bernt's direction, we 
come back with a draft and, then, move forward or update the draft and go forward with 
a public hearing?   
 
Simison:  If the draft is sent electronically to Council, and, then, schedule for a public 
hearing on the topic.  So, we want a regular public hearing, just a work session topic.  
Yeah.   
 
Kane:  Okay.  There needs to be a 30 day comment period and the Idaho Parks and Rec 
Department needs to be notified, so that Council can consider their comments, if any.  So, 
it needs to be at least 30 days out.   
 
Simison:  Take your time.  All right.  Thirty days.  Whatever.  Okay.  Thank you.  Council, 
do I have a motion?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we adjourn.   
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  Motion and a second to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed 
nay.  The ayes have it.  We are adjourned.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.   
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 5:41 P.M.   

Page 26

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
June 22, 2021  
Page 23 of 23 

 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 27

Item #1.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the June 22, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting

Page 28

Item #2.



Meridian City Council                                                      June 22, 2021. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  6:02 p.m., Tuesday,  June 
22, 2021, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison, Luke Cavener, Treg Bernt, Jessica Perreault, Liz 
Strader and Brad Hoaglun. 
 
Members Absent:  Joe Borton. 
 
Also present:  Adrienne Weatherly, Bill Nary, Sonya Allen, Joe Dodson, Warren Stewart, 
Jamie Leslie, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     _____ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call this meeting to order.  For the record it is June 22nd, 2021.  
It's 6:02 p.m.  We will begin this regular City Council meeting with roll call attendance.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Simison:  Next item is the Pledge of Allegiance.  If you would all, please, rise and join us 
in the pledge.   
 
(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 
 
COMMUNITY INVOCATION 
 
Simison:  There will be no community invocation this evening.  As I understand it our 
individual was unable to make it.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Simison:  So, with that we will move on to the adoption of the agenda.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt. 
 
Bernt:  There is one change to the agenda.  Due to the accelerated nature by the federal 
government to declare Juneteenth a national holiday on Thursday, January -- or, excuse 
me, Thursday, June 17th, to take an effect on June 19th.  We were unable to add this 

Page 29

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 2 of 71  

proclamation to the agenda prior to publishing.  Additionally, it was not known if our friends 
with the NAACP would join us this evening until yesterday.  So, we would like to amend 
our agenda to add this proclamation by the City of Meridian to honor the Juneteenth 
holiday.  We will make that item one right before two, the Pickleball Proclamation.  So, 
with that I would like to make a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, I will second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the amended -- agenda as amended.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes 
have it and the agenda as amended is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 
 
Simison:  With that we will move on to Item 1, which is Juneteenth Day and Council 
President Bernt will lead us in this proclamation.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, point of order.  Pardon me.  We do have people signed up for the 
public forum.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then I apologize for skipping over that item.  We will need to go to the 
public forum first.  So, Madam Clerk, I will turn this over to you.   Who signed up?   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  We have three people signed in for the public forum 
tonight.  The first of which is -- excuse me -- Sally Reynolds.   
 
Simison:  And I apologize for skipping over that portion.  If you can state your name and 
address and you will be recognized for three minutes. 
 
Reynolds:  Certainly.  So, I have some slides.  I believe Sonya is bringing those up.  Okay.  
My name is Sally Reynolds.  I reside at 1166 West Bacall Street in Meridian.  So, I'm here 
to talk about Meridian city transparency and accountability.  Yesterday morning the City 
Planning Department issued a TCO that allows a 24 hour grocery store to open on a 
major highway despite surrounding road improvements that are not completed, which 
was a requirement of the corresponding DA.  The DA language is up there for you to read.  
Said condition was predicated on Council's concern for public safety and flow of traffic in 
response to one of the largest public outcries during a public hearing this city has ever 
witnessed.  This is what the reality was.  What has happened has happened and nothing 
will change that.  I'm here to speak to the bigger issue this brought to light, the 
transparency and accountability of City Hall departments.  How can we learn from the 
situation, improve protocols and demand better.  Development agreements are not just a 
casual footnote to an improved application.  They are the result of thousands of hours of 
hard work and a multi-pronged process that includes the developer, city staff, P&Z and 
public comments.  Ultimately Council approves a carefully crafted and legally binding 

Page 30

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 3 of 71  

agreement that is in Meridian city's best interest.  In this case the application took three 
years to go through the approval process, had thousands of public comments and went 
all the way to the city courts for review.  So, how did a requirement of such a high profile 
development agreement completely lose its teeth?  Who approved the substantive 
deviation from the DA's original intent?  The optics on this are troubling.  Essentially the 
message to the Meridian residents is this:  The actions taken by City Council during a 
public hearing in the ensuing days are inconsequential.  At any point thereafter the city 
may change its mind by ignoring or contorting the intent of the Council's official action.  
Those troubling aspects are why I propose a future meeting topic, if not a special 
investigation, into how can the intent of Council and the language in the DA be so 
flagrantly disregarded and how was the language in the DA circumvented.  Also how can 
we ensure the integrity of our City Council's actions in the DA -- and the DA terms.  I tried 
to be a watchdog the last several weeks and called the city planning department for 
progress updates.  The people I spoke with led me to believe that the business could not 
operate on a TCO and that no C of O would be issued until the road improvements were 
complete.  I believe that many of you on this Council felt the same way, which is why 
weeks ago you asked for road updates from the developer, but he did not provide 
answers.  Why not?  In closing, I hope you will agree that the optics on this are puzzling, 
if not deeply disturbing.  It baffles me how on an application as important as this one, at 
the gateway to our city, there wasn't more stringent oversight, even routine checks and 
balances that should have ensured City Council's intended motion is properly executed.  
Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, next is Denise LaFever.   
 
LaFever:  Hello.  My name is Denise Hanson-LaFever and I'm at 6706 North Salvia Way.  
I would like to continue on with -- and expand upon Sally's comments.  A few weeks before 
the TCO in question was issued north Meridian residents received a grand opening 
announcement from Winco.  How did Winco officially know there would be a grand 
opening granted a TCO with the parameters to fully operate before -- before one was 
officially issued?  What do you say to residents suffering to unsafe traffic conditions and 
commuter sitting in gridlock who now know Meridian city amplified those issues by 
allowing a 24 hour facility on a major highway to open prior to completed road 
construction?  Road safety is not just a concern of ACHD and ITD, it is a quality of life 
indicator.  Meridian city has the final say on a CO -- CO's issuance.  Common sense 
dictates that issuing a TCO to a store that by ACHD and ITD traffic counts would bring 
between 20 and 30 thousand cars per day to this corner is highly irresponsible.  I would 
like to also underscore Sally's concern about transparency.  From a resident's point of 
view what has transpired raises questions like is this -- are -- is there a city employee 
whose authority supersedes the City Council?  Does City Council have procedures for 
issuing certifications of occupancy and to specifically scrutinize DA terms?  What are the 
procedures for City Council concerning compliance, implementation of DAs?  Who is 
responsible to see they are implemented correctly?  Council has the right and the 
responsibility to ask city staff what happened.  This is an election year and the residents 

Page 31

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 4 of 71  

are sure to hear about government transparency and accountability.  I respectfully ask 
you take this opportunity stand up for the people who elected you, who asked you to 
represent them.  As residents we have no legal recourse or avenue for redress in this 
situation.  The state's Attorneys General does not have jurisdiction over cities and the 
county prosecutor's office only handles criminal police reports filed against the city.  If the 
city planning department decides to go rogue and the Mayor condones or encourages the 
behavior, there is zero government oversight, zero accountability and absolutely no 
consequences for its actions.  Quite literally City Hall answers to no one.  Bottom line, 
any and all accountability is the City Council's responsibility.  Please ask for future meeting 
topics regarding deviations from C-C actions and DA actions and I respectfully ask that 
you do an investigation to find out and get to the bottom line of what happened here.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, lastly on the list we have Dave Eastman.   
 
Simison:  If you would just like to submit them for the record.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, that's all we had signed up.   
 
PROCLAMATIONS [Action Item] 
 
 1.  Juneteenth Day 
 
Simison:  All right.  Thank you.  So, with that we will move back to Item 1, which is the 
Juneteenth Day Proclamation.  President Taylor, if you would like to join Council President 
Bernt at the podium.   
 
Bernt:  Want to welcome President Taylor and Mr. Baber and Victor for being here this 
evening representing the NAACP.  I will start off by reading the proclamation.  Whereas 
on June 19th, 1865, Major General Gordon Granger of the Union Army landed in 
Galveston, Texas, bringing news that the Civil War had ended and all the slaves were free 
and whereas one year after freedom was granted to black men, women, and children the 
first celebration of Juneteenth also known as Emancipation Day, Liberation Day, and 
Jubilee Day in its early years was held and whereas since then Juneteenth has -- has 
long been celebrated among the African American community for its historical significance 
and whereas Juneteenth National Independence Day became a federal holiday in 2021 
raising the public awareness of this date to all the people of the United States and 
whereas it is important to recognize how Juneteenth has impacted the lives of all 
Americans, especially those in the African American community.  Therefore, I, Council -- 
Council President Treg A. Bernt, representing -- on behalf of Robert E. -- Robert E. 
Simison, our Mayor, hereby proclaim June 19th, 2021, Juneteenth Day in the City of 
Meridian and encourage all citizens to recognize and observe the historical significance 
of this day, dated the 19th day of June 2021.   
 
Taylor:  Thank you, Mayor Simison, City Council President Treg Bernt, and the entire 

Page 32

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 5 of 71  

membership of the City Council.  It was just a little over four months ago when I stood in 
the Council Chambers to receive another proclamation on behalf of the Treasure Valley 
Branch NAACP.  A proclamation proclaiming Black History Month in the City of Meridian, 
Idaho.  While Idaho as a state recognized Black History Month, Meridian is the first city, 
to my knowledge, in the state to proclaim Black History in the city and, again, I stand here 
in these halls to receive yet another proclamation.  This one in recognition and celebration 
of Juneteenth Day in the City of Meridian, Idaho.  Following the passage of the Juneteeth 
National Independence Day Act, which President Biden signed into law Thursday, June 
the 17th, 2021, the Juneteeth Day, being the 11th federal holidays to be recognized in 
this nation.  The governor of the state of Idaho signed a proclamation that recognized the 
19th of June a state holiday to be celebrated on Friday, 18th of June.  Meridian, to my 
knowledge, has become the first Idaho city to proclaim the 19th of June or Juneteeth as 
the day to celebrate the day in which African American slaves in the state of Texas was 
told that they was free nearly two and a half years after the signing of the Emancipation 
Proclamation in 1863 by President Lincoln.  So, today I am heartened to witness yet 
another first by the leadership of the City of Meridian, Idaho, and their determination of 
being the example of that shining city on a hill and I thank you, President Bernt, Mayor 
Simison, and the entire City Council membership, thank you again.   
 
Bernt:  Before we take a picture I just want to say how grateful I am for the opportunity to 
extend this proclamation to our good friends at the NAACP.  Thank you folks for coming 
this evening and thank you, the City of Meridian, for the support.  Today's a great day.  
Thank you for coming, president.  Let's take a picture.   
 
Hoaglun:  Well, Mr. Mayor, as our Council President makes his way back up, I'm just glad 
to see that we are doing this.  It's a great proclamation and I think it's one all the city --  
residents of the City of Meridian can get behind, because this is a proclamation about 
freedom.  I mean we know the principles our country was founded on.  We celebrated 
Fourth of July and this is a freedom for -- for people who now have that full opportunity of 
life, liberty, and pursuit of happiness.  So, you can always get behind proclamations for 
freedom and recognition of freedom and -- and we have got a long ways to go in this 
country for that full opportunity, but I think it's great when we recognize that -- that 
opportunity that was now given to everybody.  So, it's exciting.  Thank you, Mayor, for 
making this happen and also Council President Bernt for -- for doing that and just a great 
great great great day.   
 
 2.  USA Pickleball Championship Month 
 
Simison:  Agreed.  Awesome, guys.  Thank you, President Taylor.  With that we will move 
on to another proclamation for this evening.  If I could invite Bill Rapp with the SportsRapp 
Marketing and whoever else you would like to join me at the podium.  We will do another 
-- another proclamation.   
 
Simison:  There is a little tournament going on right here?   
 
Rapp:  Yes.  I got about a thousand players from 32 states that -- 

Page 33

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 6 of 71  

Simison:  Yeah.  Well, I think we are all familiar with how crazed there is in the community 
for pickleball from that standpoint.  I would like to say that I was an early adapter -- 
meaning I spent one year up in Seattle in high school.  So, 33 years ago we played 
pickleball indoors.  That was my first time I got to experience it.  I actually haven't played 
it since.  So, I got to get back -- I got to get out on the court and try -- and try -- yeah.  
Exactly.  So, we have got our pickleball aficionado, who is maybe a little too aggressive 
for some of our City Council members.  We will have to see.  So, we are going to do a 
proclamation in honor of the tournament that's occurring.   
 
Rapp:  So, we can say, Mayor, so you are a pickleball stud.   
 
Bernt:  That's what I'm talking about. 
 
Simison:  Well, maybe.  We will see.  We will see.  So, proclamation.  Whereas 2021 
marks the 56th anniversary of pickleball and in their 2020 pickleball participant report the 
Sports and Fitness Industry Association report pickleball currently had 3.46 million players 
in the U.S. and whereas the City of Meridian has 26 pickleball courts in our community 
with future plans have another 12 in the next few years and it is estimated that every U.S. 
state and all Canadian provinces now have pickleball venues, including senior resident 
communities, YMCAs, local community recreation centers, schools and parks.  And 
whereas the U.S. Pickleball Association was formed in 2005 to promote the sport and 
maintains the official rules, sanctions tournaments, provides player rankings and 
produces the annual USA Pickleball National Championships Tournament and whereas 
the 2021 Pacific Northwest Regional Championship will be held at Settlers Park in the 
City of Meridian as the main event site hosting nearly one thousand players and over one 
thousand guests traveling from more than 30 U.S. states and whereas this event will have 
significant economic impact in Meridian and throughout the Treasure Valley through 
partnerships with Meridian Chamber of Commerce and local Idaho businesses.  
Therefore, I, Mayor Robert E. Simison, hereby proclaim June 2021 to be USA Pickleball 
Championship Month in the City of Meridian and encourage all citizens to learn more 
about this fast growing sport, come out to watch this historic event and to seriously 
consider becoming a pickleball player and be -- and begin taking advantage of health, 
exercise, and social benefits of this sport, dated this 22nd day of June, 2021.  So, with 
that I will say congratulations and welcome you to make some comments about pickleball 
as it has been occurring in our community.   
 
Rapp:  Thank you, Mayor.  Well, I am the co-tournament director with the gentleman right 
here.  Mike, put your hand up.  Mike Hoxie.  Mike Hoxie is the executive director for Pacific 
Northwest USA Pickleball and so I was privileged to be hired by Mike, who has run 
tournaments probably for longer than anyone in the United States and has incredible 
experience.  I actually come from the world of professional tennis down in California, that 
crazy state.  I'm glad to be out of there, by the way.  Did that for about 30 years and now 
I'm moving into the pickleball world and it's incredible and I'm pleased to also have worked 
with numerous folks within the City of Meridian and also with a neighboring city and I just 
want to share that this city -- and there is a gentleman right over here -- I believe, Joe, 
are you the one I talked to?  You look like a pickleball stud, too.  Just want to say is every 

Page 34

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 7 of 71  

department that I have worked closely with, which usually I try to avoid working with any 
cities on any projects, this -- this city runs like a profitable business, with classy people, 
like Garrett and Skylar and like Joe over here and Shawn in your police department and 
so I just want to compliment the City of Meridian for being a city of firsts in my book.  I 
have never worked with a city quite like this.  The other person I would like to call out 
tonight is Sean Evans, who I believe is here.  I had one meeting with him and I did order 
a beer that had pickle juice in it and before we started our lunch I didn't know Sean, but I 
found out he was a wild man, because he drank my beer before I drank it.  So, yeah, 
almost moved to the other city, but we worked that out.  So, I also want to say -- is there 
is only one reason, besides a great city to be in, that makes for a great event and that's 
the people.  So, I have people here from multiple states around the country that joined 
our team and this is a ten month event -- it takes ten months to put an event like this 
together.  We had just over three months.  So, based on the people that you see over to 
my right, who are unbelievable people, I just want to say this is where the -- the thanks 
and the glory and heroes, as, Jen, you like to call it, from zero to hero and so this is a big 
deal for us.  I will say it's nothing compared to the Juneteenth thing that just happened 
here with you gentlemen and, by the way, we are patriots and we love what just happened 
tonight.  Yeah.  So, that's it, Mayor, and thank you for the proclamation and Meridian is 
an unbelievable city.   
 
Simison:  So, Councilman Bernt, I know we are talking about getting the Council together 
for an event.  Maybe it's a pickleball tournament in the park once they clear out.   
 
Bernt:  I'm down and clown anytime for pickleball.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 3.  Public Hearing for Speedy Quick (CR-2021-0003) by Clark Wardle,  
  Located at 2560 S. Meridian Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Council Review of the Planning Director’s determination of 
   denial for a reduced rear setback for a new accessory structure. 
 
Simison:  All right.  With that we will move on to Item No. 3, a public hearing for Speedy 
Quick, CR-2021-0003.  Mr. Nary, shall I open this public hearing or do we just have to 
move for continuance?   
 
Nary:  We need to open the hearing.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then I will open this public hearing.  Is there any staff comments at this 
time?  Nope.  Okay.  Then do I have a motion?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor, does -- I think that the applicant is here.  Do they wish to say something 
before we continue this or do we just want to continue it?  Okay.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   

Page 35

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 8 of 71  

Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we continue the public hearing for Speedy Quick, CR-2021-0003  
to the meeting on July 6th, 2021.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to continue this public hearing to July 6th.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes 
have it and the item is continued.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 4.  Public Hearing for Roberts Annexation Easement Vacation (H-2021- 
  0038) by Benjamin Semple of Rodney Evans and Partners, Located at 
  1630 E. Paradise Ln. 
 
  A. Request: Vacation of a 5-foot drainage, utility construction and  
   maintenance easement platted between two lots (Lots 2 & 3, Block  
   1 of Heritage Subdivision No. 2). 
 
Simison:  Our next item up is the public hearing for Roberts Annexation, easement 
vacation, H-2020-0038.  I will open this public hearing with staff comments.   
 
Allen:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  The first application before you 
tonight is a request for a vacation of an easement.  This site consists of 1.77 acres of 
land.  It's zoned R-2 and is located at 1630 East Paradise Lane, which is south of East 
McMillan Road, on the east side of North Locust Grove Road.  The Comprehensive Plan 
future land use map designation is low density residential.  This property, Lots 2 and 3, 
Block 2, Heritage Subdivision No. 2, was annexed into the city last month with an R-2 
zoning district in order for the applicant to construct a new home on the property and hook 
up to city water and sewer service.  A provision of annexation requires the existing public 
utility easements on the two lots to be vacated and a property boundary adjustment 
application submitted to combine the two lots into one property prior to issuance of a 
building permit.  The applicant proposes to vacate the existing public utility easements 
that lie along the south side of Lot 2 and the north side of Lot 3, Block 1, and has submitted 
a property boundary adjustment application to the city to consolidate the two lots as 
required.  Relinquishment letters for the easements have been submitted for all potential 
easement holders, including CenturyLink, Idaho Power, Intermountain Gas, Sparklight 
and Syringa Networks.  They are all consenting to the proposed vacation of the 
easements.  There has been no written testimony submitted on this application and staff 
is recommending approval.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions for staff?  Okay.  Is the applicant here?  
Would they like to provide testimony?   
 

Page 36

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 9 of 71  

Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, the applicant is online.   
 
Simison:  Okay.   
 
Semple:  Mr. Mayor, Members of City Council, Ben Semple with Rodney Evans & 
Partners.  1450 West Bannock Street, Boise, Idaho.  83702.  We don't have anything to 
add.  It's just a simple vacation.  We did get all of the relinquish -- relinquishment letters 
from the easement holders and so we feel like it's already done.  I will stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions for the applicant?  Madam Clerk, do we 
have anybody signed up to provide testimony on this item?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, we do not.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody in the audience who would like to come forward and 
provide testimony on this item or anybody online wanting to provide testimony?  If you 
are online you can use the raise your hand feature.  Seeing no one wishing to provide 
testimony, Council, do I have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  After considering all staff, applicant testimony, I move to approve File No. H- 
2021-0038 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of June 22nd, 2021.   
 
Simison:  Need to move to close the public hearing first.   
 
Hoaglun:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Mr. Mayor, how about if I move to close the public hearing on H- 
2021-0038.   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion on the motion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The 
ayes have it.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Hoaglun:  Now I'm ready to roll, Mr. Mayor.   
 
Simison:  Mr. Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  After considering all staff and applicant testimony, I move to approve file number 
H-2021-0038 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of June 22nd, 2021.   
 

Page 37

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 10 of 71  

Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Item H-2021-0003.  Is there any 
discussion on the motion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, absent; Cavener, yea; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the item is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 5.  Public Hearing for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-0021) by Schultz 
  Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd.  
 
  A.  Request: Annexation and Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8  
   zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 19 single-family residential 
   lots and 4 common lots on 5.25 acres of land. 
 
Simison:  Next item up is a public hearing for Prevail North Subdivision, H-2021-0021.  
We will open this public hearing with staff comments, turn this over to Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of Council, and good evening.  Thank you for 
your proclamations today.  Very much appreciate them.  As noted the next item is Prevail 
North Subdivision.  The subject property consists of 5.63 acres of land, currently zoned 
C-2 in the county, specifically located at 5150 South Meridian Road, which is 
approximately a quarter mile south of Amity on Meridian Road.  To the north is R-4 zoning 
and the city property that is undeveloped.  Also in that area is a county dispatch tower 
that also resides north of the property.  To the east is R-8 zoning, but undeveloped land.  
To the south is R-8 zoning that is being developed currently under the Prevail Subdivision, 
which was approved under the Percy Subdivision.  And to the west is Meridian Road.  
Further west of that is a county RUT parcel, as you can see here.  Future land use map 
designates this property as medium density residential, which allows residential uses to 
be constructed at the density of three to eight dwelling units per acre.  As noted, the 
subject site is approximately five acres -- 5.25 for the plat, versus 5.6 for the annexation.  
It is in between multiple parcels that are already annexed into the City of Meridian.  As 
noted, the site to the north is city-owned property that is reserved for a future well site and 
currently only has access to Meridian Road.  The site to the north -- sorry.  The site to the 
south is the 113 lot Prevail Subdivision, which was approved in 2019, currently zoned R-
8 and has an access to Meridian via a collector street, East Court Street, which would be 
right here as a temporary emergency only access to Meridian Road as well, directly south 
of this parcel.  The applicant on this application is the same as that for the Prevail 
Subdivision to the south, which makes Prevail North a continuation of that subdivision.  
The applicant is proposing Prevail North with gross density of 3.42 units per acre, which 

Page 38

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 11 of 71  

is at the low end of the allowable density.  Because this is an extension of the Prevail 
Subdivision to the south, the applicant is aligning the proposed lots with those to the 
south.  Due to the site constraints for it being deep, but relatively narrow, and having a 
waterway along the north boundary, the applicant is only proposing homes on the south 
side of the site.  The revised plat is proposed with 18 building lots and three common lots 
on the five and a quarter acres.  The original had 19 building lots.  It appears to meet all 
UDC dimensional standards for the requested R-8 zoning district.  The project is proposed 
as one phase, but will, essentially, be the phase three of the Prevail Subdivision.  The 
applicant has submitted conceptual elevations of the detached single family homes, but 
this use does not require design review.  But the elevations do depict a majority of two 
story homes with the two car garages, as one -- with varying home styles that are noted 
specifically as traditional, craftsman, and contemporary.  The subject site contains a large 
section of the Carlson Lateral, which can be seen here.  This has both the current -- I 
guess location and topography, as well as the proposed, which is the boxes and the line 
here.  The applicant is proposing to both reroute and pipe this lateral consistent with the 
desires of the city engineer.  Piping this lateral will allow for more buildable area of the 
subject site.  Will fix some of the topography issues with the city-owned property, as well 
as for this site and allow easier maintenance by Boise Project Board of Control.  Staff 
supports the piping of this irrigation lateral and the proposed plan complies with city code.  
The proposed public streets are proposed as 33 foot street sections with attached and 
detached five foot sidewalks, allowing for on-street parking where no driveways exist, 
which does include the entire north side of the street, except for the bulb out at the center.  
Attach sidewalks are proposed -- are proposed along the new street on the south side, 
but the north side is proposed with a parkway.  Access is proposed to be extension of Key 
Port Avenue from the south, which is a local street stubbed to this property already from 
Prevail Subdivision.  The collector street, which is what's the east-west street, is proposed 
as approximately 908 feet in length from the center of the western cul-de-sac to the east 
property line.  Although the length of the street from east to west is greater than 750 feet 
in length, South Key Port intersects the street approximately halfway to break up the block 
length.  So, there are no code issues with the proposed block length.  In addition, UDC 
6C-3, subdivision design standards, notes that dead streets cannot be greater than 500 
feet in length without an intersecting street or without a Council waiver.  Because of South 
Key Port intersecting Liberator at its location, neither the west or the east cul-de-sac is 
greater than 500 feet and, again, does not require any Council waiver and meets code.  
The applicant is also proposing two stub streets to adjacent properties, one to the north 
out of the west cul-de-sac and one to the east out of the east cul-de-sac.  Staff supports 
the overall road layout and stub street locations as proposed on the revised preliminary 
plat.  Though there is potential for topography to complicate the future road extension to 
the east, staff highly recommends maintaining the stub street to the east for added future 
connectivity through the Brighton parcel to the east.  This recommendation is based both 
in Code, UDC 11-3A3, and from recommendations of the Meridian Fire Department for 
better neighborhood connectivity and emergency response access as the properties to 
the south and southeast develop.  The minimum amount of qualified open space that 
should be provided for this site is .53 acres based on a class size of .525.  With the revised 
landscape plans the numbers discussed within the staff report are not accurate and they 
have been updated since the original publication.  The applicant is continuing a segment 

Page 39

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 12 of 71  

of multi-use pathway along Meridian Road frontage, which qualifies as a required amenity.  
Because this plat would be an extension of the already approved Prevail stub to the south, 
the applicant has indicated these future residents will be able to use the other amenities 
and open space within that subdivision.  The closest amenity to this space is an open 
space lot with a playground directly south of Key Port Avenue extension and has a micro 
path in direct alignment with that amenity lot.  So, Prevail North is here.  Key Port, 
micropath, tot lot in the center of the development.  The applicant is proposing 
approximately 1.15 acres of overall open space, which is approximately 22 percent, with 
.74 acres of the area as qualifying, which equals 14 percent.  A change that occurred 
since the original publication in the staff report is that the fencing along the Carlson Lateral 
easement has been moved to make the easement area nonaccessible and, therefore, 
cannot be counted towards a qualified open space, which you can see as the brown area 
on this color plan.  Fencing the easement area off aligns with Boise Project Board of 
Control comments and city code for added safety.  Despite being less than previously 
thought, the proposed open space still exceeds the minimum requirements and staff is 
still in support of the proposed open space and landscaping.  The Commission -- really, 
their only point of discussion was the purpose of rerouting the Carlson Lateral and how 
its -- its new placement can affect any future road extensions from the proposed stub 
street out of the west cul-de-sac.  Other than that they did not have many questions and 
the Commission did recommend approval of the subject application.  There was no written 
testimony prior to the Commission hearing and no written testimony prior to the Council 
meeting.  So, for that I will stand for any questions from Council.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Joe.  Council, any questions for staff?  Okay.  Thank you very much.  
With that I will turn this over to the applicant.  State your name and address and be 
recognized for 15 minutes.   
 
Schultz:  Matt Schultz.  8421 South Ten Mile.  I promise I won't speak 15 minutes, but we 
will see how it goes.  This little -- I call this little sliver of land North Prevail.  When we 
started Prevail two years ago we looked at it, for sale by owner, who pretty proud of the 
price, considering it was approved for mini storage.  They have challenging access and 
that it didn't have any access to Meridian Road, which was the access.  Even so, it's so 
expensive to develop with the 48 inch lateral to the north and the grading and getting lots 
on one side and we passed.  But recently in the last six months we re-evaluated that 
decision and, thought, maybe we should do it.  So, here we are.  It is challenging from an 
engineering standpoint.  It is expensive.  But the market is allowing us to -- we are seeing 
this as a positive endeavor to move forward, but it also importantly for us and probably 
for the city, you get to control the lot size, incorporate them into our HOA, join the pressure 
irrigation system and there is a third dimension to this that you can't picture from these 
exhibits in that there is about ten feet of fall from that -- that tan area on the north, which 
is flat, down to the road, that we are -- Liberator Road and there is another ten foot drop 
from the back of our lots down into Prevail Two.  It's a very challenging site from a grading 
standpoint and coordinating that grading is very important and we are able to do that.  
Having -- having bought this piece and we have already started engineering it and it's -- 
it's even a little bit worse than I thought in terms of the amount of dirt we have to move 
and cut and fill to shape it all in there, but it works.  It's tight, but it works.  So, with that I 

Page 40

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 13 of 71  

think the positives are it incorporates nicely into Prevail.  It's an extension.  It cleans up 
pretty messy little hillside sliver with limited access and it -- it works and we are looking 
forward to developing it over the winter when we can pipe that ditch.  Typically we normally 
ask for a waiver, since it's such a large one, 48 inches.  However, it is up on a hill.  We do 
need to straighten it out and it's very important that we just get that thing underground in 
a concrete pipe and not leave it hanging up on the side of the hill.  Not that it's ever blown 
out, but you never know.  So, it's just -- we are not even asking for a waiver, we are just 
going to pipe it and get it done.  Very expensive and it's just what you need to do.  For me 
there is -- there is only one issue.  I'm going to ask for a little bit of -- we do agree with 
staff's conditions of approval and there is a whole issue about the access that was 
mentioned.  There was a point of -- the only point we kind of discussed with staff going to 
the north.  It's always important to continue and have connectivity to additional properties.  
We are limited by Meridian Road on our west.  We can't access it with vehicles.  We are 
going to access it with a pathway -- a pedestrian pathway.  So, that leaves the property 
the north, which is a city property that's -- that we have this large -- oops.  This large pipe 
up on the top of the hill and we are coming down and we need to get our cul-de-sac up 
over that to provide connections to the north.  So, I'm -- and I know your Public Works 
Department has said we really don't want that connection to the north.  We don't need 
that connection to the north.  I would say if -- if the city parcel could get connections from 
-- from that parcel to the north out to Amity, we would prefer to eliminate that little 
connection.  It would allow us to drop our cul-de-sac about six feet and there is a whole 
lot of slope grading and other complications, but if we have to do it we have to do it.  I'm 
just saying if there is another alternate route in the future to the north out to Amity, that 
would be the way to get to the city property and not through this -- this piece out of the 
end of that west cul-de-sac.  That's all I'm saying.  Our design horizontally stays the same 
with the cul-de-sac where it is, it's just vertically does it -- does it move up or down six feet 
in the air is the only change, which you just can't see here, but we started engineering 
plans a little bit early, so we kind of know where we are at and that's my only request.  But 
other than that -- I know Brighton's saying that -- that stub street for the east will never go 
through.  It's their, you know, last phase.  They claim it's eight years out.  It is -- there is a 
drop off as you go east down into a ravine where the city sewer goes through.  So, it is 
challenged with some topography going east, as well as north.  I'm just saying the one to 
the north, we would like a waiver from it to not have to lift it up so high to get up and over 
that pipe and just kind of be able to drop it down and blend in the -- the topography a little 
bit better.  But we can live with either decision.  And I hate to see Public Works and 
Planning disagree, but it's -- it's kind of interesting.  But other than that is just one of those 
issues that's come up at Public Works.  It doesn't need it, but Planning says we really like 
it and so -- but it's a future city water tank site.  I guess it's five to ten years out.  It's 
situated at the top of the hill, which is where you want your water tanks.  It's the high point 
of south Meridian and that's why we have some topographical challenges.  So, with that 
I will stand for any questions and ask for your approval.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Matt.  Council, any questions?  Okay.  Thank you very much.  
Madam Clerk, do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony on this item?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, we do not.   

Page 41

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 14 of 71  

Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody in the audience who would like to come forward and 
provide testimony?  Now would be the time to do so.  Or if you are online and would like 
to provide testimony, please, use the raise your hand feature and you will be unmuted.  
Seeing no one wishing to provide testimony in either fashion -- so, would the applicant 
like any final comments?  Nope?  So, Council, turn this over to you for questions, 
comments, or motions.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Question for Mr. Stewart in our Public Works Department.  If you wouldn't mind,  
Warren, explaining the situation for that north stub a little more for us.  This is for a future 
water storage facility that we have to be prepared for?  What -- or is there something 
already -- and there is -- is there an existing well site there already or both?   
 
Stewart:  Thank you, Councilman Hoaglun.  Mr. Mayor.  Members of the Council.  We -- 
we bought this property a number of years ago.  After we bought the -- the reservoir site 
on Locust Grove Road, just south of Victory, and there was a lot of work that had to be 
done with the community to -- to put that water tank in.  We wanted to make sure that the 
next water tank that we put in that we were out way ahead of that.  So, we bought this 
property a few years ago, knowing that we were going to need a water tank out in this 
area.  It's one of the things that Matt brought up is it's on the top of the hill, so we have 
got a lot of elevation there, which is good.  We can gravity to -- for pressure in the system 
for -- if that's the direction that we decided to go.  We also think it might serve as a good 
well site in addition to the reservoir site in the future.  The conundrum that we are running 
into here between us and, essentially, Planning -- Planning has their rules in one thing 
and another about connectivity.  The City of Meridian site comes -- has a direct access 
off of Meridian Road.  It's a deeded access from ITD.  We have already confirmed ITD 
has no intentions of taking that away.  We will have to bring in large trucks and vehicles    
-- semi trucks and so forth into this site, not only for construction, but also chlorine delivery 
and other things on an ongoing basis for operations and maintenance.  We feel that it is 
a much better solution for us to bring those in directly off Meridian Road, rather than to 
wind through a residential subdivision to get into our facility.  So, we would like to keep 
the access that we have off of Meridian Road and be able to utilize that for access to the 
site.  There is also on the western portion of this site a large radio receiver tower that sits 
there that belongs to the county and so you have got both of those pieces -- elements in 
there.  You can see it on the far right picture, that little kind of triangular shaped piece, 
that's the -- that's the tower.  That's the communication tower.  We plan to site our reservoir 
and potentially a future well site immediately to the east of that.  So, there is not a whole 
lot of place for that road that goes up right there on -- just off of Meridian Road.  There is 
not a whole lot of place for that to go anyway and its typography is challenging, to say the 
least.  So, that's the situation and I will answer any additional questions that you may 
have.   
 
Simison:  So, Warren, just kind of follow up on that.  Is it that you need -- that you want 

Page 42

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 15 of 71  

that access for construction or you want to take that access at all times?   
 
Stewart:  We would prefer to have that access at all times.  We think -- this is kind of an 
industrial facility.  We would prefer to have an access even for operation and 
maintenance.  We have to -- you know, we have to bring well drilling rigs in there 
periodically just to clean the well and, really, don't feel like winding through the subdivision 
is the way to access that site.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Yes, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  I would also like to comment on this, just to clarify two things.  One, when the 
city property does develop -- to maintain that access they will need a waiver from City 
Council, because our code does not allow that, because they -- if they have a lesser 
classified street to take access from, which, then, leads to this project and this site.  Staff 
is not -- by proposing a street from this site to that site we are not saying that they cannot 
have that access, but, obviously, it would be required to request a waiver from City 
Council.  Nor am I telling Public Works that they should circumnavigate the residential 
development order to do that.  If ITD says that it's okay I'm assuming that that property 
will -- when that project comes through Council will take that into account.  But that's -- 
that property is not on the docket tonight.  Our code does require those additional stub 
streets for connectivity.  So, if it is Council's purview to remove one or both stubs, that is 
your purview through the Council waiver.   
 
Stewart:  Mr. Mayor, if you will.   
 
Simison:  Yes, Warren.   
 
Stewart:  City Council.  We understand that.  We are -- you know, we realized that that 
arm wrestle may come at a future date.  Just wanted to kind of offer perspective from our 
proposed use of that facility, what we think.  We will -- we will work with whatever we need 
to.  But for the time being we will just fence it.   
 
Simison:  Something for a future -- and this is where my question is -- at what cost are we 
going to build a road from Meridian Road into the site, because we got to go around a 
few corners once a year or once every other year.  I -- that's a conversation for -- maybe 
for the future, but in part today, I guess.  I -- it's a legitimate question I would have from 
that.  I mean we do have another well site inside a subdivision.  Granted you don't have 
to go through corners to get there, but --  
 
Stewart:  Yes.  Mayor, there is one other sort of mitigating factor, if you will, that the Council 
probably ought to be aware of.  Because that is the lateral, the irrigation district has a 
maintenance road that goes back there.  That access road already exists.  It's the access 
road for our site and for the maintenance of that lateral.  That will not go away.  The 
irrigation district is going to insist that that be maintained, that there be an access along 

Page 43

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 16 of 71  

that ditch no matter what and so that road will probably always be there, whether we are 
allowed to use it or not, because the irrigation district will insist that they have it for 
maintenance and so that road already exists into the site and it's an improved gravel road.  
I just wanted you guys to be aware of that that little nuance exists.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I don't know, Warren, if you can tell me -- I mean this is a site with three separate 
applications -- or we will have three eventually.  We got the radio tower.  That's for the 
county.  We have got a City of Meridian well site.  And, then, a water storage site at some 
point in the future.  And so there are three -- three different activities going on.  The most 
active one I'm assuming would be -- is it the well that needs the chemicals or is it the 
storage facility that will need it?  I don't know how many active trucks will be going to that 
tower site for occasional possible maintenance or just checking the site, but can you tell 
me about the water and storage and well site and how much access is needed for that, 
how often?   
 
Stewart:  Sure.  So, the first piece of that puzzle that will go -- well, of course, the tower 
is already there.  That's owned by the county.  It's not even on our property.  They have 
their own piece of property.  But it is a big facility there that, you know, takes up a fair 
amount of space.  The first thing that will go in on our side is the water tank itself and, 
then, in association with that water tank will also be a booster station.  It will look very 
similar to the facility that you see on -- on Locust Grove Road south of Victory.  And so 
that will be the first elements that get put in place.  There are situations where -- well, for 
one, because there is a booster station and a tank, our operations and maintenance crews 
will visit it multiple times a week with their regular vehicles and equipment.  Every time 
we have to go in and do maintenance on a pump there will have to be a crane tractor that 
comes in there, lifts the pumps and motors out of the roof and one thing and another.  
That happens periodically.  But that's, you know, hopefully only every few years that that 
takes place.  There might also be a need for chlorine injection to keep the water fresh.  
We don't know that until the design is complete until we, you know, get the opportunity to 
work through those issues.  But certainly if we, then, go ahead and put a well on -- which 
is not for sure, because we would have to do a test well first and find out whether that's a 
good candidate for a well site.  We think because of its proximity to the reservoir that it 
might be.  But if that went in, then, there would be certainly delivery of chlorine to the site 
for chlorine injection.  There would definitely be people visiting it every day and every now 
and again -- every five years or so there would be a big drilling rig that would come in and 
set up and -- over the top of the well and clean and -- and service the well and put it back 
into service after they are done.  So, that kind of gives you a flavor of what takes place.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 

Page 44

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 17 of 71  

Strader:  Warren -- and maybe give us a flavor -- like a drill rig sounds like a -- like a very 
sizable vehicle to me.  Maybe just give us an idea of, you know, the -- the real constraints 
around getting these vehicles to that site.   
 
Stewart:  Well, it is -- it is a big rig.  That's the biggest one I can foresee going in there.  
But those drill rigs are -- are very large -- large apparatus.  They are probably the size of 
our biggest fire trucks or maybe even bigger and so -- I mean could we go through that 
subdivision?  Perhaps.  The thing that concerns me is immediately north of the little cul- 
de-sac, the northern stub that you see there, if you can see where that tower is, you see 
the fence -- you can see that fencing across there.  Immediately to the north is the -- is 
the tower.  So, we would have to make a pretty significant right turn pretty quick to get 
back into the site and you can see where that tower property is, we would come out of 
that little bulbous cul-de-sac going on the north and we would have to immediately turn 
to the right to come over to where we plan to put the -- that's going to be a tight turn to 
get one of those big rigs in.  Whether we can do it or not I don't know.  I haven't actually 
put the radiuses on there to see if that -- how easy or not that's going to be.  But it's going 
to be -- it's going to be challenging.  I think the bigger question is do we need a public 
street diving into that industrial facility.  I don't know.  I'm not here to try and argue this 
point tonight.  I really am not.  I'm not trying to give our Planning Department a hard time.  
I just want to -- you know, from our perspective what we feel like we need versus what we 
don't necessarily need.  If this is going to be a subdivision to the north, I can certainly 
understand that -- that access.  But that's not what it will be.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  If Council were to consider a waiver in the situation would that need to be a 
separate noticed public hearing from what we are doing this evening?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Perreault, that is -- no, it would be included in your 
motion tonight.    
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, question for Joe real quick.  So --  
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  So, that -- that stub to the north, it's just -- staff was looking at it as a connection 
for that -- for those properties of that -- by the city and county.  There -- there will not be 
any additional access that you can see or -- we know there is not an application there or 
anything, but is that what staff is looking at, that there is some potential for connection for 
other development out there besides what is planned now?   
 
Dodson:  Councilman Hoaglun, that's a good question.  I would say that because that 

Page 45

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 18 of 71  

application hasn't come through and I assume, as discussed, that the city Public Works 
is going to ask for that connection and because of the examples of the use of the drill rigs 
I can conceivably say the staff may support that waiver in a future application.  I don't 
necessarily see an issue that -- it would also be another great access for fire.  Getting a 
thumbs up.  So, that -- yeah, that -- that plays a part in it.  To the north of the city property, 
north of the county site, there is a property here that is currently I believe approved for 
some type of storage.  However, that, with the changing market, has come across in 
meetings of maybe going to a residential, which, again, having an additional public road 
connection that isn't Meridian Road is part of what our comp plan and what our code talks 
about.  So, yes, having a public road bisect a piece of a city property is not ideal, which 
is why the applicant worked with Public Works and moved it from the east cul-de-sac to 
the west cul-de-sac, because of sewer easement, because of topography, because of the 
potential -- or proposed location of the well and reservoir.  So, those things have been 
taken into account, again, for planning future connectivity that is what we would like.  I do 
want it to just be reminded that the city property isn't before us tonight and, then, on top 
of that, because it's ending in a cul-de-sac with a little stub of right of way, there is no 
requirement that I know of, unless ACHD can correct me, that that road will have to be 
extended into the city's site.  If the city's site comes in and they say, no, we just want to 
have our access, it is what it is and, then, there is just a fence, because it is in a cul-de- 
sac.  So, there is potential for different alternatives coming forward once the city site 
develops, which, again, five to ten years we will see how development in south Meridian 
works, but at least for now staff -- Planning staff wants that opportunity.   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Yes, Joe.   
 
Bongiorno:  Since Joe brought it up, that access to the city property would have potential 
to give us another access into Prevail.  As it sits right now Prevail only has one way in 
and one way out for that whole subdivision, including this new piece that -- that is being 
added onto it.  There -- there is a temporary emergency access there, but as things are 
growing out here this temporary emergency access is turning into more of a permanent 
emergency access.  So, it would be beneficial for the Fire Department to also leave that 
little nub there just in case we need to get through to Meridian Road.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Question for deputy chief.  Then if that access is there, the stub there to the 
lane north and that road -- we know the lateral is not going to go away, that's going to be 
there for maintenance purposes and it sounds like it's improved gravel, does that become 
the emergency access for that subdivision or will that still need to be maintained for that 
-- where they are showing it now as well?   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Hoaglun, I -- it would have to be maintained and we 

Page 46

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 19 of 71  

-- it's kind of like Warren was talking as well, you know, I don't know exactly what the 
lateral does right there, I haven't been out there, and so I don't even know -- like he needs 
to make that right-hand turn, I would have to make that left-hand turn or a right-hand if we 
are coming in, so we would be in the same boat.  We just have to see what the layout of 
it -- what it looks like to see if we can make that corner, because we have -- we have the 
same problem with the large fire engines, so --  
 
Dodson:  Mr. Mayor, I want to clarify that point --  
 
Simison:  Joe.   
 
Dodson:  -- further that -- that making that emergency access is not part of the application 
currently.  The one to the south with Prevail Two may be maintained and that would be 
the official emergency access.  Should there be a big emergency and fire has to use it I'm 
sure they could.  Sure.  I would love to run a fire truck through the fence, but it's not one 
of the official emergency accesses that we are proposing.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I would like to hear -- have Matt weigh in on this discussion a little bit on 
thoughts for that -- that access.  It sounds like there is also some steepness to that.  I'm 
just thinking slope plus turn, I -- and that's the hard part about these things, we don't -- it 
doesn't come in 3D, so -- and we don't deal with a lot of hills in Meridian, so it's hard to -- 
you know, you go by there on the highway and you see it, but you don't really appreciate 
slope until you are actually out on site and looking at it.  So, if you could give us your 
observation and comment.   
 
Schultz:  Thank you, Mayor and Councilman Hoaglun.  I didn't know if the public hearing 
was closed or not, so -- appreciate the opportunity.  My thoughts are the topography and 
the factor there is a large diameter pipe right north of our property line where that ditch is 
piped is high, if you will, and the cul-de-sac wants to go low and you have to get up over 
that meeting emergency access rules for steepness and cover and the ditch company 
doesn't like us to do what's called a siphon where you drop the pipe and come back up     
-- they don't like that.  So, that would be a solution, you know, later if it ever wanted to be 
extended is siphon that pipe, drop it low so you could put that at the proper steepness 
and we could still drop the cul-de-sac now and it would all blend in.  I did observe and -- 
Public Works director Mr. Stewart did point out the -- the location of this stub is not ideal 
for -- for getting into that site in terms of -- it's a pinch point with the -- in addition to the 
topography -- the horizontal pinch point with that -- that tower site.  You can see the fence 
there just due north of the corner and it would be a hard turn in there.  So, my thoughts 
are, obviously, there is no waiver for the -- the mid mile access policy on the -- on the 
agenda tonight.  It's not our -- you know, not -- not our prerogative to ask for that, but I 
know the ditch company is always going to use that mid mile access.  They are always 
going to use that and if Warren is correct that ITD would grant that, I see it as a very low 

Page 47

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 20 of 71  

impact waiver that the Council would probably grant, but that's just my -- my speculation 
later that we wouldn't need this connection to the north and, then, we wouldn't have these 
industrial trucks coming through and things like that.  So, from a pure engineering 
standpoint I would like to eliminate it, but that's just my -- my personal -- I don't want to lift 
that cul-de-sac six feet to get up and over that pipe is my personal desire for it and, then, 
there other issues that have come up and I appreciate the -- the discussion always.  There 
is a -- there is a lot of different angles on this, but we are willing to do it either way.  We 
will make it work either way and we are not here to hold up anything.  It's just we are 
asking for the waiver.  I know Warren is suggesting that it get waived and that's where we 
are at.  Thank you.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Before we close the public hearing I guess my first thought that comes to my mind 
is if I were a homeowner there I would probably want as much protection from, you know, 
that -- city-owned properties as I could.  I also think that, you know, if that were not a city 
property would I treat this property differently and I don't know if it would.  I don't think I 
would.  So, just -- just a quick thought for me I would -- I would be -- I'm leaning toward 
granting the waiver just -- I don't know if that's necessarily needed at this time.  Like I 
could change my mind, I just wanted to give my thoughts to start -- to start the discussion.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  I was on Council when the other water storage facility went in off of -- 
Warren, was that Locust Grove and Amity or -- no.  Or Victory?  I think it was Victory.  
Victory.  Yeah.  And it was amazing because you had a lot coming off of Victory, it didn't 
go through a subdivision, but people were up in arms because they could see it and it 
was alongside the creek.  There is no way in the world that would have happened if we, 
then, told them the city vehicles are going to be going to that site in and out.  I mean we 
are talking there were people up in arms.  Well, you see how people get sometimes when 
you are messing with their -- their home, so -- and even though this is in the -- in -- this 
stage right now people aren't living there, you still have to think people would not want 
those vehicles going through their subdivision and it's -- the thing where -- where there is 
the access for the irrigation district, we know that's not going to go away.  That is part of 
their easement and so that kind of makes that decision a little easier.  I appreciate deputy 
chief's -- you know, looking for other access points.  It's always -- always a good thing.  
But even if we were to require that to stay, there is still going to be the fire access 
requirement.  So, it's not like it's really needed for fire access.  Future -- future 
development.  I mean, Joe, you know, you give me pause to think through that, you know, 
is there going to be future development.  What does that look like?  Again, not -- we might 
start needing for these areas the -- the grid -- grid maps, you know, the topography maps 
on these, because to figure out, oh, that's a really steep slope, because grid lines are so 

Page 48

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 21 of 71  

close,  because it is hard to tell, really, to know what that slope is and you go, yeah, that's 
such a steep slope they are not coming up that.  So, it's -- it's -- it's -- it's hard -- too hard 
to tell.  But, you know, we do want to pay attention to that connectivity and it makes sense 
and we -- I think we are pretty good about making sure we have cross-access and 
different things like that.  So, you know, the one going to the east I'm -- I'm -- I definitely 
think is needed.  It may not be needed in the future, but that's a possibility.  Again, there 
is a ravine there.  I don't know what that looks like.  But to me that makes sense.  The 
other one not so much.  So, that's just kind of my -- what's going through my brain right 
now.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I do have a question for staff.  For Joe.  So, you would say there is a privately 
owned property to the north of -- of what the city has and we don't know at this point if 
they would get access off of Amity.  Could that potentially landlock that piece of            
property --  
 
Dodson:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  -- because of ACHD's rules regarding access from arterial roads?   
 
Dodson:  Council Woman Perreault, it wouldn't landlock them, but it would make -- if they 
don't have a public road from this site through the city site.  So, again, that would be 
predicated on the city site providing that stub street to their northern property line -- 
property line.  I could say that ACHD -- or they have to provide access, so they will, to 
either Meridian or Amity.  More than likely Amity, but it's going to be probably a restricted 
access.  But it would also be determined on what use they are proposing.  Again, right 
now I believe it's -- it was approved for some type of storage, which, you know, is neither 
here nor there how we feel about that, but the access points for that are going to be 
different than what someone's going to want for an apartment complex or even a mixed 
use, which it is designated as mixed use on the future land use map there, so -- which 
would be --  
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Dodson:  Where is the mouse?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Joe, do you know the size of that parcel or multiple parcels?   
 
Dodson:  I believe it's at least 18 acres, the larger parcel.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.   

Page 49

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 22 of 71  

Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  So, Joe, if we -- if we kept the stub does that give us the most optionality possible 
in your opinion?   
 
Dodson:  Yes, ma'am.   
 
Strader:  That's kind of what I'm leaning toward personally.  I think that at least keeps our 
options open to the future.  I think Council Woman Perreault just brought up a really 
important point about the property to the north.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Warren, I recognize the location of the storage tank, it's kind of unique, but do 
you have or is there plans to put some type of signage out there so that as this part starts 
to develop at least people know what's coming?   
 
Stewart:  Well, Council Member Cavener, Mayor, Members of Council, we have had that 
site up -- or that sign up since the day we bought it.   
 
Cavener:  Awesome.  Thank you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Just a follow up again on that -- that parcel to the north.  Is there any chance 
to see -- I mean what would the process look like if an applicant came in and requested 
access through the city property, one, is it likely that it would be granted.  Two, is it feasible 
to actually have access because of the location of this tower and, three, is it going to 
bisect that -- the city property in such a way we can't use it for what its intended use is?   
 
Dodson:  Council Woman Perreault, great question.  It is a little awkward because of that 
-- where the property lines are for the county tower -- it's in that weird shape because the 
-- the -- the anchor lines -- the anchor points for that tower are very similar to where the 
end of the property lines are.  So, where that stub is you can kind of see it here.  Blue line 
I wish was gone.  But probably would have to kind of snake around it and, then, come up 
engineering wise and ACHD minimum radii and things like that.  I honestly do not know if 
those could be met and that's unfortunate.  So, it might be a moot point.  I do understand 
that predicament there.   
 
Simison:  Would it be possible to pull up Google Earth?   

Page 50

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 23 of 71  

Dodson:  Yes.  Perhaps.  Our GIS would be better, but I don't know if this login will let me 
log into that.   
 
Stewart:  You can turn on contours in GIS if you can do that.   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor, while he's pulling that up I did -- for Council Woman Perreault that 
property is 15 acres.  It's 15.15 and the one next door to it is 5.84.  I should have a map 
up -- there we go.  Should have this here -- I can't turn on all the layers I want just because 
of the -- their map that's available to the public versus what's available to staff is very 
different.  But generally the cul-de-sac I believe is right here.  So, that stub would kind of 
stub into here.  I do not think that having a stub road here would make this site unusable.  
That road is going to have to fit here regardless of -- if it's an access road or a public road, 
which I would not propose a public road from this point and if it was aligned up here to 
the east I think that would be more of a driveway access with a gate on it to protect and 
keep our site -- our city site safe and keep residents safe.  But what they do with this 
western piece I have been -- I'm under the impression that there is nothing that can be 
done there for the city, it would just kind of be there anyways.  So, I do see both sides.  I 
do agree with Council Woman Strader that it does give us the most optionality.  Not 
necessarily that we have to pull the trigger on any of it, but at least it gives us the option.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you so much for that.  So, either way the property to the north is going 
to have to get access off of an arterial.  That's kind of what I was trying to understand.   
 
Dodson:  Yes, ma'am.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Mayor.  I would also like to note that if there -- if there isn't a stub from this 
property and when the city site develops we are basically requiring Council to -- to grant 
a waiver to access Meridian Road, because they would not have any other access point.  
With that I'm also not saying that we should only allow access through the subdivision to 
the south because of the issues that we have discussed, I think that might be a poor 
decision as well.  I would not promote big trucks coming through the residential 
neighborhood.  I would not be happy about that either.  So, there is multiple facets to this  
as usual.  I can't come to you with an easy project.  But it's part of the deal nowadays.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor, I have another question for the applicant if it's permissible.   
 
Simison:  I'm sure he would love to answer your question.   
 
Schultz:  Thank you, Mayor.   
 

Page 51

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 24 of 71  

Perreault:  Thank you, Matt.  So, just so that I'm understanding correctly, you are not 
requesting that the -- to necessarily eliminate the -- the access, the stub, you -- you would 
prefer that a section of that pipe be moved and completely removed by Public Works and 
that would make it more feasible from an engineering standpoint to leave the stub or are 
you requesting that this -- that the cul-de-sac stay, the stub not be added and the cul-de- 
sac would just be enclosed?  Hope you can give us clarity on that.   
 
Schultz:  Yeah.  So, we -- when we first started this layout we -- this issue about 
connectivity came up and we have moved and jockeyed around, say here is where we 
think it should go and, then, you started digging into the engineering and do we really 
need it.  If we really don't need it, then, let's not, preferably, is kind of where we are at, 
because it does cause some complications with the ditch company.  I'm sitting here 
thinking if you guys approve it with the stub and we design that cul-de-sac high enough 
to get up over that, it's -- I'm going to go to the ditch company and ask them, hey, can we 
-- when the city does come in and they do connect this thing, can they -- can they put two 
manholes on the other side and drop the pipe, so the road can go down shallower and 
we could just today lower that thing, just keep it low.  I'm going to ask that question before 
we go the final design.  If you do approve the stub.  If we don't need it and the thought I 
have, I just -- I thought you guys might have some access off of the Amity through the -- 
through the industrial sites already.  I thought that could be an option as well, which has 
not come up.  That -- that might be an option to get you another -- in addition to the -- the 
mile access, which is a mid mile -- it's not a mid mile, but the South Meridian Road access, 
it's always going to be there because of the ditch company anyways.  So, that north 
access is an option.  If we really don't need it we are asking for the waiver.  If we really 
really need it, then, we will deal with it and we will deal with the ditch company and try to 
explore other options.  But we would just like to eliminate it and fence it off.  So, I would 
like to add -- which I didn't point out this first time -- that -- that tan piece that's in the color 
rendering that's going to be part of the easement, we are proposing to give that to the 
city, just because we are going to fence it off between the tan and the colored with a 
wrought iron fence.  So, we are going to get a wrought iron fence the whole way.  We are 
going to pipe that ditch the whole way and, then, I'm going to have this HOA owned -- or 
not HOA owned, but if we would have somebody to give it to, an HOA no man's land, that 
we would rather just give it to the city -- deed it with our plat.  It's a half acre.  Can't build 
anything on it, but you can certainly turn around trucks on it and probably park on it.  So, 
that is part of the proposal as well, too, that we deed that half acre strip, which is not 
talking about that stub, that's just a by the way -- informational and I forgot to mention 
originally, so thanks.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I move that we close the public hearing for -- let me make sure I get the number 
right.  Prevail North Subdivision, H-2021-0021. 

Page 52

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 25 of 71  

Strader:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes have it.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Why is it always these small applications that have the most questions.  I don't 
know -- I would like to make a motion -- I'm not sure I'm going to actually word it correctly,  
so I will rely on staff as far as the Council waiver goes.  But I move that we approve the 
application for Prevail North Subdivision, H-2021-0021, with a waiver not to require a stub 
street on the western cul-de-sac.  Do we need more specifics than that?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Mayor, I -- that's enough for me to make the motion and I guess add a -- 
sorry.  Wheels are turning here.  A little slow these days.  They could either add it as a DA 
provision or make a specific comment within one of the conditions of approval of the plat 
to just say that the requirement for the stub street north is no longer there.  It was waived 
by City Council.   
 
Perreault:  Do we need to reference the section of the staff report that specifies the 
requirement?   
 
Dodson:  No.  I can take care of that, as well as the parcel number to the parcel to the 
north.   
 
Simison:  Do I have a second?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second.  Is there discussion?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Yes.  I still think it -- it probably works either way, so I think I would probably vote 
for it either way, but I -- do we feel like we still have kind of the -- I guess my question -- 
maybe through you to Council Woman Perreault, would be does she feel like her concerns 
are alleviated about access, then, to the property to the north in the future?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 

Page 53

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 26 of 71  

Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I do.  It sounds like there is quite a bit of confidence that the city will still be 
able to access from Meridian Road and that's the preferred method of access on the city's 
part for construction vehicles and personally I -- I think it would be wise for the city not to 
take access through the subdivision, so -- it does -- it does have concern if at any point in 
time -- I don't know if ITD can remove that access from the city.  I assume not.  That would 
be my only concern.  But, otherwise, it sounds like there is quite a bit of confidence that 
the city will be able to access it from within -- and I believe that the city should.   
 
Bernt:  Call for the question.   
 
Simison:  The question has been called.  Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, absent; Cavener, yea; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries.  The item is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 6.  Public Hearing for The 10 at Meridian (H-2021-0025) by J-U-B   
  Engineers, Inc., Located at 75 S. Ten Mile Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Annexation of 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) 
   and C-C (27.25-acres) zoning districts. 
 
Simison:  Next item is public hearing for The 10 at Meridian, H-2021-0025.  We will open 
with staff -- this public hearing with staff comments.   
 
Allen:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  Sorry for the delay there.  The 
next application before you is a request for annexation and zoning.  This site consists of 
40.3 acres of land.  It's zoned RUT in Ada county and is located at 75 South Ten Mile 
Road at the southwest corner of West Franklin Road and South Ten Mile Road.  The 
Comprehensive Plan future land use map designations for this site are mixed use 
commercial, which is approximately 22 acres, high density residential, which is 
approximately 11 acres, and an approximate three acre portion of mixed use residential, 
kind of a little sliver there along the southeast boundary of the site.  The applicant is 
proposing to annex 40.3 acres of land with R-40, which is 13.04 acres and C-C zoning, 
which is 27.25 acres.  A conceptual development plan was submitted as shown that 
proposes a mix of offices, a financial establishment, retail pads, a grocery store, vertically 
integrated residential and multi-family residential in accord with the associated mixed use 
commercial, high density residential and mixed use residential future land use map 
designations of the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan for this property.  A phasing 
plan was not submitted.  However, the applicant states the three story flats and townhome 
style multi-family residential and clubhouse will develop in the first phase, along with the 

Page 54

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 27 of 71  

associated infrastructure.  The four story high density multi-family residential will follow, 
with the commercial last as tenants commit.  A future preliminary plat will be submitted 
and the final plat -- or it's proposed to be final platted in one phase of development.  
Access is proposed as shown on the concept plan.  ACHD supports the following 
accesses.  Access A, full access.  Access B, right-in, right-out only.  Access C right out 
only.  Access D right-in, right-out only.  And Cobalt, right-in, right-out, left-in only.  Staff 
recommends access is restricted through the development agreement as supported by 
Ada County Highway District.  Cobalt Drive is proposed to be extended to the west from 
Ten Mile.  The eastern portion lies entirely on the subject property and will require 
construction of a bridge over the Kennedy Lateral and stubs to the south to be extended 
entirely on the adjacent property to the south.  This is generally consistent with the master 
street map for this area.  The applicant requests Council approval of a waiver to UDC 11- 
3A-6B3 for portions of the Kennedy Lateral, which bisects the site to remain open and not 
be piped.  Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the proposed multi-family 
flats, townhome style multi-family, high density apartments and clubhouse as shown.  
Final design is required to comply with the design guidelines in the Ten Mile Interchange 
Specific Area Plan and the standards in the Architectural Standards Manual.  A 
development agreement is recommended as a provision of annexation that contains 
certain requirements for development of this property as noted in the staff report.  Staff 
requests Council motion include a revision to the development agreement, Provision A-
1-D, which requires the subject property to be subdivided prior to any development 
occurring on the site, to, instead, require the property to be subdivided prior to issuance 
of the first certificate of occupancy for the development and this is consistent with what 
the applicant is asking for tonight.  The Commission recommended approval of the subject 
annexation request with the requirement of a development agreement.  Wendy Schrief.  
JUB Engineers, the applicant's representative, testified in favor, along with Layne Borgess 
and Hethe Clark.  Cody Black commented on the application.  He was representing the 
property owner directly to the south.  Written testimony was received from both Cody 
Black and Wendy Schrief, the applicant's representative.  The key issues of discussion 
by Cody Black -- he was the property owner to the south again -- requests the western 
portion of Cobalt Drive be located on the subject property and not on their property.  Key 
issues of discussion by the Commission was the location and alignment of Cobalt Drive 
to the west and opinion that too much residential may be proposed.  That the northern 
flats should be converted to commercial uses.  There were no changes made to the staff 
recommendation by the Commission and the only outstanding issue for Council tonight 
is the applicant's waiver for portions of the Kennedy Lateral, which bisect the site, to 
remain open and not be piped as I mentioned.  Staff was asked by Council to provide 
information on residential units in the Ten Mile area that have been constructed.  There 
were -- there are 517 single family units and 1,389 multi-family units that have been 
constructed in this area and, then, there was some discussion I believe earlier wanting to 
know what the percentage of the site was proposed to develop with residential uses and 
that is 64 percent of the site, with 36 percent being commercial and just in the mixed use 
commercial section there is 41 percent of that area that's proposed for residential uses.  
Staff will stand for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions?   

Page 55

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 28 of 71  

Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thank you, Sonya.  I appreciate some of the follow up and, you know, so we just 
had a presentation not too long ago kind of -- by a fabulous intern that did some work for 
us walking us through the pitfalls of mixed use and I -- I think it's important for us to learn 
our lesson.  So, I had a few questions.  You know, one of the questions I had was what 
percentage of commercial would we expect based on the FLUM or the comp plan for this 
overall area to be consistent with that?   
 
Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, Council, so the numbers in the -- in the comp 
plan are -- for mixed use commercial are 20 percent residential with 25 percent office and 
50 percent commercial.   
 
Strader:  Okay.   
 
Allen:  Five percent civic.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor, if I may, I had a few --  
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  All right.  I will stick with it.  Thank you very much.  And so that -- that sounds 
like that maybe a bit off.  Another question I had was do you feel like for something of this 
size that it's typical to go for an annexation and zoning without the final plat?  I guess one 
of the concerns I have -- you know, we have heard that we run into situations where the 
residential goes in and, then, unfortunately, the commercial may go in last and so we may 
not actually get the commercial that we want.  So, that's a big concern of mine is -- you 
know, I guess I'm looking for staff's commentary on how we could avoid that situation here 
if we can.   
 
Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council, clarification on what we just said.  That was actually from the 
Land Use Development Report 2021, the numbers I gave, and in response to Council 
Woman Strader's comment about the final plat, a final plat is a subdivision of property.  
Your concept plan is what conceptually locks in the uses for the property.  So, that's what 
we use in determining whether or not a project is consistent with the future land use plan 
for the area.  We did encourage the applicant to submit a subdivision plat, however, 
though, and they are in the process of getting a preliminary plat together to submit on the 
heels of this application once it's annexed.   
 
Strader:  So, yeah, I guess I need follow up on that.  I mean isn't the danger -- not -- not 
to -- I'm assuming totally positive intentions on everybody's part, but isn't the danger that 
we would approve this and, then, potentially, you know, something comes, it's not 
consistent with the vision of what we have for mixed use or there is something that's 
different and, then, we don't really have a say in that at that point.   

Page 56

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 29 of 71  

Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, staff is recommending a development 
agreement as a provision of this annexation that would include this concept development 
plan.  If a development plan came forth after this that's not consistent with that plan it 
would come back before you for a modification of that agreement and approval of an 
updated concept plan, at which we would review that and determine its consistency or 
not with the Comprehensive Plan and the future land use map.   
 
Strader:  Thanks.  I think it makes sense.  I guess, you know, my concern is -- you know, 
we see these DA waivers come through and it just feels like there is a little bit of a slippery 
slope where we end up with something very different than what we thought when we 
started the process.  So, that's just my overall concern, but I bet the applicant could 
address that.  And, then, just my final question I guess from staff's perspective would be 
-- I was concerned about some of the comments in the ACHD agency report, particularly 
regarding that they didn't agree with the traffic impact study.  Would it be typical that -- 
that a different study would be done or from staff's perspective how -- how would that be 
handled if there was a difference of opinion about the traffic impact study?   
 
Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, I -- I'm unsure how ACHD handles that, to be 
honest with you.  I know sometimes they ask for additional information with the TIS, but 
beyond that I'm not sure.   
 
Strader:  Perhaps if they are available at some point they could answer that question.  
Thank you.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, Council Member Strader, if it helps to add a 
little bit more to what Sonya said, a DA with a concept plan like this that has a higher level 
of detail is a lot easier for enforcement to deal with for staff in the future if they want to 
bring in something that is substantially different.  The ones that we have done a while ago 
and happened recently is sometimes referred to as bubble plans are a little more 
problematic, because they just identified large blocks of property into commercial, 
general, office, residential and so it doesn't really tell us what it's supposed to be or look 
like.  But this type of development with this application is a lot easier to put into a DA.   
 
Strader:  Thank you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  I think Council Woman Strader and I are thinking right along the 
same lines, because I had written down very similar questions.  So, if I'm understanding 
the percentages correctly, Sonya, with what you shared is what is expected in that mixed 

Page 57

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 30 of 71  

use commercial area and what the percentages are that we have here on the application 
they are fairly different.  Does the percentage -- are the percentages that -- that we have 
showing ideal percentages we are showing for mixed use commercial, it's the same in 
the Ten Mile Interchange Area as they are in other parts of the city or is it different, 
especially -- I know that -- that when the Ten Mile Interchange Plan came to be there was 
-- it's definitely intended to be an employment area with an additional amount of multi-
family, maybe more than we see in other parts of the city.  However, based on the numbers 
you just shared, there is a significant amount of multi-family in this area and so I really 
want to get an understanding of whether adding this much more multi-family is beneficial 
to this location or not.  It just seems like it would really tip the scales within the Ten Mile 
Interchange Plan area which moves I think from all the way to Black Cat and, then, east 
over to maybe the mid mile, something like that.  So, any of that information that you have 
that might help us with that analysis would be great.   
 
Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Perreault, Council, those numbers are future mixed 
use assumptions and, yes, you are right, I think more residential is important in the -- in 
the mixed use designated areas and especially the Ten Mile Plan for the -- to support the 
employment and commercial uses.  To answer your question more than that it's really out 
of my realm.  I'm not sure if Caleb or Brian is on the line tonight that could better speak to 
that -- 
 
Simison:  And, unfortunately, we also don't have ACHD on the line, to the best of my 
knowledge.  Council, further questions for staff?  Okay.  Ask the applicant to, please, come 
forward.   
 
Schrief:  Good evening, Mayor, Council Members.  My name is Wendy Schrief.  I'm a 
planner with JUB Engineers and my business address is 2760 West Excursion Lane here 
in Meridian.  83642.  And we have got a team that is going to be presenting tonight.  I'm 
just going to kind of work on a little bit of the front end here.  If I can get my PowerPoint 
up.  It's up.  And I want to look at my -- do you move the slides or can I move it?  Let's 
see.  Okay.  I want to talk a little bit about why this project makes sense in this location.  
We are at the southwest corner of Franklin and Ten Mile and as you alluded to we are 
located -- we are inside the area for the Ten Mile Specific Area Plan.  We have several 
different future land use designations and I think when you were talking about the 
percentages I think we need to look at kind of how those are weighed and what those 
acreages are.  Mixed use -- we have a 40 acre site where we are looking at -- we have 
22 acres of mixed use commercial for a designation.  We have an additional 11 acres of 
high density residential and three acres of mixed use residential.  Because I think when 
you look at those percentages we need to look at also kind of how that breaks out between 
those three different designations and, then, this is also -- this is -- this document is a 
guide for development in the area.  I think -- and that in this area overall we have seen 
more commercial development than we have seen residential development.  So, I think 
we are kind of helping to bring that into balance with -- with this project and I want to kind 
of reiterate the purpose statement of the -- this area for mixed use commercial is to 
encourage a mix of office, retail, employment and multi-family and single family attached.  
So, I think the project we are presenting to you tonight we have -- we have really done a 

Page 58

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 31 of 71  

lot I think to address those goals.  We worked -- staff has been great.  We have done 
probably three or four pre-application meetings with Sonya and Bill to really tighten up 
our plan.  We have been directed quite a bit by staff on our mix of uses and how we are 
proposing this project that we have here this evening and I wanted to address -- you had 
a couple questions about the TIS and how we deal with development agreements and I 
can tell you the majority of the larger projects I'm working on in the Treasure Valley we 
are the front end doing annexation and zoning and doing the preliminary plat later on.  
That gives you a concept plan and in this case with Meridian a very detailed concept plan 
and part of this is part of -- it's a practical reason, especially during COVID, it's at least a 
six month process to have a TIS approved and finished up through ACHD.  So, this allows 
you to get a project started and kind of get it moving while concurrently you are working 
on your TIS.  So, it enables you to get a project going and saves three to four months in 
your project schedule.  So, it's -- if it was faster to do TIS's probably that order would be 
a little bit different.  In -- in Canyon county we do it differently.  If it was a development 
agreement I can tell you absolutely Meridian staff does a really good job of holding your 
feet to the fire.  When you have a concept plan -- Sonya goes through it and when you 
come in with a preliminary plat she's absolutely going through and looking at your open 
space requirements and your project breakdown and she is not shy about having you go 
back and make changes to make sure you are in compliance and if there is something 
that has changed, then, you have to come back and do a modification of your 
development agreement and I think you see that more often in commercial areas where 
you have a different tenant with a different need who comes in, that's more often where 
you see that happen.  But I wanted to introduce the rest of our team here this evening.  
We have Layne Borgess, who is our architect, and, then, we have Hethe Clark, who is a 
land use attorney.  He has also worked on the project.  I'm going to introduce Layne.   
 
Borgess:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  Thank you for the 
opportunity to be here tonight and present to you the design concept for The 10 Meridian.  
My name is Layne Borgess.  I'm representing Elk Ventures who are the project 
proponents.  My address is 11500 Armor Court in Gold River, California.  We are very 
excited about this project and we hope the Council will be also as we feel that the project 
represents the true intent of the Comprehensive Plan and the specific plan for this area.  
Staff has already given you a brief overview.  I would like just to walk you through a little 
bit of the components of the design and a little bit of our goals and how we executed the 
project.  Try not to take up too much time, because I know we have a little bit of a limit.  
As staff had indicated our project consists of mixed use commercial element.  Depicted 
on the screen now you will see the commercial component, which is a combination 
mixture about 150,000 square feet of one and two story office, commercial, and retail, as 
well as restaurant uses.  The second component is our vertically integrated residential 
mixed use buildings.  We have our -- are proposing four different types of residential 
components and this is one of them.  These will be three story buildings with commercial 
space at the ground level of these three buildings and, then, two floors above of residential 
units.  This area depicts our medium density residential type one.  These are three story 
buildings, internally loaded, meaning the units are accessed from the inside, as well as 
the outside at ground level.  They do have parking also at ground level.  Three stories.  
One and two bedroom units.  The third type of residential component we have is the 

Page 59

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 32 of 71  

townhomes and these are three story individual townhomes attached in groups of eight.  
So, each unit consists of three floors with garages also.  The fourth component is the 
portion of our site that will be zoned for high density residential and these are our four 
story buildings also internally loaded and this represents the majority -- about 68 percent 
of the total residential units proposed are located in this area, which is south of the canal.  
And the last element is what we kind of look at as being as our kind of the heart of the 
community and this is our recreation center and our co-work facilities and within this area 
we have significant amount of indoor and exterior site amenities, such as swimming pools.  
We actually have a couple of pickleball courts.  So, take the strain a little bit off the existing 
ones.  Fitness centers.  Community kitchens.  Internet cafe.  Conference rooms.  Work 
areas for people that are now concentrating their work efforts away from an office 
environment.  So, if they want to work from home, but not be in their apartment the entire 
time we have a significant portion of the second floor of this building that will be 
designated for co-work areas, private offices, meeting rooms and such.  So, I want to talk 
just a little bit about the goals and the execution of the project.  What we were trying to 
achieve with this was a cohesive dynamic mixed use project with multiple housing types, 
with compatible commercial that is suitable to be used by the residents of the project, as 
well as by the community and an emphasis on integrating the pedestrian and bicycle 
circulation throughout and providing extensive on-site services and recreational 
opportunities and I will explain a little bit more about those as we go.  So, how did we get 
there, how do we achieve that.  We really looked to the Comprehensive Plan and to the 
specific plan as to ways to achieve it.  One way was using basically the idea of developing 
this mixed use community that's livable, vibrant, and connected, using a lot of open space 
and pathways that I will show in a moment.  By using building design and character that 
identify the project as unique.  By providing circulation that's cohesive for automobiles, 
bicycles, and pedestrians and making it friendly and easily to move throughout the entire 
site for all elements.  From the Ten Mile Specific Plan we focused a lot with staff's 
assistance on the concept of street design and complete streets and how the buildings 
relate to the streets and how the streets relate to circulation.  We looked at the concept 
of street oriented design and streets as public spaces, enhanced landscaping, mixed 
housing stock opportunities and, then, of course, ultimately, the building design and 
architecture.  So, this next slide illustrates the primary concept of how we are integrating 
the concept of complete streets into the project and those red lines indicate our major 
circulation elements through the site and you will see on some of the following slides how 
the execution of that occurs.  Am I the only one that lost my slide?  Because I don't see 
anything on my screen anymore.  Anyway can I get that back?   
 
Hoaglun:  Are we on the vehicular and bicycle circulation slide still or are we moving to 
another one?   
 
Borgess:  I was moving to one that illustrated pedestrian circulation.  Do you see them on 
your screen that shows a series of yellow lines?  Oh.  Okay.  Okay.   
 
Simison:  Why don't we go ahead and take a ten minute break, if that's okay.   
 
(Recess:  7:50 p.m. to 8:02 p.m.) 

Page 60

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 33 of 71  

Simison:  All right.  We will go ahead and come out of recess and we will re-recognize the 
applicant.  Did you want to reset the timer to six and a half minutes.   
 
Weatherly:  Yes, Mr. Mayor, I will.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  You have six and a half minutes left.   
 
Borgess:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  I will try and move 
through quickly, so we can get the rest of our presentation.  The slide that you see shows 
our major circulation that I will explain in a little -- in a moment for vehicles.  This slide 
shows the circulation for pedestrians through the site.  Again, achieving our goal of 
connectivity of the residential and commercial components.  These next three depictions 
show our vision of what our street system within the project will look like.  This is patterned 
after the concepts in the specific plan for complete streets that include vehicular 
circulation, bicycle paths within our project, parallel parking, street trees, closely spaced 
landscaping and, then, buildings along the street edges.  These depictions show 
circulation through the major elements of the project.  And, then, I want to give you an 
example of some of the character and design of the residential components.  This being 
our high density component.  Again, four story buildings of one and two bedroom 
apartments, utilizing variation and variety in materials, stone, plaster, wood, wood timbers, 
steel beams, a lot of variation in articulation in the architecture.  Next element we will look 
at is our medium density flats.  We have five buildings proposed.  Three stories.  And you 
can see, again, how they are designed with placement of the buildings up near the streets, 
parking, access from the rear, parallel parking, bicycle paths in front of all the buildings, 
closely spaced street -- street trees to create the semi-urban environment that we are 
trying to achieve and, then, the exteriors.  Again, a lot of articulation and variation in roof 
forms and in building materials and, then, the townhome -- townhome design concepts.  
Again, the same idea.  Straightforward design.  And, then, the last element is our 
recreation center and co-work facility.  All designed with similar materials and architecture, 
but a little variation in how the palette is utilized.  And with that I would like to turn over 
our presentation to Hethe Clark, who will finish up for us.  If you have any questions after 
I would be happy to try to help.   
 
Clark:  Members of the Council, Hethe Clark.  251 East Front Street in Boise.  Good to 
see everyone again.  So, I'm just going to wrap up briefly and focus for a moment on a 
couple of standards.  Of course, this is an annexation with an initial zone and I think 
everyone's going to hit the Comprehensive Plan elements of this.  I would just emphasize 
that it's located -- this project is located on the -- the hard corner of two principal arterials.  
You know, this is exactly where we want to see high density housing, office, commercial, 
living together, breathing together and you can see that there has been a lot of effort that's 
been put into making this an integrated whole.  This is an extremely detailed concept plan 
for this step -- stage in the process and as Bill mentioned, that gives the city a lot of tools 
from the perspective of knowing what it is that you can expect with this project.  Now, we 
still have a few hoops to jump through as we go through all of this.  We obviously still 
need to submit our preliminary plat application and that preliminary plat application will be 
coming here in the next little bit and it's going to -- we are going to have to prove up that 

Page 61

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 34 of 71  

all of these dimensional standards and fine grained details have been satisfied.  But what 
we have -- and the reason we went this way was to be able to say, hey, we -- we know 
generally what is going to be approved here with this detailed concept plan.  We know 
where our accesses are.  We know how this is going to function.  So, now let's go do all 
the -- complete all the engineering associated with that preliminary plat.  But the city is 
going to see this in multiple steps moving forward with the pre-plat at CZC, at design 
review, all of those steps.  I wanted to talk about two items -- and I'm going to change my 
order here a little bit.  One item that came up at the last hearing that I just want to mention 
is that there was some conversation about the inner relationship with our property -- with 
our neighbor to the south and I know that they are here to talk.  We have had a number 
of conversations with them since the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing.  I think 
we are in a good place in terms of trying to get all of the concerns resolved.  But a couple 
of contextual points for you.  Cobalt is the -- the public street that's on the south.  It's 
designated as a -- as a collector both on the ACHD master street map and on the Ten 
Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan.  There are really three hinge points with Cobalt that 
you have to keep in mind.  One is that we need to align Cobalt with the other intersection 
of Cobalt across the street from Ten Mile.  So, that -- that point is set.  Then we need to 
get across the Kennedy Lateral, which means we have got to -- we have got to start 
moving down, so that we can get perpendicular to the -- to the lateral and try to minimize 
the width of that crossing for maintenance purposes and, then, the last element of it is 
that the western boundary -- the western terminus of Cobalt has to be south of our 
property line and that is driven by the development that was approved to the west of us.  
So, Cobalt can't -- if it remained on our property it would dead end into a parking lot and 
so it needs to come south and get -- get around that.  So, what we have proposed is we 
have approximately a third of Cobalt on our property that has the crossing on it.  There is 
a lot more construction that's associated with that.  The remainder of Cobalt we have 
shown stubbing to our neighbor to the south.  ACHD has approved that layout as being 
consistent with the master street map and with the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area 
Plan.  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval with this layout.  We 
have had conversations with our neighbors and what we are going to be doing moving 
forward between now and the preliminary -- preliminary plat stage is that we are going to 
work on a memorandum of agreement that includes a couple of components.  One of 
them is that we are going to offset some of this with a conveyance with some property to 
offset the portion that's on their side.  Generally speaking that's the area in green there 
on the south side and, then, we are going to cooperate with them in terms of construction 
costs and construction arrangements for the portion of Cobalt that's on their side.  So -- 
and I know Joanne Butler is here and she will provide some additional detail on that piece 
as well.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Hethe, could you -- are you in agreement with the dollar figure of what you are 
going to contribute to the -- to the cost of what you just spoke about with the neighbors?   
 

Page 62

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 35 of 71  

Clark:  Council Member Bernt, we are -- I don't -- we don't have a specific dollar number,  
but we are very close in terms of proportion and where that number is going to be, 
because we have had engineering analysis done of what the road costs are -- are at this 
point.  So, we will lock that down with our -- with our neighbor between now and the pre- 
platting phase.  I know my time is wrapped.  So, I just want to confirm that, you know, I -- 
I had written notes that for most of it was my justification as to why we should change 
condition 1-B.  Generally speaking I find that if Sonya and I -- if Sonya and I have enough 
time we can get on the same wavelength and we did.  So, I won't put you through all of 
that.  I just want to say that we are in agreement with the language that staff identified 
earlier, replacing condition 1-D, that the property would be subdivided prior to issuance 
of the first certificate of occupancy within the development.  So, with that we are happy to 
answer questions.   
 
Simison:  Council, questions?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Could I fire them all off at once or take it slower?  
 
Simison:  Just go for it.  You are recognized for the duration of your questions.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you very much, Mr. Clark, for your presentation.  So, along the lines of 
Council Woman Strader's concerns I think -- and we have seen this in the past, you know, 
you -- you have buyers and tenants that you are going to be discussing -- discussing 
these properties with over the next several years most likely and you may have users that 
are going to come in and want a different size, shape, location and the concern, of course, 
then, is in order to accommodate that, whether it's the concept plan is what it is now and 
it's -- you know, this is approved, not tied to a preliminary plot and we are coming in and 
making modifications to the DA because of the users, who are requesting different types 
of properties, sizes, structures, locations and whatnot.  So, can you alleviate for us 
concerns about that, because it -- it's something that we have seen and, then, no longer 
is the project looking like what was originally intended and oftentimes we have a different 
Council then that's making that decision from -- from what we had intended and some of 
that gets lost in translation.  So, a significant concern -- concern of mine.  It sounds like 
it's a significant concern of Council Woman Strader's.  Would you like me to ask these 
questions one by one or just --  
 
Clark:  Why don't we try one by one and see how it goes.   
 
Perreault:  Sounds good.   
 
Clark:  So, I understand the concern.  You know, I -- I have been in front of this Council 
before on development agreement modifications.  You guys know that I have -- you have 
put me through the paces on a number of those before, including in the last couple 

Page 63

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 36 of 71  

months.  It's definitely -- I definitely feel the love whenever it happens for sure.  So, I think 
I would separate two concepts there, Council Member Perreault.  One of them is the -- 
the preliminary plat and I would point to what Sonya said about that.  The preliminary plat 
is really there to carve up the property, identify the dimensions and for, you know, 
purposes of future conveyance.  What we are really talking about here is the development 
agreement and the concept plan and what is the possibility of having to come back with 
a modification in the future.  In this case we have got a group that has done extensive 
market research, is in conversations with a number of commercial users with regard to 
that exterior ring of commercial in particular and so we feel very comfortable that this is 
going to develop in the way that we anticipated developing.  But I absolutely understand 
the point of your question and that is why you have the development agreement 
modification process, so that you were able to look at this or as future Council is able to 
look at this and decide, hey, does this meet the original intent, do we still like this and 
there is still an additional public hearing process that we have to jump through.  We 
wouldn't go to this much detail if we didn't feel very comfortable that this is going to play 
out the way that we anticipate it playing out, because for that exact reason, we have to 
come back and jump through another public hearing process.   
 
Perreault:  So, forgive my assumption, then, that the delay in presenting a preliminary plat 
was to make modifications to it.  That's what I assumed.  Otherwise, is -- can you share 
with us the purpose of it?  Is -- is there a concern that it will expire before the two years?  
Can you go into more detail about that then?   
 
Clark:  Council Member Perreault, that process of doing just the DA and the rezone is 
becoming more and more common and one of the reasons that we decided to do with in 
this instance is we wanted to get in front of you, see what your comments were on the 
concept plan, see what your take is on our access points in particular, because you guys 
have to look at access points on the arterials and we have got a condition of approval that 
speaks to that and, then, understand where we are at and, then, go finish the engineering 
on the preliminary plat to make sure it all works.  So, that's the thought process for doing 
the bifurcated steps here.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.  So, I -- I have lived in this area for 12 years.  I have driven 
by this nearly every day for 12 years and have been through and heard and participated 
in, as a Planning and Zoning Commissioner and as a Council Member conversations 
regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the Ten Mile Interchange, and have, you know, lots 
of conversations regarding just the -- just the general idea of what we want to see in this 
area and I have to say I -- I'm -- I'm kind of underwhelmed with the concept plan and I 
think I was in my mind's eye hoping for maybe just a little bit more creativity and what I 
mean by that is so -- and these are conversations that have come out a lot -- a lot from 
the -- from the eastern side of the development and what we -- the applications we have 
seen come in there.  So, when we have had numerous applications over these years and 
every single one of them has had conversations about walkability and -- and trees and 
landscaping; right?  So, we have -- we have done this on numerous occasions on the 
east side of the project and so -- and so this is where I'm hoping you can help me 
understand exactly what your intention is.  When I see the three dimensional drawings 

Page 64

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 37 of 71  

that show pedestrian activity, trees, you know, just -- just a lot of interaction between the 
residents there and, then, I look at the two dimensional plan, it looks to me like it's almost 
all parking lot.  So, help me understand, because what I see in the 3D renderings and 
what I see in the two dimensional concept plan looks very different in my mind's eye and 
the reason that's important is because the conversation we have had for -- for a very long 
time now is that this area be very much pedestrian plazas, you know, people being 
outside, living and working in the same place.  They are -- they are -- you know, they are 
living in those apartments, they are working in this and this becomes like their center to 
be and I don't see that in this.  So, if that's your intention, please, help me to see it.   
 
Borgess:  It may be a little bit of a struggle with the graphical nature of the site plans and 
the scale of them, because they are prepared at such a small scale because of the size 
of the property.  Everything to this point, thanks to modern technology, though, we are 
able to replicate in 3D digitally a hundred percent accurately based on an AutoCAD 
generated site plan.  So, what you are seeing in the artist's illustrations are not an 
exaggerated width in the street or an exaggerated dimension of the landscape or 
anything.  What you see in those images is what the project -- project will look like,  
obviously, at landscape maturity.  We won't be planting 30 foot trees to start.  But the 
images that you see should accurately depict what the project will look like.  Now, the 
areas that you were mentioning, such as public spaces, plazas, outdoor areas, those are 
all elements that will be developed and defined in more detail as we work through the 
subsequent portions of the entitlement phase for the project.  Those areas are kind of a 
challenge to develop at such a small scale at an early stage in the process, but we do 
have, obviously, an intent to pay significant attention to those, because those outdoor 
areas are what link all the pedestrian circulation together.  I hope that helped clarify.   
 
Perreault:  Yes, it did.  I just -- I don't know that we actually get an opportunity, however, 
to be involved in that more detailed level once we get past this point and for this particular 
project I would like to have more specifics, because this is a critical 40 acres in our city 
and a critical 40 acres in a plan that was -- that, you know, the city went to great lengths 
to have a specific sub plan for our Comprehensive Plan for this area and so I think for me 
this -- this 40 acres is just really really important that we understand what your -- your 
hope is and how it's really, you know, intended to play out, realizing there is -- not 
everything is completely in your control as far as what your -- your users will be.  So -- so, 
moving on to another topic, then, I just -- can you -- can you help us understand -- you 
said you had had a marketing team, you had a consultant that had -- had looked into the 
amount of residential versus commercial, type of commercial, I assume even down to 
sizes of buildings and whatnot.  This area is just getting so heavy on the multi-family.  We 
have got not only what is happening in the east, to the west, but it's my understanding 
that in the northeast corner of that -- that intersection there is also going to be some 
additional high density -- high and medium density.  So, can you talk to us about why you 
would put the ratios in that you put and I am in agreement, I would say, with our Planning 
and Zoning Commission, I feel like it is too heavy on the residential and if so you can help 
us understand some more about how you got to this placed, so that we don't come out 
and say, hey, you really need more commercial in there and your market study is saying, 
hey, we can't support more commercial in there.  I mean anticipation, as we know, about 

Page 65

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 38 of 71  

population growth is significant and the way that -- because this is someone in the 
southeast side -- or southwest side of Meridian, Meridian -- this is not really in Meridian's 
focus areas right now and so my anticipation is that protecting and developing commercial 
in this area for when the residential comes to be -- I realize that you need to have rooftops 
and, then, you need to have commercial and there is this chicken and egg thing that 
happens with -- with your users.  But I personally -- I think I had heard somebody say that 
it seems like this is a commercial heavy area and not a residential heavy area and I would 
completely disagree.  It's very heavy high density.  So, can you share with us some more 
information about how you got to these specific residential proposals?   
 
Simison:  If you can state your name and address for the record, please.   
 
Pilegaard:  Council Members, Erik Pilegaard.  10981 Olana Drive, Lake Tahoe, California.  
So, another associate of mine came before you a few years back and we had built The 
Enclave, which is 204 units, pinwheel design.  I could tell you from experience on that 
project that is complete working with staff that -- that 204 units were a hundred percent 
occupied.  We have been a hundred percent occupied.  We have 47 people on a waiting 
list for two years to get into the complex.  You are familiar with the lots across the street 
recently just sold, one hundred percent occupied, waiting list to get in.  They are pre-
leased on their new development behind that as well.  But that whole area, like Hethe had 
mentioned, the core, the work, the walk, we have integrated this and had seven renditions 
with staff on how to integrate the pedestrian, the access to work and a big factor that also 
came into play was, you know, the pandemic and the COVID.  I mean restaurants have 
changed the game.  Any restaurant that's talking to us wants to have a drive-through, 
regardless if it's a -- you know, fast food or something of that nature.  So, there is financial 
aspects, dentistry, and so that commercial component comes to our area.  But we feel we 
have a great balance and this clubhouse that we have designed for the community that 
we are building is almost 20,000 square feet and it has pickleball, bocce ball, it has a lot 
of amenities for families to come and stay there.  But to answer your question as far as    
-- is there a demand?  The demand is outrageous.  I think the demand is slow on the 
commercial side and the big shopping center side.  We have got the Winco.  We have got 
the Albertson's, we have got a lot of that already there in place and we are what we call 
on the go-to-work side of the street, if that makes sense, to where everybody's passing 
our development and are going to work in the morning.  So, they are not necessarily going 
to come to our retail component and shop when they come back home.  I don't know if 
that helps, but all the indications indicate that we have a great balance and our current, 
you know, experience in Meridian has demonstrated that for us.  But I think, you know, it 
was difficult today to see the integration that you are talking about as far as pedestrian 
and what we are going to look like.  We had to kind of go through the slide presentations 
very very rapidly.  But if we could put those up and really ask those questions, staff -- they, 
you know, made us go back to the drawing board six or seven times for the pedestrian 
access and integration.  I think that this is going to be a landmark of that and also 
architectural design that when you look at it it's -- you know, I love to beat the competition.  
We are bigger, we are better, we are going to look better and it's where everybody's going 
to want to call home.  So, I agree with you a hundred percent on those -- those questions 
and I think we have answered them.  But, again, it's -- you know, Sonya, Bill, the team 

Page 66

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 39 of 71  

over there forced us to get to this point.  So, hopefully that helps.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  They know as well.  They have to be our mind readers before you 
get here and so that your time is utilized efficiently.  So, thank you for answers to all of 
those questions.  I appreciate it very much and I know that -- I think I have one or two 
more, but I will -- I will release my time here.  Thank you for allowing me to go question 
by question.   
 
Pilegaard:  Thank you.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader. 
 
Strader:  I had some follow-ups on those topics.  So, for -- 
 
Simison:  You are recognized for your time.   
 
Strader:  Oh, thank you.  So, just -- just a couple things.  So, maybe -- maybe we will start 
with the architectural design and, then, you can pivot to more of the big picture that the 
gentleman was just discussing.  So, maybe if we could bring up, actually, the -- I guess 
the concept plan real quick.  One of my concerns is also the parking and the reason that 
this concern is coming up is that we had an intern do a tremendous amount of work for 
us on mixed use projects and we have actually found that having adequate parking is 
extremely important, but that the location of parking is important, too, and I guess I would 
challenge you guys -- you know, we have seen some projects recently come through that 
have actually parking on the interior core of the building and, then, like a pedestrian -- 
more of a streetscape on the outside.  It's actually buildings where the parking is within 
the interior of the building and is that something that you guys looked at or -- or a 
possibility for you?   
 
Borgess:  On a portion of the project we do have that.  On the five buildings -- five of our 
-- I'm not sure if the mouse is working here.  Doesn't appear to be.  I don't see the cursor.  
But on our five mixed use buildings that are kind of north of our clubhouse and south of 
the commercial on Franklin, those buildings have a -- not entirely, but a significant portion 
of their parking under the building.  All of the townhouses also have parking under the 
building on the first floor of those.  So, the elements that don't are our high density 
buildings, which are kind of all self contained south and west of the canal that has just 
surface parking for those particular uses.   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  I mean I guess I'm looking at it in -- and maybe you can help me 
understand.  I'm sort of seeing this road come through.  It looks like you have some 
pedestrian crossings and stuff, but I guess I'm concerned, it looks like the high density 
residential is really kind of orphaned out there in the corner, instead of being like really 
integrated with the other uses.  It's just my impression just from looking at them.   
 

Page 67

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 40 of 71  

Borgess:  Well -- and part of it has to do with zoning and the land use.  So, the location 
that the high density buildings are is, essentially, where the land use designation and the 
zoning for R-40 is located.  So, it doesn't really allow us to move those across into the 
mixed use commercial component that's zoned general commercial.  So, that's why we 
have the other land use -- or the other residential types there.   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  And I probably will have a follow-up question for staff about that.  And, 
then, I guess my other question on some of the topics that Council Woman Perreault 
brought up, yeah, I'm just looking here -- right.  So, understood that there is a tremendous 
amount of residential demand.  We know there is a housing -- housing shortage.  That's 
not news to us.  The challenge I think for us is that we are losing commercial as a city and 
we can't get it back and so every mixed use project that's overweighted into residential 
we can't get that commercial back and it's a smart idea to have residential in a 
transportation corridor, we agree with you there, but we also want the jobs to be there.  
We don't want people commuting across the city.  It's just exacerbating our traffic problem.  
So, I guess -- you know, I'm just looking, but, you know, it looks like 61 percent of your 
site is mixed use commercial, 30.5 percent is high density residential and around eight 
and a half percent or so is mixed use residential.  I'm going to be generous and assume 
the residential ones are just residential in terms of what we would target, but if we thought 
that 20 percent of the mixed use commercial should be residential, you know, I'm coming 
up with more like 18 acres of the total site that would ideally be residential compared to, 
you know, a significant amount more than that.  So, I just wanted to give that context to 
you.  Those targets aren't hard targets that we have to meet on every application, but this 
is pretty far from -- from what I think we are -- we are looking for in general is my 
impression.   
 
Borgess:  Are you looking at the site overall or are you looking at each component of the 
site relative to the high density versus the mixed use portion?   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  I'm just taking the acreage that you gave me of each of those three 
components across the entire site and, then, I'm looking at the percentage that was given 
that's residential within your mixed use commercial zone and comparing that to the 20 
percent target that Sonya mentioned, which it sounds like there is some maybe flexibility 
around that.  I wasn't sure how firm that idea was.  But it just feels really far off of what 
we would normally expect.   
 
Borgess:  We may need to work with Sonya a little bit on this, but it was our understanding 
that in the mixed use portion that the target for the residential was no more than 30 
percent of the total ground floor area of the -- of the -- total ground floor area 30 percent  
maximum of that could be residential.  So, we are fairly close to that as a target number, 
according -- based on our calculations and based on our estimations of the commercial 
space at this time.  So, I'm not sure that we are as far off as I may be understanding what 
you are saying, but we may need to work with Sonya a little bit to refine the numbers and 
percentages to make sure we are within or close to the thresholds that the specific plan 
is anticipating.   
 

Page 68

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 41 of 71  

Strader:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Council, additional questions?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun is recognized.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a question.  I don't know who wants to respond.  But, Adrienne, if we 
can go to the one that shows the ingress and egress.  I think it had A, B, C, D.   
 
Borgess:  I think that was one of staff's slides.   
 
Hoaglun:  Is that one of yours, Sonya?  So, if we could pull that up.  It just makes it easier 
referring to which intersect -- which one we are talking about.  I just want to make sure I 
understand the right-in, right-outs.  There was one -- I think it was on Cobalt that was 
going to be right-in, right-out and left only --  
 
Borgess:  Left in.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  Left -- left-in only.  So, if we don't have that one real quick, Sonya, we 
can just do the concept one and just refer to it by -- by direction, if that's -- if that's -- got 
the one minute sign.  I don't know if -- Layne, if you will be answering that or if it's going 
to be Hethe, but just -- so if -- if a person wants to go north on Ten Mile, they are going to 
have to make sure they exit out to Franklin Road, turn right, get across and get in the left- 
hand turn lanes.  So, that's -- that's the plan there, which is -- most likely that would be A.  
So, there is a -- that's -- intersection A is a full access, left, right -- both ways.  Okay?  B 
was right-in, right-out only?   
 
Borgess:  Correct.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  So, A will allow that North Ten Mile Road access.  C was right-in, right- 
out only.   
 
Borgess:  No.  C was right-out only.   
 
Hoaglun:  Right -- right-out.  Correct.  Yeah.  That's right.  Right-in, right-out.  And what 
was -- what was B?   
 
Borgess:  B was right-in, right-out.  C was right-out.  There is no in access on C.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.   
 
Borgess:  D is right-in, right-out.   
 
Hoaglun:  And intersection two, Cobalt, that was left-in -- right -- right-in, right-out and left- 

Page 69

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 42 of 71  

in.   
 
Borgess:  Yeah.  And that's from our driveway on Cobalt, which for whatever reason didn't 
have a letter designation to it.   
 
Hoaglun:  And so, Mr. Mayor, I guess you're giving me liberties as well.  Okay.  Thank 
you.  The -- so, there is no light there at Cobalt?   
 
Borgess:  That's correct.  And I believe the staff or someone may have pointed out that 
there were attempts previously under a previous application for a signalization of that 
intersection and ACHD opposed that strenuously, because I believe of the distance 
separation between the signal at Vanguard.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  I understand.  And those -- sometimes those -- some you win and some 
you don't on those, so -- so be it.  Okay.  That -- that gives me a better understanding of 
those and that -- that north access -- I mean it's just something that people are going to 
have to get used to if they are going to want to travel north on Ten Mile to make sure they 
are going out that A entrance.  The access point on Cobalt, where we have the high 
density -- so, if you come down that intersection two and you are heading west on Cobalt, 
is their plans -- and that's the future portion that you are planning -- in fact, right where it 
says Cobalt Drive, just to the south of the high density housing, is -- is that going to be an 
access point in the future for those apartments off of Cobalt or is that just -- everything 
else is going to be through A, B, C, D?   
 
Borgess:  Well, right now all of the accesses were determined or calculated in 
transportation analysis based on A, B, C, D and E and we did not at that point for traffic 
study purposes anticipate any access further down Cobalt.  Would it be possible, once 
Cobalt extension was actually completed?  I suppose, you know, from a physical 
standpoint it's directly there.  It could be done.  But in our existing proposal -- and this 
may come up a little bit more when we talk a little bit with our neighbors to the south -- is 
that the portion of Cobalt along the southern property outside of ours wouldn't be built 
initially, so that there wouldn't be any access that would be available to us until that 
extension was done.   
 
Hoaglun:  And, Mr. Mayor, just to continue on.  Yeah.  And -- and I don't know if that's 
good or bad or necessarily bad, it's just -- I was curious about that, because four stories, 
the number of units, that -- that's a lot of traffic and having, you know, some choke points 
there at particular times might -- might occur when you have high density and I thought 
Councilman Strader raised an interesting point about, you know, it seems like a lot of 
parking lot, but, then, the number of units for those high density -- what was it?  Three 
hundred and eighty.   
 
Borgess:  So, yeah, roughly I think that's about 70 -- 68, 70 percent of the total proposed 
residential is in the high density component.   
 
Hoaglun:  I was just thinking from a car perspective, if you are at four -- that's 800 cars, 

Page 70

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 43 of 71  

so -- I mean you are going to need a lot of ground for parking.  If you have that many 
residences and if you think one to two, two to three, depending on, you know, the sizes 
of the units, how many vehicles, and, you know, we live in America and we like our cars, 
so it's -- it's just going to take up a lot of ground for -- for a parking lot.   
 
Borgess:  We tried to oriented the parking areas between buildings, create areas that 
were flexible, so that people parking in them could conveniently go to a building on either 
side.  So, that's why you see kind of what appears to be larger parking areas, because 
those serve multiple buildings.   
 
Hoaglun:  Good.  And, then, Sonya, since I guess you are -- you are driving the -- if we 
can just go to the concept plan.  It's a little clearer there.  Thank you.  I want to talk about 
the Kennedy Lateral.  Personally I like water being open and having access, but tell me 
a little bit more about the plan for that and it appears you have a walking path, but what   
-- what -- what is that going to look like?  What's your -- your concept plan that you have 
for -- for that particular stretch?   
 
Borgess:  Well, I think concept plan is an accurate description of it.  We, obviously, have 
shown what our intention is and that is to utilize a portion of the canal as an amenity -- as 
a site amenity for us.  So, we have sections that will be covered or enclosed where we 
have crossings and in some places we have widened those, so we have open green 
spaces.  We anticipate the balance of it will have a walking path and although our 
particular parcel is not identified on the master trail plan of having a requirement for a 
path along the canal, we are proposing one that connects Franklin down to Cobalt and 
out to Ten Mile.  So, the -- the canal itself will, obviously, have to be fenced for safety and 
security reasons with an open decorative -- we are not sure whether it is ornamental iron, 
is it some other type of design and, then, obviously, have a variety of plantings along it,  
so it's more than just a strap -- you know, a stretch of grass with a piece of concrete down 
there.  But we will probably have seating areas.  Little -- little areas off the side of the path 
that people could sit and, you know, work with their iPad, contemplate life, or those kinds 
of things, as we move through the site.  But, again, as I mentioned earlier, that level of 
detail at this scale of a plan we really haven't developed, other than the concept behind 
trying to make that a site amenity and an enhancement or something for -- that's not only 
the residents, but in this case the community at large, because that won't be secured or 
fenced, so it is available for the public to walk through that area.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  You talked about commercial being impacted by COVID-19 and, you 
know, the changes that that has wrought and I think the same thing is true for where 
people live and the open space and amenities that are available, especially for your high 
density homes, having that ability to be outside and maybe away from a spouse you work 
24/7 with, you know, because you are both working remotely and doing some things like 
that.  I just think that's more important in this day and I like -- I like seeing that -- that -- 
that concept for that.   
 
Borgess:  Well, yeah, and we really took that to heart, too, as we worked through our 
design.  I think I mentioned earlier that in our recreation center we actually call it now a 

Page 71

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 44 of 71  

co-work space.  We devoted probably about half of the second floor of that building to co- 
working spaces, because we recognize the dynamics of working from home are evolving.  
You know, a lot of people been doing it for three months, six months, 15 months and, as 
you said, some people they start to feel shut in.  As opposed to being in a 5,000 square 
foot office you are now in your 180 square foot bedroom, it's nice to have an alternative 
to be able to walk from your apartment over to the community building, go upstairs in a 
nice space that has all of the amenities, printers, networks, Wi-Fi and be able to have a 
private space or to work in a co-work space.  There are open corrals or those kinds of 
things.  So, we have -- we have committed a significant investment in doing that to create 
that type of opportunity for the community.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  And my last question -- I noticed you have a concept for garages there 
for the high density and I'm assuming -- and staff can correct me on that -- that that -- 
those garages count towards the required parking spaces that are -- go into for that.  My 
only thought is -- is sometimes garages are used for storage, as opposed to vehicles and 
so just something to take into account.  You know, they are moving and they need a place 
to store that furniture that they didn't get out of the U-Haul yet and --  
 
Borgess:  Understand.  And I believe -- and, unfortunately, I don't have the statistic right 
in front of me, but I do believe that we have the high density area overparked, kind of 
anticipating that exactly what you are saying is going to happen.  We may have a 
percentage of those that aren't actually used for parking.  So, we haven't cut it to the bone 
and done just the minimum, but actually provided some excess.   
 
Hoaglun:  Great.  Well, I appreciate the time you have taken to -- to focus on this and 
working with staff and making some changes and coming up with things.  There -- there 
is a lot to like about this -- this concept plan, so -- thank you.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I very much like this concept plan.  I think it's definitely different -- and I don't need 
to elaborate, I think you have heard a lot of talk from us tonight, so I'm not going to 
elaborate, but the only -- the only thing that I'm looking for is maybe, you know, a little bit 
more commercial.  Whether that's a live-work component, whether that's more 
commercial and the mixed use commercial aspect of it -- for me I'm needing -- I'm needing 
that.  I'm just needing a little bit more commercial.  Every time, as a Council, especially 
myself, when I -- when I try to design something on the dais it always turns into a huge 
cluster.  All right?  And inevitably one asks -- so, Treg, what -- what are you looking for  
exactly?  Well, that's when it gets ugly.  And so you are not going to get that from me 
tonight, because you guys are the professionals, you guys know exactly -- you look at the 
data, you know what's going to sell, what you need, but that's what I'm looking for.  I -- I 
think that we are almost there.  I just need just a little bit more -- more of that.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   

Page 72

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 45 of 71  

Simison:  Councilman Cavener.  
 
Cavener:  I know we haven't taken any public testimony yet.  I was going to kind of keep 
comments --  
 
Bernt:  That's true.  That's totally true.   
 
Cavener:  -- keeping with the theme.  I guess a comment and a question.  I agree a lot 
with what I have -- I have heard from my colleagues tonight.  A specific question on this 
concept plan and -- and we are seeing a little bit more of this and it catches me a little off 
guard.  I don't think there is anything intended.  But what I see more and more is the 
higher density housing is being pulled further and further away from the open space and 
I really think that's an equity issue.  I think the more you stack people in the more open 
space you should bring closer to them and what I see here is those big high densities are 
really far away from real usable open space, where the flats, again, less dense, are much 
closer.  So, I'm hoping you can kind of talk me through the why behind that and kind of 
what the rationale was behind -- and, again, I don't think it was intentional, but I'm just 
trying to understand the -- the -- the model behind that.   
 
Borgess:  Well, I mean it's clear and it's obvious when you look at the concept plan that 
the majority of the open space is centered around the physical center of the site and along 
the canal.  So, it runs diagonally in an east-west direction and it's toward the center.  When 
you look at how we located the -- at least two out of the three high density buildings, with 
the exception of the parking that we need to provide, they are almost as physically close 
as we can get them without pushing them directly up against the easements, which, then, 
makes the space -- I will call it in the middle of the L, basically you can't access it and you 
can't utilize it and so it makes it a physical challenge to accommodate the -- anything 
close to R-40 when you do something like that.  So, we have tried to locate the majority 
of the high density buildings in a reasonably close proximity to all the open space.  Yeah, 
we do have one building, the one in the southwest corner, that is somewhat removed from 
the open space.  From a distance standpoint those two high density buildings -- I can't 
see their numbers -- are probably as close to the open space as three of the medium 
density buildings and at least two of the townhouse buildings and probably all of the mixed 
use residential commercial buildings.   
 
Cavener:  So, Mr. Mayor, follow up if I may.  Adrienne, sorry, I didn't mean to cut you, but 
is -- is the podium screen, is it interactive?  If they touch it will the screen advance slides?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, Luke, if you use the keys on the keyboard it should advance            
and --  
 
Cavener:  Adrienne, sorry, I don't want him to have to advance, I guess I just am asking 
maybe if the Council and the applicant to kind of humor me with -- with an exercise, which 
is take your hand and cover -- cover the high density and -- and look at your -- your site 
plan.  Man, that looks really thoughtful.  Really creative.  I get really excited about that.  
Now, what I would like you to do is take your hand, cover the commercial, cover the flats, 

Page 73

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 46 of 71  

and look at the high density.  And let me ask you if that's something that we are really 
excited and proud about, because I'm not -- I'm not quite there on that piece.   
 
Borgess:  Well, part of that is the nature of -- okay.  So, when I cover the high density and 
I expose the rest of it, then, the open space is, basically, surrounded on two sides.  I mean 
it's a triangular shaped parcel, each of those, by the nature of the canal going through.  
When I do the opposite I, then, only exposed one side of the open space to the high 
density housing.  So, from a standpoint of looking at it from which is closer, by that 
illustration, yes, it does appear that way.  But, again, the recreational element and the 
open space is maybe not exactly, but pretty close to the center of the parcel.   
 
Cavener:  But what I -- and you had a slide I think that -- I was trying to write down the 
numbers -- of how many people were living in each one and, again, I saw it fast, but my    
-- my belief is that the vast majority of the residents are going to live in the high density 
piece.   
 
Borgess:  Oh, sure.  Just by virtue of the number of units.   
 
Cavener:  So, again -- and I think that's -- that's where some of my challenges are, is that 
where you are housing the greatest amount of people is the furthest distance from the 
open space and the amenities and I just -- I think that that's an opportunity to -- to improve 
this application to better serve the residents that are going to live there.  That's just -- just 
my overall opinion.  I think there is a lot to really enjoy and I really like about this project,  
but that's a piece that I -- I'm just very sensitive to.   
 
Clark:  Council Member Cavener, if I could maybe throw a couple pieces onto this.  So, 
one thing that I think we have to keep in mind is the two different comp plan designations 
that split this property along the Kennedy Lateral.  So, the high density residential is 
everything south and west of the Kennedy Lateral.  Mixed use is everything north and 
east of it.  We have more opportunities with the mixed use commercial actually to be 
creative with that.  But one thing to keep in mind is that when you look at the Ten Mile 
Interchange Specific Area Plan, which we have got to get a good acronym for, is it calls 
for these public gathering spaces to be centrally located within the development, which is 
exactly what we have done here and pulled it as far to the -- as close to the high density 
residential as -- as we could and be able to take advantage of that Kennedy Lateral as an 
amenity.  So, you know, I think what we have done here is -- your -- your point is very well 
taken.  But what we have done is try to create a centrally located open space event area 
that is available to everyone through the project.   
 
Cavener:  And, Mr. Mayor, if I may.  Again, I don't -- I'm not trying to assume any ill 
intentions.  I think that you -- you are achieving what you set out to do.  I just think 
unintendedly you have -- you have created a large separation for where the largest 
amount of people are going to live and I think that as much thought as has been put into 
this and many of the charrettes that you share show an active community where people 
are going to want to live.  I don't take it away that that's what you are hoping to intend.  I 
said just from my perspective looking where your high density is you are not meeting what 

Page 74

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 47 of 71  

I think you are intending to do with your entire project.   
 
Clark:  And I think I would agree with you more, Council Member Cavener, if that open 
space was located more in the northeast quadrant.  I mean if you look at it from the overall 
scheme of things here, it's -- it's actually southwest of the center of the project, up against 
the Kennedy Lateral and if you look along here, we do have a number of pedestrian 
pathways that connect that in and make the whole thing interconnected.  But we are 
dealing with two different comp plan designations and so that -- the high density 
residential really does need to go right there.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Just to follow up on that one -- I mean on one hand you are saying they are 
different.  On the other hand you are saying it's integrated.  You don't get to have it both 
ways.  So, if you -- if you -- if you look at it from a standpoint of, you know, the one might 
have zero open space in the high density residential portion.  So, at least to me you don't 
get it to -- you don't get to use both arguments in order to make it seem like it's meeting 
the intentions of the overall plan.  That's -- and I'm with Councilman Cavener, that, you 
know, even having the lateral day lit to a certain extent creates a natural separation that, 
yeah, you can create bridges, but it doesn't  -- it may be a nice amenity, but doesn't even 
feel -- it makes it seem more separated.  You know, it really does seem like the other -- 
you know, I live in the other side of the tracks, south side, you know --  
 
Cavener:  Whoa.  Whoa.  Sorry, Mr. Mayor, moment of privilege.   
 
Simison:  I know.  We both live there.   
 
Cavener:  I will not let you disparage the --  
 
Simison:  I'm not disparaging.  I --  
 
Cavener:  -- those who live in south Meridian, the other side of the tracks.   
 
Simison:  -- love it, but it is the -- there is that natural barrier divide, despite having Locust 
Grove and, hopefully, Linder Road overpass, it's still a physical barrier no matter how you 
want cross it, you know, from a practical standpoint, so -- 
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Clark:  If I could -- I -- I'm not trying to have it both ways here, I'm trying to explain that 
there is a context that there is two different comp plan designations that are split by a 
natural barrier and that we have tried to be mindful of that natural barrier and those two 
Comprehensive Plan designations in the way that we have sited the open space, you 
know, and we have been creative with that, because when you look at the Ten Mile 

Page 75

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 48 of 71  

Interchange Specific Area Plan it does speak to these centrally located plaza areas and 
that's exactly what we have done.   
 
Simison:  Well, then, to follow up on that question, again, if -- if you take the lateral as the 
bifurcation of this project, do you have ten percent of your -- ten percent open space in 
the southern portion of this project?   
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, I don't think it's calculated that way with -- with respect and the -- we       
-- it is one integrated whole.   
 
Simison:  Correct.  But you keep -- I understand it, but it's also you don't get to say, well, 
it's -- it's -- that's why it's really down there.  That's what -- that's meant to be there.   
 
Clark:  Okay.  I get it.   
 
Simison:  That may be what's meant to be there, but you don't have any open space there 
if you use the laterals, but one percent near that space if you -- if you want to use the 
comp plan designations differently there is really nothing in that southern portion, if we 
are going to apply these differences and not with the -- at its whole.  Even though I 
recognize that's where they need to be based upon the comp plan area.   
 
Clark:  But that's -- that's my only point I'm making, Mr. Mayor.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Council Woman Strader, sorry.   
 
Strader:  Oh, that's okay.  I mean the good news is you are getting a lot of rich feedback, 
so you will be able to use that at a future time I'm sure.  My question for Sonya.  We have 
a Comprehensive Plan with two different designations.  I guess I'm a little surprised, 
because I have seen people in the past try to float designations and I would think with 
something like this we will be able to look at it more holistically if we feel like the 
appropriate amount of different uses is served by the whole project.  So, I don't know if 
Sonya can kind of comment on what flexibility there may be here.   
 
Allen: Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, Council, you are absolutely correct.  The 
Comprehensive Plan is a guide.  It's not necessarily written in stone.  Some of the 
designations can float a little bit if deemed appropriate.  The applicant is -- is proposing 
development in the high density residential designated area consistent with the plan.  
There are a mix of multi-family and vertically integrated mixed use residential, combined 
with office and commercial uses consistent with the plan in the northeast portion as well.  
We look at the multi-family development overall so far as open space and site amenities.  
You know, the comp plan does state in mixed use commercial areas that no more than -- 
I think Layne mentioned this earlier -- no more than 30 percent of the ground level 
development should be used for residences.  I'm not sure exactly -- I know they are right 
in there.  I'm not sure exactly where they are at on the ground level and they might be 
able to address that closer.   
 

Page 76

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 49 of 71  

Strader:  Thank you, Sonya.  That answered my questions.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault. 
 
Perreault:  Here I thought I was going to be the hardest one on you this evening.  So, a 
couple of questions.  Was there consideration made of live-work units?  I know there is 
some other -- there is some other developments in Meridian that are incorporating these.  
But in a smaller way maybe there is -- maybe there is eight or ten in a project of this size 
where you have, you know, a small shop in the bottom where you might have a 
chiropractor's office or nail salon, individual users, and, then, they have residents above.  
It seems to me like that's been -- I know that there was consideration made of putting that 
in the Orchard Park development at Linder and Chinden.  I know that the Pine 43 
development's putting them in.  Was there any consideration made?  It seems like this 
would be a really great location for that and I don't know what the -- I don't know how well 
those have leased in those two.  Orchard Park isn't far enough along yet, but that was 
part of their concept plan was to have those.  I like that, because I think it not only brings 
in some -- an additional variety of uses that are -- that are smaller uses that are more 
neighborhood uses than these larger commercial properties do and it also goes along 
with what our, you know, Comprehensive Plan elements, which is -- which is the live and 
work piece.  So, I was really hoping to see something like that when it was talking about 
sort of the creativity element of it, it was not only do we have places, as you mentioned 
to come and sit and think and sit there with your dog and, you know, that kind of -- kind 
of plaza feel, but also this integration of the live and work where -- you know, kind of more 
of a metropolitan idea where you have residences above and retail -- or shops below or 
some -- you know, some sort of use below.  I would like to see that.  I'm curious if you 
have -- had looked into that, if you are -- if your consulting team had looked into that.  
That's the first question.  Second question is is as Council Member Hoaglun pointed out, 
you have one area -- so -- so, essentially, you cannot turn left anywhere on Ten Mile Road 
in any of those exits.  So, if you are down here in the grocery store area and you need to 
get back up to Ten Mile, take me through where you are going and how many residents 
you are hoping not to hit on the way there.  No, I'm kidding.  But, please, take me through 
-- I mean that seems like that grocery store is an anchor and now you -- the assumption 
for -- for me the assumption is if you are going to the grocery store you are probably not 
headed south on Ten Mile, you are probably headed back north on Ten Mile, assuming 
that you don't live in this area -- I mean in this -- in this 40 acres.  So, how do I now 
navigate -- you know, I need to stop at the groceries -- grocery store for five items, how 
do I now navigate out all the way to Exit A and get back out to Ten Mile Road?  We see 
some of this challenge with the intersection at Chinden and Linder where the -- the Fred 
Meyer development is and especially in that northwest -- I mean it's almost impossible.  
There is no way to turn left anywhere and I think it most likely affects those businesses 
for sure, although I -- I know you guys will do an assessment of that.  But help me 
understand that, why you would put an anchor store down in an area where getting north 
would be harder to do.   
 

Page 77

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 50 of 71  

Borgess:  Well, to access Ten Mile north from the grocery store we call that area pod five 
down there.  You have two options.  One of them is to travel north on -- which I think would 
have been Access B, if you remember where Access B was, all the way -- that intersection 
does allow right-in and right-out.  It is approximately 450 feet from the intersection.  As an 
alternative to that you could make a left up at -- I will call it Roadway C that was on -- that 
runs east-west down to Access A and, then, exit the site there at Access A.  Does that 
make sense?  
 
Perreault:  No, I don't have the -- is C the -- the northern one that -- 
 
Borgess:  Yes.  C would be the northern most access on Ten Mile.   
 
Perreault:  So, run me through that again.  You would --  
 
Borgess:  Okay.  Yeah.  This is perfect.  Okay.  So, from the location that the grocery store 
is currently proposed, you can either travel up -- I will call it Road D and exit there or you 
can travel up to Road C, make a left turn onto Road A and, then, exit from that location.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.   
 
Borgess:  And, then, to answer your first question, before I forget that you placed it, was 
having to do with the mixed use buildings.   
 
Perreault:  Uh-huh.   
 
Borgess:  We did do some consideration into the type of vertically mixed use buildings 
that we could do on this site and what we, obviously, were focusing on is what type -- 
what type do we have the greatest chance being successful with and being successful 
means that we find ground floor tenants.  We are less concerned with -- with finding the 
upper floor tenants for the residences, because of the nature of the demand right now 
and based on our research we felt that the majority of success we have seen with the real 
live-work where you work downstairs and have an apartment sometimes even attached 
to it to where you just go upstairs from your shop, are units that in most cases are sold 
and not rented.  So, then, we have a different dynamic of a different type of building, rather 
than a building that we can lease spaces out and we just felt that our chances of being 
successful with having something that we could actually achieve the plan that we have 
proposed would more easily be done with a flexible ground floor that could be service 
commercial, you know, could it be a dentist, could it be an eyeglass shop, could it be a 
State Farm Insurance agent or a nail salon -- would be easier to get those kind of tenants, 
because what we are trying to focus on is -- and I think I said this earlier -- was a type of 
commercial use that are -- can be supported by this residential community that we are 
creating.  You will notice the grocery store that was proposed is -- I think is 18,000, 
probably be somewhere between 16 and 18 thousand feet.  This isn't a great big 35, 50, 
60 thousand foot grocery store where you are going to do three weeks worth of shopping.  
This is a store that can support the people here that don't want to get in their car and drive 
down the street to Albertson's or the nearest large market.  They need to go to a drugstore, 

Page 78

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 51 of 71  

pick up sundries and various things.  They can walk to it within the community and we 
see that same type of service-related tenants moving into a vertically integrated mixed 
use more quickly than somebody that says, well, I have got to buy it and given what we 
are still experiencing with COVID fallout, there is not as much ability to buy, there is a little 
more apprehension, so that's why we made the decision to use that type.   
 
Perreault:  So, this entire development will be managed by one entity?   
 
Borgess:  I believe --  
 
Perreault:  Individual commercial buildings won't be sold to users?   
 
Borgess:  I don't believe that's the intent.  The intent is to basically build to suit and I 
believe Erik and his partner Mark are planning to maintain ownership and operation of all 
the properties.   
 
Perreault:  One more question.  When you have a development like this that is in a 
different area of the city, not near an interstate interchange, I think it will look different,  
but because this is near the interchange it seems a little light on the sizes or the uses to 
-- I guess -- I guess I expect or anticipate -- and maybe this is my limited thinking based 
on just how our whole value is developed -- is that near -- near the interchange you are    
-- you are going to have just a significant amount of folks coming and going in, so, 
therefore, your uses would be a little bit less of a neighborhood feel, although I know we 
have limited -- we had really specific regulations in this area, because we have got the 
Comp Plan and, then, we have got the Ten Mile Interchange Plan and so we are really 
trying to specify and narrow down what it is that you are attempting to do.  I realized that 
that -- there is a lot of restriction in that.  But just help me understand how you took into 
account the interchange as you designed this.  Obviously, on the east side those are a lot 
larger buildings, you kind of have that business piece of it, but I just -- I kind of expected 
-- would expect to see something like this, not near an interchange.  So, help me 
understand how you took that into account as far as number of cars coming and going.  
Users.  This just seems like it's intended to be its own island and we could put it anywhere 
in the city and not take advantage of the fact that we are near an interchange.   
 
Borgess:  Maybe if I get a little clarification.  Are you asking specifically about like the 
sizes of the buildings or -- maybe you can help me understand the question better.  I'm 
sorry.   
 
Perreault:  Absolutely.  Great question.  So, my assumption is is that you -- that because 
of its -- of this location you will potentially have a lot of people stopping in this area that 
don't live in -- in this -- in these residences because you are on an interchange.  I mean I 
live off a Ten Mile.  That it is an insanely busy street.  You are likely going to have people 
they are going to want to stop in here -- a lot of people wanting to stop here that don't live 
there and so while you -- the intention is to create this island, you know, development 
that's focused towards the residents, by the nature of the location of being off an 
interchange you are going to have a lot of people stopping there that don't live there and 

Page 79

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 52 of 71  

so I think -- you know, I mean I -- I love the fact that we are talking about the pedestrians 
and the use and that is the intention of the Ten Mile interchange to some extent and we 
need to consider that.  On the other hand, we also have to consider that there is going to 
be a lot of people stopping here that don't live here, because there isn't a grocery store 
on the other side -- on the east side.  There isn't a grocery store within several miles.  
There -- there isn't a nail salon -- you know, that -- that -- I know that eastern side still has 
some development to do and some -- and some buildings to fill up, but in this whole area 
and -- and how it's playing out and what the plan -- the residential -- the anticipated 
residential and whatnot, this is going to be the only location that potentially has some of 
these uses and -- and this is not a -- these sizes are not significant enough to support the 
amount of traffic that's going to come in off that interchange and potentially attempt to use 
these services.  So -- does that make sense?  
 
Borgess:  Yeah.  I mean I think I can understand what you are suggesting.  I mean the 
project proponents probably would be thrilled to find out that they have a -- you know, 
supersized demand for everything right off the bat.  I think -- I guess when we looked at 
it from a master planning standpoint and looked at the specific plan, we found it difficult 
to maybe marry up the concepts in the specific plan with larger footprint, larger box, either 
whether it's retail or office buildings, if you, you know, referred back to the illustrations or 
the renderings that we did of the street atmosphere that we are trying to create and if you 
look at the way each of the pods are designed -- for example, if you look at the pod 
between Driveways A and B, you know, it essentially follows the concepts in this specific 
plan where we kind of wrap the pod with the buildings and we put all the parking on the 
inside.  So, from a visual standpoint these large parking fields don't become the 
predominant thing you see.  As the buildings get bigger and larger, then, obviously, the 
parking demands get bigger and larger and you end up with large parking fields and it 
becomes more difficult to achieve this.  In addition, you know, all of our street networks     
-- I keep calling them streets, but they -- they aren't city streets.  They are not public, they 
are all private, although our proposal is to develop them in accordance with, essentially, 
almost identically the public street standards that are developed in this specific plan.  So, 
these are all things we have done to try to improve and enhance circulation by using 
public designed infrastructure in a private manner inside, but still create the ambience 
and the character that we think is what the specific plan is looking for.   
 
Simison:  I'm going to hold my questions for later if we can get into the public testimony,  
if that works.  Okay.   
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, if I could, I don't want to let a potential question hang out there and 
Council Member Strader had mentioned at one point a question about the -- the ACHD 
traffic impact study at the beginning of the conversation.  So, I wanted to be able to resolve 
that if there is a question about it.  ACHD has approved the traffic impact study and in 
connection with the report they issued here recommended approval of the accesses that 
we have identified, but as far as I'm aware there is no disagreement about -- I think your 
comment was related to disagreement on the traffic impact study, but just wanted to 
resolve that if that was still outstanding.   
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?    

Page 80

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 53 of 71  

 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I guess to briefly comment on that.  I'm just reading their agency report that says, 
quote, we do not agree with the traffic impact study.  And, then, furthermore that they 
barely meet the VC ratio of .90 a.m. peak and some other things.  So, I think that's okay.  
I think it's important for us to get to public testimony and we could always loop back on 
that point.   
 
Simison:  Madam Clerk?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, we have two people who signed up, one indicating a wish to testify, 
and that's JoAnn Butler.   
 
Simison:  If you could state your name and address for the record and be recognized for 
three minutes.   
 
Butler:  JoAnn Butler.  967 East Park Center Boulevard, Boise.  Representing the property 
owner immediately south of the applicant's property.  Brian Black and Hotel SLC and 
AmericaTel entity.  As staff knows, our client -- they have about 105 acres and we have 
been working with Meridian 118 -- which is 118 acres.  A little bit to the west and the south.  
And we are working on a cooperative agreement to do the development and construction 
of Vanguard that would lead from Ten Mile all the way over through our client's property 
and, then, to the western boundary of the Meridian 118.  So, we are very active in working 
with our neighbors on coordinating construction activities, especially road -- road 
activities.  This application is for annexation and rezoning with a development agreement 
and a preliminary plat application is yet to come before you with specifics about the 
development and the development at that stage with preliminary plat, the specifics of the 
roads and the utilities become honed down between the property owners.  As you could 
see on the concept plan that you have in front of you, the development issue that's of 
most concern to us is the alignment of Cobalt Drive.  The alignment of Cobalt is shown 
on the concept plan and that concept plan will be attached to the development agreement.  
The conditions of approval on -- especially 1-A on page 23 of your staff report, require the 
applicant to substantially comply with both the concept plan and the Ten Mile Interchange 
Specific Area Plan.  We are not convinced that the Cobalt alignment meets the guidance 
of the SAP, because it is shown on the future land use map -- or the map as above the 
property line and that alignment below the property line doesn't meet ACHD's policy 
manual to go to and through the applicant's property, but -- and when we originally saw     
-- you might have noticed sometimes tonight on your maps you have had two different 
maps in front of you.  One where Cobalt straddles a property line and one, like the concept 
plan that we have here, where Cobalt, after the curve down to the property line, is -- is 
solely on our property -- our client's property.  When we originally saw the -- I'm basically 
trying to tell you how -- how we got to making these comments to the city's Planning and 
Zoning Commission and to the applicant.  When we originally saw the drawing that 
showed the Cobalt straddling the property line, we were just -- we expected that.  We 
expected that they would go to and through, dead end at their property, and we talked to 

Page 81

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 54 of 71  

our designers about taking the road from a dead end going straight south.  The location 
of Cobalt solely on our -- our client's property would seem to burden our client's property 
and it becomes an off-site improvement that is not appropriate or fair.  But we did raise 
these questions with the Planning and Zoning Commission and we did raise these issues 
with the applicant and I have to say the applicant has been very willing to meet with us 
and to work towards a resolution of this and they have proposed a way for the adjoining 
property owners to work together fairly, we hope.  The devil is in the details with the 
development of Cobalt.  We haven't been able to put pen to paper yet, but we certainly 
intend to do that as they make application with their preliminary plat and we would want 
that complete before you approve that preliminary plat.  So, we would add -- we are 
basically raising this issue, so the Council remembers that the two property owners are 
going to be working together to equitably attempt to share in the cost of constructing 
Cobalt.   
 
Simison:  JoAnn, if you could wrap up, please.   
 
Butler:  Yeah.  That's pretty much it.  We are looking forward to working with the applicant 
on making that happen.   
 
Simison:  Council, any questions?   
 
Butler:  Thank you. 
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  JoAnn, if you -- if you wouldn't mind, if -- if we were to have them in here do to 
and through, at some point, you know, as we have heard from staff, that's going to -- they  
run into a parking lot or a back end of somebody's home, whatnot, on the property that's 
still to the west.  It would have to curve back onto -- fully on the property of your client.  Is 
that -- is that a correct understanding of how that would work?  If --  
 
Butler:  From a -- I would -- we would have a couple of things and I -- I can't speak for the 
traffic design, other than what are -- my -- I can tell you what our designers have 
mentioned.  You can curve down closer to the western area -- to the western boundary or 
we actually did do a design where we saw Cobalt dead ending at -- dead ending at its 
western property boundary and, then, taking -- kind of T'ing and, then, going straight 
south.  So, that looked like it was -- it was possible.  If we -- if we reach agreement it looks 
like we won't have to address that at all.   
 
Hoaglun:  And that's my hope I guess.   
 
Butler:  Yeah.  Right.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you.   

Page 82

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 55 of 71  

 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, that's all that indicated a wish to testify.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  This is a public hearing.  Is there anybody else who would like to provide 
testimony?  If there is anybody online that would like to provide testimony, please, use 
the raise your hand feature, so we can allocate your time.  Please.   
 
LaFever:  Hi.  My name is Denise LaFever.  I'm at 6706 North Salvia Way.  One of the 
things I noted in here is that there is a cost savings by tiling the canal and it counts towards 
the open space calculation.  With that said, I do like the idea of having that open.  But 
what I would like to see is that if a waiver is granted and approved, I would like to see the 
amenities locked into the DA.  Benches, fences, bike stations and other safety features.  
I also noted that on the side with the high density apartments, I don't see any pathways 
or amenities to help out that high density thing.  Maybe I'm missing that.  Also I'm very 
concerned about -- there is no left-hand turn, which poses a possible safety concern for 
travels, both on Franklin and Ten Mile for people pulling out into traffic coming down those 
roads.  We are seeing that really heavily now with Costco and some of the other 
developments off of Chinden.  Given the intensity and density of the development, I'm 
concerned about the developer using off-street parking for meeting parking requirements 
for residentials and visitors.  But my biggest concern comes down to the school district.  
The school district only reports current enrollments and factors in estimates for this 
development.  It fails to factor into surrounding already annexed and permitted residents 
for the City of Meridian and the other surrounding cities.  This project amplifies the future 
strain on schools, school budgets, and taxpayers.  Did I mention developers pay no 
impact fees?  The burden will be borne by the taxpayers.  Is that fair?  The school letter 
stated levies for future school will be done.  They -- they are looking for people to donate 
land.  For the fairness of the residents I think this really needs to be looked at.  I'm 
concerned about the lack of services for residents in Meridian and the need for 
commercial.  Much of our commercial keeps getting turned into high density residential 
through the CUP process.  The concept plans have been troublesome in the past.  
Developers come back and state this was a concept plan.  Things change and that opens 
it up for waivers, CUPs, alternative compliance, UDC changes, rezones and DA changes.  
These can lead to major depart -- departure from the concept plan, especially over time 
and in some situations it can go back through and drastically changed what the public 
was thinking they were getting.  Thank you for your time.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?  Thank you.  Is there anybody else that 
would like to provide testimony on this item at this time?  And we had nobody else online 
indicate that they wish to testify?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, that's correct.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  So, would the applicant like to come forward for final remarks?   
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, Hethe Clark.  251 East Front Street.  Just a 
couple comments here briefly.  With regard to schools, West Ada did provide a letter and 

Page 83

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 56 of 71  

it showed that there is capacity at Chaparral Elementary, Meridian Middle School and 
Meridian High School.  So, I think that that has been addressed by the agency that's, 
obviously, in charge of that.  With regard to parking, there is 930 spaces that are required 
for the residential.  We have provided 1,034.  So, we have got somewhat excess parking.  
And, then, I did want to thank JoAnn for her comments and we do look forward to 
continuing that conversation with our neighbor to the south.  We will continue that through 
to the preliminary plat and, you know, expect that whatever resolution comes out of that 
would be consistent with the specific area plan.  And, then, with regard to -- I think I would 
just end with a comment about what the standard is here.  You know, we want to make 
sure that we are meeting the vision of the city.  The vision of the city is expressed in the 
comprehensive planning and as the staff report has shown, that comprehensive planning 
is reflected in the zones that we have identified and the densities that we have identified 
and the layouts that we have identified and so, you know, a lot of thought and work has 
gone into this over the past several months.  This has gotten a lot more detail at the 
concept plan level than I think I have ever seen and I would ask for the -- for the Council's 
approval on this.  I just don't want the Council to forget that we are asking for that waiver 
on the -- on the Kennedy Lateral.  So, whatever motion comes out of this we would ask 
that -- and, hopefully, it's an approval and that it would include that with it.  So, happy to 
answer any final questions for the Council.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you.  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor.  Hethe, you know, you have gotten a lot of feedback at this point.  
Just curious where the applicant's head's at.  You know, personally if I -- if I were in your 
shoes I would consider like a continuance, maybe take a look at some of the hot button 
issues and come back to us.  That's just me.  Just curious what your feedback is or if you 
want us to vote on it tonight, up or down vote.  You guys are in the driver's seat, so let us 
know based on what you have heard so far.   
 
Pilegaard:  Good evening, Mayor and Council Members.  Erik Pilegaard.  10891 Olana 
Drive, Truckee, California.  If we had the users in tow for your commercial we would be 
happy to build it.  We would be happy to come back and where we have the -- the town 
flats, where -- on the right side, to add that commercial space.  We would be happy to.  
The demand is not there.  Winco passed.  They are one of the major -- this is their home 
base.  They passed for the commercial.  If there was an office user that came to us we 
would be happy to come back to get more commercial.  The data shows us and tells us 
that there is not that demand there and I think from the COVID aspects -- I don't want to 
have to come back later and do like -- I spoke with the planning department, we are losing 
some of the commercial.  Why are we using that -- losing that?  Because I don't think 
there is a demand there.  It's more profitable to build commercial and to service a 
community than to do flats or commercial and residential on top.  So, if the demand was 
there I think we would definitely show more commercial in that particular area.  I had 
under contract the kitty-corner piece that you approved several months back on Ten Mile 
and Franklin and there was a lot of commercial there.  He is the big Costco developer 
that's fairly successful.  I don't know if -- because this is a going-to-work side, with our 
access issues that we have, right-in, right-outs -- we don't have any left turns.  We don't 

Page 84

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 57 of 71  

have a stoplight.  If we had those accesses that's what those users want and need.  So, 
if -- ACHD told us there is no future signalization there, so that left turn that Council 
Member spoke of doesn't exist.  We have right-ins and right-outs.  Very -- very left turns 
and, again, commercial needs that to survive for your access to come in and come out.  
Across the street the Brighton development, they have office, large office, but if you look 
at their retail commercial it's struggling.  They have vacant space that they have spec'd 
and I don't know if that's from COVID or where it's located, but, you know, we don't want 
to be that guy that makes mistakes.  We want to make something that's successful.  We 
think the -- the commercial development that we have will really help and sustain the 
residents that we have there at that population base.  We don't have any signed 
commercial deals at this point.  Maybe one coffee.  And we have the -- we field the best 
marketing team in town to get that done.  There is no big grocery anchor.  We slatted a 
grocer there to accommodate one, but we -- the demand just is not there.  So, the 
accesses I think really drive that.  If there was better access to this particular site I think 
the commercial or a signalization would be huge.  Would be huge.  So, hopefully, that 
helps out from where our perspective is.  We worked with planning for several months 
and went through several iterations of the design to conform to what the city wants.  The 
concept plan, the interchangeable plan.  We tweaked everything we could to meet their 
demand.  Hey, this is what we want.  This is the vision of the city.  We tried to illustrate 
that here on this development.  If you are saying, hey, go back and kind of redesign and 
put some more commercial in there, I'm happy to take the three, you know, light green 
and make that all commercial, but I don't want to come knocking on your door in five 
months and say I can't lease it.  I'm not going to spec it until I have a tenant.  I'm just being 
honest what the market conditions are.  I think the rooftops that we create there for 
families will help generate some more commercial.  The office complexes that we have 
here, we have had maybe one dentist or two dentists look and that's about what we are 
seeing from that aspect.  So, this is what the market is telling us to do and we have 
complied with, you know, planning and worked very diligent with them.  I mean a lot of 
renditions.  So, I hope that helps explain that.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I just want to explain where I'm coming from.  I'm just one vote.  But just, you 
know, so you are not -- so, you are not surprised by the decision.  You know, look, I -- I 
totally understand what you are saying about market conditions.  I think the challenge is 
that we are making decisions about the city that will take us decades into the future and 
so we have to really decide how much land we need for commercial and really looking at 
that holistically is an important part of our job.  So, if the market conditions don't support 
commercial development today, maybe it won't happen, but that land needs to be 
available for commercial in my opinion.  And I'm also struggling with -- similar to 
Councilman Cavener, the layout of the high density residential and feeling like there is not 
kind of fairness of access to the open space and I just think there is -- there is more work 
to be done.  I think if you were to, you know, do -- do some more work on it, perhaps you 
could work with our economic development team, who are very good, you know, who may 

Page 85

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 58 of 71  

be a resource available to you to help with some potential users and so forth.  But I'm not 
there yet today and I won't be voting for this.  So, I just wanted to be clear about where 
I'm coming from.   
 
Pilegaard:  You know, you indicated something earlier -- there is flexibility in the -- flexibility 
in moving zones back and forth.  We had to follow the guidelines from planning, not to be 
able to pluck a four story building and throw it across the creek or the canal to integrate it 
more, to make it feel more part of that community, or take the clubhouse section and move 
it on the other side -- on the high density side.  But because we are -- you know, we are 
constricted with all of the guidelines that you have set forth -- are you telling us that you 
are willing to move those guidelines around to better integrate the site?  I want to 
understand what I'm hearing, so I can, you know, adapt.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  It's -- it's not -- well, let me say this:  What you just explained is exactly the 
struggle we have every time we do this, right, and as Council Woman Strader said, we 
have to be very forward thinking about it and you are looking at this as a -- in a point in 
time and we are looking at this in -- now and in the future, but also, please, understand 
that we regularly hear from our residents as to what they are looking for and we are -- 
and part of our Comprehensive Plan and all of the regulations that are put into place, 
those were all created with citizen groups and individuals who are very interested in the 
outcome of our community and so, yes, this is the city that's -- that's communicating this 
to you, but so much of -- as we are sitting here thinking -- thinking about this project, we 
are also keeping in mind the variety of input and public opinion that we receive and so 
while it may seem like it's just the six of us having really strong opinions about it, a lot of 
it is coming -- as you know, you -- you all present before councils and -- and groups all 
over -- all over the place on a regular basis, so you know this, but as far as the different    
-- the R-40 versus the mixed use commercial, we have had applicants come before us in 
the past who have asked us to float those designations to create a more integrated 
development that would require a different application that would come forward from you, 
because, then, it would be a -- I don't know exactly, technically, what the difference would 
be if it -- if it is -- it's not a Comprehensive Plan change, is it?  Maybe that's a question for 
staff.  If they were to come and request a different -- in the R-40 section, that they would 
not be able to meet the limitations of that, if they -- if they were to alter this plan according 
to the conversation we are having here in Council.  Perhaps Sonya can --  
 
Allen:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Perreault, I'm not sure I was entirely following, but if -- 
if you are talking about the high density residential designated area in the southwest 
corner of the property, if -- if they are proposing a development that's not consistent with 
that, then, generally, it would probably require an amendment to the future land use map.  
If it's -- if it's -- again, it's a guide.  So, it would really depend on what they are proposing, 
whether or not we could float, so to speak, some of the adjacent future land use 
designation -- it just -- it just depends what you are -- where you are going.   

Page 86

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 59 of 71  

 
Perreault:  I think if we ask the applicant to go -- to go there that we should be really clear 
about what it is that we --  
 
Allen:  I agree.   
 
Perreault:  -- or that's different, because that is -- that's a significant ask from a -- from a 
cost standpoint from an application.  Other public hearing time delay.  Obviously, again, 
as Councilman -- Council President Bernt explained, we are not here to design this for 
you.  That's not the intention.  We are just trying to be forward thinking, so --  
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, Council Member Perreault, you know, I'm in front of you guys all the 
time, you know, one of the things that we hear most often is, you know, respect the plan 
-- you know, respect the comp plan.  Don't come in with land use -- with FLUM 
amendments and, you know, what we have tried to do here is exactly that.  We have 
worked extremely hard to -- to align what are a number of competing interests; right?  So, 
when I look at this site I look at it and my initial thought is, wow, two principal arterials;  
right?  There -- there should be something massive there.  But, then, you have also got 
Meridian's policy and ACHD's policy of restriction of access onto arterials; right?  You 
guys have to give us a waiver tonight to be able to get those accesses.  ACHD -- we had 
to -- I don't even want to describe it.  Yeah.  I mean we had to work really hard to be able 
to get even the right-ins, right-outs that we got and that constrains commercial.  So, you 
know, absolutely, we -- we want to listen to the Council and, you know, if Council can give 
us specific direction on things that you would like us to take back to the drawing board 
and come back to you in a few weeks, then, I -- you know, I -- I would be an idiot if I didn't 
say, yeah, we will -- we will consider that rather than risking going to the -- you know, 
having to start the whole thing over.  But I -- just I really have to emphasize that -- how 
much -- how hard we have worked to meet the existing comp plan as it exists and to align 
all these factors, you know, which I think that the commercial elements of this really have 
to be taken into account given the limited access, so -- and, obviously, anytime you guys 
issue a denial you have to give us specific direction per state code as to what to change 
to -- in order to get an approval.  So, you know, in this instance if -- if the Council can give 
us specific direction, we will -- we will take it back and we will see what we can do and -- 
and, then, we would have another conversation with you.  But we really need specific 
direction and we really need to know that the rules that are in place at the time we make 
our application continue to be in place by the time we get to Council.   
 
Simison:  So, a couple questions.  I don't know who all is best -- Sonya or somebody else, 
but a light on Franklin.  Is it likely that there is going to be a light right on the other side of 
that canal that aligns with the apartments to the north and the Ten Mile secondary -- I 
know ACHD eventually does not want Ten Mile turning left out of their main entrance, but 
if there is going to be a light in the area that's where I would think one would be based on 
what I'm seeing.  So, my question is kind of -- is there a reason why there is no 
contemplated cross-access to the property to the west, even though these are private? 
Can you kind of help me answer that?  But it's like a connection might help with some, 
because it could give a potential light access in the area, but I don't know if that would be 

Page 87

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 60 of 71  

contemplated in that location or not by ACHD or others.  If it meets our policy.  If it's far 
enough away.  But I'm envisioning that someday there is going to be a light at that location.  
That's just my two cents, so --   
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, I don't know the answer on the light question, but in terms of the cross- 
access to the property to the west, that -- the property to our west doesn't have a 
connection to us, so that's why there is not one shown.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Good to know.  The second question, minor, if I missed this.  Lower right- 
hand corner, there is nothing in this concept plan.  It's on your property, but it's just like -- 
is there anything -- open space, are you -- oh, swap?  Okay.  I must have missed that 
completely then.  And, then, the final thing, just as -- it kind of goes back to those three 
apartments down in that corner, like to me even looking at flipping them, so you take away 
the parking that's between them and the open space, just gets it closer.  Now, I know 
that's going to create a mass of parking on the -- further away from those buildings, but 
at least, then, it doesn't feel like you are separated by a parking lot from the access to the 
open space, you know, and I don't know if that helps or hurts, but what I also heard you 
say is you got more parking than you need, so perhaps you could take out some parking 
in order to have more -- in order to put in some green open space for people.   
 
Borgess:  I guess the only thing I would add to respond to that is is that the specific plan 
-- I'm sorry?  Oh, yes.  Layne Borgess.  11500 Armor Court, Gold River.  95670.  What I 
would add to respond to that is that the orientation of the -- two of the three high density 
buildings are specifically done that way because the specific plan basically dictates the 
building be placed up to the street with minimum setbacks.  So, the plan encourages 
straightforward buildings, as opposed to pushing the buildings up against our open space 
and having a parking lot of three or four hundred cars as the frontage to Cobalt Drive.  
So, that in tandem with the orientation and the location of the canal kind of, in a lot of 
respects, dictate how those three buildings are oriented and organized on that portion of 
the site.   
 
Simison:  I knew that was the case.  I didn't want to suggest a parking garage, but that to 
me is probably really the solution to create the space down there or a different design.  
Because, yeah, otherwise, just a lot of parking away from the building.  My two cents, but 
I want to wait.  I'm done.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  One of the things that -- because I listened to all the comments and 
feedback and plans and looking at this and trying to figure things out, you know, one of 
the things that strikes me is the future land use map does show high density residential 
on that side of the creek and those are our rules and that's what we put into place.  I mean 
it's a guide, we can change things, but, then, you are going to -- if you look here on the 
left of that FLUM there is the high density residential.  It's right where we wanted it to be.  

Page 88

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 61 of 71  

Then, if we go back to that concept plan, I look at it, go, okay, what can we do to make it 
closer?  Well, what if we have them move that lower right-hand side, high density one, 
and that's a nice triangle we could have them flip that and put that down there.  Now all 
of a sudden you are on Cobalt Drive, you are far away from all the flats and everything, 
you are not centrally located, but you are much closer to high density and they can add 
some flats here and townhouses there and whatnot, but it's like, well, then, that goes 
against what we want and that's, well, make it centralized.  Someone's always going to 
be farthest away from -- from the open space or clubhouse or something like that.  The 
walk to our big swimming pool is a long ways away and to the big park and to the nice 
park and everything else where we live in our subdivision.  Hey, I'm going there for 
exercise, so I'm going to walk.  Hey, that makes sense, so -- so, it's -- you know, as we 
try to reconcile these different things and different thoughts, I don't come up with a 
solution, especially when it's a response -- the design is in response to what we require 
and -- and that's, you know, a light on Ten Mile and Cobalt would make sense, but I get 
how close it is to Franklin.  Right-in, right-out, I -- I had noticed growing up in Meridian, it 
didn't matter where you go you could -- you could access, left, right, didn't matter.  I now 
think in terms of what is on the right side, what can I do business wise that takes me this 
way at some point that I can turn and, then, I'm going to come back and do business on 
the other side, when if I have to go back and forth.  You just have to plan ahead now.  It 
has changed.  Not that I like it, but it is what it is and we are not going back.  The clock's 
not turning back.  So, now we have to deal with these factors of, yeah, this is going to 
work traffic.  I mean that's -- when I go up Ten Mile Road I am going to work and, yeah, if 
there is a coffee shop they might stop there.  Dry cleaners.  I don't know.  We are going 
more casual.  I don't know if dry cleaners are going to last really.  But anyway.  There is 
some specialty things that need drycleaning.  But, yeah, all -- all these things that -- that 
we would like to see -- I would love to see more commercial there.  But at the same time 
I think about what skin do we have in the game for that?  We don't have any.  We want 
that.  Okay.  Where is our market study?  What tells us that it will support more 
commercial?  I don't have that.  You guys have the skin in the game and I think you are 
paying a lot closer attention to that than -- than we do.  Council Woman Strader's point is 
-- is spot on, that point long term, if things turn around and we needed more commercial, 
that would be great to have more commercial there.  But how do we balance that of time 
and money and -- it's not our money.  It's not our -- you know.  That's -- that's a tough one.  
Do you just scrap the whole thing and say, well, we are going to wait five years?  Well, 
then, what?  Well, things could change.  What's the market dynamic?  It could change 
this again.  I don't know if there is any perfect time.  I -- we try really hard to get it right 
and it's -- it's not easy.  It's -- it's really not easy.  So, just -- just my thoughts.  I -- there is 
a lot of elements about this I like, trying to create that sense of place of people that the 
clubhouse I think is going to be an amazing amenity with -- with the extra things that you 
have.  Yes, there are specific tweaks we can provide you to come back and say, okay, 
here is what I see.  You know, is it more open space in some of these corners of high 
density where there is a tot lot or something that I think Councilman Cavener was alluding 
to that, you know, what -- what can be a little closer, you know.  Maybe that's something 
that could be worked on.  But I would like to see us get kind of more specific then -- you 
know, I -- because I even thought, Mayor, the same thing, turn -- turn the buildings, but 
our plan doesn't allow that.  I mean we don't want the parking lot up to the street.  Okay.  

Page 89

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 62 of 71  

So, we have to live with that.  So, yeah, I just -- if there is ways we can make it better I'm 
all for that, but I'm kind of hard pressed to say, okay, move high density over here, because 
now we have to change our whole planning process to do that.  So, I'm kind of stuck here.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I do you have a suggestion.  We hate designing projects for you and I don't want 
-- but I have a suggestion.  Why not?  It's a creative process maybe.  So -- and I think 
part of my struggle is if this was a high density residential project and it had to stand on 
its own two feet I wouldn't vote for it right now, because I feel like these buildings are 
orphaned off on their own.  But a suggestion I would have -- I mean we have these two 
bottom high density buildings along Cobalt Drive and what we have seen other 
developers do is actually move those buildings a little bit closer together and potentially 
lose some of that parking in the middle and put green space, a giant MEW something 
there, maybe, that would serve those residents.  You know, you have an excess of 
parking.  We have seen that kind of a design.  We have seen -- and I don't underestimate 
your creativity a bit.  If you can make the financials work, recently we have seen 
developers put parking on the core of the building and we have seen that very 
successfully in other projects, so I have to think part of the market would support that 
product.  I don't know if a full blown parking garage would work, but I think there are things 
you could do that would make that high density residential piece more palatable 
personally and still adhere to the Comprehensive Plan.  I personally believe that we 
should give flexibility to float a little bit if the overall amount of commercial is in alignment 
with the total acreage and the space and if staff believes it's appropriate, but I do want to 
see a little bit more commercial.  I think I understand your point about the market and I 
wonder if -- if, you know, those light green buildings perhaps became commercial and 
they took longer to develop if this would still pencil or not, but I'm hesitant to let go of 
commercial land at this point given the decisions we have made on some mixed use 
properties and feedback we have heard.  So, I don't know, just some suggestions.  But I 
don't -- I don't think it's unworkable or undoable, but I think you could retool this a bit 
personally.   
 
Clark:  And, Mr. Mayor, if I could just -- just one comment.  I appreciate that, Council 
Member Strader.  You know, the -- the mix -- those green buildings are -- would be second 
tier, you know, behind other commercial and they would be behind other commercial that's 
access controlled.  So, you know, I think, you know, maybe, you know, something to 
consider there and I will take it back to my team and we will talk about it, but, you know, 
if there is some flexibility there to allow for commercial in a later date, but go with this, you 
know, as part of a redevelopment, I -- I just hate coming in front of you guys and asking 
for a development agreement modification later on when we are setting ourselves up for 
failure, you know, when -- and that's what I'm trying to avoid.  But I definitely appreciate 
the --  
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   

Page 90

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 63 of 71  

 
Simison:  Mr. Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I think we just had an application request for that on Overland Road where the 
secondary commercial did not go.   
 
Clark:  Hethe Clark might have been the applicant or the attorney for the applicant on 
that, so --  
 
Hoaglun:  I think so.  And because it -- it was quite a while.  I mean it was --  
 
Clark:  It was in Movado and it had been going for -- you know, had been sitting vacant 
for years and years and years and it was tier commercial similar to that.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  That's -- that's -- that's the difficulty of these things and, like I said, I, too, 
would like more commercial here, but it's just that -- when will that market change?  We 
don't know.  And how do we -- how do we deal with that?  How long do we wait?  What 
do we do in the meantime?  That's -- that's the difficulty.    
 
Simison:  Well, what does Hethe Clark, the attorney of record, think about how long -- you 
know, The Village is a great example.  You -- that's a generally successful commercial 
area that had a fair amount of turnover, but they have also not been able to develop all 
their pads and we are nine -- eight years into that project.  I don't know what's appropriate 
time to ask people to wait to get the right thing for a developing community.  I would love 
to have that academic conversation offline some other time, you know, from that 
standpoint, but -- because that's -- you know, not everything is expected to develop right 
away.  Or should.  And a lot of people don't get it right when they think it's right the first 
time anyways.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Hethe, I appreciate the willingness, I guess, for a continuance.  It sounds weird.  
How much time would your team want?   
 
Clark:  So, looking at calendars, we get into the middle -- I think Council is meeting during 
the middle of July; correct?   
 
Cavener:  Uh-huh.  We have a couple of big hearing, though.   
 
Clark:  I think we could have something in like a three week range we can probably be 
back with an updated plan.   
 
Cavener:  The 13th?   
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, at this time on July 13th there is one hearing for an ACHD Ustick 

Page 91

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 64 of 71  

maintenance facility.  I won't have time to notice Planning and Zoning hearings on July 
13th, so that would be a date you could consider.   
 
Nary:  The Oasis is on that night, too.   
 
Weatherly:  Oasis is July 20th.   
 
Nary:  Oh, yeah.  It moved.  That's right.  Sorry.   
 
Allen:  Excuse me.  Another consideration, Mr. Mayor, would be if revised plans are 
submitted they would have to be submitted -- we would like them submitted a minimum 
of ten days before the hearing.   
 
Simison:  I was waiting for that one.  Which is why -- once I heard the 20th, then, I thought, 
well, maybe the 27th.  But I don't know Council's viewpoint on how they think the Oasis 
is going to go, how late they want this one to go.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I'm open to suggestions.  I -- I will not be here on the 27th, not that I have to 
be, but I think it's important for Council know that at least now, since we are at least 
contemplating a continuation maybe to that date.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  You have given the guide -- you know, the time frame.  What -- what's -- what's 
the date?  What do you think?   
 
Clark:  Well, I would love to have as many of you here as possible.  You know, I think -- I 
didn't -- I didn't quite catch the -- is there an issue on the 20th?  Is it a full agenda on the 
20th?   
 
Cavener:  So, the 20th is the -- yeah, we have a very -- we anticipate a very lengthy --  
 
Simison:  That's the 20th.   
 
Cavener:  20th.  On the 20th we are expecting a very lengthy public hearing process on 
an application with a lot of residential involvement -- citizen involvement.   
 
Clark:  Well, I would prefer not to lose six weeks.   
 
Cavener:  I don't blame you.   

Page 92

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 65 of 71  

 
Clark:  So -- and I'm just -- I guess I'm just collaborating with everyone out loud here right 
now.  So, the other option would be potentially the 13th.  But we would need to get 
something to Sonya before the holiday weekend for you to be able to -- why don't we -- 
this is me being as optimistic as I can.  Let's -- let's try for the 13th.  We will get you a new 
updated -- get Sonya an updated plan.  That would mean we need to have it to her by the 
3rd.  You know, obviously, we wouldn't be able to have the -- the detailed renderings of 
all the buildings and all of that, so I'm anticipating that Council's request is to focus just 
on the site plan and some of these different arrangements that have been discussed, 
which were to -- some green space in the high density residential area.  Look at potentially 
replacing some of the mixed use buildings and -- let me make sure that I have in my notes 
the other thing.  I think that's it.  Just the commercial -- some commercial on the second 
tier.  Those are the two items I'm hearing.   
 
Simison:  One other very minor thing.  I don't know where this would come in, but do you 
feel like that this even creates connection to the corner to cross over to the east side of 
Ten Mile?  And I always -- I know that there was some -- a lot of thought put into the 
pedestrian connectivity on the other side, but I just don't know if -- if this is intended -- if 
this area is intended to be integrated in that manner, but just that corner doesn't even 
really show even any pathways to the corner, if that's an intention or not.   
 
Clark:  Mr. Mayor, are you talking about the southeast corner?   
 
Simison:  Northeast corner.   
 
Clark:  Northeast corner.   
 
Simison:  Yeah.  That's -- when we -- when we had conversations about others talking 
about -- and I know this is not pertaining to pedestrian connectivity that was on the other 
side of the road, but I don't know if the intention is to try to get people to even cross in this 
area, but it doesn't seem like there is a path to move people if they want to go across the 
street or anything in the future.  That's all -- that's really my main point.   
 
Clark:  Sorry, Mr. Mayor.  So, you are -- you are saying a pedestrian crossing it -- looking 
at getting people across --  
 
Simison:  Yeah.  I'm looking at your circulation.  Does your circulation pattern here allow 
for pedestrian, bicycles, to find a way to exit this development to go into another one of 
the quadrants of this area and maybe it's not intentional to do that from that standpoint, 
but --  
 
Clark:  Yeah.  It's, obviously, a challenge, because you would be crossing an arterial, but 
you know, we can -- we can look at that.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   

Page 93

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 66 of 71  

 
Strader:  I also think another piece of feedback would be, you know, to the extent you can 
get this arrangement on Cobalt ironed out, I think that would also be extremely helpful.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I would just like to say that, in general, I know we are really being tough on this 
and I really appreciate that your -- your humble willingness to take our feedback on this 
and truly I want you to know that it is because we -- we want all of this to be successful 
for you and for our residents and it is not to be -- it sounds like it's coming from a place of 
-- of criticism, because we have sat here and sort of picked this apart.  But, please, know 
that the intention -- I can unequivocally say on behalf of this Council is for this to work well 
and -- and truly keeping in mind the conversations that we weekly have with residents.  
As you experienced this evening we had somebody come and give public testimony about 
the Orchard Park development where Winco currently is.  We do have residents that are 
-- that are intimately affected by these projects and so we are always trying to balance 
that and yet still honor our development community as best as we can.  So, I know we 
are being tough, but, please, know it's coming from a good -- a place of goodwill.   
 
Clark:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Council, anything else or is there a motion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I move that we continue file number H-2021-0025 to July 13th.   
 
Strader:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and second to continue to item to July 13th.  Is there any 
discussion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Hethe, just a quick comment.  Your client's are very lucky to have you.   
 
Clark:  That's nice of you --  
 
Cavener:  A comment I heard from your client is we don't want to make mistakes.  Council 
doesn't want to make mistakes.  When I hear comments, though, from the applicant they 

Page 94

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 67 of 71  

aren't sure that commercial can be successful here, that definitely gives me a big pause.  
You are an honest broker.  I trust you will bring back something that's workable and doable 
and look forward to seeing that in a few weeks.  So, appreciate you.   
 
Clark:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Is there any further discussion on the motion?  If not, all those in favor signify 
by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes have it and the item is continued. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
ORDINANCES [Action Item] 
 
 7.  First Reading of Ordinance No. 21-1933: An Ordinance of the City  
  Council of the City of Meridian, Approving the Second Amendment to 
  the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project, Which  
  Second Amendment Seeks to Deannex Certain Areas From the  
  Existing Meridian Revitalization Project Area; Which Second 
  Amendment Amends a Plan That Includes Revenue Allocation   
  Financing Provisions; Authorizing the City Clerk to Transmit a Copy  
  of This Ordinance and Other Required Information to the County,  
  Affected Taxing Entities, and State Officials; Providing Severability;  
  Approving the Summary of the Ordinance, and Providing an Effective 
  Date 
   
Simison:  Next item on the agenda is Ordinance No. 21-1933.  Clerk will read this 
ordinance by title.   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  This is the first reading of Ordinance No. 21-1933.   
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Meridian approving the second amendment 
to the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project, which second amendment 
seeks to de-annex certain areas from the existing Meridian Revitalization Project Area,  
which second amendment amends a plan that includes revenue allocation financing 
provisions, authorizing the City Clerk to transmit a copy of this ordinance and other 
required information to the county, affected taxing entities, and state officials, providing 
severability, approving the summary of the ordinance and providing an effective date.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, you have heard this ordinance read.  Would anybody like 
it read in its entirety?  I don't know if we do that on the first reading.  But I don't know why 
I have people standing up here either, so -- I'm going to say no one wants it read further,  
so we will stop there.  And I will ask you what are you doing here?   
 
Perreault:  Staff just love to be here at 10:00 o'clock at night.   
 
Arial:  Yeah.  It's our favorite. 
 

Page 95

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 68 of 71  

Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault -- or Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  This is a mea culpa on my part.  I did put them through like a 45 minute meeting 
today on this topic.  So, I apologize if I am the cause of you being here.  All my questions 
were answered.  I'm so sorry you had to stay so late.   
 
Arial:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, appreciate that.  But here to serve and answer 
any questions if you have any.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  So, Mr. Nary, is it -- would our intention be to put this -- what's -- what's 
next for this one when we do a first reading and --  
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  So, there is a process that is required by state 
code.  So, it -- you cannot accelerate the readings.  We have to have all three readings 
before we can approve it.  So, that's -- we are on track to have this done within the time 
frame we needed.  So, this is just part of the process.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Are we allowed to take comment on -- just for the future, are we supposed 
to take comments on ordinance readings?   
 
Nary:  You can.  It's up to you.   
 
Simison:  Just want to make sure I understand moving forward in case people show up 
that want to talk or ask questions.  Okay.  Helps me out.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Question along those lines.  Is it the nature of the ordinance that causes the 
readings to be read separately or a request by the -- help us understand --  
 
Nary:  It's the nature of the state code.  So, the code is very specific on process for both 
the de-annexation of portions of an urban renewal district and the formation of an urban 
renewal district.  So, we are following all that process.  We have, actually, on the line is 
Meghan Conrad is also assisting as legal counsel for the MDC.  Mr. Baird from my office 
has been the one shepherding it for us.  So, we are just following the process as required.   
 
Perreault:  So, it's the nature of the ordinance that's causing us to do the three readings?   
 
Nary:  Yes.   
 

Page 96

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 69 of 71  

Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Won't come as much of a surprise, but my request would be that at least one 
of those be noticed as a -- as a public hearing.   
 
Simison:  Okay.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I had asked, Mayor, that one of those ordinance readings be noticed as a public 
hearing, but not just that we can take comment, but we are telling the public we are 
requesting their -- their time to come and provide it.   
 
Nary:  Certainly do that for next week and the following week even, whichever.  
Sometimes the second reading is helpful in case there are a desire to change.   
 
FUTURE MEETING TOPICS 
 
Simison:  All right.  Thank you.  So, Council, we are to item under future meeting topics.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.  Cameron, you may want to stick around for this one, 
too. 
 
Strader:  No, you don't have to, Cameron.  Catch the tape later.  That's okay.  So, 
regarding the comments earlier on the Orchard Park development, I -- I would like us to 
have a future meeting topic on that one.  I feel like -- I don't think there was any bad intent 
at all on the part of staff, but I think maybe if something got lost in translation and I just 
would like to understand if there was a communication breakdown between Council's 
intent with Orchard Park and what actually happened and just get that in a public meeting 
on the record, so you can kind of understand how that played out.  I personally had the 
impression that Winco would not be able to open without a CO and that Council's direction 
was that we didn't want that to happen until these road improvements were completed 
and I guess I -- I would like to understand if -- if we moved forward on that -- for some 
reason staff moved forward on that without checking in to get an affirmative approval from 
us.  If we have a process breakdown we want to look at or -- or just -- I think we should 
look at that situation and maybe just understand if we have a significant DA provision and 
it's being waived, how we want to handle that.   
 

Page 97

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 70 of 71  

Simison:  Okay.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?  Council, any -- yes, Councilman Cavener.  
 
Cavener:  To maybe just include in that -- I think further training for Council, so that our 
motions are being made clear, so that our intentions are being heard, because I think that 
that's -- that's got to be equally frustrating for staff that Council leaves thinking A and staff 
leave thinking B and now staff find themselves in a challenging position or Council find 
themselves in a precarious situation neither of us want to be into.  So, I think, one, the 
staff side, but also better training for us about what we need to make sure that we are 
including some of that.  It's a two way street.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  If -- if it is the Mayor's will to put this on -- on a future agenda, could we ask 
the Clerk's office to send us the clip of the -- of the hearing from Orchard Park?  What is 
it?  How many years old is it?  So, that we could reference that and -- and refresh our 
memories on exactly what was stated.  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Mayor, I just wanted to make note, Meghan Conrad, the attorney for the 
second amendment situation, has raised her hand.  I didn't catch her before we finished 
that topic, but I didn't know if you wanted to hear from her or not.   
 
Simison:  Her hand is down.  Did you lower it for her?  
 
Weatherly:  I did not.  She must have done it herself.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Well, I think we can catch Meghan next week, hopefully, if she's needed.   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.   
 
Simison:  Anything else under future meeting topics?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we adjourn.   
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  Motion and second to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  
They ayes have it.  We are adjourned.   
 

Page 98

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
June 22, 2021  
Page 71 of 71  

MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:03 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 99

Item #2.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Bainbridge Subdivision No. 12 Water Main Easement No. 2

Page 100

Item #3.



Page 101

Item #3.



Page 102

Item #3.



Page 103

Item #3.



Page 104

Item #3.



Page 105

Item #3.



Page 106

Item #3.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Idaho Central Credit Union - Ten Mile Branch Water Main Easement No. 1

Page 107

Item #4.



6th July 21

Page 108

Item #4.



Page 109

Item #4.



7-6-2021

7-6-2021

3-28-2022

7-6-2021

Page 110

Item #4.



Page 111

Item #4.



Page 112

Item #4.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 1

Page 113

Item #5.



SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this         day of            , 2021, between 
(“Grantor”), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation (“Grantee”); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer right-of-way across the premises 
and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be 
constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by 
the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the 
Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of sanitary sewer 
over and across the following described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of sanitary 
sewer their allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the 
convenience of the Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's 
successors and assigns forever.   

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that 
after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the 
easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and 
maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring 
anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there in violation 
of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR  covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any 
permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for 
this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated 
herein. 

Project Name (Subdivision): 

________________________________________ 

Sanitary Sewer Easement Number: __________ 
Identify this Easement by sequential number if Project 
contains more than one sanitary sewer easement.   
( See Instructions for additional information). 

Sanitary Sewer Easement       REV. 01/01/2020 

Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2

1

6th July C4 Land LLC

Page 114

Item #5.



Page 115

Item #5.



GRANTEE:  CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
:  ss. 

County  of  Ada          ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on __________ (date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively.   

(stamp) _______________________________________ 
Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires:__________________ 

Sanitary Sewer Easement       REV. 01/01/2020 

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

7 -6 -2021

3-28-2022

Page 116

Item #5.



Page 117

Item #5.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



Page 118

Item #5.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main 
Easement No. 1

Page 119

Item #6.



Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

     THIS Easement Agreement, made this       day of     20       between 
_______________________________ (“Grantor”) and the City of Meridian, an Idaho 
Municipal Corporation (“Grantee”); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of-
way across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; 
and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to 
time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and 
convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and 
maintenance of sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following 
described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of 
sanitary sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their 
maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free 
right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, it's successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, 
that after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area 
of the easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs 
and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or 
restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there 
in violation of this easement. 

Project Name (Subdivision): 

Sanitary Sewer & Water Main Easement Number: 

Identify this Easement by sequential number if Project contains 
more than one easement of this type. 
(See Instructions for additional information). 

Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2

No. 1

6th July 21
G20 LLC

Page 120

Item #6.



Page 121

Item #6.



Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

GRANTEE:  CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO,  ) 
:  ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This  record  was  acknowledged  before  me  on       (date)  by  
R o b e r t  E .  S i m i s o n   and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in 
their capacities as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively. 

(stamp) 
 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: 

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

3-28-2022

Page 122

Item #6.



Page 123

Item #6.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



Page 124

Item #6.



Page 125

Item #6.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Water Main Easement No. 1

Page 126

Item #7.



 
 
 

WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this         day of  , 20___ between_________________ 

(“Grantor”), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation (“Grantee”); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a water main right-of-way across the premises and 
property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the water main is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be 
constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by 
the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the 
Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of water mains 
over and across the following described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of water mains 
and their allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the 
convenience of the Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's 
successors and assigns forever.   

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that 
after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the 
easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and 
maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring 
anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there in violation 
of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR  covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any 
permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for 
this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated 
herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-of-
way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of any 

Project Name (Subdivision): 

________________________________________ 

Water Main Easement Number: __________ 
Identify this Easement by sequential number if Project contains 
more than one Water Main easement.   
( See Instructions for additional information). 

Water Main Easement Version 01/01/2020 

6th July 21 G20LLC

Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 

No. 1

Page 127

Item #7.



Page 128

Item #7.



GRANTEE:  CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
:  ss. 

County  of  Ada          ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on __________ (date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively.   

(stamp) _______________________________________ 
Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires:___________________ 

Water Main Easement Version 01/01/2020 

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

7 -6 -2021

3-28-2022

Page 129

Item #7.



Page 130

Item #7.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



Page 131

Item #7.

CMG
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Lost Rapids Subdivision Water Main Easement No. 2

Page 132

Item #8.



2

Page 133

Item #8.



Page 134

Item #8.



7-6-2021

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

3-28-2022

Page 135

Item #8.



Page 136

Item #8.



Page 137

Item #8.



Page 138

Item #8.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Millbrae Subdivision Pedestrian Pathway Easement No. 1

Page 139

Item #9.



6th July 21

Page 140

Item #9.



Page 141

Item #9.



7-6-2021

7-6-2021

7-6-2021

3-28-2022

Page 142

Item #9.



Page 143

Item #9.



Page 144

Item #9.



Page 145

Item #9.



Page 146

Item #9.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Order for Aegean Estates No. 3 (FP-2021-0031) by Engineering 
Solutions, LLP, Located at 4306 N. McDermott Rd.

Page 147

Item #10.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR AEGEAN ESTATES NO. 3 FP-2021-0031 

Page 1 of 3 

 BEFORE THE MERIDIAN CITY COUNCIL  

 

 

HEARING DATE: JUNE 22, 2021 

ORDER APPROVAL DATE: JULY 6, 2021 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 

REQUEST FOR FINAL PLAT 

CONSISTING OF 57 BUILDING 

LOTS AND 4 COMMON LOTS ON 

15.32 ACRES OF LAND IN THE R-4 

AND R-8 ZONING DISTRICTS FOR 

AEGEAN ESTATES SUBDIVISION 

NO. 3 

 

BY: ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, 

LLC 

APPLICANT 

  

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

CASE NO. FP-2021-0031 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL 

APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT 

 

 

This matter coming before the City Council on June 22, 2021 for final plat approval 

pursuant to Unified Development Code (UDC) 11-6B-3 and the Council finding that the 

Administrative Review is complete by the Planning and Development Services Divisions of the 

Community Development Department, to the Mayor and Council, and the Council having 

considered the requirements of the preliminary plat, the Council takes the following action: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 1. The Final Plat of “PLAT SHOWING AEGEAN ESTATES SUBDIVISION NO. 

3, LOCATED IN THE S ½ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 4N., 

RANGE 1W., B.M., MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, 2021, 

HANDWRITTEN DATE: 04/14/21, by CLINTON W. HANSEN, PLS, SHEET 1 

Page 148

Item #10.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR AEGEAN ESTATES NO. 3 FP-2021-0031 

Page 2 of 3 

OF 3,” is conditionally approved subject to those conditions of Staff as set forth in 

the staff report to the Mayor and City Council from the Planning and 

Development Services divisions of the Community Development Department 

dated June 22, 2021, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto marked 

“Exhibit A” and by this reference incorporated herein.  

 2. The final plat upon which there is contained the certification and signature of the  

City Clerk and the City Engineer verifying that the plat meets the City’s 

requirements shall be signed only at such time as: 

2.1 The plat dimensions are approved by the City Engineer; and 

2.2 The City Engineer has verified that all off-site improvements are 

completed and/or the appropriate letter of credit or cash surety has been 

issued guaranteeing the completion of off-site and required on-site 

improvements. 

 

NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION 

AND RIGHT TO REGULATORY TAKINGS ANALYSIS 

 The Applicant is hereby notified that pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-8003, the Owner may 

request a regulatory taking analysis.  Such request must be in writing, and must be filed with the 

City Clerk not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the final decision concerning the matter at 

issue.  A request for a regulatory takings analysis will toll the time period within which a Petition 

for Judicial Review may be filed. 

 Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of 

Meridian, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521. An affected person being a person who has an 

Page 149

Item #10.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR AEGEAN ESTATES NO. 3 FP-2021-0031 

Page 3 of 3 

interest in real property which may be adversely affected by this decision may, within twenty-

eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order, seek a judicial review pursuant to Idaho 

Code§ 67-52. 

            By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the _____________ day of 

________________________, 2021. 

       By:  

 

 

              

Robert Simison  

Mayor, City of Meridian 

 

Attest: 

 

 

     

Chris Johnson 

City Clerk 

  

 

Copy served upon the Applicant, Planning and Development Services Divisions of the Community 

Development Department and City Attorney. 

 

By:         Dated:      

 

 

Page 150

Item #10.



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
6/22/2021 

 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2021-0031 

Aegean Estates No. 3 

LOCATION: 4306 N. McDermott Rd., in the NW ¼ of 

Section 33, Township 4N., Range 1W. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 57 buildable lots and 4 common lots on 15.32-acres of land in the R-4 and R-8 

zoning districts. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Shari Stiles, Engineering Solutions, LLP – 1029 N. Rosario St., Ste. 100, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owner: 

Endurance Holdings, LLC – 1977 E. Overland Rd., Meridian, ID 83642  

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the approved preliminary 

plat (H-2017-0114) in accord with the requirements listed in UDC 11-6B-3C.2.  

In order for the proposed final plat to be deemed in substantial compliance with the approved 

preliminary plat as set forth in UDC 11-6B-3C.2, the number of buildable lots cannot increase and the 

amount of common area cannot decrease. Staff has reviewed the proposed plat and the number of 

buildable lots did not increase and the amount of common open space increased slightly. Therefore, 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 151

Item #10.



Staff deems the proposed final plat to be in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary plat 

as required.  

IV. DECISION 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions noted in Section VI of this 

report. 

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (dated: 7/31/2017) 

 

  

Page 152

Item #10.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 3 

 
  

B. Final Plat (dated: 4/14/21) 

 

  

Page 153

Item #10.



C. Landscape Plan (dated: 04/05/2021)  

 

 

Page 154

Item #10.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

 

Page 155

Item #10.



 

 

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall meet all terms of the approved annexation (Development Agreement - Inst. 

#2017-116562) and preliminary plat (H-2017-0114) applications approved for this site. 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the subject final plat within two years 

of the City Engineer’s signature on the previous phase final plat; or apply for a time extension, in 

accord with UDC 11-6B-7.  

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 

accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat prepared by Engineering Solutions, LLP, stamped by Clinton W. Hansen, dated: 

4/14/2021, included in Section V.B shall be revised as follows: 

a. Include the recorded instrument number of the existing ACHD permanent easement in the 

Legend.  

b. Note #12: Include the recorded instrument number of the ACHD License Agreement. 

c. Include the Book and Page numbers of the Aegean Estates Subdivision No. 1 plat (i.e. Bk. 

120, Page 18799).  

d. Include the Book and Page numbers of the Aegean Estates Subdivision No. 2 plat. 

Page 156

Item #10.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 7 

 
  

e. Depict a minimum 15-foot wide common lot with a minimum 5-foot wide pathway within 

Block 8 for future pedestrian connectivity to the south in order to comply with the block face 

standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3F.3a. 

A copy of the revised plat shall be submitted for City Engineer signature. 

5. The landscape plan prepared by Jensen Belts Assoc., dated 04/5/2021, included in Section V.C, 

shall be revised as follows: 

a. Depict a minimum 15-foot wide common lot with a minimum 5-foot wide pathway within 

Block 8 for future pedestrian connectivity to the south in order to comply with the block face 

standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3F.3a. 

b. Depict a mix of trees and shrubs within the landscape strips along all pathways in accord with 

UDC 11-3B-12C.2. 

6. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter from 

the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the location of 

mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster, Sue Prescott, at 887-1620 for more information. 

7. All fencing shall comply with the standards of UDC 11-3A-7C.  

8. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat and/or 

development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. Public Works   

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. The street light plan submitted with the construction plans appear to meet city requirements based 

on a preliminary review. The type 1 streetlights on McDermott need to be placed over McDermott 

Road, and not the entry road. 

General Conditions: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 

the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 

coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 

of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 

is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 

shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 

Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 

The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 

coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 

the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 

such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 

11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 

applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 

landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

Page 157

Item #10.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA


6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 

of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 

plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 

City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 

of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 

bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 

Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 

information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 

20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 

of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 

owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 

deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 

Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 

more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 

improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 

agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 

may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 

pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 

3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 

elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 

facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 

The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 

with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 

is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 

the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 

prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 

Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 

installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 

set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 

work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 

Page 158

Item #10.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 9 

 
  

Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 

at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 

single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 

dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 

be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 

form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 

Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 

11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 

sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 

plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 

signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 

may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any existing domestic well system within this project shall be removed from domestic service per 

City Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8 contact the City of Meridian Water Department at (208)888-

5242 for inspections of disconnection of services. Wells may be used for non-domestic purposes 

such as landscape irrigation if approved by Idaho Department of Water Resources.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 

Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 

procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 

well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 

connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 

the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 

development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 

11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 

other applicable law or regulation. 

 

Page 159

Item #10.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Order for Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 (FP-2021-0035) by Toll 
Southwest, LLC, Generally Located at 6180 W. McMillan Rd.

Page 160

Item #11.



 
 
ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  
FOR (Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 – FILE #FP-2021-0035) 

Page 1 of 3 

 BEFORE THE MERIDIAN CITY COUNCIL  
 
 

HEARING DATE: JUNE 22, 2021 
ORDER APPROVAL DATE: JULY 6, 2021 

 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
REQUEST FOR FINAL PLAT 
CONSISTING OF 54 BUILDING 
LOTS AND 11 COMMON LOTS ON 
15 ACRES OF LAND IN THE R-4 & 
R-8 ZONING DISTRICTS FOR 
OAKS NORTH SUBDIVISION NO. 
10. 
 
BY: TOLL SOUTHWEST, LLC 
APPLICANT 
  

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
CASE NO. FP-2021-0035 
 
ORDER OF CONDITIONAL 
APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT 

 
 

This matter coming before the City Council on June 22, 2021 for final plat approval 

pursuant to Unified Development Code (UDC) 11-6B-3 and the Council finding that the 

Administrative Review is complete by the Planning and Development Services Divisions of the 

Community Development Department, to the Mayor and Council, and the Council having 

considered the requirements of the preliminary plat, the Council takes the following action: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 1. The Final Plat of “PLAT SHOWING OAKS NORTH SUBDIVISION NO. 10, 

LOCATED IN THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 4N, RANGE 1W, 

BOISE MERIDIAN, MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, 2021, 

HANDWRITTEN DATE: 05/12/21, by Clinton W. Hansen, PLS, SHEET 1 OF 

Page 161

Item #11.



 
 
ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  
FOR (Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 – FILE #FP-2021-0035) 

Page 2 of 3 

4,” is conditionally approved subject to those conditions of Staff as set forth in the 

staff report to the Mayor and City Council from the Planning and Development 

Services divisions of the Community Development Department dated June 22, 

2021, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto marked “Exhibit A” and 

by this reference incorporated herein, and the response letter from Sabrina 

Durtschi, a true and correct copy of which is attached  hereto marked “Exhibit B” 

and by this reference incorporated herein.  

 2. The final plat upon which there is contained the certification and signature of the  

City Clerk and the City Engineer verifying that the plat meets the City’s 

requirements shall be signed only at such time as: 

2.1 The plat dimensions are approved by the City Engineer; and 

2.2 The City Engineer has verified that all off-site improvements are 
completed and/or the appropriate letter of credit or cash surety has been 
issued guaranteeing the completion of off-site and required on-site 
improvements. 

 

NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION 

AND RIGHT TO REGULATORY TAKINGS ANALYSIS 

 The Applicant is hereby notified that pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-8003, the Owner may 

request a regulatory taking analysis.  Such request must be in writing, and must be filed with the 

City Clerk not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the final decision concerning the matter at 

issue.  A request for a regulatory takings analysis will toll the time period within which a Petition 

for Judicial Review may be filed. 

Page 162

Item #11.



 
 
ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  
FOR (Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 – FILE #FP-2021-0035) 

Page 3 of 3 

 Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of 

Meridian, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521. An affected person being a person who has an 

interest in real property which may be adversely affected by this decision may, within twenty-

eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order, seek a judicial review pursuant to Idaho 

Code§ 67-52. 

            By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the _____________ day of 

________________________, 2021. 

       By:  
 
 
              

Robert Simison  
Mayor, City of Meridian 
 

Attest: 
 
 
     
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 
  
 
Copy served upon the Applicant, Planning and Development Services Divisions of the Community 
Development Department and City Attorney. 
 
By:         Dated:      
 
 

Page 163

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

6/22/2021 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2021-0035 
Oaks North No. 10 

LOCATION: Generally located ½ mile north of the 
half-mile mark of W. McMillan Road 
between McDermott Road and Black Cat 
Road, in the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of 
Section 28, T.4N., R.1W. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 54 building lots and 11 common lots on 15 acres of land in the R-4 and R-8 
zoning districts. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant/Owner: 

Toll Southwest, LLC – 3101 W. Sheryl Drive, Suite 100, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Representative: 

Sabrina Durtschi, Toll Brothers – 3103 W. Sheryl Drive, Meridian, ID 83642 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the preliminary plat as 
required by UDC 11-6B-3C.2. This is the tenth phase of development of the Oaks North Subdivision. 
The submitted final plat shows three (3) less buildable lots than were approved in the 
preliminary plat; the same number of common lots and amount of open space is proposed as were 
approved in the preliminary plat. Staff finds the proposed final plat is in substantial compliance with 
the approved preliminary plat as required. 

IV. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in Section 
VI of this report. 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 164

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 2  
  

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (date: 8/6/2013) 

 

 
  

Area of Phase 10 

Page 165

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 3  
  

B. Final Plat (date: 5/12/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 166

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 4  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 167

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 5  
  

 

C. Landscape Plans (date: 5/14/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 168

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 6  
  

 

Page 169

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 7  
  

 

Page 170

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 8  
  

 

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 
development (AZ-13-008, RZ-13-015, DA Inst. No. 114030972; PP-13-014). 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the final plat within two (2) years 
of the City Engineer’s signature on the previous phase final plat, in accord with UDC 11-6B-
7 in order for the preliminary plat to remain valid or a time extension may be requested. 

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 
accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat shown in Section V.B prepared by Land Solutions, stamped on 05/12/21 by 
Clinton W. Hansen, is approved with the following revisions: 

a. Note #12: Include recorded instrument number.   

5. The landscape plan shown in Section V.C prepared by Jensen Belts Associates, dated 02/23/21, 
is approved with the following revision: 

a. Include at least one tree along the micro-path within Lot 11, Block 15 per UDC 11-3B-12. 

6. Future homes constructed in this phase shall comply with the elevations included in the 
development agreement (Oaks North and South Subdivision – Inst. No. 114030972) with 
materials and architectural features to be the same or higher quality as shown in the elevations.  

Page 171

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 9  
  

7. Prior to the issuance of any new building permit, the property shall be subdivided in accordance 
with the UDC.  

8. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter from 
the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the location 
of mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster, Sue Prescott, at 887-1620 for more 
information. 

9. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat 
and/or development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. Public Works   

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Run all 10’’ diameter sewer mains at the minimum slope (0.28%) to allow serviceability to and 
through this project.  

2. A Type 1 streetlight is required on McDermott Road at the North property boundary. 

General Conditions: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent 
to the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant 
shall coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard 
forms of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over 
sewer mains is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than 
alternate materials shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments 
Standard Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the 
development. The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this 
development, coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy 
of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance 
surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set 
forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 
applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete 
fencing, landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the 
amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure 
prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided 
by the owner to the City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety 
Agreement with the City of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable 
letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can 
be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land 
Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount 
of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a 
duration of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing 

Page 172

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 10  
  

provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter 
of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be 
found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land 
Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 
improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a 
surety agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting 
that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum 
of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the 
bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    
drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district 
or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed 
in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a 
certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings 
per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and 
approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the 
project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 
Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 
installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development 
plan set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The 
contractor’s work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian 
Supplemental Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and 
Utility Coordinator at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right 
of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide 
for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, 
but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The 
easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed 
easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho 
Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked 
EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for 

Page 173

Item #11.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 Page 11  
  

review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO 
NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the plat referencing this document.  All easements must be 
submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 
may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 
Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 
Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are 
any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide 
record of their abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 
Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for 
abandonment procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 
source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface 
or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is 
utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas 
prior to development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per 
UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 
and any other applicable law or regulation. 

 

Page 174

Item #11.



1

Joseph Dodson

From: Sabrina Durtschi <sdurtschi@tollbrothers.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 4:06 PM
To: Joseph Dodson
Subject: RE: Oaks North No. 10 Final Plat

External Sender - Please use caution with links or attachments. 

Thanks Joe. 
 
We are in agreement with Oaks North No. 10 staff report, please proceed with the findings. 
 
Sabrina 
 

From: Joseph Dodson <jdodson@meridiancity.org>  
Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 3:21 PM 
To: Sabrina Durtschi <sdurtschi@tollbrothers.com> 
Subject: RE: Oaks North No. 10 Final Plat 
 
Hi Sabrina, 
 
I did get your email about discussing Oaks North and will call you tomorrow morning on that one, I promise. 
Secondly, could you provide me with an email stating you are in agreement with the Oaks North No. 10 staff report so I 
can have that ready for the required Order due next Tuesday? 
 
Thank you! 
 
Joseph Dodson | Current Associate Planner 
City of Meridian | Community Development 
33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho 83642  
Phone: 208.884.5533 | 
  

 
  
Built for Business, Designed for Living  
 

All e‐mail messages sent to or received by City of Meridian e‐mail accounts are subject to the Idaho law,  
in regards to both release and retention, and may be released upon request, unless exempt from disclosure by law. 

 
 
 

From: Sabrina Durtschi <sdurtschi@tollbrothers.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 3:34 PM 
To: Joseph Dodson <jdodson@meridiancity.org> 
Subject: RE: Oaks North No. 10 Final Plat 
 
External Sender - Please use caution with links or attachments. 

Thanks Joe!  No problem, I will have our team review the report and let you and the clerk know if we are not in 
agreement. 

Page 175

Item #11.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-
0021) by Schultz Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd.

Page 176

Item #12.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Prevail North Subdivision – FILE #H-2021-0021)  - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for Annexation & Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning 
district and a preliminary plat consisting of 18 single-family residential lots and 3 common lots on 
5.25 acres of land, by Matthew Schultz, Schultz Development, LLC. 

Case No(s). H-2021-0021 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: June 22, 2021 (Findings on July 6, 2021) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 22, 2021, incorporated by 
reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 22, 2021, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 22, 2021, 

incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of June 22, 2021, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 

Page 177

Item #12.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Prevail North Subdivision – FILE #H-2021-0021)  - 2 - 

7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 
hearing date of June 22, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for Annexation and Zoning and Preliminary Plat is hereby approved per 

the conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 22, 2021, attached as 
Exhibit A. 

 
D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Conditional Use Permit Duration  

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum 
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City. During this time, the applicant 
shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the 
requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and acquire building permits and 
commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or in the ground.  For 
conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be signed by the City 
Engineer within this two (2) year period.  

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-5B-6.G.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the 
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as 

Page 178

Item #12.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Prevail North Subdivision – FILE #H-2021-0021)  - 3 - 

determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all extensions, the Director 
or City Council may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian 
City Code Title 11(UDC 11-5B-6F). 

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 
period.  

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian. 
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person 
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the 
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order 
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code. 

F. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of June 22, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 179

Item #12.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Prevail North Subdivision – FILE #H-2021-0021)  - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
2021. 

 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT    VOTED_______ 

 
 
COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN  VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT   VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER    VOTED_______ 

 
 

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 
 

 
            
     Mayor Robert Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

Page 180

Item #12.



EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

6/22/2021 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Joe Dodson, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0021 
Prevail North Subdivision 

LOCATION: The site is located at 5150 S. Meridian 
Road, on the east side of Meridian Road 
and approximately ¼ mile south of E. 
Amity Road, in the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ 
of Section 31, Township 3N., Range 1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Annexation & Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning district and a preliminary plat 
consisting of 18 single-family residential lots and 3 common lots on 5.25 acres of land. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

Description Details Page 
Acreage AZ – 5.63; Plat – 5.25 acres  
Future Land Use Designation Medium Density Residential (3-8 du/ac)  
Existing Land Use(s) Vacant land  
Proposed Land Use(s) Detached Single-family Residential  
Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 18 residential building lots  
Phasing Plan (# of phases) Proposed as one phase (essentially the third phase of the 

Prevail Subdivision) 
 

Number of Residential Units 18 single-family units  
Density Gross – 3.42 du/ac  
Open Space (acres, total 
[%]/buffer/qualified) 

0.83 acres (36,185 square feet), or 15.82% total open 
space; 0.75 acres, or 14.3% qualified open space 

 

Amenity Multi-use Pathway  
Physical Features (waterways, 
hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

Carlson Lateral crosses north property boundary twice. 
Applicant is proposing to reroute and pipe this lateral. See 
further analysis in Section V.N. 

 

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 
attendees: 

March 30, 2021 – No attendees  

History (previous approvals) N/A  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 181

Item #12.



 

 Page 2  
  

B. Community Metrics 
Description Details Page 
Ada County Highway 
District 

  

• Staff report (yes/no) Yes  
• Requires ACHD 

Commission Action 
(yes/no) 

No  

Access 
(Arterial/Collectors/State 
Hwy/Local) (Existing and 
Proposed) 

Access is proposed via extension of an existing local street from Prevail No. 
2 to the south.  
Through Prevail No. 2 and a segment of collector street (Quartz Creek 
Street), access is then to S. Meridian Road/SH 69. 

 

Stub 
Street/Interconnectivity/Cross 
Access 

Applicant is proposing internal local streets to end in two cul-de-sacs, one to 
the east and one to the west. The western cul-de-sac would extend right-of-
way to the northern property line for possible future extension through a city 
owned property. The eastern cul-de-sac is shown with a stub to the east 
property line for future connectivity to the east. 

 

Existing Road Network No   
Existing Arterial Sidewalks / 
Buffers 

No. Applicant will be required to construct the buffer, noise abatement, and 
detached multi-use pathway segment along Meridian Road/SH 69.  

 

Proposed Road 
Improvements 

No road improvements are required with this application. 
CIP/Five Year Work Plan for nearby roads: 

 

 

Distance to nearest City Park 
(+ size) 

1.8 miles to Discovery Park  

Fire Service   
• Distance to Fire 

Station 
3.1 miles from Fire Station #6 (2.1 miles from proposed new fire station in 
South Meridian; response time would be approximately 3 minutes from 
proposed station). 

 

• Fire Response Time A portion of the project lies within the Meridian Fire response time goal of 5 
minutes. 

 

• Resource Reliability Fire Station #6 reliability is 87% (above the goal of 80%)  
• Risk Identification Risk Factor 2 – Residential with hazards (open waterway)  
• Accessibility • Proposed project meets all required road widths, and turnaround 

dimensions. 
• Emergency access in Prevail No. 2 to the south is meant to be 

temporary; additional access to the east or north is preferred by the 
Meridian Fire Department. 

 

Police Service   
• Concerns None/no comments  

   
Wastewater   

Page 182

Item #12.



 

 Page 3  
  

Description Details Page 
• Distance to Sewer 

Services 
N/A  

• Sewer Shed South Black Cat Trunkshed  
• Estimated Project 

Sewer ERU’s 
See application  

• WRRF Declining 
Balance 

14.09  

• Project Consistent 
with WW Master 
Plan/Facility Plan 

Yes  

• Impacts/Concerns • Flow is committed  
Water   

• Distance to Services 0’  
• Pressure Zone 5  
• Estimated Project 

Water ERU’s 
See application  

• Water Quality 
Concerns 

None  

• Project Consistent 
with Water Master 
Plan 

Yes  

• Impacts/Concerns • Water main will need to be installed in S Keyport Ave to connect to the 
existing water stub from Prevail Sub Phase 2 

• The water main in S Scandia Ave that stubs to the City of Meridian 
property will need to be discussed with Public Works. 

 

C. Project Area Maps 
Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 
Zoning Map Planned Development Map 

Page 183

Item #12.



 

 Page 4  
  

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Matt Schultz, Schultz Development, LLC – PO Box 1115, Meridian, ID 83680 

B. Owner: 

Carl Reiterman – 2697 S. Linder Road, Meridian, ID 83642 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 4/30/2021   
Radius notification mailed to 
properties within 500 feet 4/27/2021   

Site Posting 5/7/2021   
Nextdoor posting 4/27/2021   

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan) 

Medium-Density Residential (MDR) – This designation allows for dwelling units at gross 
densities of three to eight dwelling units per acre. Density bonuses may be considered with the 
provision of additional public amenities such as a park, school, or land dedicated for public 
services. 

The subject site is an approximate five (5) acre parcel in between multiple parcels that are 
already annexed into the City of Meridian. The site to the North is a city owned property reserved 
for a future well site that currently only has access to Meridian Road. To the South is the 113-lot 

  

Page 184

Item #12.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


 

 Page 5  
  

Prevail Subdivision (approved in 2019) zoned R-8 with a future access to Meridian Road via a 
collector street, E. Quartz Creek Street, and a temporary emergency-only access to Meridian 
Road. The Applicant on this application is the same as who received approvals for the Prevail 
Subdivision to the south therefore making Prevail North a continuation of the already approved 
Prevail Subdivision. 

Commensurate with the future land use designation of MDR, the Applicant is proposing Prevail 
North with a gross density of 3.42 units per acre; therefore, proposing a residential project at the 
low end of the allowable density. Because this is an extension of the Prevail Subdivision to the 
south, the Applicant is aligning the proposed lots of Prevail North with those to the south to 
ensure compatibility of lot sizes. Furthermore, due to the constraints of the site being deep but 
relatively narrow and having a waterway along the north boundary, the Applicant is only 
proposing homes along the south boundary of the site. 

Staff finds the proposed project to be generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Specific 
Comprehensive Plan policies are discussed and analyzed below. 

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant 
to Idaho Code section 67-6511A. In order to ensure the site develops as proposed with this 
application, Staff recommends a DA as a provision of annexation with the provisions included in 
Section VIII.A1. The DA is required to be signed by the property owner(s)/developer and returned 
to the City within 6 months of the Council granting the annexation for approval by City Council 
and subsequent recordation. A final plat will not be accepted until the DA is executed and the AZ 
ordinance is approved by City Council. 

B. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

The applicable Comprehensive Plan policies are cited below with Staff analysis in italics.  

“Avoid the concentration of any one housing type or lot size in any geographical area; provide for 
diverse housing types throughout the City” (2.01.01G). The proposed project offers a density and 
site design that mirrors that to the south. Because of the relatively small lot size, strict adherence 
to this policy is not feasible and not in the best interest of the City when considering the 
constraint of the city owned property to the north. Staff finds the addition of 18 more lots 
matching the already approved project to the south as merely an extension of that project.  

“Establish and maintain levels of service for public facilities and services, including water, sewer, 
police, transportation, schools, fire, and parks” (3.02.01G). All public utilities are available for 
this project site due to the existing stubs abutting the site to the south within the right-of-way of 
the local street, S. Keyport Avenue. This project also lies within the Fire Department response 
time goal. However, the singular public road access is through the Prevail Subdivision to the 
south, currently under development. Fire code only allows 30 homes off of one access and with 
the two projects combined, there will be 135 homes off of this access. This is why, as seen on the 
plat and in previous approvals, an emergency-only access is required to Meridian Road and is 
located adjacent to the southern boundary of this plat. Despite meeting Fire Code, Meridian Fire 
has concerns over the approved access points and recommends requiring stub streets to both the 
north and east of this plat for future connectivity. West Ada School District has not made 
comments on this application but an additional 18 homes are expected to generate approximately 
14 school age children which can be easily absorbed into the school system, according to the 
ratio of 0.8 kids per household. 

Staff finds that the existing and planned development of the immediate area create conditions for 
levels of service to and for this proposed project that meet code requirements. 

Page 185

Item #12.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


 

 Page 6  
  

“Preserve, protect, and provide open space for recreation, conservation, and aesthetics” 
(4.05.01F). The Applicant is proposing this project with .75 acres of qualified open space, or 
14.3%. The area chosen for the open space currently contains an irrigation lateral that is to be 
rerouted and placed on the shared property line between this property and the city owned 
property to the north—the Applicant has discussed this with Public Works and received approval 
to do this work. 

Placing the open space in this location allows for a relatively long and large open space area on 
one side of the new local street and preserves the area above the lateral for maintenance and for 
adequate recreation. 

“Promote area beautification and community identity through context sensitive building and site 
design principles, appropriate signage, and attractive landscaping.” (5.01.02C). As discussed 
above, the area of most notable open space is the large open space lot along the north property 
boundary. This open space area is proposed with adequate open area, a detached sidewalk, and 
appropriate landscaping to beautify the space while not being overwhelmed with trees that would 
otherwise limit the open area uses of the space. In addition, the Applicant will be required to 
continue the multi-use pathway and landscaping along Meridian Road adding to the area 
beautification along a major roadway. 

“Require pedestrian access in all new development to link subdivisions together and promote 
neighborhood connectivity.” (2.02.01D). Proposed project is extending the attached sidewalks 
from the south to allow easy access to the future pedestrian facilities and amenities within Prevail 
Subdivision. 

“Ensure that new development within existing residential neighborhoods is cohesive and 
complementary in design and construction.” (2.02.02F). As discussed, the Applicant is proposing 
lot sizes and lot lines that match those directly abutting the site to the south. This proposed 
density and lot placement should provide a cohesive project with Prevail Subdivision to the south. 

“Require new development to establish street connections to existing local roads and collectors as 
well as to underdeveloped adjacent properties.” (6.01.02C). The Applicant is required to and is 
proposing to extend the abutting local street, S. Keynote, into the site and then “T” off the street 
by heading east and west with new streets for access to the proposed homes. In order to meet this 
policy as well as city development code, the Applicant is also proposing stub streets to the east 
and to the north. Further discussion and analysis on this are below in Section F, Access. Staff 
finds the Applicants proposed street connections comply with this policy. 

Staff finds this development to be generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Existing Structures/Site Improvements: 

There are no existing structures on site beyond the existing irrigation lateral that bends south into 
the site from the north and runs along nearly the entire north property boundary line. 

D. Proposed Use Analysis:  

The proposed use is detached single-family residential with an average lot size of 6,677 square 
feet and a minimum lot size of 5,362 square feet. This use is a permitted use in the requested R-8 
zoning district per UDC Table 11-2A-2. Due to the relatively small size of the development (5 
acres), the project is proposed to be constructed in one phase but will be phase 3 of the Prevail 
Subdivision to the south.  

The proposed use, lot sizes, and lot alignment should provide for a development that is cohesive 
with the adjacent development to the south.  

Page 186

Item #12.



 

 Page 7  
  

E. Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): 

The residential lots appear to meet all UDC dimensional standards per the submitted plat. In 
addition, all subdivision developments are also required to comply with Subdivision Design and 
Improvement Standards (UDC 11-6C-3). The proposed preliminary plat and submitted plans 
appear to meet all UDC requirements. 

F. Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

The Applicant submitted conceptual building elevations for the proposed detached single-family 
homes. Note that detached single-family homes do not require Design Review approval therefore 
Staff does not review these for compliance with any standards.  

However, the submitted elevations depict majority two-story homes with two-car garages and 
varying home styles noted as “Traditional,” “Craftsman,” and “Contemporary.” The elevations 
depict differing field materials of lap siding and stone with varying roof profiles offering an 
overall array of potential homes. 

G. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4): 

Access is proposed via extension of Keyport Avenue, a local street stubbed to the southern 
boundary from the Prevail Subdivision. The submitted plans show Keyport extending into the site 
and then heading both east and west as Liberator Street to end in permanent cul-de-sacs at both 
ends of the site, in alignment with ACHD policy. The extension of all local streets is proposed as 
33-foot wide street sections with the exception of a bulb-out along the north side of Liberator 
Street at the terminus of Keyport Avenue. This bulb-out is intended to be a traffic calming 
measure because the overall Liberator street, east-west, is greater than 750’ in length (Liberator is 
proposed as approximately 908’ in length from the center of the western cul-de-sac to the east 
property line). ACHD notes in their staff report that this type of traffic calming is acceptable but 
has not given a definitive approval of the location proposed on the revised preliminary plat. The 
Applicant will continue working with ACHD following any approvals received from the City and 
will likely be finalized with the final plat submittal at a future date. Staff is not concerned with 
the proposed location of the bulb-out and believes it will provide the desired traffic calming 
effects.  

Although, the length of the street from east to west is greater than 750’ in length, S. Keyport 
intersects this street approximately half way to break up the block length. In addition, UDC 
11-6C-3 notes that a dead-end street cannot be greater than 750’ in length without an 
intersecting street. Because of S. Keyport intersecting Liberator, neither the west or east 
cul-de-sac is greater than 500’ therefore not requiring any Council Waiver. It is admittedly 
an unusual road design but Staff considers it the most efficient design for livability and 
access when considering the site constraints of a large irrigation facility along nearly the 
entire northern boundary and topography throughout the site. Furthermore, there are no 
homes fronting along the north side of the proposed local street which further mitigates any Staff 
concern regarding its length on one side. 

The Applicant is also proposing two stub streets to adjacent properties; one to the north boundary 
out of the west cul-de-sac and one to the east boundary out of the east cul-de-sac. The original 
plat proposed both of these stub streets in the east quarter of the site but following conversations 
with Public Works the Applicant moved the stub street to the north to the west quarter of the site 
due to future plans for the City well site and topography issues. In congruence with this premise, 
the Applicant has also sited major topography issues with stubbing a street to the east boundary of 
the site and has specifically noted there could be a ten (10) foot elevation difference between the 
east stub street finish grade and the current grade of the Brighton owned property to the east. 

Page 187

Item #12.

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6061
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6569
https://meridiancity.org/designreview
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6390
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-7519


 

 Page 8  
  

Furthermore, the Applicant has also provided a conceptual drawing from the land owner to the 
east in order to show that a stub street to the east is not necessary—the submitted concept plan for 
the adjacent property does not show a street abutting the east property boundary of the subject site 
and instead appears to show an open space lot (see Exhibit VII.F). It should be noted that this 
concept plan is an older concept plan and the adjacent land owners do not have a solid plan in 
place for the area abutting the proposed plat. 

Staff supports the overall road layout and stub street locations as proposed on the revised 
preliminary plat. Though there is potential for topography to complicate the future road 
extension to the east, Staff highly recommends maintaining the stub street to the east for added 
future connectivity through the Brighton parcel to the east. This recommendation is based both in 
code (UDC 11-3A-3) and from recommendations of the Meridian Fire Department for better 
neighborhood connectivity and emergency response access as properties to the southeast develop 
in the future. 

H. Parking (UDC 11-3C): 

Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 11-
3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit. Staff will confirm 
compliance with these standards at the time of building permit submittal for each residence. In 
addition, the proposed 33-foot wide street section accommodates on-street parking where no 
driveways exist and where there is no bulb-out. Furthermore, no on-street parking is allowed 
within any part of either cul-de-sac at the end of the new local streets. 

I. Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17): 

5-foot wide attached sidewalks are proposed along the proposed streets except for that sidewalk 
adjacent to the large open space lot where 5-foot detached sidewalks with an 8-foot landscaped 
parkway are proposed instead. These sidewalks will be an extension of the pedestrian circulation 
of Prevail Subdivision to the south. The proposed sidewalks and parkway meet UDC 11-3A-17 
standards and ACHD standards.  

In addition to the internal sidewalks, the Applicant is required to construct a segment of 10-foot 
wide multi-use pathway along Meridian Road, per the Master Pathways Plan. The Applicant is 
showing this required pathway segment within a landscaped common lot, per code requirements. 

J. Development Along State Highways (UDC 11-3H): 

The proposed project has frontage along Meridian Road/SH 69 which requires noise abatement 
per UDC 11-3H-4. The Applicant is proposing to construct a 4-foot berm with a 6-foot wall on 
top of it to total 10’ above SH 69 centerline height, as required by code. This proposal matches 
what was approved in Prevail Subdivision to the south. Due to this segment of the wall being less 
than 300’ in length, code does not require modulation in the wall plane.  

Other analysis regarding access standards of this code section are analyzed above in Section F.  

K. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

The required landscaping regulated by code within the proposed development are the following 
areas: that area within the proposed parkways along the local street extension (UDC 11-3A-17 
and UDC 11-3B); the common open space lot, and; the required landscape buffer to Meridian 
Road. The submitted landscape plans show landscaping in these areas as proposed. 

The proposed 8-foot wide parkway is approximately 740’ in length on the revised plat requiring 
at least 21 trees (1 per every 35 linear feet). The submitted landscape plan does not show 
compliance with this requirement because it is shown with less than 21 trees. In addition, the plat 

Page 188

Item #12.

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6818
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6559
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6600


 

 Page 9  
  

has been revised since the original application submittal and the submitted landscape plans have 
not been revised to match the new road layout. Regardless, the Applicant should revise the 
landscape plans prior to the City Council hearing to ensure they match the revised preliminary 
plat and show compliance with the landscaping requirements.  

In addition, common open space is required to be landscaped with one (1) tree for every 8,000 
square feet of open space. The large open space area is shown as 32,709 square feet in the 
development table on the preliminary plat. However, Staff’s area analysis shows a figure closer 
to 36,500 square feet. Based on Staff’s calculation, the minimum number of trees that are 
required within the open space lot is five (5) trees. The submitted landscape plans show six (6) 
trees proposed exceeding the minimum UDC requirements. 

The landscape buffer along Meridian Road is required to be 35’ wide and contain the required 
multi-use pathway within it. The submitted landscape plans show compliance with UDC 
requirements for the number of trees, tree spacing/grouping, and additional vegetative ground 
cover. However, the Applicant is only showing a 25’ wide common lot on the preliminary plat for 
the required street buffer. Therefore, the Applicant should correct both the plat and the landscape 
plans to depict the required 35’ wide buffer. 

The Applicant is also proposing a micro-pathway from the western cul-de-sac to the multi-use 
pathway and does not appear to have the correct landscaping. UDC 11-3B-12 requires that trees 
be placed on both sides of the pathway; the Applicant has only proposed trees on the south side of 
the pathway. Staff is not aware of any easements encumbering the north side of the pathway and 
the landscape strip appears to be the minimum 5-foot width. Therefore, the Applicant should 
move one of the trees to the other side of the micro-path; Staff recommends the center tree of the 
three currently shown on the south side of this pathway. 

Although there is no code requirement for this change, Staff also recommends removing the shrub 
bed located in the center of the large open space lot. By removing this planter bed and the shrubs 
there would be an un obstructed area in the center of the open space lot that is at least 9,000 
square feet in size; it is rare for a subdivision to provide an area this large for children to play in 
without obstruction. If the Applicant desires to still include the same number of shrubs as 
currently shown, they could disperse them to the planter beds shown further to the west and east 
on the landscape plan. 

L. Qualified Open Space and Amenities (UDC 11-3G): 

The subject site is 5.63 acres in size with a plat over 5.25 acres in size requiring at least one (1) 
amenity and 0.536 acres of qualified open space per UDC 11-3G-3. The Applicant is continuing a 
segment of multi-use pathway along the Meridian Road frontage which qualifies as the required 
amenity. Because this plat would be an extension of the already approved Prevail Subdivision, the 
Applicant has indicated these future residents will be able to use the other amenities and open 
space in Prevail. The closest amenity to this phase is an open space lot with a playground that is 
located due south from the Keyport Avenue extension and has a micro-path in direct alignment 
with that amenity lot. Should Commission/Council find that this distance is too great for the 
future residents of Prevail North to walk to utilize the playground, Staff recommends they require 
an additional amenity with the large open space lot proposed on this subject site. To help ensure 
the amenities and open spaces are shared, Staff is including a DA provision that all of the 
common areas be owned and maintained by the same homeowner’s association. 

As discussed previously, the Applicant is proposing open space in excess of the code required 
0.536 acres. Overall, the Applicant is proposing the large open space lot along the north property 
boundary, a micro-path lot, and the landscape buffer to Meridian Road as qualifying open 
space—cumulatively these areas amount to 49,878 square feet, or 1.15 acres, approximately 22% 

Page 189

Item #12.



 

 Page 10  
  

of the 5.25 plat area. However, not all of this area is qualifying after receiving the revised 
landscape plan that fences off a section of the open space lot that is impeded by the irrigation 
easement for the rerouted Carlson Lateral. After removing this area, the area of qualified open 
space is 32,120 square feet (0.74 acres) or 14% of the plat area. The proposed qualified open 
space still exceeds the minimum code requirements by approximately 10,000 square feet. 
Furthermore, this calculation uses the 25’ landscape buffer width along Meridian Road instead of 
the required 35’ width. Therefore, the actual amount of qualified open space should be slightly 
larger. The Applicant should correct the open space exhibit to reflect both the revised layout and 
the correct amount of qualified open space. 

Staff utilized the lot sizes shown on the revised preliminary plat to obtain the above calculations 
so Staff is comfortable stating the Applicant is proposing qualified open space in vast excess of 
code requirements. 

Staff supports the proposed and revised open space exhibit and believes it offers adequate area 
for recreation and relaxation. 

M. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7): 

All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. Fencing is proposed 
as shown on the landscape plan and appears to meet UDC standards as proposed. Should any 
fencing locations need to be revised to accommodate any irrigation easement requirements, 
the Applicant should notify Staff and submit revised drawings at the applicable future 
application submittals (i.e. final plat and/or final plat signature). 

N. Waterways (UDC 11-3A-6): 

The subject site contains a large section of the Carlson Lateral, an irrigation lateral maintained by 
Boise Project Board of Control (BPBC). The Applicant is proposing to both reroute and pipe this 
lateral consistent with the desires of the City Engineer for the purpose of benefiting both this 
Applicant and the City owned property bordering the subject site on the north boundary. Upon 
further discussions with BPBC and in coordination with Public Works, the Applicant is proposing 
to pipe the entire segment of the lateral on both properties from Meridian Road east to nearly the 
east property boundary, as shown on the submitted preliminary plat in Exhibit VII.B. Piping this 
lateral will allow for more buildable area of the subject site, fix some of the topography issues for 
the City owned property, and allow for easier maintenance by BPBC. Staff supports the piping of 
this irrigation lateral and the proposed plan complies with UDC 11-3A-6. 

O. Pressurized Irrigation (UDC 11-3A-15): 

The Applicant is required to provide a pressurized irrigation system for the development in 
accord with 11-3A-15. The Applicant is showing a pressurized irrigation system on the landscape 
plans commensurate with code requirements. Land Development will review these plans in more 
detail at a later date when specific irrigation plans are submitted with the Final Plat application. 

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the requested annexation and zoning with the requirement of a 
Development Agreement and approval of the requested preliminary plat application per the 
Findings in Section IX of this staff report.  

B.  The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard these items on May 20, 2021. At the public   
hearing, the Commission moved to recommend approval of the subject Annexation and Zoning 
and Preliminary Plat requests. 

Page 190

Item #12.

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6418
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6433
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-15PRIRSY


 

 Page 11  
  

 1. Summary of Commission public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Matt Schultz, Applicant 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: Matt Schultz 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. None 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 
  a. Purpose of rerouting and piping Carlson Lateral and how does its placement affect any 

future road extensions on adjacent properties; 
 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 
  a. None 
 5. Outstanding issue(s) for City Council: 
  a. None 

 
C.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on June 22, 2021. At the public hearing, the Council 

moved to approve the subject Annexation and Zoning and Preliminary Plat requests. 
 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Matthew Schultz, Schultz Development 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: Matthew Schultz 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: Warren Stewart, City Engineer 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. None 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 
  a. 

 
b. 
 
c. 

Necessity of a stub street out of the west cul-de-sac to the City owned property to the 
north; 
Access into the development for future residents and/or city vehicles should an access be 
maintained to the City property to the north; 
Repercussions of waiving the requirement to provide a stub street to the north property 
boundary; 

 4. City Council change(s) to Commission recommendation: 
  a. Council approved a Council Waiver to remove the stub street to the north out of the 

west cul-de-sac. 
 

  

Page 191

Item #12.



 

 Page 12  
  

VII. EXHIBITS 

A. Annexation and Zoning Legal Descriptions and Exhibit Maps 

Page 192

Item #12.



 

 Page 13  
  

 

Page 193

Item #12.



 

 Page 14  
  

 

 

Page 194

Item #12.



 

 Page 15  
  

B.  Preliminary Plat (dated: 5/7/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195

Item #12.



 

 Page 16  
  

 

Page 196

Item #12.



 

 Page 17  
  

C. Landscape Plans (date: 35/17/2021) NOT APPROVED 

Page 197

Item #12.



 

 Page 18  
  

 

Page 198

Item #12.



 

 Page 19  
  

D. Color Landscape Plan – Prevail Subdivision Overall 

Page 199

Item #12.



 

 Page 20  
  

E. Open Space Exhibit – NOT APPROVED dated: 5/17/2021 

 

Page 200

Item #12.



 

 Page 21  
  

F. Concept Plan – Brighton Parcel (S1131244500) 

 

Area of concern/discussion between 
two projects. 

Page 201

Item #12.



 

 Page 22  
  

G. Conceptual Building Elevations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 202

Item #12.



 

 Page 23  
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203

Item #12.



 

 Page 24  
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. 
Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of 
Meridian, the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the 
developer.  

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA 
shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions: 

a. Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the approved 
plat, landscape plan, and conceptual building elevations included in Section VII 
and the provisions contained herein, including a Council Waiver to remove the 
stub street to the north property boundary. 

b. The rear and/or sides of 2-story structures that face S. Meridian Rd., an entryway 
corridor, shall incorporate articulation through changes in two or more of the following: 
modulation (e.g. projections, recesses, step-backs, pop-outs), bays, banding, porches, 
balconies, material types, or other integrated architectural elements to break up 
monotonous wall planes and roof lines that are visible from the subject public street. 
Single-story structures are exempt from this requirement. 

c. All amenities and common open space within Prevail Subdivision (aka Percy 
Subdivision) and Prevail North Subdivision shall be owned and maintained by the same 
homeowner’s association to ensure shared use in perpetuity. 

2. The preliminary plat included in Section VII.B, dated May 7, 2021, shall be revised as 
follows prior to submitting for Final Plat approval: 

a. Revise the plat to show the landscape buffer common lot along Meridian Road to be 
at least 35 feet wide consistent with the required dimensional standards along an 
entryway corridor or apply for Alternative Compliance, per UDC 11-5B-5. 

b. Add a plat note stating that direct lot access to S. Meridian Road/SH 69 is prohibited. 

c. Revise the plat to remove the stub street from the west cul-de-sac to the north 
property boundary, per the approved City Council waiver. 

3. Revise the landscape plans, open space exhibit, and all other relevant plans to reflect the 
revised preliminary plat layout and provide revised plans to staff at least fifteen (15) days 
prior to the City Council hearing. 

4. The landscape plan included in Section VII.C, dated March May 17, 2021, shall be revised as 
follows prior to submitting for Final Plat approval: 

a. Revise the plan to show the required landscape buffer along Meridian Road to be 35’ 
instead of 25’ or apply for Alternative Compliance, per UDC 11-5B-5. 

b. Move one of the trees located on the south side of the micro-pathway in the 
northwest corner of the site to the north side of the pathway consistent with UDC 11-
3B-12. 

Page 204

Item #12.



 

 Page 25  
  

c. Remove the center planter bed within the large open space lot, shown as Lot 1, Block 
7. 

d. Plant the proposed 8-foot wide parkway along the north side of Liberator Street with 
at least one (1) tree per 35 linear feet consistent with UDC 11-3B-7C. 

e. Any landscaping within the ITD right-of-way shall be landscaped in accord with 
UDC 11-3B-7C.5. 

5. Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in 
UDC Table 11-2A-6 for the R-8 zoning district.  

6. Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 
11-3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit.  

7. The Applicant shall comply with all ACHD conditions of approval. 

8. Provide a pressurized irrigation system consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11-
3A-15, UDC 11-3B-6 and MCC 9-1-28. 

9. Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy on any building, the applicant shall submit a 
public access easement for the multi-use pathway segment along Meridian Road to the 
Planning Division for approval by City Council and subsequent recordation. The easement 
shall be a minimum of 14’ in width (10’ pathway and 2’ shoulder on each side). 

10. Upon completion of the landscape installation, a written Certificate of Completion shall be 
submitted to the Planning Division verifying all landscape improvements are in substantial 
compliance with the approved landscape plan as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14. 

11. The preliminary plat approval shall become null and void if the applicant fails to either: 1) 
obtain the City Engineer signature on a final plat within two years of the date of the approved 
findings; or 2) obtain approval of a time extension as set forth in UDC 11-6B-7. 

 
B. PUBLIC WORKS 

1. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 

1.1 Services must tie into sewer mains at a 90-degree angle from the main. Lot 33, Block 1 either 
needs to be modified to a 90-degree angle into the main, or should be connected to SSMH 2. 

1.2 Install water main in S Keyport Ave to connect to the existing water stub from Prevail 
Subdivision No. 2.   

1.3 Contact Public Works Engineering to discuss the water stub to the City of Meridian property 
to the North. 

1.4 A streetlight plan is required to be submitted with the Final Plat application.  

1.5 A future streetlight installation agreement is required for the streetlights on Meridian Road. 

Page 205

Item #12.



 

 Page 26  
  

2. General Conditions of Approval  

2.1 Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works 
Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to 
provide service outside of a public right-of-way.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is three 
feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall 
be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 
Specifications. 

2.2 Per Meridian City Code (MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water 
mains to and through this development.  Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement 
agreement for infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8-6-5.  

2.3 The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public 
right of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet 
wide for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via 
the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard 
forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit 
an executed easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal description 
prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of 
the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and distances 
(marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a 
Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the plat referencing this 
document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to development 
plan approval.  

2.4 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 
source of water (MCC 12-13-8.3). The applicant should be required to use any existing 
surface or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a 
single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point 
connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for 
the common areas prior to prior to receiving development plan approval.  

2.5 All existing structures that are required to be removed shall be prior to signature on the final 
plat by the City Engineer.  Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to 
evaluation and possible reassignment of street addressing to be in compliance with MCC. 

2.6 All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed 
per UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-
1207 and any other applicable law or regulation. 

2.7 Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 
Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 
Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are 
any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or 
provide record of their abandonment.   

2.8 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 
Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8.  Contact Central District Health for abandonment 
procedures and inspections (208)375-5211.  

2.9 Street signs are to be in place, sanitary sewer and water system shall be approved and 
activated, road base approved by the Ada County Highway District and the Final Plat for this 
subdivision shall be recorded, prior to applying for building permits. 

Page 206

Item #12.



 

 Page 27  
  

2.10 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all 
uncompleted fencing, landscaping, amenities, etc., prior to signature on the final plat. 

2.11 All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to 
occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a 
performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the 
final plat as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

2.12 Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and 
construction inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the 
issuance of a plan approval letter.  

2.13 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features 
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

2.14 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 
Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

2.15 Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

2.16 All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-12-3H. 

2.17 Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all 
building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

2.18 The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set 
a minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to 
ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

2.19 The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    
drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation 
district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been 
installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required 
before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

2.20 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record 
drawings per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be 
received and approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures 
within the project.  

2.21 A street light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light 
plan requirements are listed in section 6-5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting. 
A copy of the standards can be found at 
http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272. 

2.22 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a performance surety in the 
amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water and reuse 
infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an 
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, 
which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact 
Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

Page 207

Item #12.

http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272


 

 Page 28  
  

2.23 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the 
amount of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse 
infrastructure for duration of two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an 
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, 
which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact 
Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

C.  FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

D. BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL (BPBC) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

E. PARKS DEPARTMENT – PATHWAYS 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

F. ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

G. CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT (CDH) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

H. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

I. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)   

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

IX. FINDINGS 

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E) 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a 
full investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant 
an annexation and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive 
plan; 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment to annex the property into the City of 
Meridian with the R-8 zoning district with the proposed preliminary plat and site design is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, if all conditions of approval are met. 

Page 208

Item #12.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 Page 29  
  

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed districts, 
specifically the purpose statement; 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment and the request for the development 
complies with the regulations outlined in the requested R-8 zoning district and is consistent 
with the purpose statement of the requested zone. 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, 
and welfare; 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety and welfare. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services 
by any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not 
limited to, school districts; and 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment will not result in an adverse impact on 
the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services within the City. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Council finds the annexation is in the best interest of the City. 

 
B.  Preliminary Plat Findings:  

In consideration of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or short plat, 
the decision-making body shall make the following findings: 

1. The plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; 

Council finds that the proposed plat is in substantial compliance with the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan in regard to land use, density, transportation, and pedestrian 
connectivity. (Please see Comprehensive Plan Policies in, Section V of this report for more 
information.) 

2. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate 
the proposed development; 

Council finds that public services will be provided to the subject property with development. 
(See Section VIII of the Staff Report for more details from public service providers.) 

3. The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City’s 
capital improvement program;  

 Because City water and sewer and any other utilities will be provided by the development at 
their own cost, Council finds that the subdivision will not require the expenditure of capital 
improvement funds. 

4. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

 Council finds there is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed 
development based upon comments from the public service providers (i.e., Police, Fire, ACHD, 
etc.). (See Section VII for more information.)   

5. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; 
and, 

Page 209

Item #12.



 

 Page 30  
  

Council is not aware of any health, safety, or environmental problems associated with the 
platting of this property. ACHD considers road safety issues in their analysis and has offered 
their support of the proposed development with the proposed road layout in mind. 

6. The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

Council is unaware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features that exist on this site 
that require preserving. 

Page 210

Item #12.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Development Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Shafer View 
North, LLC (Owner/Developer) for Shafer View Terrace (H-2020-0117) Located at the East Side of
S. Meridian Rd./SH 69, Midway Between E. Amity Rd. and E. Lake Hazel Rd.

Page 211

Item #13.



Page 212

Item #13.



Page 213

Item #13.



Page 214

Item #13.



Page 215

Item #13.



Page 216

Item #13.



Page 217

Item #13.



Page 218

Item #13.



Exhibit A

Shafer View Terrace H-2020-0117

Page 219

Item #13.



Page 220

Item #13.



Page 221

Item #13.



Page 222

Item #13.



Item# 9.

CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EFI DIAN:-,
AND DECISION& ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Annexation of a Total of 40. 48- Acres of Land with R- 2 ( 10. 66

acres) and R-4( 29. 82 acres) Zoning Districts; and Preliminary Plat Consisting of 50 Buildable Lots
and 10 Common Lots on 39. 01- Acres of Land in the R-2 and R-4 Zoning Districts for Shafer View
Terrace Subdivision, by Breckon Land Design.

Case No( s). H- 2020- 0117

For the City Council Hearing Dates of: March 9, April 13, May 18, and June 1, 2021 ( Findings on
June 15, 2021)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts ( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code ( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR SHAFER VIEW TERRACE— AZ, PP, PS H- 2020- 0117

I
Page 159

EXHIBIT B

Page 223

Item #13.



Item# 9.

7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for Annexation& Zoning and Preliminary Plat is hereby approved with
the requirement of a Development Agreement per the provisions in the Staff Report for the
hearing date of June 1, 2021, attached as Exhibit A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer' s signature
on the final plat within two( 2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined
preliminary and final plat or short plat( UDC 11- 613- 7A).

In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat,
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two( 2) years, may be considered for
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval( UDC 11- 613- 713).

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11- 6B- 7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City
Engineer' s signature on the final plat not to exceed two( 2) years. Additional time extensions up
to two( 2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time

extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again( UDC 11-
6B- 7C).

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR SHAFER VIEW TERRACE— AZ, PP, PS H- 2020- 0117

2-
Page 160Page 224

Item #13.



Item# 9.

agreement by all parties and/ or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty- eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR SHAFER VIEW TERRACE— AZ, PP, PS H- 2020- 0117

3
Page 161Page 225

Item #13.



Item# 10.

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 15th day of June

2021.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 6- 15- 2021

Attest:

Chris Johnson 6- 15- 2021

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:    6- 15- 2021

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR SHAFER VIEW TERRACE— AZ, PP, PS H- 2020- 0117

4
Page 161Page 226

Item #13.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




item# s.  EXHIBIT A

STAFF REPORTC,WEIIDIAN  --
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT A H O

HEARING June 1, 2021
Legend L_J__

DATE:  
Continuedfrom: March 9, April 13, and Ppd ect Lcofl3tor F- 1 # 0
May 18, 2021

TO:      Mayor& City Council

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner

208- 884- 5533

SUBJECT:     H- 2020- 0117

Shafer View Terrace— AZ, PP

LOCATION:  East side of S. Meridian Rd./ SH 69,    

midway between E. Amity Rd. and E.      r

Lake Hazel Rd., in the SW 1/ 4 of Section       _

31, T. 3N., RAE. ( Parcels# R7824220044

R7824220042)

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Annexation of a total of 40.48 acres of land with R-2 ( 10. 66 acres) and R-4( 29. 82 acres) zoning
districts; and Preliminary Plat consisting of 50 buildable lots and 10 common lots on 39. 01 acres of
land in the R-2 and R-4 zoning districts.

II.  SUMMARY OF REPORT

A.  Project Summary

Description Details Page

Acreage 39. 01 acres

Existing/ Proposed Zoning RUT in Ada County/ R-2 and R-4
Future Land Use Designation Low Density Residential( LDR)( 3 or fewer units/ acre)
Existing Land Use( s)    Agricultural land

Proposed Land Use( s)   Single- family residential( SFR)
Lots(# and type; bldg./ common)       50 buildable lots/ 10 common lots

Phasing Plan(# of phases)      2 phases
Number of Residential Units( type 50 SFR detached dwellings

of units)

Density( gross& net)    1. 76 units/ acre( gross); 3. 30 units/ acre( net)
Open Space( acres, total 5. 26 acres( or 18. 55%) overall common open space— 4. 05

buffer/ qualified)    acres( or 14. 27%) of which is qualified open space

Amenities Multi- sport court, tot lot, gazebo shade structure, multi-use
pathway

Physical Features( waterways,  The McBirney Lateral runs along the southern boundary
hazards, flood plain, hillside)   and through the western portion of the site. Another

Page 1

Page 163Page 227

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Description Details Page

waterway exists on the eastern portion of the site between
the proposed R- 2 and R- 4 zoned properties.

Neighborhood meeting date;# of 10/ 13/ 20; 14 attendees

attendees:

History( previous approvals)   This property was previously platted as Lot 4, Block 1,
Shafer View Estates, developed in Ada County and
recorded in 2002( Bk. 84, Pg. 9403). It was deed restricted
and was only allowed to be used for open space as defined
in the non- farm development section of the Ada County
code and the planned development section of the Ada

County code for a period of not less than 15 years from the
recording date of the subdivision plat. This property was
originally proposed to be annexed with the adjacent Apex
development but was later withdrawn.

B.  Community Metrics

Description Details P

Ada County Highway
District

Staff report( yes/ no) Yes( draft)

Requires ACHD No

Commission Action

es/ no

Access Access is proposed via E. Shafer View Dr., local street, and E.
Arterial/ Collectors/ State Quartz Creek St., collector street

Hwy/Local)( Existing and
Proposed)

Traffic Level of Service ACHD does not set LOS thresholds for state highways.

Stub No stub streets exist to this property and no stub streets are
Street/ Interconnectivity/ Cros proposed to adjacent properties.
s Access

Existing Road Network S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 exists along the west boundary and E.
Shafer View Dr. exists along the south boundary.

Existing Arterial Sidewalks/   No sidewalks or buffers exist along S. Meridian Rd./SH- 69, a
Buffers state highway, or E. Shafer View Dr., a local street
Proposed Road Capital Improvements Plan( CIP} f Integrated Five Year Work Plan( IFYWP):

The intersection of Amity Road and Meridian RoadISH- 69 is listed in the CIP to be widened
Improvements r

to 6- lanes on the north leg, 6- lanes on the south, 7- lanes on the east, and 7- lanes on the west
leg, and signalized between 2031- 2035.

The intersection of Lake Hazel Road and Meridian Road/ SH- 69 is listed in the CIP to be

widened to 6- lanes on the north leg, 6- lanes on the south, 7- lanes on the east, and 7- lanes
on the west leg, and signalized between 2036- 2040.

Amity Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 5- lanes from Meridian RoadISH- 6910 Locust
Grove Road between 2036- 2040.

Lake Hazel Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 3- lanes from Linder Road to Meridian

Road/ SH- 69 between 2036- 2040.

Lake Hazel Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 5- lanes from Meridian RoadlSH- 6910

Locust Grove Road between 2036- 2040.

Amity Road is scheduled in the IFYWP for pavement rehabilitation and pedestrian ramp
construction from Meridian Road7SH- 69 to Locust Grove Road in 2022.

Fire Service

Distance to Fire Station 3. 5 miles

Fire Response Time Falls within 5: 00 minute response time area- nearest station is

Fire Station# 6— can meet response time goals

Resource Reliability 87%- does meet the target goal of 80% or greater

Page 2

Page 164Page 228

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Description Details P

Risk Identification 2— current resources would not be adequate to supply service
open waterways)

Accessibility Project meets all required access, road widths and turnaround.

Special/ resource needs Project will not require an aerial device; can meet this need in the

required timeframe if a truck company is required.
Water Supply Requires 1, 000 gallons per minute for one hour, may be less if

buildings are fully sprinklered.
Other Resources

Police Service

Distance to 4 miles

Police Station

Police Response The average emergency response time in the City is just under 4 minutes( meets
Time target goal of 3- 5 minutes)

Meridian Police Department- Shafer View Narth

Location of new development- Las.- of N Merldlan Rd Between E Amity Rd& E Lake Hazel FLd

ime Frame-   Dl/ 01/ 2019- 12/ 31f2024

Level of Service ILosl- Delivered By Reporting District IRD- M777)

Calls for Service[ CFS]: Response Times; Dispatch to Arrival( all units)

Average Response Times by Priority- ' City of Meridian'

PriorkV 3 3A3

Prrority2 fMPosvwawffhbstolom" esl 7: 11

Priority 1 l+str Goof is w![ 14l015# 0 20 mJrwfesl 10: 37

Average RespbnSB TirdeS by Priorlty:' Iv1777'

Priority 3 5A2

Priority 2 11: 43

Priority 1 8: 36

Calls for Service( CFS): Calls occurring In RD' M777'

CFS count Total 55

of Calls for Serwice split by Priority in' M777'

of P3 CFS 1. 8%

of P2 LXS 74. 5%

Ag of P4 LT5 21. 64L

of PO 0:5 0. 0%

Crimes

Crime Courrt Total 22

Cr' aaltei

Crash Count. Total 46

Analyst Note( si:

Response Time and Calla For Service( CF51 by morlty- Most frequent priority tall types;
Pribei ty 3 balks involved Subject at the Door.

Priority 2 calls most frequently inmkved TrafFC Stapsr Stalked Vehides, and Welfare Checks 1911 Hang Ups)_

Priority 1 calls m45t frequently involved N4 Contact Order Repgrtr VIN Inspections, and Citizen A55ift5-

Crime loccurred date!- Most frequent crimes involved:

Driving Under the Influence, and

Liquor Law Violations( Open Container IDrlverl, Aloohollc Beverage Possesslon Under Age 21, etc.), and

druglNarcotic Ulalatlons( Possesslon of MarlJuana),

Crashes- Most frequent crashes were;

41. 1,% injury type crashes,

26. 1-% property damage reports, and
324-M non- reportable crashes.

arioelty Response rsmes ye8ned:

Priority 0 type ca Its are no priority type of ca IIa

Prliarlty 1 type calls are For non- emergency type of calls where the officer will arrive at the ea rilest oonwenlerKe, and shall obey all
tMfit laws_

Priority 2 type calls require an urgent response where the officer will arrive as soon as practical, and should obey all traffic laws.

Prlorh,y 3 type calls are an emergency response In which the Irghts and siren and driving as authorlmd far an emergency vehicle by

Idaho Cade to facilitate the quick and safe arrival of an officer to the scene.

West Ada School

District

Distance( elem,

ins, hs)

Page 3

Page 165Page 229

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Capacity of
Enrollment Ca aci Miles

nn.. m kh- 1)

Schools Mary McPherson Elementary' 481'       675 1. 3

of Students Victory Middle School 868 IODO 2. 8

Enrolled Mountain View High School 2218 2175 3. 9

Enrollment number is estimated for the 2021- 2022 school year based on current enrollment and future growth in the
respective attendance area. It reflects changes made to the Mary McPherson Elementary attendance area.

of Students

Predicted from 35 school aged children predicted from this development by WASD.
this development

Wastewater

Distance to Directly adjacent
Sewer Services

Sewer Shed South Black Cat Trunk Shed

Estimated Project See application

Sewer ERU' s

WRRF Declining 14. 02

Balance

Project Yes

Consistent with

WW Master

Plan/ Facility
Plan

Impacts/ concerns   • Flow is committed

See Public Works Site Specific Conditions

Water  )    IL

Distance to Water Directly adjacent
Services

Pressure Zone 5

Estimated Project See application

Water ERU' s

Water Quality None

Project Yes

Consistent with

Water Master

Plan

Impacts/ Concerns See Public Works Site Specific Conditions

Page 4

Page 166Page 230

Item #13.



Item# 9.

C.  Project Area Maps

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map

fLegend fLegend
Proyeci Lcca- hor I Prnjeot Lorca on

Medium Density
Residenfial

idnfi

ed- Hig
ensify

Residenfi

Zoning Map Planned Development Map

Legend
R1

Legend
RUT—    ff

0Prayeci Lorca- nor IetProject Lacafkm   --
R1 1 City Limiit

R-$ Planned Parse

R

RUT R- 4

w

RUT

RUIT

A.  Applicant:

Mary Wall, Breckon Land Design— PO Box 44465, Boise, ID 83711

B.  Owners:

James Chambers, 39, LLC— 5356 N. Troon Pl., Boise, ID 83713

DWT Investments, LLC— 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642

C.  Representative:

Same as Applicant

Page 5

Page 167Page 231

Item #13.



Item# 9.

III.   NOTICING

Planning& Zoning City Council
Posting Date Posting Date

Notification published in
1/ 15/ 2021 2/ 19/ 2021

newspaper

Notification mailed to property
owners within 300 feet

1/ 12/ 2021 2/ 16/ 2021

Applicant posted public hearing
notice on site

1/ 21/ 2021 2/ 26/ 2021

Nextdoor posting 1/ 12/ 2021 2/ 16/ 2021

IV.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS( Comprehensive Plan)

The Future Land Use Map( FLUM) contained in the Comprehensive Plan designates this property as
Low Density Residential( LDR).

The LDR designation allows for the development of single- family homes on large and estate lots at
gross densities of three dwelling units or less per acre. These areas often transition between existing
rural residential and urban properties. Developments need to respect agricultural heritage and
resources, recognize view sheds and open spaces, and maintain or improve the overall atmosphere of

the area. The use of open spaces, parks, trails and other appropriate means should enhance the
character of the area.

The proposed development consists of a total of 50 single- family detached dwellings on large lots
i.e. 12, 000 square foot( s. f.)minimum] on 39. 01 acres of land at an overall gross density of 1. 76

units/ acre, which falls within the density range desired in LDR designated areas. This property abuts a
County subdivision, Shafer View Estates, to the south and will provide a transition to future urban
properties to the north, zoned R-4 and R- 8.

The following Comprehensive Plan Policies are applicable to this development:

Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial
capabilities of Meridian' s present and future residents."( 2. 01. 02D)

Only one housing type, single-family detached, is proposed which Staff believes is appropriate
due to the large lot sizes and density desired in LDR designated areas. The variety of lot sizes
i.e. 8, 600- 23, 600 sf.) proposed will provide for diversity in styles of homes, which Staff

believes will contribute to the variety of housing in the City to meet the preferences and
financial capabilities ofMeridian' s present and future residents.

Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities
and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of
service for public facilities and services."( 3. 03. 03F)

City water and sewer service is available and can be extended by the developer with
development in accord with UDC 11- 3A- 21.

Encourage compatible uses and site design to minimize conflicts and maximize use of land."

3. 07. 00)

The proposed density and lot sizes should be compatible with the rural residential
homes/properties to the south on 1+ acre lots in the County andfuture urban residential
development to the north and east in the City.

Page 6

Page 168Page 232

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Ensure development is connected to City of Meridian water and sanitary sewer systems and
the extension to and through said developments are constructed in conformance with the City
of Meridian Water and Sewer System Master Plans in effect at the time of development."

3. 03. 03A)

The proposed development will connect to City water and sewer systems; services are
required to be provided to and though this development in accord with current City plans.

Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities
and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of
service for public facilities and services."( 3. 03. 03F)

City water and sewer services are available to this site and can be extended by the developer
with development in accord with UDC 11- 3A- 21. The emergency response times for Police
Dept. and Fire Dept. meets the established goals.

With new subdivision plats, require the design and construction of pathway connections, easy
pedestrian and bicycle access to parks, safe routes to schools, and the incorporation of usable
open space with quality amenities."( 2. 02. 01A)

A 10 foot wide multi- use pathway is proposed within the street buffer along S. Meridian
Rd.ISH--69 as required by the Pathways Master Plan and UDC 11- 3H-4C.4. A total of4.05
acres ofqualified open space is proposed along with quality amenities ( i.e. sports court,
gazebo, tot lot, multi-use pathway).

Evaluate comprehensive impacts of growth and consider City Master Plans and Strategic
Plans in all land use decisions( e.g., traffic impacts, school enrollment, and parks)."
3. 01. 01A)

The Traffic Impact Study( TIS) was not required by ACHDfor this development.

WASD submitted comments stating that approximately 35 school aged children are estimated
to be generated by this development; enrollment at Mary McPherson Elementary School and
Victory Middle School is currently under capacity and Mountain View High School is over
capacity( see Section VIII.I).According to the Community Development' s school impact
analysis, enrollment at Victory Middle School will be slightly over capacity at build-out of
building permits already issued in this area at 104%( Mary McPherson will be 95% and

Mountain View will be 109%) ( see Section VIII.J).

The closest City Park to this site is Discovery Park, consisting of 77- acres, to the southeast
on E. Lake Hazel Rd., Y4 mile east ofS. Locust Grove Rd. A future City Park is designated on
the FL UM within a half mile of this site to the west.

Require all development to create a site design compatible with surrounding uses through
buffering, screening, transitional densities, and other best site design practices."( 3. 07. 01A)

The proposed site design features a 1: 1, 2: 1 and 3: 1 transition in proposed lots to existing
lots in Shafer View Estates to the south. These lots are separated by an existing 41 foot wide
easementfor the McBirney Lateral which provides an added buffer between rural lots and
proposed urban lots.

Require urban infrastructure be provided for all new developments, including curb and
gutter, sidewalks, water and sewer utilities."( 3. 03. 03G)

Urban sewer and water infrastructure and curb, gutter and sidewalks are proposed as
required with this development.

Page 7

Page 169Page 233

Item #13.



Item# 9.

In summary, Staffbelieves the proposed development plan is generally consistent with the vision
ofthe Comprehensive Plan per the analysis above.

V.  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE ANALYSIS(  L0

A.  Annexation:

The proposed annexation is for 40. 48 acres of land with R-2 ( 10. 66 acres) and R-4( 29. 82 acres)
zoning districts, which includes adjacent right- of-way to the section line of S. Meridian Rd./ SH-
69 and to the centerline of E. Quartz Creek St.

A total of 50 residential dwelling units are proposed to develop on the site at an overall gross
density of 1. 76 units per acre consistent with the associated LDR FLUM designation for the site.
Although the proposed density is more consistent with an R-2 ( Low Density Residential) zoning
district, the Applicant requests R-4 in order to provide a transition in lot sizes between the
existing rural residential subdivision to the south( Shafer View Estates) and the future urban
residential subdivision approved to the north( Prevail Subdivision), zoned R- 8. Larger lots are

proposed adjacent to the southern boundary that gradually transition to smaller lots to the north.

The property is contiguous to City annexed land and is within the City' s Area of City Impact
boundary. A legal description and exhibit map of the overall annexation area along with
individual legal descriptions and exhibit maps for the R-2 and R-4 zoning districts are included in
Section VIII. A.

The City may require a development agreement( DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant
to Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. To ensure future development is consistent with the

Comprehensive Plan and with the development plan proposed with this application, Staff
recommends a new DA is required with this application, containing the provisions noted in
Section VIII. A, as discussed below.

B.  Preliminary Plat:

The proposed plat is a re-subdivision of Lot 4, Block 1, Shafer View Estates, developed in Ada
County and recorded in 2002 ( Bk. 84, Pg. 9403). This lot was deed restricted and was only
allowed to be used for open space as defined in the non- farm development section of the Ada

County code and the planned development section of the Ada County code for a period of not less
than 15 years from the recording date of the subdivision plat. The required time period has
elapsed and the lot is now eligible for redevelopment.

The proposed preliminary plat consists of 50 buildable lots and 10 common lots on 39. 01 acres of
land in the R-2 and R-4 zoning districts. The subdivision is proposed to develop in three( 3)
phases as shown on the phasing plan in Section VII.B. The first and second phases consist of
28. 35 acres and is proposed to develop with 50 single- family detached homes at a gross density
of 1. 76 units per acre and a net density of 3. 30 units per acre with an average lot size of 13, 444
s. f. The third phase consists of 10. 66 acres and is proposed to be platted as one large lot that will
be developed at a later date under a separate application by the property owner. This portion of
the site is under separate ownership from the rest of the site and was previously illegally split off,
therefore, it' s ineligible for development until included in a subdivision to create a legal lot for

development purposes.

Existing Structures/Site Improvements:
There are no existing structures or site improvements on this property other than a private
drainage facility on Lot 6, Block 6.

Page 8

Page 170Page 234

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Proposed Use Analysis:

Single- family detached dwellings are listed as a principal permitted uses in both the R-2 and R-4
zoning districts per UDC Table 11- 2A- 2: Allowed Uses in the Residential Districts.

Dimensional Standards ( UDC 11- 2A):

Development of the proposed lots is required to comply with the dimensional standards of the R-
2 district in UDC Table I1- 2A- 4 and the R- 4 district in( UDC Table 11- 2A- 5), as applicable.

Subdivision Design and Improvement Standards ( UDC 11- 6C-3):

Development of the subdivision is required to comply with the subdivision design and
improvement standards listed in UDC 11- 6C- 3, including but not limited to streets and block
face.

Block faces are limited to 750' in length without an intersecting street or alley but may extend up
to 1, 000' where a pedestrian connection is provided as set forth in UDC 11- 6C- 3F. 3. City Council
may approve a block face up to 1, 200' in length where block design is constrained by certain site
conditions that include a large waterway or irrigation facility; block faces over 1, 200 feet require
a waiver from Council. A 90 degree turn in a roadway may constitute a break in the block face;
however, overall pedestrian and vehicular connectivity will be considered when evaluating the
appropriateness ofblock lengths greater than 750' in length— additional pedestrian and/or
roadway connections may be required.

The face of Block 3 exceeds 1, 200' and does not provide a pedestrian connection other than the
emergency access driveway which may serve as a pedestrian connection between the proposed
subdivision and Shafer View Estates to the south. The Applicant requests City Council
approval of the proposed block length due to existing site constraints that include the
following: 1) the narrow configuration of the subject property; 2) the location of the
McBirney Lateral, a large waterway/irrigation facility, that runs along the southern
boundary and through the western portion of the proposed subdivision; and 3) the existing
Shafer View subdivision that abuts the site to the south, south of the lateral, which does not

include any pedestrian pathways or stub streets to this property. If not approved, the plat
should be reconfigured to comply with this standard. An emergency access road for Fire
Dept. is proposed between the end of the cul- de- sac and E. Shafer View Rd. but it' s not a public
access.

The cul- de- sac length complies with UDC standards.

Access( UDC 11- 3A- 3)

Direct lot access is proposed via E. Shafer View Dr., an existing local street along the southern
boundary of the site, for the lots south of the McBirney Lateral; the lots north of the lateral will be
accessed via two( 2) accesses from E. Quartz Creek St., a planned collector street along the
northern boundary of the site. The UDC( 11- 3A- 3) restricts and limits access points to collector
streets where access to a local street is available. Local street access is not available to the

northern portion of the proposed development. Due to the configuration of the property, without
the easterly second access, the cul- de-sac would exceed the maximum length standard of 500'
allowed by the UDC( 11- 6C-3B.4). Therefore, Staff is supportive of the proposed accesses.

An emergency access for the Fire Dept. is proposed between the cul- de- sac and E. Shafer View
Drive. A public street connection is not proposed to E. Shafer View Dr. for several reasons,
including the following: 1) residents in Shafer View Estates were strongly opposed to the
connection; 2) modification to the McBirney Lateral would be necessary to design a public road
in that location and the lateral is under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) and
the process for modifications to their canal and an encroachment on their easement is very time
consuming( i.e. 12+/- months) with no guarantees of approval; 3) approval from Nampa- Kuna

Page 9

Page 171Page 235

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Irrigation District would also be needed has they have irrigation piping located in this area as
well; 4) a public road through that area would require a new pump system for the Shafer View
Estates irrigation system as the road would go through the existing pump system— moving the

pump system would also require moving/ modifying a large BOR irrigation pipe that feeds the
irrigation pump station; and 5) the cost of design and irrigation infrastructure work required to put
in a public road is estimated to be $ 100, 000. 00 to$ 150, 000. 00( see Applicant' s explanation for
more detail). For these reasons, Staff does not recommend a connection is provided.

Access to the R-2 zoned portion of the site is anticipated to be provided from the east as that
portion of the site is planned to develop with the Apex development to the east.

Direct lot access via S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and E. Quartz Creek St. is prohibited.

Parking( UDC 11- 3C):
Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 11-
3C- 6 for single- family detached dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit.

The proposed street sections accommodate on-street parking on both sides of the streets for guests
in addition to driveway parking spaces on each lot. Staff is of the opinion sufficient parking can
be provided for this development.

Pathways( UDC 11- 3A- 8):

A 10' wide detached multi-use pathway is proposed as required within the street buffer along S.
Meridian Rd./ SH-69 per UDC 11- 3H-4C.4 and the Pathways Master Plan. The pathway is
required to be placed in a 14- foot wide public use easement, which shall be submitted to the
Planning Division prior to submittal for City Engineer signature on the final plat( s) for
Phase 1. If the pathway will be located entirely within the right-of-way, a public pedestrian
easement is not needed.

Sidewalks( UDC 11- 3A- 1

Sidewalks are required to be provided adjacent to all streets as set forth in UDC 11- 3A- 17. Where
the multi-use pathway is required along S. Meridian Rd./SH- 69, the pathway may take the place
of the sidewalk. A combination of attached and detached sidewalks are proposed within the
development as depicted on the landscape plan.

Parkways ( UDC 11- 3A- 1   :

Eight- foot wide parkways are proposed along all internal public streets where detached sidewalks
are proposed. All parkways should be constructed in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-
3A- 17E.

Landscaping( UDC 11-3B):
A 35- foot wide street buffer is required adjacent to S. Meridian Rd./SH-69, an entryway corridor;
and a 20- foot wide street buffer is required adjacent to E. Quartz Creek St., a collector street, as
proposed. Landscaping is required to be installed within the buffer per the standards listed in
UDC 11- 3B- 7C, which require buffers to be planted with a mix of trees and shrubs, lawn, or other
vegetative groundcover. Street buffer landscaping is proposed in excess of UDC standards as
shown on the landscape plan in Section VII.C.

Common open space is required to be landscaped in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-

3G- 3E. At a minimum, one tree per 8, 000 square feet of common area is required to be provided
along with lawn or other vegetative groundcover. Landscaping is proposed in excess of UDC
standards as shown on the landscape plan in Section VII.C.

Landscaping is required adjacent to the pathway along S. Meridian Rd./SH-69 per the standards
in UDC 11- 3B- 12C. A 5' wide landscape strip is required on both sides of the pathway planted
with a mix of trees, shrubs, lawn and/ or other vegetative ground cover. The Landscape

Page 10

Page 172Page 236

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Requirements table should include the linear feet of pathway with the required vs. proposed
number of trees to demonstrate compliance with UDC standards.

Landscaping is required within parkways per the standards listed in UDC 11- 3A- 17 and 11- 3B-
7C. The Landscape Requirements table should include the linear feet of parkways within
the development with the required vs. proposed number of trees to demonstrate compliance
with UDC standards.

There are existing trees on this site at the fronts of Lots 1- 5, Block 6 along E. Shafer View Dr. If
any of these trees are proposed to be removed, mitigation may be required per the standards listed
in UDC 11- 313- 1OC. 5. Contact the City Arborist, Matt Perkins, prior to removing any trees from
the site to determine mitigation requirements.

Noise Mitigation ( UDC 11- 3H-4D):

Noise abatement is required for residential uses adjoining state highways as set forth in the
standards listed in UDC 11- 3H-4D.

A 4-foot tall berm with a 6- foot tall solid wall by Simtek is proposed along S. Meridian Rd. as
noise abatement as depicted on the detail on Sheet L1. 0 of the Landscape Plan. Architectural

elements are proposed to break up monotonous wall planes as required. A detail of the PFOPosed
wall that demonstrates eomplinnee with the standffds listed in UPC 11 3H 4D should be

submitted with the final plat foF the first phase of development-. Depicted on the revised
landscape plan.

Qualified Open Space( UDC 11- 3
A minimum of 10% qualified open space meeting the standards listed in UDC 11- 3G-313 is
required for developments over 5 acres in size. Based on the area of the plat, 39. 01 acres, a
minimum of 3. 90 acres of qualified open space is required.

A total of 5. 26 acres( or 18. 55%) of common open space is provided within the overall
development, 4. 05 acres( or 14. 27%) of which is qualified per the standards in UDC 11- 3G- 3B,
which exceeds UDC standards( see open space exhibit in Section VILD). Qualified open space
consists of half the street buffer along S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69, all of the street buffer along E.
Quartz Creek St., 8- foot wide parkways, linear open space, and open grassy areas of at least 50' x
100' in area. Lot 9, Block 3 does contain a pond but it does not encompass more than 25% of the

required open space area as required. The pond is required to have recirculated water and
should be maintained such that it doesn' t become a mosquito breeding ground as set forth
in UDC 11- 3G- 3B. 7.

Qualified Site Amenities( UDC 11- 3G1
A minimum of one( 1) qualified site amenity is required for developments over 5 acres in size
and up to 20 acres, with one( 1) additional amenity required for each additional 20 acres of
development area.

Based on a total of 39.01 acres of development area, a minimum of one( 1) qualified site amenity
is required. A multi-sport court, tot lot, gazebo shade structure and segment of the City' s multi-
use pathway system is proposed in excess of UDC standards.

Storm Drainage:

An adequate storm drainage system is required in all developments in accord with the City' s
adopted standards, specifications and ordinances. Design and construction is required to follow

Best Management Practices as adopted by the City. The Applicant submitted a Limited
Geotechnical Engineeringeport for the subdivision.

The preliminary plat depicts an existing private drainage facility and existing& proposed ACHD
drainage facilities and easements.

Page 11

Page 173Page 237

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Pressure Irrigation( UDC 11- 3A- 1   :

Underground pressurized irrigation water is required to be provided for each and every lot in the
subdivision as required in UDC 11- 3A- 15.

Utilities ( UDC 11- 3A- 21):

Utilities are required to be provided to the subdivision as required in UDC 11- 3A-21.

Waterways( UDC 11- 3A- 6):

The McBirney Lateral is a large open waterway that lies within a 41- foot wide easement along
the southern boundary of the site and through the western portion of the site. Another waterway
38' wide) exists on the eastern portion of the site between the proposed R-2 and R-4 zoned

property withinr€eelwide NN Pa-ad B m easement; the Applicant verified with the Boise
Project Board of Control that the waterway is not within an easement. This project is not within
the flood plain.

The UDC allows waterways such as this to remain open when used as a water amenity or linear
open space as defined in UC 11- 1A- 1; otherwise, they are required to be piped or otherwise
covered per UDC 11- 3A- 613. The decision- making body may waive this requirement if it finds
the public purpose requiring such will not be served and public safety can be preserved.

The Applicant is not proposing to improve the McBirney Lateral as a water amenity or
linear open space but is proposing to install a 6- foot tall wrought iron fence along the
waterway to deter access to the waterway and ensure public safety. The Applicant requests
approval of a waiver from Council to allow the waterway to remain open and not be piped.
The Applicant states the Boise Project Board of Control opposes any improvements within
their right-of-way. The other waterway should be piped or improved as a water amenity or
linear open space as required.

Fencing( UDC 11- 3A- 6 and 11- 3A- 7)•
All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11- 3A-6C for fencing along
waterways and the general fencing standards in 11- 3A-7.

A mix of 6- foot tall wrought iron and 6- foot tall solid vinyl fencing is proposed adjacent to
common areas; 6- foot tall wrought iron fencing is proposed along the McBirney Lateral. There
appears to be gaps in the fencing along the lateral on common lots that abut the waterway;
fencing should be included in these areas to prevent access to the waterway and to ensure
public safety.

Building Elevations( UDC 11- 3A- 19 I Architectural Standards Manual):
Conceptual building elevations have not yet been prepared for this development. However, the
Applicant did submit several sample photos of 2- story homes that will be similar to those
constructed in this development, included in Section VII.E. Single-family detached dwellings are
exemptfrom the design standards in the Architectural Standards Manual.

Because homes on lots that abut S. Meridian Rd. and E. Quartz Creek St. will be highly
visible, the rear and/ or side of structures on lots that face those streets should incorporate

articulation through changes in two or more of the following: modulation( e. g. projections,
recesses, step- backs, pop- outs), bays, banding, porches, balconies, material types, or other
integrated architectural elements to break up monotonous wall planes and roof lines that
are visible from the subject public street. Single-story structures are exemptfrom this
requirement.

Page 12

Page 174Page 238

Item #13.



Item# 9.

VI.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the requested annexation and preliminary plat with the conditions
noted in Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX.

B.  The Meridian Planning& Zoning Commission heard these items on February 4, 2021. At the
public hearing, the Commission moved to recommend approval of the subject AZ and PP
requests.

1.   Summary of Commission public hearing:
a.    In favor: Jon Breckon, Breckon Land Design(( Applicant' s Representative)

b.    In opposition: None

C.    Commenting: Marvin Ward, Gayle Ward
d.    Written testimony: Mary Wall, Breckon Land Design
e.    Staff presenting application: Sonya Allen
f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s)    testimony
a.    Concern pertaining to safety of access to Lots 2- 5, Block 6 accessed via Shafer View Dr.

with the configuration of E. Shafer View Dr. and change in grade in that area;
b.    Preference for 1- acre lots to be provided on the south side of the McBirney Lateral

consistent with adjacent existing 1- acre lots in Shafer View Estates.
c.     Applicant testified they are willing to add more landscaping at the entry to the

development near the S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and E. Shafer View Dr. intersection.

3.   Ke, ids)of discussion by Commission:
a.    In favor of the provision of additional landscaping at the entrance of the subdivision at

the intersection of S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and E. Shafer View Dr. as offered by the

Applicant;

b.    Possibility of reducing the number of homes in the area south of the McBirney Lateral
Lots 2- 6, Block 6) to enhance safety in that area;

C.    Concern pertaining to lack of comments from ITD;
d.    Would prefer a better transition in lot sizes to the south, specifically Lots 15- 17, Block 3

maybe lose a loth
e.    Discussion regarding the proposed amenities;
f.    Opinion that the style and size of the proposed homes should be compatible with

adjacent homes in Shafer View Estates.

4.   Commission change( s) to Staff recommendation:

a.    At Staff s request, include a condition for the 38' wide slough/ drain on the eastern

portion of the site to be contained entirely within a common lot( s) with fencing_required
on both sides of the drain consistent with the standards in UDC 11- 3A-7A.7b per UDC
11- 3A- 7A.7a;

b.    At Staff s request, include a condition requiring the common lot( s) containing the
slough/ drain to have vegetative groundcover to prevent fire hazard and unsightliness if
the waterway is piped; and,

C.    At Staff s request, modify condition# 9 to allow the option for the waterways on the site
to be improved as a water amenity as an alternative to being piped as allowed by UDC
11- 3A- 6C. 2 with submittal of construction drawings& relevant calculations prepared
by a qualified licensed professional registered in the State of Idaho that demonstrates
compliance with the requirements for water amenities as defined in UDC 11- IA- 1.

d.    Include a condition for the entrance to the subdivision at the intersection of S. Meridian

Rd./SH- 69 and Shafer View Dr. to be improved with additional landscaping as offered
by the Applicant;

Page 13

Page 175Page 239

Item #13.



Item# 9.

e.    Include a condition for one( 1) buildable lot to removed in the area of Lots 2- 5, Block 6

south of the McBirney Lateral.

5.  Outstanding issues for City Council:
a.     The Commission requested an ITD review of the project and comments prior to the

Council hearing; comments from ITD are included in Section VIII.N,
b.    The Applicant' s request for a waiver to UDC 11- 3A- 6 to allow the McBirney Lateral to

remain open and not be piped;
c.     The Applicant' s request for a waiver to UDC 11- 6C- 3F. 3b to exceed the maximum

block length allowed of 1, 200' as allowed by UDC 11- 6C- 3F.4; and,
d.    The Applicant' s request for a waiver to UDC 11- 3A-3 to allow two ( 2) accesses via the

collector street( E. Quartz Creek St.,) along the northern boundary of the site.

C.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on March 9", April 13t' and May 18t''- At the Public

hearing on May 18t'', Council moved to continue the subject AZ and PP requests to the June l'
hearing.

1.   Summary of the City Council Public hearing:

a.    In favor: Jon Breckon, Breckon Land Design( Applicant' s Representative)

b.    In opposition: None

c.    Commenting: Marvin Ward

d.    Written testimony: Charles Bovd and Deborah Bovd

e.    Staff presenting application: Sonya Allen

f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) of public testimony:

a.    Opposition to the lot sizes of the( 4) lots accessed via Shafer View Dr.; would like lot

sizes of at least 1- acre in size comparable with the 1 to 1. 24- acre lot sizes in Shafer

View Estates:

b.    Safety concerns pertaining to driveways so close to Meridian Rd. and the topography in
that area which creates poor visibility because of the immediate incline from Meridian
Rd.— requests the number of lots are reduced to 2 in that area to ensure no driveway_ s

are placed near the top of the hill.
3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:

a.    Council asked the Applicant if they were willing to pay their proportionate share for a

right- turn lane as recommended by ITD— the response was ves, they are. Council would

like more information from ITD in regard to when the turn lane would be constructed if

funds are allocated for the improvement; what are future plans for widening/ turn lanes

for this area, how much money needs to be collected for turn lane before it' s

constructed? Does ITD have any other means of collecting funds for these
improvements except through development.

b.    The safety of the access onto Shafer View from S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and additional

homes with driveways near the intersection conflicting with the topography in that area
incline from Meridian Rd.);

C.    The Applicant' s request for a waiver to exceed the City_ 's maximum block face

standards;

d.    The Applicant agreed to construct a right-turn lane if required by the City to ensure it' s

done in a timely manner rather than pay their proportionate share to ITD for the
improvement.

4.   City Council change( s) to Commission recommendation:
a.    Council continued this project to June 1st in order for Staff& the Applicant to work

with ITD on northbound right-turn lane on S. Meridian Rd. onto E. Quartz Creek St.

Page 14

Page 176Page 240

Item #13.



Item# 9.

immediate need vs. long-term). See right turn lane exhibit submitted by the Applicant
and conceptually approved by ITD in Section VIT F below.

b.    Council voted to include a DA provision requiring the developer to construct a

northbound right turn lane on S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 onto E. Quartz Creek St. prior to
issuance of the first building permit within the first phase of development in accord with
ITD standards.

C.    Council approved the requested waivers to UDC 11- 6C- 3F to allow Block 3 to exceed

1, 200 feet due to existing site constraints: to UDC 11- 3A- 6B to allow the McBirnev

lateral to remain open and not be piped due to Council' s finding that the public purpose

requiring such will not be served and public safety can be preserved: and to UDC 11-

3A- 3 to allow the two( 2) proposed accesses via E. Quartz Creek St., a collector street.

Page 15

Page 177Page 241

Item #13.



Item# 9.

VII.  EXHIBITS

A.  Annexation Legal Description& Exhibit Map

1 Ifs
1p

ACCURATE
SURPETINS t IIAPfINS A-

ftitPlo-

Annexation Land Destriptiorr

A parcel of land being a( portion of the north Half of the Southwest Ouarter of Section 311
Township 3 North, Range 1 East of the Boise M-eridian, Ada County, Idaho and all of Lot 4, Block
1 of Shpfer View EstMs Subdivision as reowrdetl in lBook 64 pf PIS#. at Pages 9403 and 9404,

Records of Ada Caunlp, said parcel is located in- the North Half of the Southwest Quarter of

Section 31, Tuwrislhip 3 North, Range 1 East of the Boise Merldiinan, uda County+. Idaho, being

more particularity de bed as folbws,

BE:GINN ING at the found aluminum cap man ument at the tartar- amer common to Section

31. T3N, RIE and Section 36. T3N, R1W as perpetuated bV document 103052690. Records of
Ada-- aunty, from which the fnu nd brass cap at the bcwnship Downer common to Township 3

North. Ranges 1 East and I West and Township 2 North, Ranges S East and 1 west as

perpetuated by document 20194) 15470, Records of Ada County hears 5 CC 05' 17" E a distance
of 2669. 99 feet;

Thence H 83' 57' 19" Ea long the mid- seEbon line for a diisitance of 2507- 75 feet to the
northeast{ Omer of said Lot 4;

Thence S OW 17' 00" W along the easterly line Qf swiW Lp# A for a dl5tanCe OF 1342-40 feeC

Thence along the wulhi! riy boundary of said Lot 4 th a following fi courses and d istances=

1-) N 99' 52' 35" W for a d4stanoe of 130A0 fee,

2-) N 23' 55' 33" W far a distance of 174- 53 feet;

3-) N 16' 35' 10' W fora distance of 254. 88 feet;

4.) N 14' 42' 14" W for a distarrce of 194. 52 feet;

5-) N 31' 29' 55" Vd for a distance of 113. 67 feet;

6-) N gy° 3X 47'° W fora distance of 147. 74 feet;

Th ence S 34' 28' 44" W for a dicta nce of ln43 feet to the mnterline- of E. Shafer mew Drive;

Thence N S5' 19 49" W along said cent-erline for a distance of IGD.09 feet;

Thence leaving said canteellne N 34' 41' 11" E for a distance of 10753 feet;

Thence alorig the sautherly boundaryofsaid Lot 4 the following 15 courses and distances;

1_) N 04' 09' 19" E for a distance of 90. 81 feet;

2,) N 26' 42' 26" W fora distance of 85. 32 feet;

3_) N 56' 39' 37" W fo4r a distance of 97. 95 Beet;

4_) N 75' 35' 35" W for a distance of 90- f!B feet;

r

1 B02 W. Hays St..:& ude 306- Erni9e, ID 83702• Phckw: 2054504- 227-

www.socuratt eunrnarc.amn

Page 16

Page 178Page 242

Item #13.



Item# 9.

4,

ACCURATE r

e

a

SURMEfl l6 3 Ii PPl 16

5_) N 86" 33' 28" VV for a distance of 135. 49 feet;

6_) 5 71' 44' 26" W for a distance of 111, 98 feet;

7_) S 60° 59' 28" W far a distance of 112. 30 feet;

N 76' 52' 47" W for a distance of 210. 54 feet;

9j 5 78' 31' 59" W for a distance of 45. 73 feet;
10_)    S 51` 53' 13" VV for a distance of 147, 64 feet;

11.)    5 65' 24' ST W for a distance of 258. 22 feet;

12.)    517' 39' 49" W for a distance of 98. 75 feet;

n_)    S 03' 59' SY E for a distance of 50, 00 feet;

a- 3$ fetm 3 longzhc arc of a 275. 00fout radIuscurve rlght h" nga central angle

of 18' 24' 12" and a long chord bearing N 84' 38' 15' W a distance of M_00 feet;
1S.)    5 28' 48' 47" HIV for a distance of 206-91 feet to th-e centerline of E. Shafer View

Drive;

Thence along said centerline the following 4 tourers and distances.,

1. 1 103. 63 feet along the are of a 500. 00 foot radius curve right having a central

angle of 91' 52' 2V and a long chord bearing N 47' 59' 54" VV For a distance of
103, 44 f eet;

2. N 42" 01' 36'' W for a distance of 107. 12 feet;

1.) 83. 86 feet along the arc of a 100, 00 foot radius curve left having a central angle

of 48" 02' 45" and a long chard beating N 86' 02' 56" W a distance of 91.42 feet;

44 5 89' 55' 39' W for a distance of 219_88 feet to the section line;

Thence N 00' 45' 17" W along the section line for a distance of 802_03 feet to the REAL P01NT
Of BEGINNING,

Parcel conta Ins 40. 463 acres, more or ie5s-

1602 W. Hays St., Suite 305 Boise_ ID 887W Phone; 20" 86422~7

www. arcuratesurweyars corn

Page 17

Page 179Page 243

Item #13.



Item# 9.

AIVIVEXA TIOIV MAP
PARCEL LYING 1N FHE N 112 OF ME SIN 114,

SEC 7701V 31,  T. 3N.,  R. 1 E.,  B. M.

36 3i
714 COR, CP&-

fNST. No. 103052a80 N 89' 57' 18" E 2507, 75'

M LOT 4 BLOCK 1

Cy N SHAFER VIEW ESTATES
ZQ 40Aa3t ACRES

co

rrt

L1

t
05 L14 L 7, 3

In
ti

1.       

172 11 SCALE:  1"= 300'

O

L6
ai z j

to fps a

k
L22

g L25 Ca C 1

NOTE., SEE SHEET 2 FdR

CC       

ONE AND CURVE TA& S L

a E.  SHAFER VIEW DRIVE 11463 m

L 1

LEGEND
ANNEX BOUNDARY

ACCURATESEC77QN LINELINE mT3N R1 W 38 3T T31V R2W a

FOUND 3

i

1/ 2" BRASS CAP A40AI1MENT
r S L! R V E Y I H 6 & M A P P 11. P

T2N RZ I W 1 8 r2N R2W r 7602 W. Hays Street# 306

FOUND 2" ALUMNUM CAP
y l t Boise, Idaho 83702

CP& F INST. No.    1A 208) 488- 4227

2019- 01,5470 CALCUL I TED POINT
q fR    %

www, accuratesurveyurs. mm

Y1
SHEET I OF 2 JOB 20- 227

Page 18

Page 180Page 244

Item #13.



Item# 9.

LINE TABLE

LJKE BEARif4G D15TANCE

L1 N 89' 52' 35 W 130. 4[]'

L2 N 23755' 33" W 170- 53'

L-S N t 5' 35' 10" lk 254_68'

L4 N 14' 41' 14" W 194- 52'

L-5       ' N 31' 29' 55" W 113. 67'

Lb N 89' 34' 347" w 147- 74'

L7 S 34` 8' 44" W 190. 43'

L8 N SY 118' 49" W 100_09'

1- 9 N 34741'} 1" E 107. 53'

L10 N 04' 00 19 E 90. 81I

i-11 N 26' 4-2' 26" W 65. 32'
L12 N 56730' 37" W 87. 95'

L13 N 75.33' 35" W 90. 66'

L1 d N 86' 33' 28" W 185. 49'

L15 S 71` 44' 26" W 113. 68'

L16 S 60' 59' 28" W 11  - aD'

1. 17 N 76752' 47" W 210- 54'

L113 8 78-31' 59- W 45- 73'

L 1 9 S 51'- 53' 13" W 147- 64'

L20 S 65'. 24' 50" W 258- 22'

L21 S 17`40' 26" W 98. 75'

L22 S 03' 59' 33" E 50- 00'

L23 S 28' 48 47 W 206. 97'

L24 N 42' 01 36 W 107. t 2'

L25 S 89-.55- 39" w 219, 88'

CUR VE TABLE
CURVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHDRD LENGTH

C 1 88. 35' 275. 00'      l T24 50 S a4730' 15 E MOO'

G2 103. 153'      500- 00'      11" 52' 2.8"  K 475974   .      103. E

C3 a3. 86' M-00'      40' 02' 45 IN 65' 02' 58 W      $ 1. 4

4.

ACCURATE
11463 2

un4Erl$ 6 NrYrau

s 602 w, klpyx# max 05

Idaho 33702

Piro      
wnw. accura esunre rarscorn

I f J.       I 1
SHEET 2 OF 2 JOB 20- 227

Page 19

Page 181Page 245

Item #13.



Item# 9.

R- 2 Legal Description:

krn
9233 WEST STATE STREET I BUSE, 11] 83714 1 208- 639. 6939 j FAX208. 639- 693C

January 6, 2020

Project No. 18-037

Legal Description

Portion of Lot 4, Block 1 of

Shafer View Estates

Exhlhit A

A psreel of land being a portion of Lot 4, Block 1 of 511hafor View Estates( Book 84 cf Plats, Pages 9403- 94O4,

records cf Ada County, I daho) which is situated in the North 112 of the Southwest 1/ 4 of SeCtipn 31rTorWnsfi ig
3 Murthr Range 1 East, goise fvteridlian, City of Meri{ i8n, Ada cou nty, Idaho, and being more particu larly
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a SIR- Inch rebar marking the Center of said Section 31( aiso being the northeast corner of said
Lot 4, Block 1), which bears N89° 57' 15" E a distance of 2, 507. 62 feet from an alurninum cap marking the West
1/ 4 Comer of said Section 31, t hence fo Ilowing t he easterly line of said North 112 of the Southwest 1/ 4,
540° 16' 52" W a distance of 1, 342. 44 feet( formerly 500' 15' 3WW a distance of 1/ 342. 81 feet to the southeast

corner of said N orth 112 of the 54uthw2st 1J4{ afro being the scut heart corner of said Lot 4, Stork 11;
Thence learning said easterly flee and fallow Mg the southerly I ine of Said Mort h 1/ 2 of the Soot hwest 114,
N 89' S2' 31" W a d lstanee Of 130. 43 feet to the scut heart corner of Lot 13, Block 1 of said Shafer View Estates;

Thence leaving said southerty II ne and foltowIng the boundary of Lot 4, Block 1 the fallowing courses:
1,  N23" 55' 33" w( formerly M2TW32" wl a distance of 170. 57 feet;
2,  N15' 35' 10" W( formerly M1e36' 09ffW4 a distance of 254. 88 feet;
3,  N14" 41' 01" W( formerly M14' 42' 00W a distance of 393.75feet;
4.  N31` 15' 14' W( formerly M31' 16' 13- WU a distance of 214. 54 feet to a found 1/ 2- inch rebar,

5-  N8g' 52' 31" W( formerly N89' 53' 30   ) a distance of 23. 81 feet to a polptontha northerly line of the
41-foot wide WEIrney Lateral easement;

Th ence leavIng the boundary of sa Id Lot 4, SIpCk 1 and following said northerly line the following courses:
1.  M77' 19' 36" E a distance of 75. 47 feet;
2_  N75' 37' 04" t a distance of 27. 30 feet to a point on t he cerytedi ne of the 38-foot wide drain ditch

easement shown on said Shafer Vlew Estates subdlvkslon plot;

Thence leaving said northerly Erie and following sald centertirle the fvll4win8 courses;
1.  N06° 2V52" W a distance of'- 51,79 feet;

2_  N17° 26' 2rW a distance of i-20,33 feet;

3.  1425° 5009" W a distance of 63. 96 feet;

4.  N31741' 30' W a dkstanoe of 99. 39 feet;

5.  N 50° 03' 15" W a distance of 94. 54 feet;

6_  NS5° 05' S9 W a distance of 124.96 feet;

7.  N 51°4e3.gW a distance of 99.63 feet;

S.  N 151" 3V51" W a distance of 33. 43 fleet;

9.  N 67" a5' 46" W a distance of 68. 04 feet to the northerly line of Salt[ Nortb 1/ 2 of the Southwest 1/ 4
also beingthe north" line cf said Lot 4, Block 1):

ENGINEERS I SURVEYORS I PLANNERS

Page 20

Page 182Page 246

Item #13.



Item# 9.

Tlrarnce lea wing said oe nterl ine and following so id northerly line, N89' 571rE a distance of 799. 30 feet to the
POINT OF BEG INN ENG.

Sold pa" contains 10." acres, more or less.

kL

r,Lt

1245
A

0F   

L_ 181. 116'

I •  b •   Dt

PAGE 2

Page 21

Page 183Page 247

Item #13.



Item# 9.

F
T89.30

Y

P P

1

i

S

a   '

ik

t

FY 3 ath a

T

M

3

JPSPJ] L

I] F/ p

Title;       bate; 01- 06- 2020

Scale: 1 inch= 200 feet File:

Trw l: 10. 661 Acres; 464381 Sq F  ; Gomm n63. 4107w 0.01 Feel: FYecision= U331449= P'eximew= 39458 Feet

001- s00. 1652w 1342. 44 M- n77. 1936e 75. 47 015- n55. 0559w 124. 96

002- n69. 5231w 130. 43 009- n75. 370416 2730 016wn53. 4638w 94. 63

003-- n23. 5533w 170. 57 410-- nO62852w 151. 79 01 G . 3$ 51 w 33. 43

04 16. 351 Ow 254_$,9 01 1= 172622w 120. 33 013zo67A54( 5w 0.04

005= n 14. 4 101 w 193. 75 012= n25. 5009w63- 86 q) I 9=nVJ, 715e789. 30

04( rt731. 1514w 1144. 54 013= 06.4130w 99. 39

CV- nS9. 523I w 23. 81 014= It5O. O3 I5w" 54

Page 22

Page 184Page 248

Item #13.



Item# 9.

ACCURATE
SO AVE I' IND I MAPP190

y

fRY1GE

R4 Rezone Land Description

A parcel of land being a portion of Lot 4, Block 1 of Shafer View Estates Subdivl sic n as recorded
in Book 64 of Plats at Pages 9403 and 9404, Records of Ada County, said parcel is located in the

North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 31, Township 3 North, Range 1 East of the Boise

Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, being more particularly described as follows.

BEGINNING at the found aluminum cajo rn on u ment at the C[,; arter Corner commontoSection

31, T31NI, R1E and SQrtien 36, T3N, R1W as{ perpetuated by document 103C52680, Records of

Ada County, from which the found brass cap at the township corner common to Township 3
North, Ranges 1 East and 1 West, arrd Township 2 North, Ranges 1 Cast and 1 West as

perpetuated by document 2019- 015470, Records of Ada County bears S 00' 05' 17' E d distance
of 2669. 99 feet;

Thence N 89' 57' 18" E alongthe mid- sect I on line for a distance of 1718. 45 feet to a set

inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 67' 05' 19" E for a distance of 68. 04 feet to a set 5/ 8th inch iron pin with a cap

stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 61' 36' 51" E for a distance of 33. 43 feet to a set 5/& Dneh iron pin with a tap

stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 51' 46' 38" E for a distance of 99. 63 feet to a set 5181 inch iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 11463;

Thence 5 55' 05' 59" E for a distance of 124. 96 feet to a set 5f 8th inch iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 50' 03' 15" E for a distance of 84. 54 feet. to a set 5/ 81h inch iron pin with a cap

stamped PIS 11463;

Thence S 36' 41' 30" E for a distance of 99. 39 feet to a set S/ Mh inch iruri pin witlk a cap

stamped PLS 11463;

Thence 5 25` 54' 09' E for a distance of 53. 86 feet to a set 5/ Vb inch iron pin with a cap
51amped PLS 11463;

Thence S 17' 26' 22" E fora distance of 120. 33 feet to a set 5/ 8t" inch iron pin with a cap

stamped PLS 11463;

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)

I

IW2 W. Haya St_, Suite 305• Donee, ID 83702 • Phone: 208- 488- 4227

www.accuratesurveyars_cam

Page 23

Page 185Page 249

Item #13.



Item# 9.

A rtr

ACCURATE
SURVEYING II: MA9fING

Thence 5OF 28' 52" E for a distance of 151. 79 feet to a set 5/ 81° inch iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 75' 37' W W for a distance of 2730 feet to a set 5J81h inch iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 114,53;

Thence 5 77* 19' 36" W for a distance of 75. 47 feet to a set 5/ 811 inch iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 11463;

Thence N 99' 38' 35" W for a distance of 224. 09 feet to a found 7: inch iron pin, replaced with a

Set 518tn inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 34' 28' 44" W for a distance of 190, 43 feet to the centerline of E- Shafer View Drive;

stamped PLS 11463;

Thence N 55' 18' 49" W along said centerline fora distance of 100. 09 feet,-

Thence N 34' 41' 11" IF for a distance of 107. 53 feet to a set 5/ 81" inch Iron pin with a cap
stamped PLS 11463;

Thence N 04' O9' 19" E for a di9anre of 90-81 feet to a found M inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 5/ Slh inch iron pin with a rap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence N 26' 42' 26" W for a distance of 85. 32 feet to a found' A inch Iran pin, replaced with a
set 5f8th inch iron pin with a rap stamped PI- S 11463;

Thence N 56' 39' 37 W for a distance of$ 7. 95 feet to a found'  inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 5/ 8tn inch iron pin with a tap stamped PLS 1141523;

Theme N 75' 35' 35" W far a distance of 90.88 feet to a found ) S Inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 5fg`h inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence N 86" 33' 28" W for a distance of 185- 49 feet to a founcl inch iron gin, repiacEd with a

set SlVh inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence S 71' 4-' 26" W for a distance of 113. 88 feet to a fou nd' A inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 5f81" inch iron pitt with a cap stamped RLS 11463;

Thence 5 6D' 59' 28' W for a distance of 112. 30 feet to a set 5/ 8" inch iron pick with a cap

stamped PLS 11463;

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)

1002 VV. Hays St.- Suite 305• Boise. ID 53702 • Phone: 206-488- 4227

www. occk1 ratesu rveyors.cum

Page 24

Page 186Page 250

Item #13.



Item# 9.

ACCURATE 4
SDRVEYIN8 $ MAPPINe s

f PY1C

T# ence N 76' 52' 47" bit for a distance of 210. 54 feet to a found A inch iron pin, replaced with a

set S/ Mh inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463)-

Thence S 78` 31' 59" VV for a distance of 45. 73 feetto a found 14 inch iron pin, replaced with a
set 5/ 8" n inch iron pin with a cap starnped PLS 11463;

Thence 5 5V 53' 13" W for a distance of 147. 64 feet to a found YS inchr iron pin, replaced with a

set 5/ 8' h inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence 5 65° 24' 5V W for a distan: e of 258. 22 feet to a found% inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 518t1 inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463:

Thence 517' 39' W W for a distance of 99.75 feet to a found A Inch Iron pin, replaced with a

set 5/ 81h inch iron pin with a cap stamped PL5114G3,

Thence 503' 5V 33' E for a distance of 50. 00feet to a found inch iron pin, replaced with a

set 51V inch iron pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence 88. 39 feet along the arc of a 275. 00 foot radius curve right having a central angle of 18'
24' 12" and a long chord bearing N 94' 38' 15" W a distance of 88. 00 feet to a set 5/ 81' inch iron

pin with a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence 5 78° 48' 47" W for a distance of 206991 feet tothe centerline of E. Shafer View Drive;

Thence along said centerline 103. 63 feet along the arc of a 500.00 foot radius curve right having
a central angle of 11" 52' 2V and a long chord bearing N 47' 59' 54" W for a distance of 103. 44
feet;

Thence continuing N 42" 01' 36" W for a distance of 107. 12 feet to a set 5/ 9" inch iron pin with

a cap stamped PLS 11463;

Thence contlnuIng83. 36 feet along the arc of a 100, 00foot radius curve left having a central

angle of 48' 02' 45' and a long chord bearing N 66' 02' Se W a distance of 3 1. 42 feet;

Thence 5 89` 55' 39" W for; disown i2 of 2 19. 98 feet to the centerline of S. Meridian ( toad

State Highway 69);

Thence N 00' 0S' 17' W along said centerline for a distance
of 802. 03 feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING.

Parcel con#ain5 29. 822 acres, more or less. fT 114
1- 45- 74  '

3

1$ o2 W. Hays St., Suite 306 - Boise, Id 83702 • Phone: 208-488- 4227 -

www. accuratesurveyors. com

Page 25

Page 187Page 251

Item #13.



Item# 9.

R4 REZO1VE MAP

PARCEL LYING IN THE N 112 OF THE SW 1A
SECTION 31,  T. 3N., R. 1E., B.M.

OP& F INST. No.

114 COR. CP& F
100070D

36 3l INS No. 103052660 N 89' 57' 18" E 1778. 45' S_89' 57' 18" IN Pt5 4398

M LOT 4 BLOCK i
2

CA
SHAFER VIEWESTATEScliCy

Cp oar 29.822E ACRES
s

L24
421 L20

fg r

h L2J  Z 7&

o
SCALE: 1"= 300' r

Q o rl6

01
co

U t N
NOTE: SEE SHEET 2 FOR

r

L12
L10

N N
LINE ANO CURVE TA64ES

w L28
1 v

A o^    L31 C3 C
7

g

N C AryO
wma '

E.  SHAFER VIEW DRIVE L 1146 3
s 1  . 21
f9 RLEGEND

BOUNDARY LqN. D G

SECTION LINE

FOUND 3 1/ 2" BRASS CAP MONUMENT t I rr

bf , ACCURATE
T3N R7W 36 31 T3N R2W

JR FOUND 2" ALUMINUM CAP m

SURVEYING $ MAPPING

306T2N RP W_ 1 T2N
FOUND 1/ 2" IRON PIN, REMOVED d

6 R2W AND REPLACED NTH 5/ 8" IRON AN,  
1602 Mays Street

P" ALLIUNUM CAP, PLS 11463
ti Bomise, Idaho 202

CP& F INST Na 2087 488. 4227

2019- 015470 O SET 518" IRON PIN 2" ALUM. CAP, PLS 1 f463    , P E
wmv. accuratewrveyors. com

CALCULATED POINT
ER Y 1 C

SHEET 1 OF 2 JOB 20- 227

Page 26

Page 188Page 252

Item #13.



Item# 9.

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE

L i S 67` 05' 19" E 68. 04'

L-2 S 61' 36' 51" E 33. 43'

L3 S 51' 46' 38" E 99- 63'

1_ 4 S 55' 05' 59" E 124. 96'

L5 5 5G"03' 15" E 84.54'

L6 S 36' 41' 30" E 99- 39'

L 7 S 25' 50 09" E 63. 86'

L8 S 17' 26' 22" E 120. 33'

L9 5 06' 28' 52" E 151. 79'

L10 S 7535' 46"

L 1 i S 77 19' 36" W 75. 47

L 12 N 89' 38' 36" W 124. 09'

L 13 S 34' 28' 44" W 190. 43'

N,  55' 18' 49" W 100- 09

L 15 N 34741 11 E 107. 53'

L16 N 04' 09' 19" E 9a. 51'

L17 N 26' 42' 26" W 85. 32'

L I S N W39' 37" W 87- 95'

L19 N 75' 35' 35" W 90.88'

L20 N BV33' 28" W 1 MAT

L21 S 71' 44 26 W 1 13- 88'

L22 S W59' 8" W 112- 30'

L23 N 76 52' 47" W 210. 54'

L24 S 78' 31' 59" W 45. 73'

L25 S 51' 53' 13" W 147- 64'

L26 S 6524' 5{ 1" 1W 258. 22'

L27 S 1739' 49" W 98. 75'

L28 S 03' 58' 33"  E 55.00

L29 5 28' 48' 47 W 206. 91

L30 N 42' 01' 36" W 1 D7. 12'

L31 S 89' 55' 39" W 219- 88'

CURVE TABLE

GLJRVE ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

c 1 8& 36'       275. 00'     1 T24' 50" S 84' 38' 15" £      98. 04'

C2 103. 63'      SOD. 00 11' 52 2B N 47' 59' 54"  W 103- 44`

C3 83. 86' 100, 00'     48' 02` 45" 8 56' 02' 58"  E 91- 4Z'

L Ar,

ACCURATE
1146,3 16p7 W. says Skreet 06

1 Or.% P Boise. Idaho 93702

4 P 14L t4$)488, 422?

It
xrnw a€ rura" urweyors€ om

5HEET 2 OF. 2 109 2W

Page 27

Page 189Page 253

Item #13.



Item# 9.

B.  Preliminary Plat& Phasing Plan ( date: 11/ i 20 3/ 9/ 2021)

PLAT LEGEND CONTACTSrtv
FOR

CO\- RUCCTIION i

TYPICAL 417 R.O.W. ROAD SECTION

i

F-'- t—•    r_     t-'- 1

o•.•, R,•     

NOTES

T I ICINITY MAP R 3
w-. . o i

rT"1- 1
0     

I

co

X\       DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION co O a

i

8

r FE

wLu
MMER

3 w

lu

co

PRELIMINARY PLAT PP1. 0

ITI I IT T1 I I I 61AN
Ph4L9E 1

PHASE 2

I 

S

PHASING

MAPPage 28

Page 190Page 254

Item #13.



Item# 9.

C.  Landscape Plan( date: 5^ 7 0 2Y2M 3/ 9/ 2021)

7, 17
I

m a

o,

SHAFER VIEW TERRACE

MERIDIAN, IDAHO Y

Page 29

Page 191Page 255

Item #13.



Item# 9.

I

r'  PROJECT INFORMATION      •, n

iCITY OF MERIDIAN

1~(  \  1       _ LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

Z=%

w a o
22 Er

to

ERALLLANO

LANDSCAPE NOTES

rc

e
e. w." mv......,... w....,

m. e 4

t.       .

BERM ADJACENTTO MERIDIAN ROAD2
t M

I lie

uj

Luz

NO4BLOCKS ROCK a,    ¢
d W

20 19 Zyj0

w> o g
D. APE E

WL
LANDSCAPE LEGEND CALLOUf LEGEND w.;,: m` 2

r

Page 30

Page 192Page 256

Item #13.



Item# 9.

wrcixi. esc¢ 

i  :

mac

71'   flf OCK L S ifi iI i

I

z a

lam 3> z

It aII 5
LU

wi¢ wa
r RF AREA PREPARATIDNaNQTES.

w

MCI
j LANDSCAPE LEGEND CALLOUT LEGENDNt

anrre

ru—re.. l,w. r. wi. rn,

x.

r. i..     

n uii`•iwnwwrizrs mxeem inwn. ie. e wnA warmam
yy

cc

i

S T

w

H

i Luy cc
81zw

i
ND PEP IN- AREA THREE

I

a y- aWEED ABATEMENT NCTES`    cr(

U<

p LAND9CAPE LEGEND CALLCU4 LEGEND

4WF

Page 31

Page 193Page 257

Item #13.



Item# 9.

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

e T30 m

IafI
1.. 1

640CK3 a:;_'•      
Q' ' lif: iR" L"•,' yiC P.: s:. Q

12 w A

14

15 5 max....-.,:.......,..    O p m W

T---      I W
LLZLL

LU

ffA FOUR

1T PLANTER REpCl1T EDGE Z
eWRCUGHT IRON FENCE L1¢

946".Z.T$ ES1i  
r

F_   __   _    __

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

a. m

0N

e lt 1' 1 it

17 cALLDLIr LEGEND

LLI

12

3 f Z

1}
n wa¢ W

ud xo
LLJ

moff—
TOPSOIL NOTES

PIT

MAP 
L 5

Page 32

Page 194Page 258

Item #13.



Item# 9.

LANDSCAPE

LEGEND130
gum

Y

1

CALLOLIT LEGEND
91 a

o n,

4 to

Z o :

MC Q

six

T- -
r

W    '

y V axmaemwiiercnwwen." cA. aees

1

1 VINYLWFENGE PANEL

2
L1. 6

wmsm ii—__—__—__—__—__ LANDSCAPE LEGEND GALLDLfT

LEGENDED

zW

N Wy

p  ¢ w

5;, r

w LZ

X

CL

WLLJ

z

F I L4NOSCA pRp
SEVEN

a

rA1K

Y

Ll7
9

Page 33

Page 195Page 259

Item #13.



Item# 9.

STORMWATER POND REVEGFTAT! ON REQUIREMENTS

mazamLm

I fill

ep

4.,     ""'°   

ta^'•^ °' '^•   •. „•     

w   "',•,
e,,,,,,,., o

BOl1LDER INSTALLATION       . 3 DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING O¢  
a

SIT"'"'". `      _    _.  .,...- ....,
e_._,s.«_ Z W 2 m

mw

A and: W W 3
t

w.. a,    ..

K., w.,.:.,,..«„ a«,.  
TREE MITIGATION:.

n,.,„  

y a^^      e  _    

r. r.,, µr_...., 

T F..,       - mom.'

N DETAIL,2..

a

MwCONIFEROUS TREE PLANTIpN, G

L1. 8

Page 34

Page 196Page 260

Item #13.



Item# 9.

SIM TE{ FENCE

133C WEST 400 NORTH

ORE M. UT B4057

TOLL FREE: 1466- 64" MSim-    Tek" PHONE:( 841} 655- 6236

FENCE FAX:( 2O1) 8%- W40

wi w, slmt@Mrx g, wcn

PAST rIENTERS

SANE STONE PATTE-. d:A--

slcE

J=
LiI I
W

ISC%ETRICb1EN'

r I o

I
L         

AWNDUrYEL 4 1

tKILINDLEVEL7Q26'

S- I- FENER LENGTH

POST
1HjI. S' 1EGLI. GEGALVANI

STEEL

SilFFENERASTMASII00
u

a

10'• 12'

Gv5
NOLEDMETER

NCRC- rOCTING CIAVETER 11Y TO 12• IL9N,

l4= 7C'_ 2 CCEP1%. IVACCCFMANCEsN -

CV1 CQ4DITIQW.- CODR. Aft€ TJOVARC

r,, A.- 5* riLINEAR LCi4CENSITYPULYETHYLENE KlILDW PRACTICES

PUZTIC: L aE].     
ELEVATICNVIEIN

ACTU. 1- PANEL DIMENSIONS: 72• N a89, 76M

PkfLMIGHT 5& LOP

TOLERANCES ARE f.V

lull&
1. L2 aATENTS 7, 47E, 7971T.MllW FCREIGN' ATENTS PENCIMC,

2. INSTALLATION TOEEMAPIETED11ACCORCA% ICC MA4.- ACTURER' SSPECIFICATIM.
3. ALL CIMEN€ KMARE CMIDERED TRUE ANDtC-FLE7 LUNUFACTVRER' S SPEGF1CAIKIN€,

4. DO NOT SCALE DR4WM.

S, OONTFLKTOR9 NOTE, PORIMOVCTAND COMPANY NFORMATION VISIT www,Cp.DwaIhoowKn

REFERENCE NUMBERASR24n7,

IMTEK FENCE

MOD LHOW124r 10EMgM L5 HXE! W

A] i- 0O REVISION DATE M& NW2014

Page 35

Page 197Page 261

Item #13.



Item# 9.

D.  Open Space Exhibit( dated: ' 7% 0 3/ 9/ 21)

CITY OF MERIDIAN OPEN

SPACE REQUIREMENTS X
COMMON OPEN SPACE

As DEFINED BY 7HE 1- VIAX Rrbulsr>'a 2E2

IAX. II° J C,00E REiiiIIIYEMEHiS f5m 6 1 Ml[ O 2WJ 4( E83 AG)
apfiq 79l3As

QUALIFIED OPEN SPACE

A5 DE* IIM BY 7HE MMUTAH BF72
VLC. II l6- S GOGE i QUIREMEHTS I' J,SA{. 84 AC.1 IY476Y f4A5 AC.1

ID%    14. 27%

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

QoLlf- im OFM srh=

QUARTZ CREEK ST.

AREA-- 46, 181) SQ. FT-       

I== _
e. sE7 so. Ff. AR7A= E. 9a3 Ga. F-. -

1      ' J,     I  - F  . Lil LLL
I V

4. 593 SO. FT.   AREA-- MAGI) SQ. F-

J.,
LL AREA= 60, 655 SYl FT-

D

crw

SHAFER VIEW NORTH PROJECT 20021

MERIDIAN, IDAHO
OPEN SPACE EXHIBIT X1,0

Page 36

Page 198Page 262

Item #13.



E.  Conceptual Building Elevations

Page 37

ate•."      

w

f

Page 263

Item #13.



Item# 9.

F.  Right- Turn Lane Exhibit

r

OHP HP OR

E CUM" CREEK aT.

E

IIII IIII
IIIIIIII  so

is  _

m
I II II  — sp so

I     
IIIIII I

sp s       I
exlsnnc 60` R. e. w.      I I I I II I C I

I= IaoPosEo" ar 12. o.w: '' 
I I I I

II I
sp i, 8

52       , s II

Isl I I I I I
11 ,. IIII     `

IIIIJIII
ILI

3' 13' 1Hill0' 14'
10

m

e W W
31      -     IIII .': IIII III

III

III

ExI5TIN6 Eo. E of ASPHALT --

III III
PROPOSEP EP E 0 ASPHALT III+ 1

PROP05FP 50R7z9W PITCH

PROPOa€ P R. O. N. PEPIGATION...•. i IIII^ Armcl• 46DT 5F

CONCRETE TiIPE} YN. K.._..

PROP05FI? ear+

IIII IIII a
IIIIIIIII

IIII IIII

P. ! fl lfl w

I1 Jfl I pd
11!   

72

f !       Ar  : 445611

IIIIII I
I1lplllM

m

I I;
I I I I

IIIIIIII
i J ;` r

IIII reo a sP

6
g       

1 fffrzlll
s: r=ao•-0•

SHAFER VIEW TERRACE SUBDIVISION
922&2'

S_.._ 

MERIDIAN, ID
RIGHT TURN LANE

Page 38

Page 200Page 264

Item #13.



Item# 9.

VIII.  CITY/ AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS

A.  PLANNING DIVISION

1.   A Development Agreement( DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property.
Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of
Meridian and the property owner( s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption.

Currently, a fee of$303. 00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the
Planning Division within six( 6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA
shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions:

a.   Development of the subject property shall be generally consistent with the preliminary
plat, phasing plan, landscape plan and conceptual building elevations.

b.   A 10- foot wide multi-use pathway is required to be constructed along S. Meridian
Rd./ SH-69 in a public use easement in accord with UDC 11- 3H-4C.4.

c.   Noise abatement is required to be provided within the street buffer along S. Meridian
Rd./ SH- 69 in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11- 3H- 4D.

d.   A final plat shall be recorded that includes Lot 1, Block 7 prior to any development
occurring on the property.

e.   The developer shall construct a northbound right-turn lane on S. Meridian Rd./SH- 69

onto E. Quartz Creek St. prior to issuance of the first building permit in the first phase of
development in accord with ITD standards.

2.   Development of the subject preliminary plat shall be consistent with the phasing plan
included in Section VII. B.

3.   The final plat shall include the following revisions:

a.   Include a note prohibiting direct lot access via S. Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and E. Quartz
Creek St.

b.   the

shall be revised to eemply with these standards unless ether-wise approved by-Gil,
Geuneil., 4 waiver; s requested was approved by Council to exceed the maximum

blockface allowed of 1, 200feet to allow the blockface as proposed.

eepupen let( s). Depicted on revised plat.

d.   Remove one( 1) L.,,; 1, 1able lot i the.    aio  o f Lots 2 C T21eek 6 south. f theLQCTITL1Zli ZG'iiSG'y^ V1T]OTTZ 7' iVG1iV' 7 TCG1ZVrGIZ+ PIriDllTir+

r

Depicted on revised plat.

4. The landscape plan included in Section VII.0 shall be revised as

follows: o

a.

inelude r-e" ir-ed vs. pfevided   .. ber-  ft fees. Done

b.   Inelude 6 feet tall wr-eu& ir-on feneing on eemmen lots th4 abut the MeBifaey Lmer-al
Done

Page 39

Page 201Page 265

Item #13.



Item# 9.

c. laelude a detail of the befm and wall r-equir-ed for-noise abatement along S. Mer-idian
Rd.,IS14 69 that demo liance with the standafds listed in UDC 11 3 H 4 D.

Done

d.

P&44n:q, prior to removing any, treesftoni the i9ke t-e determine mitigagen ivquirements.
Done

Done

the eemmen let( s) eentainifte the dr-ain to prevent fire hazard md t+nsiW4414ess. Done

g.   Depict additional landscaping at the entrance to the subdivision at the intersection of S.
Meridian Rd./ SH- 69 and Shafer View Dr. as offered by the Applicant.

Il: iCG'IIIV41a12e ( 1)' 77Li2QnDZe lot 12r' the iZGTI2iL'_y^' PrLots L-7,   IQGISV south o the 2Y2riD11TiC4

Done

5.   A 14- foot wide public use easement shall be submitted to the Planning Division for the multi-
use pathway along S. Meridian Rd./ SH-69 prior to submittal of the Phase 1 final plat for City
Engineer signature. If the pathway is located within the right-of-way, a public use easement is
not required.

6.   Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in

UDC Tables 11- 2A- 4 for the R-2 zoning district and 11- 2A- 5 for the R-4 zoning district..

7.   Off-street parking is required to be provided for all residential units in accord with the
standards listed in UDC Table 11- 3C- 6 based on the number of bedrooms per unit.

8.   The rear and/ or sides of structures on lots that abut S. Meridian Rd. and E. Quartz Creek St.
shall incorporate articulation through changes in two or more of the following: modulation
e. g. projections, recesses, step- backs, pop- outs), bays, banding, porches, balconies, material

types, or other integrated architectural elements to break up monotonous wall planes and roof
lines that are visible from the subject public street. Single- story structures are exempt from
this requirement.

9.   All water-ways on this site shall be piped unless ethefwise waived by City Getmeil as set fe
T•'  Tzar-vDG 11 3A 6B. As anaitemc' ltiye the, , ate f. a-y y be loft open; f iffl,,.,-,.ye  .,  a  , atef

a-menit y as defi ie i UPC 1 1 1 A 1 ( s also UPC 1 1•4 A G \n-- r e r, n - ZT The Applicant requests a

waiverfrom City Council to allow the McBirney Lateral to remain open and not be piped}
which was approved by City Council.

10. The pond is required to have recirculated water and shall be maintained such that it doesn' t
become a mosquito breeding ground as set forth in UDC 11- 3G-3B. 7.

IX.  PUBLIC WORKS

1.   Site Specific Conditions of Approval

1. 1 The angle of sanitary sewer pipe going into and out of manholes needs to be minimum of
90- degrees.

1. 2 All sanitary sewer manholes require a 14- foot wide access path that meets City
requirements.

Page 40

Page 202Page 266

Item #13.



Item# 9.

1. 3 Sanitary sewer manholes should not be located in curb and gutter.

1. 4 Add an 8- inch water mainline in Crystal Creek Way, and stub to the north for future
connection.

1. 5 The water mainline needs to be 12- inch diameter in Prevail Way, portion of Terrace
Ridge Dr, portion of Terrace Ridge Circle and south out to E Shafer View Rd.

1. 6 A street light plan will need to be included in the final plat application. Street light plan
requirements are listed in section 6 of the City' s Design Standards. A future installation
agreement and funds are required for the required streetlights on S. Meridian Road

pursuant to Section 6- 4 B. of the Meridian Design Standards.

1. 7 The geotechnical investigative report for this development, prepared by Materials Testing
Inspection, dated 02/ 10/ 2020, does not indicate a specific concern with regard to

groundwater. Applicant shall be responsible for the adherence to the recommendation
presented in this report.

2. General Conditions of Approval

2. 1 Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains
adjacent to the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this

subdivision; applicant shall coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works
Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to
provide service. Minimum cover over sewer mains is three feet, if cover from top of pipe
to sub- grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall be used in conformance of
City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard Specifications.

2. 2 Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the
development. The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this

development, coordinate main size and routing with Public Works.

2. 3 All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to
occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a
performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on
the final plat as set forth in UDC 11- 5C- 3B.

2. 4 Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff,
the applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11- 313-
14A.

2. 5 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete

fencing, landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat.

2. 6 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in
the amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water

infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The applicant shall be required to enter into a
Development Surety Agreement with the City ofMeridian. The surety can be posted in the
form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an

application for surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department
website. Please contact Land Development Service for more information at 887- 2211.

2. 7 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the
amount of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water

infrastructure for a duration of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item
final cost invoicing provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form

Page 41

Page 203Page 267

Item #13.



Item# 9.

of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application

for surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department website.
Please contact Land Development Service for more information at 887- 2211.

2. 8 In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non- life, non-safety and non-
health improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to
occupancy, a surety agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11- 5C- 3C.

2. 9 Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review,  and

construction inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the
issuance of a plan approval letter.

2. 10 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply
with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act.

2. 11 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404
Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers.

2. 12 Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office.

2. 13 All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11- 1- 4B.

2. 14 Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all
building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material.

2. 15 The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a
minimum of 3- feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to
ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1- foot above.

2. 16 The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/ or

drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation
district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have
been installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be
required before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.

2. 17 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record
drawings per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be
received and approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any
structures within the project.

2. 18 Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6- 7 of the Improvement Standards for
Street Lighting  ( http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).    All street

lights shall be installed at developer' s expense. Final design shall be submitted as part of
the development plan set for approval, which must include the location of any existing
street lights. The contractor' s work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City
of Meridian Supplemental Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian
Transportation and Utility Coordinator at 898- 5500 for information on the locations of
existing street lighting.

2. 19 The applicant shall provide easement( s) for all public water/ sewer mains outside of public
right of way ( include all water services and hydrants). The easement widths shall be 20-

feet wide for a single utility, or 30- feet wide for two. The easements shall not be dedicated
via the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian' s
standard forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference
purposes. Submit an executed easement( on the form available from Public Works), a legal
description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must
include the area of the easement ( marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/ 2" x I I" map with

Page 42

Page 204Page 268

Item #13.



Item# 9.

bearings and distances ( marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed,

signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD. Add a note to the
plat referencing this document. All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved
prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer.

2. 20 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting
that may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency.

2. 21 Any existing domestic well system within this project shall be removed from domestic
service per City Ordinance Section 9- 1- 4 and 9 4 8 contact the City of Meridian Water
Department at( 208) 888- 5242 for inspections of disconnection of services. Wells may be
used for non- domestic purposes such as landscape irrigation if approved by Idaho
Department of Water Resources.

2. 22 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City
Ordinance Section 9- 1- 4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for

abandonment procedures and inspections.

2. 23 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-
round source of water ( MCC 9- 1- 28. C. 1). The applicant should be required to use any
existing surface or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not
available, a single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a
single- point connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of
assessments for the common areas prior to development plan approval.

2. 24 All irrigation ditches,  canals,  laterals,  or drains,  exclusive of natural waterways,

intersecting, crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall
be addressed per UDC 11- 3A- 6. In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with
Idaho Code 42- 1207 and any other applicable law or regulation.

C.  FIRE DEPARTMENT

https:// weblink. meridiancity. orglWebLink/ DocView. aspx?id= 219456& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
hty

D.  POLICE DEPARTMENT

https: llweblink.meridiancity.orglWebLinkIDocView. aspx? id=220250& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC

Lu

E.  PARK' S DEPARTMENT

https: llweblink.meridianciU.orglWebLink/DocView.aspx?id=222017& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
ity

F.  COMMUNITY PLANNING ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHWEST IDAHO( COMPASS)

https: llweblink. meridianciU. org/ WebLink/ DocView. aspx? id=220261& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
iv

G.  CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT

https: llweblink.meridianciU.orglWebLink/DocView.aspx?id=220014& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
iv

H.  DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY( DEQ)

Page 43

Page 205Page 269

Item #13.



Item# 9.

https:// weblink. meridiancity. ory WWebLink/ DocView. aspx? id= 220034& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
hty

I.   WEST ADA SCHOOL DISTRICT( WASD)

https:// weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLinkIDocView.aspx?id=220564& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
ky

J.   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCHOOL IMPACT ANALYSIS

https:// weblink. meridianciiy. org/ WebLink/ Doc View. aspx? id= 221041& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC

ky

K.  BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL

https:// weblink. meridianci( E. ofg WWebLinkIDocView. aspx? id= 219526& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
iv

L.  ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

https:// weblink.meridianci( E. org/ WebLinkIDocView. aspx? id=219424& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
iv

M. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT( ACHD)

https:// weblink.meridiancity. org/ WeUink/DocView. aspx? id=222031& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC

Lu

N.  IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT( ITD)

https:// weblink. meridiancity. org/ WeUink/ DocView. aspx? id= 222250& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianC
itE

X.  FINDINGS

A.  Annexation and/ or Rezone( UDC 11- 5B- 3E)

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full

investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an
annexation and/ or rezone, the council shall make the following findings:

1.   The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan;

The City Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment to R- 2 and R- 4 and subsequent
development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

2.   The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,
specifically the purpose statement;

The City Council finds the proposed map amendment will allowfor the development of
single-family detached homes which will contribute to the range ofhousing opportunities
available within the City consistent with the purpose statement of the residential districts.

3.   The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and
welfare;

The City Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the

public health, safety and welfare.

Page 44

Page 206Page 270

Item #13.



Item# 9.

4.   The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by
any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited
to, school districts; and

The City Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment will not result in an adverse
impact on the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services
within the City.

5.   The annexation( as applicable) is in the best interest of city.

The City Council finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the City.

B.  In consideration of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or short plat,
the decision- making body shall make the following findings:

1.   The plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan;

The City Council finds that the proposed plat is in substantial compliance with the adopted
Comprehensive Plan in regard to land use,  density and transportation.  ( Please see

Comprehensive Plan Policies in, Section V of this report for more information)

2.   Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate

the proposed development;

The City Council finds that public services will be provided to the subject property with
development. (See Exhibit B ofthe StaffReportfor more detailsfrom public service providers)

3.   The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City' s
capital improvement program;

Because City water and sewer and any other utilities will be provided by the development at
their own cost, the City Council finds that the subdivision will not require the expenditure of
capital improvement funds.

4.   There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development;

The City Council finds there is public financial capability of supporting services for the
proposed development based upon comments from the public service providers ( i.e., Police,
Fire, ACHD, etc). ( See Section VIII for more information)

5.   The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare;
and,

The City Council is not aware ofany health, safety, or environmentalproblems associated with
the platting of this property. ACHD considers road safety issues in their analysis.

6.   The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features.

The City Council is unaware ofany significant natural, scenic or historicfeatures that exist on
this site that require preserving.

Page 45

Page 207Page 271

Item #13.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Addendum to Development Agreement (Instrument#2019-0028376 
recorded April 10, 2019) Between the City of Meridian and High Desert Development Linder 
Village, LLC (Owner/Developer) Located at 6308 N. Linder Rd, at the Northeast Corner of N. 
Linder Road and W. Chinden Blvd.

Page 272

Item #14.



Page 273

Item #14.



Page 274

Item #14.



Page 275

Item #14.



Item# 8.

CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EFI DIAN:-,
AND DECISION& ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Modification to the Use Area Plan in the Development Agreement

Inst.# 2019- 028376) to Include Financial Uses in the Area Currently Designated for Specialty
Retail and Restaurant Uses, by CSHQA.

Case No( s). H- 2021- 0034

For the City Council Hearing Date of: June 1, 2021 ( Findings on June 15, 2021)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts ( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code ( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City ofMeridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of June 1, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR LINDER VILLAGE— MDA H-2021- 0034 I -   
Page 147

EXHIBIT A

Page 276

Item #14.



Item# 8.

reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for a modification to the development agreement is hereby approved
per the provisions in the Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021, attached as Exhibit
A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/ or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty-eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of June 1, 2021

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR LINDER VILLAGE— MDA H-2021- 0034 2-   
Page 148Page 277

Item #14.



Item# 9.

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 15th day of
June

2021.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 6- 15- 2021

Attest:

Chris Johnson 6- 15- 2021

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:   6- 4 5- 2021

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR LINDER VILLAGE— MDA H-2021- 0034 3-   
Page 148Page 278

Item #14.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




EXHIBIT A

STAFF REPORTC,WEIIDIAN  --
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT A H O

HEARING 6/ 1/ 2021
Legend

DATE:

letPraject Lacaiiian
TO:      Mayor& City Council

FROAM:       Sonya Allen, Associate Planner
R- 4 RT

208- 884- 5533
s

HTR1 h+UJ

SUBJECT:     H-2021- 0034

Linder Village RUT

R-
LOCATION:  The site is located at 6308 N. Linder

Road at the northeast corner of N. Linder
R'

Road and W. Chinden Blvd., in the NW RUT

4 of Section 25, Township 4N., Range R.

1 W.

8

C R
1

fib® 
R.

R. 8 n

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Modification to the Use Area Plan in the Development Agreement( Inst. # 2019- 028376) to include

financial uses in the area currently designated for specialty retail and restaurant uses.

II.  SUMMARY OF REPORT

A.  Applicant:

Mandie Brozo, CSHQA— 200 Broad St., Boise, ID 83702

B.  Owner:

Dave McKinney, High Desert Development Linder Village, LLC—2537 W. State St., Ste. 110,

Boise, ID 83702

C.  Representative:

James Marsh, CSHQA— 2537 W. State St., Ste. 110, Boise, ID 83702

III.  STAFF ANALYSIS

The Applicant proposes to amend the existing Development Agreement( DA)( Inst. #2019- 028376) to

update the Use Area Plan to allow for a financial institution in the area currently designated for specialty
retail and restaurant uses at the northwest corner of the site. No other changes to the uses shown on the

Plan are proposed. The Use Area Plan in Section V.B is included in the existing DA; the Plan in Section
V.E is proposed.

Substantial compliance with the approved Use Area Plan is required as a provision of the DA ( i.e.
5. 1a) to ensure a minimum of three ( 3) land use types [ i. e. commercial ( includes retail, restaurants,

Page 1

Page 150Page 279

Item #14.



Item# 8.

etc.), office, residential, civic ( includes public open space, parks, entertainment venues, etc.) and

industrial] are provided within this development consistent with the guidelines in the Comprehensive
Plan for the associated Mixed Use— Community( MU-C) Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation
for this site.

The conceptual development plan and site circulation plan have also been updated to reflect the
proposed reconfiguration of the site layout in the area where the financial institution is planned; the
adjacent building footprint to the east now includes a drive- through. The pedestrian circulation plan
depicts reconfigured pathway locations consistent with the new site design.

The proposed change to include financial along with the retail and restaurant uses will still ensure a
mix of land uses are provided as desired in the MU- C.

Because the proposed change increases the types ofuses planned for this area which is desired, Staff is
supportive of the requested amendment to the DA.

IV.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the modification to the DA as proposed by the Applicant.

C.  The Meridian City Council heard this item on June 1, 2021. At the public hearing. the Council

moved to approve the subject MDA request.

1.   Summary of the City Council public hearing:

a.    In favor: James Marsh, CSHOA: David McKinney_ ;Dusty Woolstenhulme: Mandie
Brozo. CSHOA

b.    In opposition: None

c.    Commenting: Sally Reynolds: Denise LaFever

d.    Written testimony: Norman& Julie Davis; Sally Reynolds
e.    Staff presenting application: Sonya Allen

f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) of public testimony:
a.    Not in favor of the proposed change to the Use Area Plan to include financial

institutions: prefers restaurant& specialty stores in this location since there are two

other financial institutions within walking distance of this site:

b.    No issue with proposed chance
C.    Concern about blight resulting from repurposing of the bank building across the street

with development of the proposed bank on this site.

3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:
a.    Extent of road widening improvements and timing for completion;

b.    Traffic calming within the site and in Bacall on the southern portion of the site.

4.  City Council change( s) to Staff s recommendation:

a.    None

Page 2

Page 151Page 280

Item #14.



Item# 8.

V.  EXHIBITS

A.  Existing Conceptual Development Plan( dated: 12/ 13/ 18)

W. GHINDEN 6LV

1FUTURE OFFICEi RETAIL-
DEVELOPMENT

sY to.: L.;  10 4# u nf' C yam,£ w.`     k i

f

1.

ma.
yy

AO Ap P Lw ew,%R AIR

ZJ•

r     ..  .  

3
y      

FUTURE RESIDENTIAL FUTURE RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT

I

1r,,,gNr PLAN

CSHOA CONCEPT SITE

ibwPLAN

Page 3

Page 152Page 281

Item #14.



Item# 8.

B.  Existing Use Area Plan( dated: 10/ 8/ 18):

SPECIALTY RETAIL&   I FASTlCASUAL AUTOMOTIVE!     j MIXED

RESTAURANTS FOOD& BEVERAGE FUEL RETAII- IHEALTH&

MEDICAL

L

r

J r.--.       UHfNHHIW Po

ENTERTAINMENT
FUTURE

OFFICElRETAIL

J

F RETAILICIVIC   -

ilf   ¶  e lSOFTGDODS DEVELOPMENT

41

I

COMMUNITY GROCERY r:

LIVEMORK RETAIL

DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE

RESIDENTIAL

DEVELOPMENT

Nli lil
ill I I I l III

CSHEMIX USE AREA
CLIfIR: OM6 Rwl Eam[ e Pannm. LLL SW> B PLANGRANANG TR I£. lll xµNee Plm I PROIELTII. O] TR Arm— MW

Page 4

Page 153Page 282

Item #14.



Item# 8.

C.  Existing Site Circulation Plan( dated: 10/ 8/ 18):

CHINDEN IMPROVEMENTS PER STARS AGREEMENT

unnm nunn~ nlnimunnnuniinulnmliniiinmiimmlimnuiiiwuiiilnulominiiimni imniii i miiouniimnuonmiioummmummunlmu------   l

I

rn 1155n ,, 51I1
ZZ    =,
LU

11

3
W    FUTURE OFFICE/ RETAIL

O 91
I 

DEVELOPMENT

IL O       ':.
I

s O 5l1„ INf NNIu il_,

UiJ  IDuiuiu Nllllll Blpiuuiuiuu5lw

f=_

LU

Ip 11111

CANNEGTION POINT TO
W Flf4 ROADWAY
a

I

O   _•       m

7

t\,55 AO. IALEW PAR a

NE BIDS STOF
t1

VV IIYI

uurw

Tp--: iI fl• I".IH.",.

tI.-

w

Hl.-J.

l-.oJ..-mg..-.-•-•-
I-- `

i

t..--•-

u-,_1 __—__—`

1_ 

wr

5_,

5_5_15mN•5_`"_
1 1.5_11 1___=_

1y
111u1

HHIINt!!,,Nn!
l!!W1NC!-1l!11!I!fn1.I!

I1NII 11If,

1IR1II1-

rt1 1t1l
11A11r1111mII1lH1l1

yH1^1H1Nl1' 1l1
lll!r!l! !!! 

1

1!

N1n11
g'!

II!,
II

NkII! IflI1EI11IIjI Ill{
1I1'

I

5jJ5jI5NI1+nrpp45,........... 1lnuvuin111" IImWmrtnunun, 05 1hn11' 11I il11V1111i

1i1

11r11h
1NII1'

1II1I
i11II_

Vq1_
1,

1r_
u

S

Y1N
I1'

4f1iI
4h5y'

t5K' RihVhWt'

hiI, 1V_--_
P-iVh'hVhWthiVl' iii__

AJ IJUACINEGN r

RO AY

EIinFUTURE RESIDENTIAL E OIW M

Ili-
DEVELOPMENT

SIDM

Ill1 it] HH1111111!   

lNN11111

S` kC

iF

YI II IINNI NIf11H_I{ IININIOIH111 Hll, IfJIrfINI1, I, IIt11N IJl IJJf t.

NE' Jr STR= E R
I I II I

AC1 STNJLVJiOG
IXISTING R6YONlAY EkTElJ51/ N CONNE1 1111N
MIIRTOAQ EWSIJBDIVISIDN

CSH%Q-"A-
lx

CIRCULATION

PLAN

Page 5

Page 154Page 283

Item #14.



Item# 8.

D.  Proposed Conceptual Development Plan( dated: 5/ 25/ 2021):

s

FUTURE OFFICE! RETAIL lil

r DEVELOPMENT
iP 5

xAY of wf' PLF I' yw? 9.. M 9t ,            .       ..      
y.J

y   ..  
Y    ——

1
s

ti

FUTURE RESIDENTIAL FUTURE RESIDENTIAL

DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT

a 1 CONCEPT PLAN

CSH CONCEPT
Orchard

SITE PLANo P

Page 6

Page 155Page 284

Item #14.



Item# 8.

E.  Proposed Use Area Plan( dated: 5/ 7/ 21):

SPECIALTY RETAIL,

MOTSAURANT MIXED

l
RE

FINANCIALS&     FOOD& BEVERAGE  '  

AUTO IVEI -_- i

RETM€ WCAAL

H&       -   -  ------- 

J  __

uflNNHH{ 
@

de

ENERTAINMENT/  
FUTURE

OFFICE/ RETAILJ RETAILICIVIC @9 6 SOFT GOODS DEVELOPMENT
R

COMMUNITY GROCERY
LIVElWORK RETAIL E3

i

DEVELOPMENT

II
W

FUTURE

RESIDENTIAL
r, DEVELOPMENT F
T

r   -  -       --

I -- I-- I-- T  - I - 1 -- i-   -    - I  -  - -- - i  -----  

1  -      III I I I I I I I I I I III I

USE AREACSHOA
Orchard

aRrE , orz R   PLAN
pi Park

Page 7

Page 156Page 285

Item #14.



Item# 8.

F.  Proposed Site Circulation Plan( dated: 5/ 7/ 21):

CHINDEN IMPROVEMENTS PER STARS AGREEMENT

111111111 111111_ 1111111 11111111 11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 11111111 111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 11111 I
TIN IIfTI{ IrynstflT°=-'---    

0
JVIImW lllllllllllllllll11lllll l l ll... luunluulu

Z~     ''  -   - - Y' nu
uu 11y, R41Jpuuanu muuuuunuulu lDl lllll ll IIIII IIII

Z
1111111 Yllllllj i 11 IIIIIIA I

WW
o   _  IT o

FUTURE OFFICEIRETAIL

O    ° DEVELOPMENT

0
W    -'      •   !

1111     ,•  ..- .. 
fIrstl     =

1 - 

IflIIII11111111111111111 111111 n11U

FIJIUR       !

Q
rrminlmm

i

J

W

vnoxe EROADWAY

II
D°  

n

N,```       
CONNECTION POINT T.T

J a ADJACENT PARCEL

ES
1uuulll. NuunluNm."       

IEW Bus STOP

I LJllilllii lllllau'    f11 HI111111flIIlif11111111111 1411111111IIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIII IIIAII
II1i111111I11111111111111

11111111111111111111111111111111111111111..... 11111111111111111111111111111` JIB EXISTING RGADWAY

I 1/ IIIIIIIIYrI' A-IIIV II IIIOIIIIIIIIII II II-_. 
ON

CONNE TI

1-

I FUTURE RESIDENTIAL G ENSITlory POlrvT To
11111 DEVELOPMENT

11' I111111111111=  
2"'    ADJACENTSUBDIVISION

IB I11111111111111 llrl LIy
1111t11' IIrf111114111Nf111!? IIi1111N11llll lllll? Ir11111111111111

r---

N11 1

I

IIDII 1141111 IIIIII ` IIIIIi     -

I

NEETWSTRE PER

Illlll I

ACND STANDARDS
EXISTINGROADWAYE ENSION'   GONNE' GTIO N

POINT TOADJACENT SUBDIVISION

CSH      CIRCULATION
Orchard

rs"'  

I "
TE / I w 

PLAN Park

Page 8

Page 157Page 286

Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Second Addendum to Development Agreement Between the City of Meridian
and William Bienapfl (Owner) and Flexspace, LLC (Developer) for Movado Mixed Use (H-2020-
0123), Generally Located on the South Side of E. Overland Rd. Between S. Eagle Rd. and S. 
Cloverdale Rd.

Page 287

Item #15.



Page 288

Item #15.



Page 289

Item #15.



Page 290

Item #15.



Page 291

Item #15.



Item# 13.

CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EFI N,
AND DECISION& ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Conditional Use Permit for a multi- family development consisting
of 60 attached units( 50 units on 4225 E. Overland Rd. and 10 units on Parcel S1121121011) on 6. 8

acres of land in the C- G zoning district; and a Development Agreement Modification to modify the
concept plan approved with the existing agreements( Inst.# 2017- 012608& # 2018- 012456) to

include a mix of multi-family and commercial uses on the remaining 6.8 acres of the Movado
development, by FlexSpace, LLC.

Case No( s). H- 2020- 0123

For the City Council Hearing Date of. April 20, 2021 ( Findings on May 4, 2021)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 20, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 20, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date ofApril 20, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of April 20, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( Movado Mixed- Use— FILE#- 2020-0123)     I -   
Page 219

EXHIBIT A

Page 292

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of April 20, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement Modification

is hereby approved per the conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of
April 20, 2021, attached as Exhibit A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer' s signature
on the final plat within two( 2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined
preliminary and final plat or short plat( UDC 11- 613- 7A).

In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat,
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two( 2) years, may be considered for
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval( UDC 11- 6B- 7B).

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11- 6B- 7. A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City
Engineer' s signature on the final plat not to exceed two( 2) years. Additional time extensions up
to two( 2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time

extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again( UDC 1I-
6B- 7C).

Notice of Conditional Use Permit Duration

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum
period of two( 2) years unless otherwise approved by the City. During this time, the applicant
shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the
requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and acquire building permits and
commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or in the ground. For
conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be signed by the City
Engineer within this two( 2) year period.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( Movado Mixed- Use— FILE#- 2020-0123)     2-
Page 220Page 293

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11- 513- 6.G. 1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the
use not to exceed one( 1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two( 2) years as
determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all extensions, the Director
or City Council may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian
City Code Title 11( UDC 11- 513- 6F).

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/ or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
agreement by all parties and/ or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty- eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of April 20, 2021

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( Movado Mixed- Use— FILE#- 2020-0123)     3-   
Page 221Page 294

Item #15.



Item# 13.

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the
4th

day of
May

2021.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 5- 4- 2021

Attest:

Chris Johnson 5- 4- 2021

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:    5- 4- 2021

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( Movado Mixed- Use— FILE#- 2020-0123)     4-   
Page 222Page 295

Item #15.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




Item# 13.   
Exhibit A

STAFF REPORT C:    E IDIAN  --
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

HEARING April 20, 2021
Legend

DATE:

ItEutProject Location
TO:      Mayor& City Council

FROM: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner

208- 884- 5533

SUBJECT:     H- 2020- 0123

Movado Mixed- Use

LOCATION:  Generally located on the south side of E. -  - j

Overland Road between S. Eagle Road
f

and S. Cloverdale Road, in a portion of A

the NW '/ 4 of the NE '/ 4 of Section 21,   

Township 3N., Range IE.

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Applicant has submitted requests for the following:

Conditional Use Permit for a multi- family development consisting of 6660 attached units( 3650 units on
4225 E. Overland Rd. and 10 units on Parcel S1121121011) on 6. 8 acres of land in the C- G zoning
district; and

Development Agreement Modification to modify the concept plan approved with the existing
agreements ( Inst. # 2017- 012608 &# 2018- 012456) to include a mix of multi- family and commercial
uses on the remaining 6. 8 acres of the Movado development, by F1exSpace, LLC.

II.  SUMMARY OF REPORT

A.  Project Summary

Description Details Page

Acreage 6. 8 acres( C- G zoning district)
Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use Regional

Existing Land Use( s)    Vacant

Proposed Land Use( s)   Multi- Family Residential and future Commercial
Lots(# and type; bldg./common)      2 existing commercial building lots— properties have not

been final platted yet
Phasing Plan(# of phases)      Proposed as one phase for the residential; commercial is

future.

Number of Residential Units( type 606 multi-family units—proposed as 8- plex and 6- nlex,
of units)   attached townhome style

Density( gross& net)    Gross— 9-.6-78. 82 du/ ac.; Net— 17.24 du/ ac.

Page 1

Page 223Page 296

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Description Details Page

Open Space( acres, total 19, 561 square feet of qualified common open space
buffer/ qualified)    proposed( approximately 6. 6%)— collector street buffers

are not part of proposed open space but part of previous
Movado Greens development.

A& 7, 573 square feet of private open space proposed.
Amenities Three( 3) amenities are proposed— Enclosed bicycle

storage, plaza with BBQ& firepit, and a coffee kiosk.

Further Staff analysis is below in Section V.

Physical Features( waterways, N/A

hazards, flood plain, hillside)    is,=
Neighborhood meeting date;# of 2 meetings: October 7, 2020( 11 attendees)& October 8,

attendees: 2020( 5 attendees)

History( previous approvals)   Part of Movado Estates AZ, PP, PS( H- 2016- 0112);

Movado Greens/ Silverstone Apartments MCU, MDA, PP,

RZ( H- 2017- 0104); Silverstone Apartments MDA( H-

2019- 0099)& Silverstone Apartments MCU( H- 2019-

0014) that were withdrawn; DA Inst.#' s 2017- 012608&

2018- 012456.

B.  Community Metrics

Description Details Page

Ada County Highway District

Staff report( yes/ no) Yes

Requires ACHD Commission No

Action es/ no

Access( Arterial/ Collectors/ State Access is proposed via driveway connections to both sides of
Hwy/Local)( Existing and S. Movado Way, a collector street. Driveway will be an
Proposed) extension of driveway stub along western property line.

Stub Street/ Interconnectivity/ Cross Internal access is via shared driveways for both the

Access commercial and multi- family developments; part of this is
from an existing driveway stub from the west( Silverstone
Apartments).

Applicant is proposing to stub a driveway access near the
southeast corner of the site to the east property line for
connectivity of a project within the City of Boise.

Existing Road Network Movado Way is an existing collector street; Overland Road is
an existing arterial street.

Existing Arterial Sidewalks/   The landscape buffers and arterial sidewalks along E.
Buffers Overland Road are existing and were constructed with

previous approvals. However, an older curb cut along
Overland was not closed with curb, gutter, and sidewalk—
this should be corrected with this application.

Proposed Road Improvements No road improvements are proposed as Movado Way is
already existing and at its full width. Additional on- site
driveways will be constructed as access for the commercial

and multi- family portions of the site.
Distance to nearest City Park(+       Fire Station# 4 Park is closest public park as seen on GIS—
size)       0. 4 acres in size and approximately 1. 7 miles away.

Movado Subdivision has two larger open space areas, as well

as other smaller open s ace areas.

Fire Service

Distance to Fire Station Approximately 1. 7 miles from Fire Station# 4

Page 2

Page 224Page 297

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Description Details Page

Fire Response Time This project lies within the Meridian Fire response time goal
of 5 minutes.

Risk Identification Risk Factor 3— Commercial

Concerns The fire department is concerned there is nowhere for

visitors to the apartments to park on the west side of the
project. Fire lanes may be blocked which would become
an issue.

Police Service

No comments

West Ada School District

Estimated school age children 4 to Pepper Ridge Elementary
generated by this development 2 to Lewis& Clark MS

elem, ms, hs 3 to Mountain View HS

Capacity of Schools Pepper Ridge Elementary— 675 students
Lewis& Clark MS— 1, 000 students

Mountain View HS— 2, 175 students

of Students Enrolled( Spring Pepper Ridge Elementary— 576 students
20 enrollment)    Lewis& Clark MS— 1, 071 students

Mountain View HS— 2, 237 students

Wastewater

Distance to Sewer Services Directly adjacent
Sewer Shed Five Mile Trunkshed

Estimated Project Sewer See application

ERU' s

WRRF Declining Balance 14. 07

Project Consistent with WW Yes

Master Plan/ Facility Plan
Impacts/ Concerns Additional 4, 272 gpd committed to model

No Permanent structures( buildings, carports, trash

receptacle walls, fences, infiltration trenches, lightpoles, etc.)

can be built within the utility easement.
Not clear as to how the commercial/ office building in the

northeast corner will be serviced.

Water

Distance to Services Directly adjacent
Pressure Zone 4

Estimated Project Water See application

ERU' s

Water Quality Concerns None

Project Consistent with Water Yes

Master Plan

Impacts/ Concerns Eliminate water main dead- end at southeast corner of

western parcel; possibly run a service line to the building
instead. See attached markup.

Page 3

Page 225Page 298

Item #15.



1 1 1

a f       ' I

OVERLAND
f

liiiiiiiiin. iii• =  y11R,      f  -

w

n IN   •    ii
r

nn i i

Brno

OVERL--AND

q IIIIIIIIIIIIIII nnlmninn Illlllllll r.MIlununnnn:
liiiiiiiiiiiiiii:

1      
liii ii.-

n I/ 

N 4

jll 1'

1- 1 pill

IIII    IIIII •         `
111     111

nuum   ' 7 uuum 

lnunr 1 I t Ilnum= q 1

11

1.       so-

11

Page 299

Item #15.



Item# 13.

IV.  NOTICING

Planning& Zoning City Council
Posting Date Posting Date

Newspaper Notification 2/ 12/ 2021 4/ 9/ 2021

Radius notification mailed to

properties within 500 feet
2/ 9/ 2021 4/ 6/ 2021

Public hearing notice sign posted
2/ 22/ 2021 4/ 9/ 2021

on site

Nextdoor posting 2/ 9/ 2021 4/ 6/ 2021

V.  STAFF ANALYSIS

A.  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT MODIFICATION( MDA)

A modification to the existing Development Agreements( Inst. #2017- 012608 &# 2018- 012456), is

requested for the purpose of including a new development plan for this area of the Movado Greens
development to consist of both commercial and residential uses instead of solely commercial. The
existing DA provisions are still applicable as they were mostly related to the larger Movado development
overall.

The existing DA includes a concept plan for this area from 2017 when the property received DA
Modification approval to change the number and layout of apartment units along Overland, now known
as the Silverstone Apartments. The existing concept plan depicts a number of office, retail, and general
commercial buildings. This concept plan was intended to maintain a commercial presence within this
area of the Mixed-use Regional designation despite being removed from the main commercial area at the
intersection of Eagle and Overland.

The Applicant believes the existing concept plan for this area of the agreement is not feasible with that
amount of commercial square footage being separated from the Eagle/ Overland area by residential and is
too far east in general to accommodate 56,000 square feet of commercial space. Therefore, the Applicant
is proposing a new concept plan depicting three commercial pad sites and 66 multi-family dwellings in
the form of townhome style dwellings. The commercial is now proposed at approximately 27,500 square
feet and is shown along Overland to increase the visibility. hi the western half of the site, it is separated
from 56 units of the multi- family residential by a shared drive aisle that is the access to the public street
network for both proposed uses and connects to the west to the Silverstone Apartments site. In the
eastern half of the site, the Applicant also shows the commercial building along Overland road for
visibility with the remaining area of the lot as parking until the remaining 10 multi-family townhome
units are proposed in a small sliver of remaining land in the very southeast of the project.

Revising the development plan for this last remaining portion of the Movado Estates development is
doable if done so with the right changes in mind. Staff believes that what the Applicant has presented
does not fully touch on what a mixed-use development can provide, especially in terms of creating a
sense of place and providing more pedestrian focus. Staff recommends some revisions to the site plan to
improve the integration of uses and to better create a sense of place in this portion of the Movado
development overall.

into one Wilding; widen the ne4hemmest drive aisle a-ad inehide street tfees while r-emoving all par-kin
that baeks into the driving! a-ae; a-ad, iaeer-per-a4e a shared pla-za between the eemmer-eial a-ad residential.

Applieafft should eenselidate these buildings into one stfuetwe that is two stories in height in order- to

beffer-utilize tLe 4ad area available. ha addition, eenstpaeting a two story stpaetufe ean hold the eoi%e

Page 5

Page 227Page 300

Item #15.



Item# 13.

pr-qjeet. Staff finds it appr-epr-ia4e th4 the Appliea-PA deeide the most appropriate size of this twe ste
building but believes it should be at leas! 10, 000 s" ar-e feet tetal whieh f:equir-es a miniffmm

In addition, to ensure adequate site circulation and

pedestrian safety in perpetuity, staff is recommending a new DA provision that no drive- through use is
permitted on this site. If one were to be proposed, Staff does not foresee the site adequately containing
the stacking lane for a busy drive-through which could seriously harbor the function of the drive aisles
and reduce pedestrian safety. Furthermore, the allowed uses for the commercial within this project
should be office, retail, personal and professional services, restaurant, and daycare uses to aid in the
integration and compatibility between the commercial and residential uses within the project.

remove the need for-twe building pad sites and allow for-an afea th4 ean be shared between the
eemmer-eial and the mull: f nily*,,,:,,.h, mes There are multiple ways to design this that can incorporate

a shared plaza and create a better sense ofplace in this mixed-use area. Staff has some specific
recommendations but final design will largely be up to the Applicant. At a minimum, the Applicant
should incorporate a pedestrian crossing from the multi- family units to the new shared plaza within the
commercial area. This can be located somewhat centrally on the site with parking on either side, east and
west, of a more modern two-story commercial building along Overland that frames the plaza, creating a
true sense of place between the two uses. The Applicant could also construct the two story building in
the location of the central commercial building( southwest corner of Overland and Movado Way) as
shown on the proposed site plan and have the shared plaza and parking to the west of the building. Staff
can see these two options as more than feasible but, as already discussed, the format of how this area is
redesigned should be up to the Applicant; the Applicant should aim to create a sense of place and
provide for an area that is shared in order to meet the intent of the mixed-use policies.

The final pieee ef this revision r-elmes to the design of the shared drive aisle. With the removal of
paf-kifig spaees alefig the drive aisle, t4ie di4ve aisle ean be widened to aeeeR* noda4e detaehed sidewalks
a-ad street trees lining both sides of the drive aisle to er-ea4e a sheA beti4evafd. Aefess this beulevaM is
where the new pedestrian pa4hway should be eeastt=ueted; the er-essing shettid be eeas4ueted with
diMr-en4 m4er-ial than that of the d4ving suffaee( i. e. stamped eenefete, paver-s, or-similaf)! E) elear4y
delifteate the pedestfian pa4h be ween the residential a-ad eemmer-eial. An additional eption for-this dr-ive
aisle weti4d be te ifiehide parallel parking spots with detaehed sidewalks a-ad appr-epr-iate! andseapia
stfeet tfees ir-emen4 but ead With Staff s recommended revisions and the

Applicant' s revisions, Staff supports the Development Agreement Modification request.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN( https:llwww.meridianciU.or / compplan):
This property is designated MU-R( Mixed Use— Regional) on the Future Land Use Map( FLUM).

Land Use:

The MU-R designation is to provide a mix of employment, retail, and residential dwellings and public
uses near major arterial intersections. The intent is to integrate a variety of uses together, including
residential, and to avoid predominantly single use developments such as a regional retail center with
only restaurants and other commercial uses. Developments should be anchored by uses that have a
regional draw with the appropriate supporting uses. For example, an employment center should have
supporting retail uses; a retail center should have supporting residential uses as well as supportive
neighborhood and community services. The standards for the MU-R designation provide an incentive for
larger public and quasi-public uses where they provide a meaningful and appropriate mix to the
development.

Page 6

Page 228Page 301

Item #15.



Item# 13.

In general, the proposed uses of multi family dwellings and commercial are listed as allowed uses within
the MU-R designated areas. More specific comprehensive plan policy analysis is below. As currently
designed staff believes the projectpresents some issuesfor safe pedestrian connectivity and lacks a true
integration ofuses through the site. Staffbelieves the site layout can be modified to improve these issues
with the uses proposed. Staffs recommended changes are outlined in the above section as well as
throughout the staff report.

Furthermore, the Applicant presented a thorough case for this area of the MU-R designation to lack true
viability as a premier location for commercial uses due to its location being more than a halfmilefrom
the Eagle/ Overland intersection, the central hub of this MU-R area. Some commercial should remain on
these parcels but Staff agrees with the Applicant that the proposed amount with the incorporation of
townhome style multifamily is adequate to meet a majority ofthe mixed-use policies ifbetter integration
of uses is done as outlined above by staff above.

Transportation:

Access is proposed via driveways that connect to S. Movado Way, the existing collector street that
bisects the project. The driveway within the northwest section of the project will connect to the driveway
stub from the Silverstone Apartments directly to the west. This driveway acts as a border between the
proposed commercial buildings and multi- family townhomes and shows parking backing into the
driveway. As discussed, Staff finds this driveway can be better designed in order to provide for safer
pedestrian connectivity through the site and provide more integration of the uses. For example, the
recommended changes to incorporate a boulevard and added pedestrian crossings in this area of the site.

South of this driveway are the drive aisles for the multi-family townhomes with the required parking
located on both sides. The southeast portion of this area contains a segment of drive aisle that is over 150
feet in length which requires a fire turnaround. Instead, Staff recommends this segment be reduced in

length to not require a turnaround; a few parking spaces in this area may need to be removed to
accommodate this.

The east side of the development proposes an additional commercial building as well as ten( 10) more
multi-family units with driveway accesses to Movado Way in alignment with the rest of the site. The
submitted site plan shows more than the minimum parking required and drive aisles that meet UDC and
Fire Department requirements for the commercial portion of the east site. The proposed dwellings at the
very southeast corner of the project are placed with minimal room to spare surrounding the buildings but
do appear to show compliance with dimensional standards.

According to ACHD, the proposed driveway connections meet their district offset policies by being 220
feet from the intersection of Movado Way and Overland Road. However, these two northernmost
proposed driveways will not meet offset requirements should the Overland and Movado intersection ever
be signalized. In this case these accesses would be limited to right-in/right-out accesses only. The
Applicant is aware of this potential and still proposed the driveways at their current locations. Therefore,
Staff does not find it necessary to recommend different locations but will instead note compliance with
ACHD conditions of approval and their policies.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES( https:// www.meridiancity.or / comp-plan):

Goals, Objectives, & Action Items: Staff finds the following Comprehensive Plan policies to be
applicable to this application and apply to the proposed use of this property( staff analysis in italics):

Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial capabilities of
Meridian' s present and future residents."( 2. 01. 02D)

The proposed multifamily dwellings are shown as townhome style units and would be a new type of
multi family dwelling in this immediate area and add to the available housing diversity within the

Page 7

Page 229Page 302

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Movado development. In addition, all of the units are proposed at 2- bedroom units which would offer
future residents rental opportunities at a lower price than three bedroom homes.

Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities and
urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of service for
public facilities and services."( 3. 03. 03F)

City water and sewer services are available and can be extended by the developer with development
in accord with UDC 11- 3A- 21.

Avoid the concentration of any one housing type or lot size in any geographical area; provide for
diverse housing types throughout the City."( 2. 01. 01 G)

Traditional three- story, garden- style apartments are currently under construction directly to the
west of the subject site which makes the proposed two- story townhome style apartments a new type
ofmultifamily housing in this area. The proposed residential is also a different type than the single-
family proposed directly south andfurther into the Movado development.

Encourage compatible uses and site design to minimize conflicts and maximize use of land."

3. 07. 00)

Mixed-use areas require integration of uses that are not always precisely compatible but through
thoughtful site design, conflicts can be minimized. With Staff's recommended changes, the proposed
development offers better integration, N niet y u 4'ng Mat baekiq in
drive and better HtiUe,  the land area. The drive aisle with the revisions recommended by Staff
acts as both a buffer and a point of integration between the commercial and multi family residential
on the property. The required setbacks between the subject property and the apartments to the west
should offer an adequate transition and screening between more intensive residential buildings and
the townhome style units proposed with this development.

Ensure development is connected to City of Meridian water and sanitary sewer systems and the
extension to and through said developments are constructed in conformance with the City of
Meridian Water and Sewer System Master Plans in effect at the time of development."( 3. 03. 03A)

The proposed development will connect to City water and sewer systems by continuing existing stubs
where available.

Maximize public services by prioritizing infill development of vacant and underdeveloped parcels
within the City over parcels on the fringe."( 2. 02. 02)

The subject site is already annexed but currently undeveloped; it is one of the last areas of the
Movado development to be developed. Because everything to the south is mostly developed and the
site abuts a major arterial and entryway corridor, public services are readily available for this site
despite being on the outer edge ofCity limits.

Require urban infrastructure be provided for all new developments, including curb and gutter,
sidewalks, water and sewer utilities."( 3. 03. 03G)

Urban sewer and water infrastructure and curb, gutter and sidewalks is required to be provided with
development as proposed. However, an existing driveway cut was not closed with curb, gutter, and
sidewalk along Overland as required with previous approvals. The previous requirement to comply
with this will be carried over into this project.

Require collectors consistent with the ACHD Master Street Map( MSM), generally at/near the mid-
mile location within the Area of City Impact."( 6. 01. 03B)

Page 8

Page 230Page 303

Item #15.



Item# 13.

The Applicant is utilizing an existing collector street as the access for the proposed development. No
new public roads are required or proposed with this application.

Slow the outward progression of the City' s limits by discouraging fringe area development;
encourage development of vacant or underutilized parcels currently within City limits." ( 4. 05. 03B)

The proposedparcels are already annexed with commercial zoning but are not yet developed. As
noted, these parcels are likely to not develop with the intended uses ofonly commercial when sofar
removedfrom the main MU-R centerfurther to the west. Despite abutting the edge of City limits, City
services are readily available. Furthermore, developing these parcels will allowfor the entrance to
the City ofMeridian from the east along Overland Road to be enhanced with commercial and
transitional residential.

Monitor and adjust the amount and mix of industrial, commercial, and office areas needed to meet

the employment needs of the City."( 3. 06. 0113)

The Applicant' s proposal removes some commercial square footagefrom what is currently approved
in the Movado Greens DA. According to the Applicant, the subject parcels are too far removedfrom
the intersection ofEagle/Overland to directly compete with the already undeveloped Silverstone
commercial area further to the west. Staffagrees that reducing the amount ofcommercial on this site
to accommodate more neighborhood or community serving commercial uses rather than regional
uses is prudent based on existing development patterns and size of the property.

In reviewing development applications, the following items will be considered in all Mixed- Use
areas, per the Comprehensive Plan( pg. 3- 13): ( Staffs analysis in italics)

A mixed-use project should include at least three types of land uses. Exceptions may be granted for
smaller sites on a case-by-case basis. This land use is not intended for high density residential
development alone."

The proposed development includes both multi family residential and commercial pad sites. At a
minimum, the development should provide two land uses immediately. With more than one
commercial building, it is veryfeasible that at least three land uses will be provided. However, Staff
does notfind it necessary to require at least three land uses on the subject site due to its relatively
small size ( 6.8 acres) in relation to the much larger parcels located further west and also in the MU-
R designation. The proposed development meets this goal.

Where appropriate, higher density and/ or multi- family residential development is encouraged for
projects with the potential to serve as employment destination centers and when the project is
adjacent to US 20/ 26, SH- 55, SH- 16 or SH- 69."

The Applicant is proposing multi family residential at a gross density of 9.67 units/ acre which falls
within the medium- high density residential range were the project to be located in that designation.
In addition, the subject parcels have easy access to a new collector street that connects to Overland
Road, an arterial; Overland provides access east and west from the site to major employment centers
in Meridian and Boise.

Mixed Use areas are typically developed under a master or conceptual plan; during an annexation or
rezone request, a development agreement will typically be required for developments with a Mixed-
Use designation."

An overall development plan is currently in place for the subject parcels and are currently approved
as solely commercial sites. The Applicant is requesting to modify this plan to include multifamily
residential with the commercial uses proposed along Overland Road.

In developments where multiple commercial and/or office buildings are proposed, the buildings
should be arranged to create some form of common, usable area, such as a plaza or green space."

Page 9

Page 231Page 304

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Staff is recommending revisions to the site plan that will help meet this comprehensive plan policy
including to provide fora shared plaza
between the multi family and this commercial. With these changes, the project will meet this policy.

The site plan should depict a transitional use and/ or landscaped buffering between commercial and
existing low- or medium-density residential development."
The proposedplan depicts two-story, multifamily residential as a transition from a busy arterial and
commercial buildings to existing single-family homes directly to the south. The single-family
development to the south would also have landscaping between their backyards and the proposed
multi family residential. Many of these single- family homes abutting the subject site are attached
products which makes the townhome style multi family an adequate transition to commercial uses.

Community- serving facilities such as hospitals, clinics, churches, schools, parks, daycares, civic
buildings, or public safety facilities are expected in larger mixed-use developments."
The proposedproject is not a larger mixed-use development; therefore, strict adherence to this policy
is notfeasible.

Supportive and proportional public and/ or quasi- public spaces and places including but not limited
to parks, plazas, outdoor gathering areas, open space, libraries, and schools are expected; outdoor
seating areas at restaurants do not count."
Staff is recommending revisions commensurate with this policy in order to provide for a shared plaza
between uses that are not outdoor seating areas for restaurants. Future commercial uses are not yet
known so the Applicant is not proposing this as an option at this point.

Mixed use areas should be centered around spaces that are well-designed public and quasi- public
centers of activity. Spaces should be activated and incorporate permanent design elements and
amenities that foster a wide variety of interests ranging from leisure to play. These areas should be
thoughtfully integrated into the development and further placemaking opportunities considered."
As discussed earlier in the report, the subject parcels are small areas ofundeveloped land within the
MU-R designation and are separated from larger MU-R parcels further to the west by existing
residential. These factors do not make itfeasible for strict adherence to this policy. However, Staff
has recommended revisions to the site plan in order to help meet other mixed- use policies that will,
in- turn, move the project closer to compliance with this policy.

All mixed- use projects should be directly accessible to neighborhoods within the section by both
vehicles and pedestrians."

The proposed development will be directly accessible to adjacent neighborhoods through extension
ofsidewalks from the existing network into the site. Staff believes better integration could occur if
the concept plan is revised to reduce the commercial footprint and increase the shared area between
the uses.

Alleys and roadways should be used to transition from dissimilar land uses, and between residential

densities and housing types."
There are no alleys proposed in this development but the drive aisles within the proposed
development act as a transition between the proposed residential and commercial areas as desired.
Staff' s recommended changes would further create this transition as described in more detail earlier
in the report.

Because of the parcel configuration within Old Town, development is not subject to the Mixed- Use
standards listed herein."

The subject property is not located in Old Town; therefore, this item is not applicable.

Page 10

Page 232Page 305

Item #15.



Item# 13.

In reviewing development applications, the following items will be considered in MU- R areas, per
the Comprehensive Plan:

Developments should comply with the general guidelines for development in all Mixed-Use areas."
See analysis above.

Residential uses should comprise a minimum of 10% of the development area at gross densities
ranging from 6 to 40 units/ acre."
The proposed development meets this policy by providing more than 10% as residential and with a

gross density of nearly 10 units/ acre.

There is neither a minimum nor maximum imposed on non- retail commercial uses such as office,

clean industry, or entertainment uses."
Staff is recommending that the non- retail commercial uses on this site be limited in order to ensure
compatible uses are proposed in the future. Because of the relatively small size of this mixed-use
site, this policy is better adhered to further to the west in the Silverstone or Rackham commercial
developments.

Retail commercial uses should comprise a maximum of 50% of the development area."

Future commercial uses are not yet known at this time. However, Staff's proposed use restrictions
may providefor more than 50% ofthe commercial area to be retail. It is more likely that office uses
or a daycare may end up within the proposed commercial are due to theirproximity to multifamily
residential. Staff will analyze this policy with future Certificate ofZoning Compliance applications.

Based on the analysis above, Staff finds the proposed plan is generally consistent with the vision of the
Comprehensive Plan for this area in regard to land use, density and transportation. Several different
land- uses should exist within the future commercial area of the site and Staffs recommended

changes should increase the development' s consistency with the comprehensive plan.

B.  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE( UDC) ANALYSIS

Conditional Use Permit( CUP)— Multi- family Development( UDC 11- 4- 3- 27):

The proposed multi- family development consists of 66 units with 56 on the western parcel and 10
units on the eastern parcel. The proposed use of multi- family residential is subject to conditional use
permit approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission within the existing C- G zoning district and
subject to specific use standards outlined in UDC 11- 4- 3- 27 and below:

11- 4- 3- 27— Multi-Family Development:

A. Purpose:

1. To create multi-family housing that is safe and convenient and that enhances the quality of life of its
residents.

2. To create quality buildings and designs for multi- family development that enhance the visual character
of the community.

3. To create building and site design in multi-family development that is sensitive to and well integrated
with the surrounding neighborhood.

4. To create open space areas that contribute to the aesthetics of the community, provide an attractive
setting for buildings, and provide safe, interesting outdoor spaces for residents.

B. Site Design:

1. Buildings shall provide a minimum setback of ten feet( 10') unless a greater setback is otherwise
required by this title and/or title 10 of this Code. Building setbacks shall take into account windows,

Page 11

Page 233Page 306

Item #15.



Item# 13.

entrances, porches and patios, and how they impact adjacent properties. Proposed project shall comply
with this requirement.

2. All on- site service areas, outdoor storage areas, waste storage, disposal facilities, and transformer and

utility vaults shall be located in an area not visible from a public street, or shall be fully screened from
view from a public street. The site plan depicts screened trash enclosures that are only visible from the
drive aisles; all proposed transformer/ utility vaults shall also comply with this requirement.

3. A minimum of eighty( 80) square feet of private, usable open space shall be provided for each unit.
This requirement can be satisfied through porches, patios, decks, and/or enclosed yards. Landscaping,
entryway and other accessways shall not count toward this requirement. In circumstances where strict
adherence to such standard would create inconsistency with the purpose statements of this section, the
Director may consider an alternative design proposal through the alternative compliance provisions as
set forth in section 11- 5B- 5 of this title. According to the submitted open space exhibit, the apartments
are proposed with approximately 135 square feet ofprivate open space in theform ofprivate patios
and decks for each unit, commensurate with traditional garden style apartment buildings.

4. For the purposes of this section, vehicular circulation areas, parking areas, and private usable open
space shall not be considered common open space. These areas were not included in the common open

space calculations for the site.

5. No recreational vehicles, snowmobiles, boats or other personal recreation vehicles shall be stored on
the site unless provided for in a separate, designated and screened area. Applicant shall comply with
this requirement.

6. The parking shall meet the requirements set forth in chapter 3, " Regulations Applying to All
Districts", of this title. See analysis in staff report below.

7. Developments with twenty( 20) units or more shall provide the following:

a. A property management office.

b. A maintenance storage area.

c. A central mailbox location( including provisions for parcel mail) that provide safe pedestrian and/ or
vehicular access.

d. A directory and map of the development at an entrance or convenient location for those entering the
development. ( Ord. 18- 1773, 4- 24- 2018)

Per the submitted plans, the Applicant appears to meet these requirements except for the property
management office; it is unclear where this office is located on- site. Where it is not clear on the

submitted plans, the Applicant shall comply with these requirements at the time ofCZC submittal.

The site plan submitted with the Certificate ofZoning Compliance application shall depict these
items.

C. Common Open Space Design Requirements:

1.   A minimum area of outdoor common open space shall be provided as follows:

a.   One hundred fifty( 150) square feet for each unit containing five hundred( 500) or less square
feet of living area.

b.   Two hundred fifty( 250) square feet for each unit containing more than five hundred( 500)
square feet and up to one thousand two hundred( 1, 200) square feet of living area.

c.   Three hundred fifty( 350) square feet for each unit containing more than one thousand two
hundred( 1, 200) square feet of living area.

Page 12

Page 234Page 307

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Each unit contains less than 1, 200 square feet of living area therefore, 250 square feet of
common open space is required per unit in accord with the requirements above.

2. Common open space shall be not less than four hundred( 400) square feet in area, and shall have a

minimum length and width dimension of twenty feet( 20').

Proposed open space submitted as meeting this requirement has been reviewed. All area labeled as
qualified common open space on the open space exhibit complies with this requirement. The
Applicant has proposed 19, 561 square feet of qualified open space while needing to provide a
minimum of 16, 500 square feet of common open space; the proposed open space exceeds the
minimum requirements. In addition to the areas shown on the open space exhibit, there is an area

north of the ten units in the very southeast corner of the project that abuts Movado Way that is also
qualifying. This area is approximately 2, 000 square feet in area which increases the qualified open
space further but the exhibit does not show this. Because these ten units are part of the CUP
request, the open space exhibit should also include those units and show how they are meeting the
private open space requirements as well as show any other qualifying common open space.

The proposed open space consists of a buffer between the multi family residential and the existing
residential to the south, a mew between two of the 8plex buildings, a plaza area along Movado Way
that contains the amenities, and other small areas that meet the minimum dimensional standards.

Despite the proposed open space exceeding the minimum required by code, the only area large
enough for a more active open space is the green space to the south of the plaza area that abuts
Movado Way and is approximately 3,000 square feet in area. Because ofthis, the recommended
revisions to the site design are even more important because there would be another area where

residents could sit and safely enjoy their development despite not counting towards the open space.

Furthermore, the developer of the subject parcels is the same as those for the rest ofMovado Estates
and Movado Greens directly south oftheproposed development. It can be assumed these residents
will have the opportunity to utilize the existing pedestrian network to access the larger open spaces
within those developments. The Applicant should verify this at the Commission hearing.

Overall, the proposed open space meets these specific use standards and Staff finds the proposed
open space is adequate, especially with Staffs recommended changes.

3. In phased developments, common open space shall be provided in each phase of the development
consistent with the requirements for the size and number of dwelling units. The multi family portion of
the project is proposed to be developed in one ( 1) phase.

4. Unless otherwise approved through the conditional use process, common open space areas shall not be
adjacent to collector or arterial streets unless separated from the street by a berm or constructed barrier
at least four feet( 4) in height, with breaks in the berm or barrier to allow for pedestrian access. ( Ord.
09- 1394, 3- 3- 2009, eff. retroactive to 2- 4- 2009). The required buffer along S. Movado Way, a
collector street, is not shown as qualified open space on the submitted open space exhibit. However, a
central open space area is proposed adjacent to Movado Way and is separated from the street by an
existing buffer and fencing.

D. Site Development Amenities:

1. All multi-family developments shall provide for quality of life, open space and recreation amenities to
meet the particular needs of the residents as follows:

a. Quality of life:

1) Clubhouse.

2) Fitness facilities.

Page 13

Page 235Page 308

Item #15.



Item# 13.

3) Enclosed bike storage.

4) Public art such as a statue.

b. Open space:

1) Open grassy area of at least fifty by one hundred feet( 50 x 100') in size.

2) Community garden.

3) Ponds or water features.

4) Plaza.

c. Recreation:

1) Pool.

2) Walking trails.

3) Children' s play structures.

4) Sports courts.

2. The number of amenities shall depend on the size of multi- family development as follows:

a. For multi- family developments with less than twenty( 20) units, two ( 2) amenities shall be
provided from two( 2) separate categories.

b. For multi-family development between twenty( 20) and seventy- five( 75) units, three( 3) amenities
shall be provided, with one from each category.

c. For multi-family development with seventy- five( 75) units or more, four( 4) amenities shall be
provided, with at least one from each category.

d. For multi-family developments with more than one hundred( 100) units, the decision-making body
shall require additional amenities commensurate to the size of the proposed development.

3. The decision- making body shall be authorized to consider other improvements in addition to those
provided under this subsection D, provided that these improvements provide a similar level of
amenity. (Ord. 05- 1170, 8- 30-2005, eff. 9- 15- 2005)

Based on 66 proposed units a minimum of three( 3) amenities are required. The Applicant has
proposed 3 amenities, one from each category as required by code. The Applicant has proposed an
enclosed bike storage area, a plaza, and a coffee kiosk. A coffee kiosk is not an option listed above
in the Recreation category but subsection D.3 allows the decision- making body to authorize
alternative options if they provide a similar level of amenity. If the Applicant can provide more
detail in how the coffee kiosk will be operated as an amenityfor this development, Stafffinds it to
be an adequate substitute. If the Commission finds this not to be true, an additional qualifying
amenity should be added to meet these specific use standards.

E. Landscaping Requirements:

1. Development shall meet the minimum landscaping requirements in accord with chapter 3,
Regulations Applying to All Districts", of this title.

2. All street facing elevations shall have landscaping along their foundation. The foundation landscaping
shall meet the following minimum standards:

a. The landscaped area shall be at least three feet( 3') wide.

b. For every three( 3) linear feet of foundation, an evergreen shrub having a minimum mature height of
twenty- four inches( 24") shall be planted.

Page 14

Page 236Page 309

Item #15.



Item# 13.

c. Ground cover plants shall be planted in the remainder of the landscaped area.

The submitted landscape plan appears to meet these specific use standard landscape requirements
and shall befurther verified at the time of CZC submittal( see Exhibit VII.D).

Existing Structures/ Site Improvements:
There are no existing structures on site except for a vinyl privacy fence along Overland Road. S. Movado
Way is a collector street that the Applicant was required to construct with previous approvals for
Movado Estates and Movado Greens developments. All other site improvements would occur with these

approvals.

Dimensional Standards( UDC 11- 2):

The proposed development and future commercial buildings are required to comply with the dimensional
standards listed in UDC Table 11- 2B- 3 for the C- G zoning district. Submitted plans appear to show
compliance with all dimensional standards except for the 10 units in the very southeast corner of the
site, across from E. Vacheron Street. These units are also proposed as 2- bedroom units with tucked
under 2- car garages facing east, meeting the minimum parking requirement for each unit. Submitted site
plans appear to meet all UDC and specific use requirements.

Access( UDC 11- 3A- 31:

Access was discussed heavily in the transportation section of the comprehensive plan analysis section
earlier in the report. For the benefit of this report a quick summary of the proposed access is also in this
section and also includes analysis on the accesses proposed for the ten units in the southeast corner of the
site across from E. Vacheron.

Access for all sections of the development are proposed via driveway connections to Movado Way, the
existing collector street; no units have direct vehicular access to Movado Way but do have easy
pedestrian access. Staff is recommending some changes to the northernmost drive aisle in the northwest
section of the development to increase pedestrian safety and create a better sense of place within the
development. As noted in the previous dimensional standards section, the drive aisle access for the ten
units in the SEC of the site does not show the required 5 feet of landscaping along the eastern property
boundary. The driveway access for these units to Movado Way aligns with Vacheron Street and should
be stubbed to the eastern property line in order to provide for cross- access to the adjacent parcel to the
east that is in the City of Boise. This parcel has recently received approval from the City of Boise for a
commercial and self-service storage development; cross- access to this development is already part of the
existing DA in order to minimize direct access to Overland.

Road Improvements:

The Applicant is required to close any existing curb-cuts along Overland and/ or Movado Way that are
not proposed to be used. This includes the large curb cut along Overland that was required to be closed
with previous approvals. In order to ensure this curb- cut is finally closed, Staff is recommending a
condition of approval that no certificate of occupancy for the multi- family be issued until all curb- cuts
are closed in line with ACHD requirements.

Sidewalks ( UDC 11- 3A- 17):

All sidewalks adjacent to all public streets are already constructed as set forth in UDC 11- 3A- 17 except
for the section noted above that requires the Applicant to close an old curb-cut. All other proposed
sidewalks are adjacent to the multi- family residential buildings and shown adjacent to the future
commercial structures. The pedestrian circulation that is a part of this project will be different should the
Commission agree with Staff s recommended changes for the northernmost drive aisle in the northwest

section of the site.

Page 15

Page 237Page 310

Item #15.



Item# 13.

With Staffs recommended changes, the northernmost drive aisle would have detached sidewalks on both

the north and south side of the drive aisle with ample room for additional trees. This change would
create a short segment of boulevard between the residential and commercial components of the site but
is both a better transition and area ofintegration than currently proposed, especially when the addition
of a shard plaza is incorporated north of this drive aisle. In addition to the recommended detached
sidewalks in this area, Staff is recommending at least one pedestrian crossing between the multi family
townhomes and the commercial/ plaza area that is clearly delineated from the driving surface by being
constructed as either brickpavers, stamped concrete, or similar. These crossings should be clearly
shown on the revisedplans.

Landscaping( UDC 11- 3B):
Street buffer landscaping is required to be provided as set forth in UDC Tables 11- 2B- 3 for the C- G
zoning district, and planted in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11- 3B- 7C. The Overland and
Movado Way street buffers are existing and are shown to remain intact during development. As
discussed in the specific use standards section earlier in the report, the submitted landscape plans appear
to show compliance with all other landscaping requirements for multi-family developments including
vegetative ground cover and the correct number of trees.

A 25- foot landscape buffer on the south side of the C- G zoning is required adjacent to the R- 15 zoning
district to the south. This buffer appears to be shown on the submitted plans and includes additional
landscaping to help minimize any conflicts of the different residential types.

Fencing( UDC 11- 3A- 6, I1- 3A- 7):
All fencing constructed on the site is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11- 3A-7.

A 6-foot tall solid vinyl fence is proposed to remain along all property boundaries. It appears the existing
fencing along Overland is to be removed but the buffer landscaping material will remain.

All proposed fencing meets UDC requirements.

Storm Drainage( UDC 11- 3A- 18 :

An adequate storm drainage system is required in all developments in accord with the City' s adopted
standards, specifications and ordinances. Design and construction shall follow best management practice
as adopted by the City as set forth in UDC 11- 3A- 18. Storm drainage is proposed to be mitigated by
underground seepage beds and/ or retention ponds in accord with ACHD design criteria.

Building Elevations( UDC 11- 3A- 19 I Architectural Standards Manual):
Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the 56 units on the western parcel; no elevations have
been submitted for the future commercial structures or the ten units in the southeast corner of the

development. The Applicant should provide conceptual elevations prior to the Commission meeting.

All non- residential and multi- family structures require Administrative Design Review prior to obtaining
building permits. At the time of those submittals, Staff will analyze conformance with the Architectural
Standards Manual. An application for Certificate of Zoning Compliance is also required to be submitted
along with Design Review for this entire development and each commercial structure.

The elevations submitted for the 56 units on the western parcel show two- story structures with varying
roofprofiles along the rooflines and mostly lap- siding exteriors. No color elevations were submitted so
materials and color palettes cannot be analyzed. However, Staff will analyze all elevations for
compliance with the Architectural Standards Manual at the time ofDesign Review submittal.
Furthermore, Staff is recommending a condition ofapproval that the same design elements are
incorporated in the commercial and multifamily development to ensure integration and congruency in
design.

Page 16

Page 238Page 311

Item #15.



Item# 13.

VI.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed modification to the existing Development Agreement and
approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit per the DA provisions and conditions of approval
included in Section VIII in accord with the Findings in Section IX.

B.  The Meridian Planning& Zoning Commission heard these items on March 4, 2021. At the public
hearing, the Commission moved to recommend denial of the subject Development Agreement
Modification and Conditional Use Permit requests.

1.   Summary of Commission public hearing_
a.    In favor: Hethe Clark, Applicant Legal Rep.
b.    In opposition: Christy Decker, neighbor; Kevin Johnson, neighbor; Clarence Orton,

neighbor; James Preuss, neighbor; JoAnn Gormley, neighbor; Dee Dee Toschi,

neighbor; Walter Nye, neighbor; Sandi Gottesman, neighbor; Jane Quick, neighbor;

Dave Bromley, neighbor; Jan Nye, neighbor; Glenda Conaughey, neighbor; Patricia
Preuss, neighbor; Martha McClay, neighbor.

c.    Commenting: Hethe Clark, Christy Decker, Kevin Johnson, Clarence Orton, James
Preuss, JoAnn Gormley, Dee Dee Toschi, Walter Nye, Sandi Gottesman, Jane Quick,

Dave Bromley, Jan Nye, Glenda Conaughey, Patricia Preuss, and Martha McClay.
d.    Written testimony: None

e.    Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner
f.    Other Staff commenting on application: Bill Parsons, Current Planning Supervisor

2.  Key issue( s) ofpublic testimony
a.    Qualily of the proposed multi- family amenities and lack of area for children to plat
b.    Concern over no updated traffic study being required as well as the assumed increase of

traffic from additional multi- family units;
c.    Value of adjacent homes being brought down by proposed multi- family development;
d.    Proximity of proposed two-story buildings to existing sin l ry homes south of

subject site;

e.    Property was gpproved for Commercial, not more residential;
3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by Commission:

a.    Difficulty of losing commercial area to residential, specifically multi- family residential;
b.    How does the proposed coffee kiosk amenity work?—intended to be self- serve but

stocked by the prope  , management;

c.    Challenge of revising a master-planned community that was approved with a certain
amount of commercial in order to incorporate more residential;

d.    Lack of integration of the proposed residential and commercial;
e.    Do the proposed changes match the comprehensive plan and offer an adequate amount

of commercial and integration with the existingdevelopmentevelopment to the south.

4.  Commission change( s) to Staff recommendation:

a.    None— however, staff made revisions based upon discussions prior to the Commission
hearing; these are noted by strikethrough and underline changes in the recommended
conditions of approval.

b.    Commission recommended denial for the following reasons: it does not fit the
Comprehensive plan, the proximity of the proposed apartments to the existing homes is
too close, and that it does not fit with the existing character of the neighborhood.

5.  Outstandingissue( s)ssue( s) for City Council:
a.     None

Page 17

Page 239Page 312

Item #15.



Item# 13.

C.  The Meridian Citv Council heard these items on April 20, 2021. At the public hearing, the

Council moved to approve the subject Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement

Modification requests.

1.   Summary of the City Council public hearing:

a.    hi favor: Hethe Clark, Applicant Attorney: Mark Bottles. Broker.

b.    In opposition: Gary Dudlicek, neighbor: Jane Quick, neighbor: Carol Ogburn. nei hg
JoAnn Gormley, neighbor: Jim Price. neighbor: Jan Nye, neighbor: Glenda

McConaughev. neighbor: Patricia Price. neighbor: Martha McClay. neighbor: Vera Jo

Bustos, neighbor: Dee Dee Toschi, neighbor: Dave Rognlie, nei bor-

c.    Commenting: Hethe Clark: Jim Conger, Developer: Mark Bottles: Kristy Inselman,
ACHD: Gary Dudlicek: Jane Quick: Carol Ogburn: JoAnn Gormley: Jim Price: Jan

Nye: Glend McConaughe Patrici Price: Martha McCla Vera Jo Bustos: Dee Dee

Toschi: Dave Rognlie.

d.    Written testimony: 14 pieces— 13 against. 1 in favor: Those against note the same issues

as discussed at the previous Commission meeting.

e.    Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner
f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) of public testimony:
a.    Quality and kind of amenities proposed:
b.    Increase of traffic. no new traffic study required, and what is the trigger for the
C.     Movado/ Overland intersection to be signalized:

d.    Buffer width and vegetation density between proposed product type and existing single-

story duplexes to the south:
e.    How do master planned developments like Movado change their plan after the fact:

Difficulty of marketing the subject site for the amount of commercial currently proposed

in the DA with the larger and more visible Eagle View Landing to the north slowly
coming online:

3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:
a.    Submitted letter from West Ada and the assumed number of children,•

b.    Issues associated with additional traffic from more residential versus commercial and

why was a new traffic study not triggered:

C.    Quality of the proposed amenities— are the proposed amenities adequate for the

proposal:
d.    Design of the newly proposed single- story townhomes and the overall proposed

finishing materials of the proposed product type:

e.    Height of all proposed structures, especially the newly proposed single- story units along
the southern boundary,

4.   City Council change( s) to Commission recommendation.

a.    Include an amenity that is child focused— no specific amenity was listed but Applicant
should work with Staff to determine best fit.

b.    Restrict the units along the southern boundary of parcel S 1121121031 abutting the

existing homes in Movado Greens to single- story only.

Page 18

Page 240Page 313

Item #15.



13

1     

r.•-•ey 3 efi

ry

rpEpE     {{ II

aim

in

IRO ;  

Mol   ®! 
l

gig I Sol!

OWN

R

1
ne

ae

5 its-iff!'• c•: r  ?'

Page 314

Item #15.



Item# 13.

B.  Site Plan/ New Concept Plan( date: 2/ 26/ 2021) NOT APPROVED

ri

LL'  Yi -

ST EcwAxrcA E5

ExrtcT
5RE

II      '-  
I              -        I  AFC, uno. x raa x,. . xw gx. x, x c w,     

x xt,

n h
3 I I

r. Vx nwsrv. a siwsNn r, cartn. l-„ s saws Mdo Ina cwuax;       

Q  
rf a. xx xc aam s s, uis( rmrxm)       

I

f-•_   "_ _—    ___-.    

u- --     __   '    

J I

I

cune uv* u.. e mx6e' tc'
e'  

art vnn u, w sxx¢ couurncu w. micr

y V

zxE, xxrsPSII xxx cw,

Page 20

Page 242Page 315

Item #15.



Page 316

Item #15.



Item# 13.

C.  Landscape Plan( dated: 12/ 09/ 2020) NOT APPROVED

PLANT PALETTE
T

m, Fg

C- 

ter

easevae ir

19
a

o- J AI
t

w

z

CL

CL

NOTES

z z

w W

Ill n

CONCEPT

IJ'   PLAN

Page 22

Page 244Page 317

Item #15.



Item# 13.

D.  Qualified Open Space Exhibit( dated: 7/ 30/ 2020) NOT APPROVED

0/-

0
OI X

l   H

i

6 1

Q'  x

N a

I F  
w

s- ir rinn- crrrN tirnc: r J jo 4
d

LEGEND o z

AVA, E, aAa

ow

o

Page 23

Page 245Page 318

Item #15.



Item# 13.

E.  Conceptual Building Elevations

O nxctn c

I
ANYE

P10S, PA.

r     
4

r=       F, 
I

JFI,  EI
rKc l ELEvquoN G O O

r

w

SIDE B ELEVATION SIDE A ELEVAT ON

8O 25 4 3 01
O O O m

J

0       ® rc

I g rcW
r=

ow

O U
BACK ELEVATION

RIGHT ALL RIGHTS RESERVED THIS DR— NG AND ALL INFO. CONIAINED HEREIN GTHE PROPERTY- 11MOTURE DESH NG PLUS PA AND MY NOT BE FEUSEDATTHONT THE NPITTENFERMISSION OFTNEAR- T—

Page 24

Page 246Page 319

Item #15.



Item# 13.

ARCIUTEC] TURE

v

m

71
6-Al

L75

i

x

r yoo

Q
T Imo

Um l

Z

da  o
f LL M w

Hm  

J
J

01

I OLLJO

Page 25

Page 247Page 320

Item #15.



Item# 13.

ARCIIlTECTURE
1 UESIQNSPLUS, P. A.

E ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

rye.

S

I

e

III tl
Il;

II,

3sOUTN ELEVATION 2WEST ELEVATION

X

NFW FI( IOR PIAN U y &
W

H h
4

Q r y8m

yz0r
J
W

Q
Z Q.
G

EET

A,

S.

Page 26

Page 248Page 321

Item #15.



Item# 13.

VIII.  CITY/ AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS

A.  PLANNING DIVISION

Development Agreement Modification:

1.   Within six( 6) months of the City Council granting the subject modification, the owner shall sign and
obtain Council approval of the amended development agreement that includes an updated

development plan as shown in Section VII.B; the amended DA shall include the following
provisions:

a.   Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the conceptual site plan,
conceptual building elevations, landscape plan, and qualified open space exhibits included in
Section VII and the provisions contained herein with the following revisions:

i.  Condense the two eammer-eial buildings en the westem par-eel if4o a singular-two steff
st  ,. 4

ii.  Remove the par-king along the aet4hemmest east west drive aisle on the westeffi par-
allow for-detaehed sidewalks en both sides with 9 feet wide pafkwa-ys and stfeet tfees;

iii.  Add a shared plaza to be used by the commercial and multi- family residential within the
development located somewhere within the area of the proposed commercial buildings along
Overland— conceptual design of this area should be completed by the Applicant and
submitted to Planning Staff for review prior to the City Council hearing;

iv.  Include at least one( 1) pedestrian crossing from the multi- family townhomes to the shared
plaza and commercial that is clearly delineated from the driving surface by being
constructed with brick pavers, stamped concrete, or similar;

b.   The allowed uses within the future commercial buildings shall be flex- space, office, retail,

personal and professional services, restaurant, and daycare uses to aid in the integration and
compatibility with the multi-family residential; no drive throughs shall be permitted within this
development without obtaining a modification to this agreement.

c.   No building permits shall be issued for this development until the property has been subdivided
in accord with the approved preliminary plat( H-2017-0104).

d.   The Applicant shall grant cross- access with the adjacent property to the east( Parcel
S 1121110200) located somewhere along the shared eastern property boundary; copy of the

agreement shall be provided with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application.

e.   The units alone the southern boundary of parcel# S 1121121031 shall be restricted to single- story

only

Page 27

Page 249Page 322

Item #15.



Item# 13.

Conditional Use Permit( CUP):

2.   The Applicant shall adhere to all previous conditions of approval associated with this site( H-2016-
0112& H-2017- 0104).

3.     With the Ceritificate of Zoning

Compliance application, the Applicant shall submit a revised site plan and landscape plan to
reflect Staffs recommended layout changes above and the following dimensional standard
revisions:

i.   Revise the drive aisle in the southeast corner of the western parcel to reduce this segment' s
length to no more than 150 feet.

4. With the Ceritificate of Zoning Compliance
as nl the Applicant shall submit a revised open space exhibit showing the ten( 10) units in the
southeast corner of the development and compliance with the multi- family open space standards.

5.   Prior to obtaining certificate of occupancy on any building within this development, the Applicant
shall close all curb- cuts not being proposed for use along S. Movado Way and E. Overland Road
with curb, gutter, and sidewalk commensurate with ACHD requirements.

6.   The Appheant shall provide eeneeptual eleveAieas fer-the proposed multi family dwellings leeated in.
the very seutheast eemer- ef the site a-ad all een* ner-eial bttildings a4 least ten( 10) days prior-to the
City r,,, nei he  - ing

7.   Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in UDC

Table 11- 2B- 3 for the C- G zoning district.

8.   An additional amenity shall be added to the site that is geared towards children( i.e. a tot- lot.

climbing boulders. etc. l.

9.   Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 11-
3C- 6 for multi-family dwellings based on the number ofbedrooms per unit.

10. The Applicant shall comply with all ACHD conditions of approval.

11. The Applicant shall obtain Administrative Design Review and Certificate of Zoning Compliance
approvals for the future commercial buildings prior to submittal for any building permits for the
commercial portion of the development.

12. The Applicant shall obtain Administrative Design Review and Certificate of Zoning Compliance
approvals for the multi-family residential buildings prior to submittal for any building permits for the
residential portion of the development. Because the two multi-family developments are separated by
S. Movado Way and on separate lots, the applicant shall submit a Design Review application for
each lot.

13. Future building elevations of both the commercial and multi-family development shall incorporate
similar design elements and finish materials to ensure cohesive project design.

14. The Applicant shall remove the existing privacy fencing along the Overland Road frontage for the
commercial portion of the site with development of each commercial site and subsequent Certificate
of Zoning Compliance approval.

15. Provide a pressurized irrigation system consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11- 3A- 15,
UDC 11- 3B- 6 and MCC 9- 1- 28.

Page 28

Page 250Page 323

Item #15.



Item# 13.

16. Upon completion of the landscape installation, a written Certificate of Completion shall be submitted

to the Planning Division verifying all landscape improvements are in substantial compliance with the
approved landscape plan as set forth in UDC 11- 313- 14.

17. The conditional use approval shall become null and void unless otherwise approved by the City if
the applicant fails to 1) commence the use, satisfy the requirements, acquire building permits and
commence construction within two years as set forth in UDC 11- 513- 6F. 1; or 2) obtain approval of a
time extension as set forth in UDC 11- 5B- 6F. 4.

B.  PUBLIC WORKS

1.   Site Specific Conditions of Approval

1. 1 No Permanent structures( buildings, carports, trash receptacle walls, fences, infiltration trenches,

lightpoles, etc.) can be built within the utility easement. It is unclear as to how the
commercial/ office building in the northeast corner will be serviced.

1. 2 Eliminate water main dead- end at southeast corner of western parcel; possibly run a service line
to the building instead.

1. 3 A streetlight plan will need to be included in the final plat or building permit application.
Streetlight plan requirements are listed in section 6 of the City's Design Standards. Streetlights
are required on Overland Road. Streetlights shall be installed and operational prior to any
occupancy as required in section 6 of the Meridian Design Standards.

2.   General Conditions of Approval

2. 1 Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works
Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to provide
service outside of a public right-of-way. Minimum cover over sewer mains is three feet, if cover
from top of pipe to sub- grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall be used in
conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard Specifications.

2.2 Per Meridian City Code( MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water
mains to and through this development. Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement
agreement for infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8- 6- 5.

2. 3 The applicant shall provide easement( s) for all public water/sewer mains outside ofpublic right
of way( include all water services and hydrants). The easement widths shall be 20- feet wide for

a single utility, or 30- feet wide for two. The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but
rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian' s standard forms. The
easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed
easement( on the form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho
Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement( marked

EXHIBIT A) and an 81/ 2" x I I" map with bearings and distances( marked EXHIBIT B) for
review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO
NOT RECORD. Add a note to the plat referencing this document. All easements must be
submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to development plan approval.

2. 4 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round
source of water( MCC 12- 13- 8. 3). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface
or well water for the primary source. If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single- point connection is utilized,
the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to
prior to receiving development plan approval.

Page 29

Page 251Page 324

Item #15.



Item# 13.

2. 5 All existing structures that are required to be removed shall be prior to signature on the final plat
by the City Engineer. Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to evaluation
and possible reassignment of street addressing to be in compliance with MCC.

2. 6 All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting,
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per
UDC 11- 3A- 6. In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42- 1207
and any other applicable law or regulation.

2. 7 Any existing domestic well system within this project shall be removed from domestic service
per City Ordinance Section 9- 1- 4 and 9 4 8 contact the City of Meridian Engineering
Department at( 208) 898- 5500 for inspections of disconnection of services. Wells may be used
for non-domestic purposes such as landscape irrigation if approved by Idaho Department of
Water Resources Contact Robert B. Whitney at( 208) 334- 2190.

2. 8 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City
Ordinance Section 9- 1- 4 and 9 4 8. Contact Central District Health for abandonment procedures
and inspections( 208) 375- 5211.

2. 9 Street signs are to be in place, sanitary sewer and water system shall be approved and activated,
road base approved by the Ada County Highway District and the Final Plat for this subdivision
shall be recorded, prior to applying for building permits.

2. 10 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all uncompleted

fencing, landscaping, amenities, etc., prior to signature on the final plat.

2. 11 All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy
of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance
surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set
forth in UDC 11- 5C- 3B.

2. 12 Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan
approval letter.

2. 13 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act.

2. 14 Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting
that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers.

2. 15 Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office.

2. 16 All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11- 12- 3H.

2. 17 Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material.

2. 18 The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a
minimum of 3- feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation. This is to ensure
that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1- foot above.

2. 19 The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/ or

drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district
or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed
in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a
certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.

Page 30

Page 252Page 325

Item #15.



Item# 13.

2. 20 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per
the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards. These record drawings must be received and
approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the
project.

2. 21 A street light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light plan
requirements are listed in section 6- 5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting. A copy
of the standards can be found at http:// www. meridiancity. org/ public_ works. aspx? id= 272.

2. 22 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a performance surety in the amount
of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water and reuse infrastructure

prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by
the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash
deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the
Community Development Department website. Please contact Land Development Service for
more information at 887- 2211.

2. 23 The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of
20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse infrastructure for

duration of two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the
owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash
deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the
Community Development Department website. Please contact Land Development Service for
more information at 887- 2211.

C.  POLICE DEPARTMENT

https: llweblink.meridianciU. orelWebLinkIDocView. aspx? id=222720& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianCiU& cr
1

D.  NAMPA- MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT( NMID)

https: llweblink.meridiancily.orglWebLinkIDoeView. aspx?id=223055& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianCitX

E.  CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT( CDHD)

https: llweblink. meridianciU. ore/ WebLink/ DocView. aspx? id=222773& dbid= 0& r0o=MeridianCitX

F.  DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY( DEQ)

https: llweblink. meridianciU. ore/ WebLink/ DocView. aspx? id=222737& dbid= 0& r0o=MeridianCitX

G.  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCHOOL IMPACT TABLE

https: llweblink.meridiancily.org/ WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=218002& dbid= 0& r0o=MeridianCitX

H.  ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT( ACHD)

https: llweblink.meridiancily.orglWebLinkIDocView.aspx?id=218955& dbid= 0& repo= MeridianCitX

IX.  FINDINGS

A.  Conditional Use Permit Findings ( UDC 11- 5B- 6D:

The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the
following:

Page 31

Page 253Page 326

Item #15.



Item# 13.

1.  That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional
and development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

If all conditions of approval are met, Council finds the submitted site plan shows compliance with all
dimensional and development regulations in the C-G zoning district in which it resides.

2.  That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in
accord with the requirements of this title.

Councilfinds the proposed use ofmultifamily residential, with Staff's recommended revisions, is
harmonious with the comprehensive plan designation ofMixed- Use Regional and the requirements
of this title when included in the overall project analysis.

3.  That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in

the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity
and that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area.

Despite the proposed use being different than the residential uses directly to the south, Council finds
the design, construction, and proposed operation and maintenance will be compatible with other
uses in the general neighborhood and should not adversely change the essential character of the
same area, so long as the Applicant complies with Staffs recommended revisions and maintains all
required landscape buffers.

4.  That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

Councilfinds the proposed use, ifit complies with all conditions ofapproval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

5.  That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such
as highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse
disposal, water, and sewer.

Council finds the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services
because all services are readily available.

6.  That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services
and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

All public facilities and services are readily available for the subject site so Council finds the
proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community or create excessive
additional costs for public facilities and services.

7.  That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare
by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

Although traffic is sure to increase in the vicinity with the addition ofmore residential units, all
major roadways adjacent to the site are already at their full width and the development has multiple

Page 32

Page 254Page 327

Item #15.



Item# 13.

avenues of accessing the arterial network to the north or to the south. Therefore, Council finds the
proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare.

8.  That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or
historic feature considered to be of major importance. ( Ord. 05- 1170, 8- 30- 2005, eff. 9- 15-

2005)

Council is unaware ofany natural, scenic, or historic features within the development area,
therefore, Councilfinds the proposed use should not result in damage ofany such features.

Page 33

Page 255Page 328

Item #15.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Agreement Between City of Meridian and Nampa and Meridian Irrigation 
District for Five Mile Pathway along Five Mile Drain at Quartet Subdivision Northeast No. 1

Page 329

Item #16.



Page 330

Item #16.



Page 331

Item #16.



Page 332

Item #16.



Page 333

Item #16.



Page 334

Item #16.



Page 335

Item #16.



Page 336

Item #16.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Artwork License Agreements for the Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 
Series

Page 337

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

(“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 

Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Joyce Green, 

an individual person (“Artist”).  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end, 

the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking 

proposals for the inclusion of artwork in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository, a repository of images 

portraying artwork available for production of vinyl wraps to be installed on traffic signal boxes in Meridian 

as derivative works, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway District, as part of the 

Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist submitted a response to the Call for Artists, which response included the 

Application and Acknowledgments and letter of intent attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2021, the Meridian Arts Commission reviewed the responses to the Call for 

Artists, recommended works appropriate for inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository based on their 

respectively submitted proposals, including the piece of art entitled Jerseys in Idaho, depicted in Exhibit C 

hereto (“Artwork”) submitted by Artist, and on June 15, 2021, Meridian City Council accepted such 

recommendation, creating the Traffic Box Art Image Repository via Resolution no. 21-2271; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist wishes to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to be scanned and 

formatted in order to depict a derivative work of the Artwork on a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control 

box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. License; alterations.  Artist grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or photographically 

produce a derivative work from the image of the original Artwork, print such image or portion(s) thereof 

on one or more vinyl wraps (“Vinyl Wrap”), install the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more 

traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho, and authorize third parties to do the same. Artist acknowledges 

and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or reproducing the image of 

Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or 

otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the original Artwork onto a traffic control box as a 

derivative work of the Artwork, or for any other purpose, in City’s sole discretion.  

 

B. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Artist shall allow City to temporarily take possession of the original 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image or portions thereof 

on the Vinyl Wrap, and installing the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more traffic control boxes 

in Meridian, Idaho.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork 

and/or of Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of original Artwork shall be in Artist’s sole 

discretion and responsibility.  Artist shall bear any and all risks of and actual loss, theft, and/or damage to 

the original Artwork. 

 

C. Copyright.  Artist and City agree that the Vinyl Wrap shall constitute a derivative work of the Artwork 

with a separate copyright.  Artist shall maintain any copyright in the original Artwork. City shall maintain 

Page 338

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 2 

the copyright of the derivative work and any product or component thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap 

created therefrom, which shall belong wholly to the City, and Artist shall not make any claim thereto. As 

to the derivative work: 

1. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created using the 

derivative work.  Artist understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.   

2. Artist agrees to relinquish and waive any and all rights, title, and interest to the derivative work, 

images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, including, but not limited to, the rights afforded 

artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 

et seq.  Artist understands and agrees that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth 

in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent 

that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act 

of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties 

created thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Artist is creator of Artwork.  Artist warrants and represents that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Artist is the lawful owner of all rights in the Artwork and the content depicted therein. 

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any derivative work arising from 

a portion or product thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  The installation location(s) of 

the Vinyl Wrap created as derivative works from Artwork, if any, will be selected in the City’s sole 

discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may modify or remove, or allow 

modification or removal of same, in City’s sole discretion.  Artist specifically waives the right to claim any 

remedy concerning the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof for preparation of the 

derivative work, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this 

Agreement to install any Vinyl Wrap featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Artist for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement in the 

amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).  This payment shall constitute full compensation from City to 

Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses related to services performed under this Agreement.  

Artist shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this 

Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Artist consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or recordings of Artist, 

Artwork, derivative works created using Artwork, and/or the Vinyl Wrap for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Artist acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this Agreement 

presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Artist shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and forever discharge 

City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, 

or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or City in the course 

of any activity associated with this Agreement not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, 

regardless of the manner by which such claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Artist is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venturer, 

or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, 

agent, or employee of City. 

Page 339

Item #17.



Page 340

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

 
 

 
  

 

Call for Artists: TRAFFIC BOX ART IMAGE REPOSITORY 
 

OVERVIEW: 
The Meridian Arts Commission (MAC) seeks proposals of two-dimensional artwork to be added to a repository of 
images portraying artwork available for reproduction on a vinyl wrap to be installed on a traffic box in Meridian.  
As funding becomes available, MAC and/or a sponsoring partner may select a piece of artwork represented in the 
repository to reproduce as a vinyl wrap. Artwork included in the repository may not be selected for a traffic box 
wrap. A $600 stipend shall be available for artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap to be 
installed on a traffic box, following execution of, and pursuant to, a written agreement with the City of Meridian 
and scanning of the original artwork portrayed in the selected image by City or City’s selected vendor.  
 

ELIGIBILITY: 

This project is open to applicants regardless of race, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, 
nationality, or disability.  The Traffic Box Art Image Repository is to include original artwork by artists who 
live or work in Idaho’s Treasure Valley, created using any medium, so long as it can be represented in a high-
resolution digital image without loss of integrity or quality.  No artwork will be included in the repository which 
does not meet the selection criteria.  Artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap will be 
required to enter into a written agreement with the City setting forth specific terms and conditions of 
inclusion.  Each person may submit up to three (3) images for consideration; a maximum of two (2) images per 

person may be selected for inclusion in the repository. Incomplete or late submissions will be deemed 
ineligible and will not be considered. 
 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
An artist wishing to submit an image for inclusion in the digital repository must provide the following materials 
and information to MAC in order to be considered for inclusion in the digital repository: 
• Completed, signed Traffic Box Art Image Repository Application & Acknowledgements form; 
• Descriptions of artwork submitted (which may be used on the online Digital Public Art Map and/or in posted 

descriptions of completed boxes), approx. 2-3 sentences per artwork, in .pdf format; 
• Biography of the artist (or artist statement), must fit on one-page, in .pdf format; and 
• Up to three (3) digital images of original artwork proposed for inclusion in the digital repository, image file 

names must include artist’s last name and artwork title.   
E-mailed submissions may be sent to mac@meridiancity.org: documents must be .PDF and artwork images must 
be .JPG format.  Hard copy materials (printed on 20 lb paper) may be submitted via U.S. Mail or in-person 
delivery, addressed to:  Meridian Arts Commission 

33 East Broadway Avenue Ste 206 
Meridian ID  83642 

DEADLINE: 
This call shall be open until 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, April 15, 2021. 
 

SELECTION PROCESS: 
The selection of art for inclusion in the digital repository will be made by MAC.  MAC will notify selectees by 
email by May 17, 2021.  In evaluating eligible proposals, the following factors will be considered and scored out 
of a total 100 points possible: 

• Quality of work (30 points); 

• Consistency with City policy and community values (30 points);  

• Contribution to aesthetic and cultural atmosphere of the Meridian community (30 points); and 

• Suitability of design and concept for a traffic box wrapping (10 points). 
Artwork will be deemed inappropriate which portrays: content which violates copyright or other known legal 
ownership interest, profanity, obscenity, indecency, violence, pornography; discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or nationality; defamation or personal attacks. 
 

CONTACT MAC:  
Questions regarding this Call for Artists may be sent via e-mail to mac@meridiancity.org. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 341

Item #17.

mailto:mac@meridiancity.org


 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT B 

APPLICATION MATERIALS

Page 342

Item #17.



Page 343

Item #17.



Joyce Green
1088 W. Chateau Avenue

Meridian, Idaho 83646
208-888-2427

joycegreenart@cableone.net

joycegreenwatercolors.com

    Originally from Minnesota, Joyce Green has been a professional artist for over thirty five years. She 
has earned signature membership in the American Watercolor Society  (New York), and also holds 
signature status inThe National Watercolor Society, The Transparent Watercolor Society of America , 
and Watercolor West. She has had works selected for exhibition the Rocky Mountain National 
(Denver), the Northwest Watercolor Society (Seattle), The Western Federation of Watercolor Societies, 
The San Diego Watercolor Society, and many regional venues.  Her work has won numerous awards, 
including four “Best of Show” honors, and the Bill Peregrin award at the 2011 Watercolor West 
Exhibition, and a Dick Blick Award at the 2020 Rocky Mountain National Watermedia exhibit.
She is a distinguished merit member and past president of the Idaho Watercolor Society. 
     Joyce holds degrees in art from the University of Minnesota, Duluth (B.S. magna cum laude), and 
the University of Arizona (M.Ed).   She has held professional positions in art education in Ohio and 
Arizona, and teaches watercolor workshops and classes in Idaho.  She has also served as curator of 
education at the Columbus (Ohio) Museum of Art.   She has resided  in Idaho for over 35 years.  
     Travel,  both foreign and domestic, has been, and continues to be, one of the most stimulating 
influences on Joyce’s artistic life.  Many of her paintings have been inspired by the experiences 
encountered in more than 50 years of travels, literally around the world,  with her late husband Robert.  
They have traveled to more than 80 countries since the 1960’s. 
       For over two decades, Joyce has focused upon the use of the traditional watercolor medium.  She is
fascinated by the expressive effects possible through layering glazes to build color and textural nuance, 
allowing exploration of design possibilities in light patterns regardless of the subject she chooses.  
Masking is used only for specific effects, such as to capture the play of light on the surface of the water.
The use of masking facilitates the feeling of surface, allowing the glazed layers to develop the depth of 
transparencies desired.

“I strive to paint memorable and personally creatively authentic visions, carefully designed and 
technically proficient in my chosen medium.  I prefer to express positive aspects of life.”

Page 344

Item #17.



Descriptions of Artwork Submitted
by Joyce Green

1. Jerseys in Idaho:  watercolor
These cows are truly citizens of Meridian.  I found them off Victory Road, and they 
immediately chose to greet me when I pulled off the road to photograph them.  The barn is also 
a genuine Meridian barn, which was between Linder and Meridian Road on McMillan for many
years, now unfortunately razed to make way for yet another subdivision.  It was a beautiful 
barn, and I would love to see this part of Meridian's past displayed for all to see on a traffic 
box.!

2. Flume Fortissimo:   watercolor
            Part of my Water Music series, Flume Fortissimo references both a water name and a music       
            name.  It is one of the more abstract compositions in that series, and took inspiration from 
            a falls on the Little Salmon north of New Meadows.  I hope you can almost hear the roar!

     3.    Basque Dancers (Weave):   watercolor
   Actually “Weaving the Dance”,  this group of Basque heritage children were dancing their 
way through a parade.    I have loved the Basque cultural presence in our community, and the 
sheer joy of the dance.  Every dancer smiles!  So much fun!  I am known in this area for my
Basque Dancer paintings.

Page 345

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 8 

EXHIBIT C 

JERSEYS IN IDAHO 

 
 

 

Page 346

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

(“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 

Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Marne Elmore, 

an individual person (“Artist”).  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end, 

the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking 

proposals for the inclusion of artwork in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository, a repository of images 

portraying artwork available for production of vinyl wraps to be installed on traffic signal boxes in Meridian 

as derivative works, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway District, as part of the 

Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist submitted a response to the Call for Artists, which response included the 

Application and Acknowledgments and letter of intent attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2021, the Meridian Arts Commission reviewed the responses to the Call for 

Artists, recommended works appropriate for inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository based on their 

respectively submitted proposals, including the piece of art entitled Billy, depicted in Exhibit C hereto 

(“Artwork”) submitted by Artist, and on June 15, 2021, Meridian City Council accepted such 

recommendation, creating the Traffic Box Art Image Repository via Resolution no. 21-2271; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist wishes to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to be scanned and 

formatted in order to depict a derivative work of the Artwork on a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control 

box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. License; alterations.  Artist grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or photographically 

produce a derivative work from the image of the original Artwork, print such image or portion(s) thereof 

on one or more vinyl wraps (“Vinyl Wrap”), install the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more 

traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho, and authorize third parties to do the same. Artist acknowledges 

and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or reproducing the image of 

Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or 

otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the original Artwork onto a traffic control box as a 

derivative work of the Artwork, or for any other purpose, in City’s sole discretion.  

 

B. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Artist shall allow City to temporarily take possession of the original 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image or portions thereof 

on the Vinyl Wrap, and installing the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more traffic control boxes 

in Meridian, Idaho.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork 

and/or of Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of original Artwork shall be in Artist’s sole 

discretion and responsibility.  Artist shall bear any and all risks of and actual loss, theft, and/or damage to 

the original Artwork. 

 

C. Copyright.  Artist and City agree that the Vinyl Wrap shall constitute a derivative work of the Artwork 

with a separate copyright.  Artist shall maintain any copyright in the original Artwork. City shall maintain 

Page 347

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 2 

the copyright of the derivative work and any product or component thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap 

created therefrom, which shall belong wholly to the City, and Artist shall not make any claim thereto. As 

to the derivative work: 

1. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created using the 

derivative work.  Artist understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.   

2. Artist agrees to relinquish and waive any and all rights, title, and interest to the derivative work, 

images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, including, but not limited to, the rights afforded 

artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 

et seq.  Artist understands and agrees that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth 

in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent 

that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act 

of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties 

created thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Artist is creator of Artwork.  Artist warrants and represents that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Artist is the lawful owner of all rights in the Artwork and the content depicted therein. 

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any derivative work arising from 

a portion or product thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  The installation location(s) of 

the Vinyl Wrap created as derivative works from Artwork, if any, will be selected in the City’s sole 

discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may modify or remove, or allow 

modification or removal of same, in City’s sole discretion.  Artist specifically waives the right to claim any 

remedy concerning the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof for preparation of the 

derivative work, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this 

Agreement to install any Vinyl Wrap featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Artist for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement in the 

amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).  This payment shall constitute full compensation from City to 

Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses related to services performed under this Agreement.  

Artist shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this 

Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Artist consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or recordings of Artist, 

Artwork, derivative works created using Artwork, and/or the Vinyl Wrap for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Artist acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this Agreement 

presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Artist shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and forever discharge 

City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, 

or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or City in the course 

of any activity associated with this Agreement not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, 

regardless of the manner by which such claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Artist is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venturer, 

or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, 

agent, or employee of City. 

Page 348

Item #17.



Page 349

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

 
 

 
  

 

Call for Artists: TRAFFIC BOX ART IMAGE REPOSITORY 
 

OVERVIEW: 
The Meridian Arts Commission (MAC) seeks proposals of two-dimensional artwork to be added to a repository of 
images portraying artwork available for reproduction on a vinyl wrap to be installed on a traffic box in Meridian.  
As funding becomes available, MAC and/or a sponsoring partner may select a piece of artwork represented in the 
repository to reproduce as a vinyl wrap. Artwork included in the repository may not be selected for a traffic box 
wrap. A $600 stipend shall be available for artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap to be 
installed on a traffic box, following execution of, and pursuant to, a written agreement with the City of Meridian 
and scanning of the original artwork portrayed in the selected image by City or City’s selected vendor.  
 

ELIGIBILITY: 

This project is open to applicants regardless of race, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, 
nationality, or disability.  The Traffic Box Art Image Repository is to include original artwork by artists who 
live or work in Idaho’s Treasure Valley, created using any medium, so long as it can be represented in a high-
resolution digital image without loss of integrity or quality.  No artwork will be included in the repository which 
does not meet the selection criteria.  Artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap will be 
required to enter into a written agreement with the City setting forth specific terms and conditions of 
inclusion.  Each person may submit up to three (3) images for consideration; a maximum of two (2) images per 

person may be selected for inclusion in the repository. Incomplete or late submissions will be deemed 
ineligible and will not be considered. 
 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
An artist wishing to submit an image for inclusion in the digital repository must provide the following materials 
and information to MAC in order to be considered for inclusion in the digital repository: 
• Completed, signed Traffic Box Art Image Repository Application & Acknowledgements form; 
• Descriptions of artwork submitted (which may be used on the online Digital Public Art Map and/or in posted 

descriptions of completed boxes), approx. 2-3 sentences per artwork, in .pdf format; 
• Biography of the artist (or artist statement), must fit on one-page, in .pdf format; and 
• Up to three (3) digital images of original artwork proposed for inclusion in the digital repository, image file 

names must include artist’s last name and artwork title.   
E-mailed submissions may be sent to mac@meridiancity.org: documents must be .PDF and artwork images must 
be .JPG format.  Hard copy materials (printed on 20 lb paper) may be submitted via U.S. Mail or in-person 
delivery, addressed to:  Meridian Arts Commission 

33 East Broadway Avenue Ste 206 
Meridian ID  83642 

DEADLINE: 
This call shall be open until 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, April 15, 2021. 
 

SELECTION PROCESS: 
The selection of art for inclusion in the digital repository will be made by MAC.  MAC will notify selectees by 
email by May 17, 2021.  In evaluating eligible proposals, the following factors will be considered and scored out 
of a total 100 points possible: 

• Quality of work (30 points); 

• Consistency with City policy and community values (30 points);  

• Contribution to aesthetic and cultural atmosphere of the Meridian community (30 points); and 

• Suitability of design and concept for a traffic box wrapping (10 points). 
Artwork will be deemed inappropriate which portrays: content which violates copyright or other known legal 
ownership interest, profanity, obscenity, indecency, violence, pornography; discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or nationality; defamation or personal attacks. 
 

CONTACT MAC:  
Questions regarding this Call for Artists may be sent via e-mail to mac@meridiancity.org. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 350

Item #17.

mailto:mac@meridiancity.org


 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT B 

APPLICATION MATERIALS

Page 351

Item #17.



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Application & Acknowledgments: TRAFFIC BOX ART DIGITAL REPOSITORY 
 

Applicant:                 

E-mail address:               

Mailing address:               

Physical address:                

Applicant phone: Day:                                 Cell:                             

Where did you hear about this opportunity?:           

Image title(s): 1.              

 2.              

 3.              
 
I hereby acknowledge the following stipulations and agree that if one of the images listed above is selected for 
inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Digital Repository, such inclusion shall occur subject to these general terms and 
conditions, as well as subject to other specific terms and conditions that shall be set forth in a separate, 
written Acceptance Agreement between myself and the City of Meridian.  I specifically acknowledge and agree 
that: 
 
____ A. All artwork submitted with this proposal for consideration for inclusion in the digital  
INITIAL   repository is original work that I myself conceived and created in all respects. 
 
____ B. Before work represented in the digital repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap,   
INITIAL  I will be required to enter into a written agreement with the City of Meridian establishing the  

specific terms and conditions of such installation.  No entitlement will issue or attach prior to 
negotiation and execution of such agreement. 

 
____ C. Before work represented in the repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap, I will  
INITIAL   be required to provide the original artwork from which the image was taken.  If the original  

artwork is no longer in my possession, I will advise the Meridian Arts Commission so that the 
image may be removed from the digital repository as a potential option for installation as a vinyl 
wrap. 

 
____ D. Upon submission of artwork to the City of Meridian for consideration for inclusion in the  
INITIAL   digital repository, such submission is a public record, subject to the Idaho Public Records Act. 
 
____ E. Artwork included in the digital repository may be removed from the repository, and/or the  
INITIAL   repository may be deleted or discontinued, without notice to the artist. 
 
____ F. The City seeks to encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, but must simultaneously  
INITIAL   ensure that persons of diverse ages and perspectives feel welcome and comfortable in public  

spaces. To this end, only artwork meeting the eligibility standards described in the Call for 
Artists shall be included in the digital repository. 

 
I acknowledge and understand, and submit my proposal subject to, each and all of these terms and conditions. 
 
 
Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 

Page 352

Item #17.

marneelmore@gmail.com

1703 N. Liberty St., Boise, ID 83704

1703 N. Liberty St., Boise, ID 83704

#541-740-7561

#541-740-7561

Instagram

Marne Elmore

MRE

MRE

MRE

MRE

MRE

MRE

04/15/2021

Billy

Untitled (Buffalo)

Gila Rattler



Marne	  Elmore	  
Meridian	  Arts	  Commission	  
Traffic	  Box	  Art	  Image	  Repository	  2021	  
	  
Artist	  Statement	  
	  
As	  a	  printmaker,	  I	  value	  the	  qualities	  of	  repetition	  and	  variation	  inherent	  in	  all	  art	  that	  
comes	  from	  the	  hand.	  I	  incorporate	  several	  artistic	  mediums	  including	  drawing	  and	  
painting	  in	  my	  studio	  practice	  while	  engaging	  in	  the	  printmaking	  mediums	  of	  intaglio,	  
relief	  printmaking,	  and	  lithography.	  I	  am	  a	  methodical,	  process-‐oriented	  artist.	  The	  
fodder	  for	  my	  inspiration	  is	  varied,	  but	  includes	  the	  landscape,	  the	  environment,	  
space,	  and	  politics.	  
	  
Biography	  
	  
Marne	  Elmore	  grew	  up	  in	  the	  small,	  quiet,	  and	  scenic	  Wood	  River	  Valley	  in	  Bellevue,	  
Idaho.	  She	  attended	  Oregon	  State	  University	  where	  she	  received	  a	  Bachelor	  of	  Fine	  
Arts	  in	  Visual	  Art	  with	  a	  minor	  in	  Art	  History.	  Elmore	  received	  a	  Master	  of	  Fine	  Arts	  
degree	  at	  the	  University	  of	  New	  Mexico	  with	  a	  studio	  art	  emphasis	  in	  Printmaking.	  
Currently,	  Elmore	  is	  living	  and	  working	  in	  Boise,	  Idaho,	  where	  she	  has	  been	  for	  nigh	  
seven	  years.	  
	  

Page 353

Item #17.



Marne	  Elmore	  
Meridian	  Arts	  Commission	  
Traffic	  Box	  Art	  Image	  Repository	  2021	  
	  
Artwork	  Descriptions	  
	  

1. Billy,	  linocut	  and	  woodblock	  print,	  11.5”	  x	  9”	  
This	  piece	  is	  a	  much	  smaller	  version	  of	  a	  larger	  woodcut	  I	  created	  that	  
explores	  the	  intrinsically	  adept	  nature	  of	  mountain	  goats	  and	  their	  fearless	  
intimidation	  alongside	  their	  simultaneous	  quirkiness.	  They	  are	  masters	  of	  
slight	  rock	  face,	  and	  their	  skills	  are	  confounding.	  

	  
2. Untitled	  (Buffalo),	  woodcut	  and	  woodblock	  print,	  8”	  x	  10”	  

This	  piece	  is	  a	  reflection	  on	  the	  strange	  juxtaposition	  of	  what	  could	  be	  
deemed	  ‘wild’	  and	  the	  state	  of	  the	  natural	  world	  in	  places	  where	  extreme	  
human	  interaction	  has	  led	  to	  a	  convolution	  of	  such	  ‘wild’	  spaces.	  It	  is	  also	  a	  
wonderment	  of	  persistence	  of	  species	  in	  tough	  circumstances	  throughout	  
history.	  

	  
3. Gila	  Rattler,	  two-‐color	  lithograph	  and	  woodcut	  print,	  22”	  x	  15”	  

It	  is	  wildly	  terrifying	  to	  come	  close	  to	  a	  rattlesnake	  unexpectedly.	  This	  print	  
is	  based	  on	  one	  such	  experience	  and	  the	  raw	  appreciation	  of	  such	  a	  volatile,	  
dangerous,	  and	  yet,	  gorgeous	  creature.	  

Page 354

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 8 

EXHIBIT C 

BILLY 

 
 

 

Page 355

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

(“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 

Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Miguel 

Almeida, an individual person (“Artist”).  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end, 

the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking 

proposals for the inclusion of artwork in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository, a repository of images 

portraying artwork available for production of vinyl wraps to be installed on traffic signal boxes in Meridian 

as derivative works, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway District, as part of the 

Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist submitted a response to the Call for Artists, which response included the 

Application and Acknowledgments and letter of intent attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2021, the Meridian Arts Commission reviewed the responses to the Call for 

Artists, recommended works appropriate for inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository based on their 

respectively submitted proposals, including the piece of art entitled Somos Idaho, depicted in Exhibit C hereto 

(“Artwork”) submitted by Artist, and on June 15, 2021, Meridian City Council accepted such 

recommendation, creating the Traffic Box Art Image Repository via Resolution no. 21-2271; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist wishes to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to be scanned and 

formatted in order to depict a derivative work of the Artwork on a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control 

box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. License; alterations.  Artist grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or photographically 

produce a derivative work from the image of the original Artwork, print such image or portion(s) thereof 

on one or more vinyl wraps (“Vinyl Wrap”), install the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more 

traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho, and authorize third parties to do the same. Artist acknowledges 

and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or reproducing the image of 

Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or 

otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the original Artwork onto a traffic control box as a 

derivative work of the Artwork, or for any other purpose, in City’s sole discretion.  

 

B. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Artist shall allow City to temporarily take possession of the original 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image or portions thereof 

on the Vinyl Wrap, and installing the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more traffic control boxes 

in Meridian, Idaho.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork 

and/or of Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of original Artwork shall be in Artist’s sole 

discretion and responsibility.  Artist shall bear any and all risks of and actual loss, theft, and/or damage to 

the original Artwork. 

 

C. Copyright.  Artist and City agree that the Vinyl Wrap shall constitute a derivative work of the Artwork 

with a separate copyright.  Artist shall maintain any copyright in the original Artwork. City shall maintain 

Page 356

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 2 

the copyright of the derivative work and any product or component thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap 

created therefrom, which shall belong wholly to the City, and Artist shall not make any claim thereto. As 

to the derivative work: 

1. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created using the 

derivative work.  Artist understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.   

2. Artist agrees to relinquish and waive any and all rights, title, and interest to the derivative work, 

images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, including, but not limited to, the rights afforded 

artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 

et seq.  Artist understands and agrees that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth 

in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent 

that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act 

of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties 

created thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Artist is creator of Artwork.  Artist warrants and represents that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Artist is the lawful owner of all rights in the Artwork and the content depicted therein. 

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any derivative work arising from 

a portion or product thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  The installation location(s) of 

the Vinyl Wrap created as derivative works from Artwork, if any, will be selected in the City’s sole 

discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may modify or remove, or allow 

modification or removal of same, in City’s sole discretion.  Artist specifically waives the right to claim any 

remedy concerning the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof for preparation of the 

derivative work, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this 

Agreement to install any Vinyl Wrap featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Artist for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement in the 

amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).  This payment shall constitute full compensation from City to 

Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses related to services performed under this Agreement.  

Artist shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this 

Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Artist consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or recordings of Artist, 

Artwork, derivative works created using Artwork, and/or the Vinyl Wrap for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Artist acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this Agreement 

presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Artist shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and forever discharge 

City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, 

or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or City in the course 

of any activity associated with this Agreement not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, 

regardless of the manner by which such claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Artist is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venturer, 

or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, 

agent, or employee of City. 

Page 357

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 3 

 

D. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  This 

Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either party, or agents of 

either party, whether oral or written.  The terms of this Agreement may not be enlarged, modified or 

altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 

E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts of Ada 

County, Idaho. 

 

F. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 

illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected. 

 

G. Successors and assigns.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, legal 

representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 

H. Advice of attorney.  Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received 

independent legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice. 

 

I. Exhibits.  All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated by reference and made a part of hereof as if the 

exhibits were set forth in their entirety herein. 

 

J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly conditioned upon 

City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this Agreement by the persons referenced 

below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be construed as proof of validity in the absence of 

Meridian City Council approval. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the Effective Date 

first written above. 

 

ARTIST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Miguel Almeida 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 

 

BY: __________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor    Chris Johnson, City Clerk  

Page 358

Item #17.

Miguel Almeida




 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

 
 

 
  

 

Call for Artists: TRAFFIC BOX ART IMAGE REPOSITORY 
 

OVERVIEW: 
The Meridian Arts Commission (MAC) seeks proposals of two-dimensional artwork to be added to a repository of 
images portraying artwork available for reproduction on a vinyl wrap to be installed on a traffic box in Meridian.  
As funding becomes available, MAC and/or a sponsoring partner may select a piece of artwork represented in the 
repository to reproduce as a vinyl wrap. Artwork included in the repository may not be selected for a traffic box 
wrap. A $600 stipend shall be available for artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap to be 
installed on a traffic box, following execution of, and pursuant to, a written agreement with the City of Meridian 
and scanning of the original artwork portrayed in the selected image by City or City’s selected vendor.  
 

ELIGIBILITY: 

This project is open to applicants regardless of race, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, 
nationality, or disability.  The Traffic Box Art Image Repository is to include original artwork by artists who 
live or work in Idaho’s Treasure Valley, created using any medium, so long as it can be represented in a high-
resolution digital image without loss of integrity or quality.  No artwork will be included in the repository which 
does not meet the selection criteria.  Artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap will be 
required to enter into a written agreement with the City setting forth specific terms and conditions of 
inclusion.  Each person may submit up to three (3) images for consideration; a maximum of two (2) images per 

person may be selected for inclusion in the repository. Incomplete or late submissions will be deemed 
ineligible and will not be considered. 
 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
An artist wishing to submit an image for inclusion in the digital repository must provide the following materials 
and information to MAC in order to be considered for inclusion in the digital repository: 
• Completed, signed Traffic Box Art Image Repository Application & Acknowledgements form; 
• Descriptions of artwork submitted (which may be used on the online Digital Public Art Map and/or in posted 

descriptions of completed boxes), approx. 2-3 sentences per artwork, in .pdf format; 
• Biography of the artist (or artist statement), must fit on one-page, in .pdf format; and 
• Up to three (3) digital images of original artwork proposed for inclusion in the digital repository, image file 

names must include artist’s last name and artwork title.   
E-mailed submissions may be sent to mac@meridiancity.org: documents must be .PDF and artwork images must 
be .JPG format.  Hard copy materials (printed on 20 lb paper) may be submitted via U.S. Mail or in-person 
delivery, addressed to:  Meridian Arts Commission 

33 East Broadway Avenue Ste 206 
Meridian ID  83642 

DEADLINE: 
This call shall be open until 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, April 15, 2021. 
 

SELECTION PROCESS: 
The selection of art for inclusion in the digital repository will be made by MAC.  MAC will notify selectees by 
email by May 17, 2021.  In evaluating eligible proposals, the following factors will be considered and scored out 
of a total 100 points possible: 

• Quality of work (30 points); 

• Consistency with City policy and community values (30 points);  

• Contribution to aesthetic and cultural atmosphere of the Meridian community (30 points); and 

• Suitability of design and concept for a traffic box wrapping (10 points). 
Artwork will be deemed inappropriate which portrays: content which violates copyright or other known legal 
ownership interest, profanity, obscenity, indecency, violence, pornography; discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or nationality; defamation or personal attacks. 
 

CONTACT MAC:  
Questions regarding this Call for Artists may be sent via e-mail to mac@meridiancity.org. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 359

Item #17.

mailto:mac@meridiancity.org


 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT B 

APPLICATION MATERIALS

Page 360

Item #17.



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Application & Acknowledgments: TRAFFIC BOX ART DIGITAL REPOSITORY 
 

Applicant:                 

E-mail address:               

Mailing address:               

Physical address:                

Applicant phone: Day:                                 Cell:                             

Where did you hear about this opportunity?:           

Image title(s): 1.              

 2.              

 3.              

 

I hereby acknowledge the following stipulations and agree that if one of the images listed above is selected for 
inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Digital Repository, such inclusion shall occur subject to these general terms and 
conditions, as well as subject to other specific terms and conditions that shall be set forth in a separate, 
written Acceptance Agreement between myself and the City of Meridian.  I specifically acknowledge and agree 
that: 
 

____ A. All artwork submitted with this proposal for consideration for inclusion in the digital  
INITIAL   repository is original work that I myself conceived and created in all respects. 
 

____ B. Before work represented in the digital repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap,   
INITIAL  I will be required to enter into a written agreement with the City of Meridian establishing the  

specific terms and conditions of such installation.  No entitlement will issue or attach prior to 
negotiation and execution of such agreement. 

 

____ C. Before work represented in the repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap, I will  
INITIAL   be required to provide the original artwork from which the image was taken.  If the original  

artwork is no longer in my possession, I will advise the Meridian Arts Commission so that the 
image may be removed from the digital repository as a potential option for installation as a vinyl 
wrap. 

 

____ D. Upon submission of artwork to the City of Meridian for consideration for inclusion in the  
INITIAL   digital repository, such submission is a public record, subject to the Idaho Public Records Act. 
 

____ E. Artwork included in the digital repository may be removed from the repository, and/or the  
INITIAL   repository may be deleted or discontinued, without notice to the artist. 
 

____ F. The City seeks to encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, but must simultaneously  
INITIAL   ensure that persons of diverse ages and perspectives feel welcome and comfortable in public  

spaces. To this end, only artwork meeting the eligibility standards described in the Call for 
Artists shall be included in the digital repository. 

 

I acknowledge and understand, and submit my proposal subject to, each and all of these terms and conditions. 
 

 
Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 

Page 361

Item #17.

Miguel Almeida
Miguel A Almeida

Miguel Almeida
miguelalmeidaillustration@gmail.com

Miguel Almeida
3560 W. Moore St. Boise, ID 83703

Miguel Almeida
3560 W. Moore St. Boise, ID 83703

Miguel Almeida
208-371-0138

Miguel Almeida
Through Audrey Belnap

Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida


Miguel Almeida
04/14/21

Miguel Almeida
Somos Idaho

Miguel Almeida
Dia De Los Muertos

Miguel Almeida
Tu Lucha Es Mi Lucha



Miguel Almeida is a Boise based illustrator and artist. He works both traditionally and
digitally. His work touches on the subject of growing up as a first generation Mexican
American. Miguel’s art style is a combination of colors inspired by Mexican folk art and
heavy line work to create a graphic style. He uses bright colors he grew up seeing in the
architecture of Mexican cities, ceramics, clothing, and even the pastries when visiting
his grandparents in Zacatecas, Mexico. He has always been fascinated with Alebrijes.
Miguel grew up seeing them being sold in Mexican street markets and in the media. He
often replaces the characters with alebrije like figures in my paintings.

Page 362

Item #17.



01. Somos Idaho
Digital Illustration
8” x 10”
“Somos Idaho” is a piece of artwork to represent Mexican Immigrant farm workers who
are often in the shadows of Idaho but provide something essential to all of our survival.
They play a big role in keeping our communities fed and food on our tables.

02. Dia De Los Muertos
Digital Illustration
8” x 10”
This illustration was made during 2020’s Dia De los Muertos. I often like to create Dia De
Los Muertos art around the holiday and reminisce on loved ones that have passed in my
life.

03. Tu Lucha Es Mi Lucha
Digital Illustration
8” x 10”
“Tu Lucha Es Mi Lucha” was inspired by the phrase, which is a solidarity phrase. It is
often used to stand in solidarity with another person in hardships. I come from a family
deeply rooted in community and I have often resonated with that phrase in my life.

Page 363

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 8 

EXHIBIT C 

SOMOS IDAHO 

 
 

 

Page 364

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

(“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 

Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Rachel 

Linquist, an individual person (“Artist”).  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end, 

the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking 

proposals for the inclusion of artwork in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository, a repository of images 

portraying artwork available for production of vinyl wraps to be installed on traffic signal boxes in Meridian 

as derivative works, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway District, as part of the 

Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist submitted a response to the Call for Artists, which response included the 

Application and Acknowledgments and letter of intent attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2021, the Meridian Arts Commission reviewed the responses to the Call for 

Artists, recommended works appropriate for inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository based on their 

respectively submitted proposals, including the piece of art entitled At the Keys, depicted in Exhibit C hereto 

(“Artwork”) submitted by Artist, and on June 15, 2021, Meridian City Council accepted such 

recommendation, creating the Traffic Box Art Image Repository via Resolution no. 21-2271; 

 

WHEREAS, Artist wishes to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to be scanned and 

formatted in order to depict a derivative work of the Artwork on a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control 

box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. License; alterations.  Artist grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or photographically 

produce a derivative work from the image of the original Artwork, print such image or portion(s) thereof 

on one or more vinyl wraps (“Vinyl Wrap”), install the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more 

traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho, and authorize third parties to do the same. Artist acknowledges 

and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or reproducing the image of 

Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or 

otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the original Artwork onto a traffic control box as a 

derivative work of the Artwork, or for any other purpose, in City’s sole discretion.  

 

B. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Artist shall allow City to temporarily take possession of the original 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image or portions thereof 

on the Vinyl Wrap, and installing the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more traffic control boxes 

in Meridian, Idaho.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork 

and/or of Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of original Artwork shall be in Artist’s sole 

discretion and responsibility.  Artist shall bear any and all risks of and actual loss, theft, and/or damage to 

the original Artwork. 

 

C. Copyright.  Artist and City agree that the Vinyl Wrap shall constitute a derivative work of the Artwork 

with a separate copyright.  Artist shall maintain any copyright in the original Artwork. City shall maintain 

Page 365

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 2 

the copyright of the derivative work and any product or component thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap 

created therefrom, which shall belong wholly to the City, and Artist shall not make any claim thereto. As 

to the derivative work: 

1. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created using the 

derivative work.  Artist understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.   

2. Artist agrees to relinquish and waive any and all rights, title, and interest to the derivative work, 

images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, including, but not limited to, the rights afforded 

artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 

et seq.  Artist understands and agrees that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth 

in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent 

that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act 

of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties 

created thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Artist is creator of Artwork.  Artist warrants and represents that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Artist is the lawful owner of all rights in the Artwork and the content depicted therein. 

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any derivative work arising from 

a portion or product thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  The installation location(s) of 

the Vinyl Wrap created as derivative works from Artwork, if any, will be selected in the City’s sole 

discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may modify or remove, or allow 

modification or removal of same, in City’s sole discretion.  Artist specifically waives the right to claim any 

remedy concerning the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof for preparation of the 

derivative work, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this 

Agreement to install any Vinyl Wrap featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Artist for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement in the 

amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).  This payment shall constitute full compensation from City to 

Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses related to services performed under this Agreement.  

Artist shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this 

Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Artist consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or recordings of Artist, 

Artwork, derivative works created using Artwork, and/or the Vinyl Wrap for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Artist acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this Agreement 

presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Artist shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and forever discharge 

City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, 

or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or City in the course 

of any activity associated with this Agreement not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, 

regardless of the manner by which such claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Artist is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venturer, 

or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, 

agent, or employee of City. 

Page 366

Item #17.



Page 367

Item #17.



 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

 
 

 
  

 

Call for Artists: TRAFFIC BOX ART IMAGE REPOSITORY 
 

OVERVIEW: 
The Meridian Arts Commission (MAC) seeks proposals of two-dimensional artwork to be added to a repository of 
images portraying artwork available for reproduction on a vinyl wrap to be installed on a traffic box in Meridian.  
As funding becomes available, MAC and/or a sponsoring partner may select a piece of artwork represented in the 
repository to reproduce as a vinyl wrap. Artwork included in the repository may not be selected for a traffic box 
wrap. A $600 stipend shall be available for artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap to be 
installed on a traffic box, following execution of, and pursuant to, a written agreement with the City of Meridian 
and scanning of the original artwork portrayed in the selected image by City or City’s selected vendor.  
 

ELIGIBILITY: 

This project is open to applicants regardless of race, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, 
nationality, or disability.  The Traffic Box Art Image Repository is to include original artwork by artists who 
live or work in Idaho’s Treasure Valley, created using any medium, so long as it can be represented in a high-
resolution digital image without loss of integrity or quality.  No artwork will be included in the repository which 
does not meet the selection criteria.  Artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap will be 
required to enter into a written agreement with the City setting forth specific terms and conditions of 
inclusion.  Each person may submit up to three (3) images for consideration; a maximum of two (2) images per 

person may be selected for inclusion in the repository. Incomplete or late submissions will be deemed 
ineligible and will not be considered. 
 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
An artist wishing to submit an image for inclusion in the digital repository must provide the following materials 
and information to MAC in order to be considered for inclusion in the digital repository: 
• Completed, signed Traffic Box Art Image Repository Application & Acknowledgements form; 
• Descriptions of artwork submitted (which may be used on the online Digital Public Art Map and/or in posted 

descriptions of completed boxes), approx. 2-3 sentences per artwork, in .pdf format; 
• Biography of the artist (or artist statement), must fit on one-page, in .pdf format; and 
• Up to three (3) digital images of original artwork proposed for inclusion in the digital repository, image file 

names must include artist’s last name and artwork title.   
E-mailed submissions may be sent to mac@meridiancity.org: documents must be .PDF and artwork images must 
be .JPG format.  Hard copy materials (printed on 20 lb paper) may be submitted via U.S. Mail or in-person 
delivery, addressed to:  Meridian Arts Commission 

33 East Broadway Avenue Ste 206 
Meridian ID  83642 

DEADLINE: 
This call shall be open until 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, April 15, 2021. 
 

SELECTION PROCESS: 
The selection of art for inclusion in the digital repository will be made by MAC.  MAC will notify selectees by 
email by May 17, 2021.  In evaluating eligible proposals, the following factors will be considered and scored out 
of a total 100 points possible: 

• Quality of work (30 points); 

• Consistency with City policy and community values (30 points);  

• Contribution to aesthetic and cultural atmosphere of the Meridian community (30 points); and 

• Suitability of design and concept for a traffic box wrapping (10 points). 
Artwork will be deemed inappropriate which portrays: content which violates copyright or other known legal 
ownership interest, profanity, obscenity, indecency, violence, pornography; discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or nationality; defamation or personal attacks. 
 

CONTACT MAC:  
Questions regarding this Call for Artists may be sent via e-mail to mac@meridiancity.org. 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 368

Item #17.

mailto:mac@meridiancity.org


 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT B 

APPLICATION MATERIALS

Page 369

Item #17.



Page 370

Item #17.



Rachel Linquist_________________________ 
* 3272 Clayton Pl. Boise 83704  *208.863.7884 *  rachel.linquist@gmail.com  *Instagram.com/HenandChickArt 

    
        15 April 2021 

Meridian Arts Commission 
33 East Broadway Ave Ste 206 
Meridian ID 83642 
 
Dear Traffic Box Art Committee:  
 
I would love to contribute my art through the traffic box program, to help lift the hearts of  people of the area 
as mine has been lifted so often by the beautiful traffic boxes around Meridian.  
 
I studied music education in college, and then became a stay at home mom when my son was born. I soon 
started a business making stuffed toys. I branched out to art dolls, and took some community education art 
classes to hone my skills. I selected a watercolor painting class, and found a new passion. I started a second 
business selling my art originals, prints and cards, which has been growing every year since.  
 
I’ve been a member of the Treasure Valley Artist’s Alliance for a decade and a member of the Idaho 
Watercolor Society for two years, through which I’ve shown my work numerous times. I have run my small 
business, with it’s doll making and it’s watercolor art branches, for 12 years without ever having a late order. I 
am a reliable and conscientious worker and will be able to fill the needs of this committee for this project.  
 
Through my watercolor paintings, I express the joy I find in color and the natural world. I explore a small scene 
in time and sit with it, ferreting out the little pockets of beauty and color to emphasize in each piece, and 
create a bold and colorful end product. I would love to offer that to passersby of a busy intersection, and 
perhaps inspire a bit of kindness and joy in each passing motorist and pedestrian. 
 
The pieces that I submit today include:  
 

• Road Trip in the Mountains, watercolor on paper. This piece expresses the gorgeous views of the 
beautiful state of Idaho, incorporating mountains and pine trees, beautiful billowing clouds, and the 
curve of the highway. The journey is the destination. 

 

• Three Pears in a Blue Bowl, watercolor on paper. Captured at the moment of perfect ripeness, these 
three yellow pears contrasted beautifully with the cobalt blue of the bowl. You can almost taste the 
pears! 

 

• At the Keys, watercolor on paper. After a long day I love to sit at the piano and play my favorite songs. 
It calms me like nothing else, and makes me appreciate the joy that music (whether creating or 
listening) can bring to us all.  

 
I’m eager to apply my skills to the city’s public art collection. Thank you for this opportunity to add to the ever 
increasing beauty of Meridian! 
 
Sincerely, 
Rachel Linquist, artist 

Page 371

Item #17.

mailto:rachel.linquist@gmail.com


 

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT    PAGE 8 

EXHIBIT C 

AT THE KEYS 

 
 

 

Page 372

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 1

ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT

This ARTWORK LICENSE AGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT
(“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of
Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Lupe Galvan,
an individual person (“Artist”).

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end,
the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking
proposals for the inclusion of artwork in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository, a repository of images
portraying artwork available for production of vinyl wraps to be installed on traffic signal boxes in Meridian
as derivative works, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway District, as part of the
Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), as a benefit to the public;

WHEREAS, Artist submitted a response to the Call for Artists, which response included the
Application and Acknowledgments and letter of intent attached hereto as Exhibit B;

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2021, the Meridian Arts Commission reviewed the responses to the Call for
Artists, recommended works appropriate for inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Image Repository based on their
respectively submitted proposals, including the piece of art entitled Deer at Dusk, depicted in Exhibit C hereto
(“Artwork”) submitted by Artist, and on June 15, 2021, Meridian City Council accepted such
recommendation, creating the Traffic Box Art Image Repository via Resolution no. 21-2271;

WHEREAS, Artist wishes to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to be scanned and
formatted in order to depict a derivative work of the Artwork on a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control
box, subject to the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows:

I. SCOPE.

A. License; alterations. Artist grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or photographically
produce a derivative work from the image of the original Artwork, print such image or portion(s) thereof
on one or more vinyl wraps (“Vinyl Wrap”), install the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more
traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho, and authorize third parties to do the same. Artist acknowledges
and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or reproducing the image of
Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or
otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the original Artwork onto a traffic control box as a
derivative work of the Artwork, or for any other purpose, in City’s sole discretion.

B. Delivery of Artwork; purpose. Artist shall allow City to temporarily take possession of the original
Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image or portions thereof
on the Vinyl Wrap, and installing the Vinyl Wrap as a derivative work on one or more traffic control boxes
in Meridian, Idaho. City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork
and/or of Artist’s person, property, or interests. Insurance of original Artwork shall be in Artist’s sole
discretion and responsibility. Artist shall bear any and all risks of and actual loss, theft, and/or damage to
the original Artwork.

C. Copyright. Artist and City agree that the Vinyl Wrap shall constitute a derivative work of the Artwork
with a separate copyright. Artist shall maintain any copyright in the original Artwork. City shall maintain

Page 373

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 2

the copyright of the derivative work and any product or component thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap
created therefrom, which shall belong wholly to the City, and Artist shall not make any claim thereto. As
to the derivative work:
1. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created using the

derivative work. Artist understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of
reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.

2. Artist agrees to relinquish and waive any and all rights, title, and interest to the derivative work,
images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, including, but not limited to, the rights afforded
artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101
et seq. Artist understands and agrees that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth
in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein. To the extent
that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act
of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties
created thereunder are expressly waived.

D. Artist is creator of Artwork. Artist warrants and represents that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork;
and that Artist is the lawful owner of all rights in the Artwork and the content depicted therein.

E. Ownership. City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any derivative work arising from
a portion or product thereof, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom. The installation location(s) of
the Vinyl Wrap created as derivative works from Artwork, if any, will be selected in the City’s sole
discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may modify or remove, or allow
modification or removal of same, in City’s sole discretion. Artist specifically waives the right to claim any
remedy concerning the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof for preparation of the
derivative work, including the Vinyl Wrap created therefrom. City shall not be obligated by this
Agreement to install any Vinyl Wrap featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.

F. Payment. City shall make total payment to Artist for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement in the
amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00). This payment shall constitute full compensation from City to
Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses related to services performed under this Agreement.
Artist shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this
Agreement.

G. Photographs. Artist consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or recordings of Artist,
Artwork, derivative works created using Artwork, and/or the Vinyl Wrap for promotional purposes.

II. TERMSANDCONDITIONS

A. Acknowledgment. Artist acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this Agreement
presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks.

B. Indemnification; waiver. Artist shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and forever discharge
City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages,
or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or City in the course
of any activity associated with this Agreement not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City,
regardless of the manner by which such claim may be brought.

C. Relationship of Parties. Artist is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venturer,
or partner of City. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing
the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official,
agent, or employee of City.

Page 374

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 3

D. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties. This
Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either party, or agents of
either party, whether oral or written. The terms of this Agreement may not be enlarged, modified or
altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.

E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity,
interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement. Venue shall be in the courts of Ada
County, Idaho.

F. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected.

G. Successors and assigns. All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, legal
representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators.

H. Advice of attorney. Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received
independent legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice.

I. Exhibits. All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated by reference and made a part of hereof as if the
exhibits were set forth in their entirety herein.

J. City Council approval required. The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly conditioned upon
City Council action approving the Agreement. Execution of this Agreement by the persons referenced
below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be construed as proof of validity in the absence of
Meridian City Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the Effective Date
first written above.

ARTIST:

_________________________________________
Lupe Galvan

CITY OF MERIDIAN:

BY: __________________________________ Attest: __________________________________
Robert E. Simison, Mayor Chris Johnson, City Clerk

Page 375

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 1

Call for Artists: TRAFFIC BOX ART IMAGE REPOSITORY
OVERVIEW:
The Meridian Arts Commission (MAC) seeks proposals of two-dimensional artwork to be added to a repository of
images portraying artwork available for reproduction on a vinyl wrap to be installed on a traffic box in Meridian.
As funding becomes available, MAC and/or a sponsoring partner may select a piece of artwork represented in the
repository to reproduce as a vinyl wrap. Artwork included in the repository may not be selected for a traffic box
wrap. A $600 stipend shall be available for artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap to be
installed on a traffic box, following execution of, and pursuant to, a written agreement with the City of Meridian
and scanning of the original artwork portrayed in the selected image by City or City’s selected vendor.
ELIGIBILITY:
This project is open to applicants regardless of race, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion,
nationality, or disability. The Traffic Box Art Image Repository is to include original artwork by artists who
live or work in Idaho’s Treasure Valley, created using any medium, so long as it can be represented in a high-
resolution digital image without loss of integrity or quality. No artwork will be included in the repository which
does not meet the selection criteria. Artists whose work is selected for reproduction as a vinyl wrap will be
required to enter into a written agreement with the City setting forth specific terms and conditions of
inclusion. Each person may submit up to three (3) images for consideration; a maximum of two (2) images per
person may be selected for inclusion in the repository. Incomplete or late submissions will be deemed
ineligible and will not be considered.
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS:
An artist wishing to submit an image for inclusion in the digital repository must provide the following materials
and information to MAC in order to be considered for inclusion in the digital repository:
• Completed, signed Traffic Box Art Image Repository Application & Acknowledgements form;
• Descriptions of artwork submitted (which may be used on the online Digital Public Art Map and/or in posted

descriptions of completed boxes), approx. 2-3 sentences per artwork, in .pdf format;
• Biography of the artist (or artist statement), must fit on one-page, in .pdf format; and
• Up to three (3) digital images of original artwork proposed for inclusion in the digital repository, image file

names must include artist’s last name and artwork title.
E-mailed submissions may be sent to mac@meridiancity.org: documents must be .PDF and artwork images must
be .JPG format. Hard copy materials (printed on 20 lb paper) may be submitted via U.S. Mail or in-person
delivery, addressed to: Meridian Arts Commission

33 East Broadway Avenue Ste 206
Meridian ID 83642

DEADLINE:
This call shall be open until 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, April 15, 2021.
SELECTION PROCESS:
The selection of art for inclusion in the digital repository will be made by MAC. MAC will notify selectees by
email by May 17, 2021. In evaluating eligible proposals, the following factors will be considered and scored out
of a total 100 points possible:
• Quality of work (30 points);
• Consistency with City policy and community values (30 points);
• Contribution to aesthetic and cultural atmosphere of the Meridian community (30 points); and
• Suitability of design and concept for a traffic box wrapping (10 points).
Artwork will be deemed inappropriate which portrays: content which violates copyright or other known legal
ownership interest, profanity, obscenity, indecency, violence, pornography; discrimination on the basis of race,
creed, color, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or nationality; defamation or personal attacks.
CONTACT MAC:
Questions regarding this Call for Artists may be sent via e-mail to mac@meridiancity.org.

EXHIBITA

Page 376

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 1

EXHIBITB
APPLICATIONMATERIALS

Page 377

Item #17.



Application & Acknowledgments: TRAFFIC BOX ART DIGITAL REPOSITORY
Applicant:

E-mail address:

Mailing address:

Physical address:

Applicant phone: Day: Cell:

Where did you hear about this opportunity?: Alexa Rose Foundation
Image title(s): 1.

2.

3.

I hereby acknowledge the following stipulations and agree that if one of the images listed above is selected for
inclusion in the Traffic Box Art Digital Repository, such inclusion shall occur subject to these general terms and
conditions, as well as subject to other specific terms and conditions that shall be set forth in a separate,
written Acceptance Agreement between myself and the City of Meridian. I specifically acknowledge and agree
that:

____ A. All artwork submitted with this proposal for consideration for inclusion in the digital
INITIAL repository is original work that I myself conceived and created in all respects.

____ B. Before work represented in the digital repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap,
INITIAL I will be required to enter into a written agreement with the City of Meridian establishing the

specific terms and conditions of such installation. No entitlement will issue or attach prior to
negotiation and execution of such agreement.

____ C. Before work represented in the repository may be installed as a vinyl traffic box wrap, I will
INITIAL be required to provide the original artwork from which the image was taken. If the original

artwork is no longer in my possession, I will advise the Meridian Arts Commission so that the
image may be removed from the digital repository as a potential option for installation as a vinyl
wrap.

____ D. Upon submission of artwork to the City of Meridian for consideration for inclusion in the
INITIAL digital repository, such submission is a public record, subject to the Idaho Public Records Act.

____ E. Artwork included in the digital repository may be removed from the repository, and/or the
INITIAL repository may be deleted or discontinued, without notice to the artist.

____ F. The City seeks to encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, but must simultaneously
INITIAL ensure that persons of diverse ages and perspectives feel welcome and comfortable in public

spaces. To this end, only artwork meeting the eligibility standards described in the Call for
Artists shall be included in the digital repository.

I acknowledge and understand, and submit my proposal subject to, each and all of these terms and conditions.

Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ____________________________

J. Lupe Galvan
lupeglvn@gmail.com
12 S Cypress St Boise ID 83705
12 S Cypress St Boise ID 83705

208-985-3648

Deer at Dusk
Sawtooths
Pronghorn

3/29/21

Page 378

Item #17.



Born in 1981, I grew up in rural Idaho among the farm lands of the Snake
River valley. I earned my BFA in Illustration from Boise State in 2006 and an
MFA from The New York Academy of Art in 2009. I live and work in Boise, I
am interested in figurative painting, Plein Air Landscape and Illustration.

Page 379

Item #17.



TRAFFIC BOXART IMAGE REPOSITORY

Deer At Dusk: Original is a mixed media drawing. Two Mule deer running at Dusk - stylized
background inspired by 19th Century Impressionist Posters.

Sawtooths: A Digital Drawing of the Sawtooths, it is inspired by Japanese Block Print Styles. It
was created using about 20 layers including scans of actual paper for texture, gradients and
overlays.

Pronghorn: From the original oil painting, it is a depiction of Pronghorn Running. As a child
seeing pronghorn run in distant fields was a common sight.

Page 380

Item #17.



ARTWORKLICENSEAGREEMENT: TRAFFIC BOXCOMMUNITYART PROJECT PAGE 8

EXHIBITC
DEER ATDUSK

Page 381

Item #17.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: First Addendum to Professional Services Agreement Between the City of 
Meridian and Sensus USA Inc. for Monitoring and Data Collection

Page 382

Item #18.



 

Page 1 of 1 

Mayor Robert Simison 
 

City Council Members: 
Joe Borton 

Luke Cavener 
Treg Bernt 
Liz Strader 

Jessica Perreault 
Brad Hoaglun 

 

Public 
Works Department 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Robert Simison 
  Members of the City Council  
 
FROM: Laurelei McVey, Deputy Director Utility Operations 
  
DATE: 6/28/2021 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda Item:  

Sensus Professional Services Agreement Addendum #1  
  
 I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Item to be placed on Consent Agenda with the recommendation that the Mayor sign 
and the clerk attest.  

 
 II. DEPARTMENT CONTACT PERSONS 
   

Laurelei McVey, Deputy Director Utility Operations  985-1259 
 

 III. DESCRIPTION 
 

In May 2018, the City entered into a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with 
Sensus, the primary manufacturer of the City’s water meters to study, quantify, 
and mitigate a potential warranty issue with a certain type of meter manufactured 
over a specific period.  Over the past three years, the City and Sensus worked 
collaboratively to monitor and resolve this potential meter issue. 
 
This addendum finalizes the term of the original PSA.  Addendum #1 officially 
transfers permanent ownership of the meter reading tower equipment (base 
station) and MXUs (meter reading transmitters) to the City.  These were 
purchased and installed at the sole cost of Sensus in 2018.  Addendum #1 also 
provides the City with a full 20-year warranty for any remaining meters (from the 
potentially suspect manufacturing period) that are still installed in the City’s 
system.  Monitoring of these meters over the past three years indicate low failure 
rates.  However, if these meters fail before their expected lifespan they will be 
replaced under a full warranty. 
 
 

  Approved for Council Agenda: ______________________________    Date __________ 6/28/2021

Page 383

Item #18.



Page 384

Item #18.



Page 385

Item #18.



Page 386

Item #18.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Professional Service Agreements for West Ada School District Student 
Artwork for Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 Series

Page 387

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – UTILITY BOX WRAP                     PAGE 1 of 4 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK  

FOR TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK FOR TRAFFIC BOX ART 

PROJECT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _____________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and 

between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho 

(“City”), and Jose Ochoa or Monica Ochoa, (“Contractor”), an individual person and parent or legal 

guardian of Viviana Ochoa, a minor child (“Artist”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community and to that 

end, has undertaken the Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), within which artwork created by 

community members will be transformed into vinyl wraps and used to cover traffic control boxes at 

various locations throughout Meridian, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) selected a piece of art 

created by Artist entitled “The Art Within Words”as depicted in Exhibit A hereto (“Artwork”), to become 

an installation as part of the Project; MAC made this recommendation to Meridian City Council, and the 

Meridian City Council accepts MAC’s recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Artist and Contractor wish to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to 

become a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Contractor shall allow City to temporarily take possession of 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image on a vinyl 

wrap, and installing the vinyl wrap on one or more traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho.  City 

shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork and/or of 

Contractor’s or Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of Artwork shall be in 

Contractor’s sole discretion and responsibility.  Contractor shall bear any and all risks of and 

actual loss, theft, and/or damage to the original Artwork. 

 

B. License; alterations.  Contractor grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or 

photographically reproduce the image of the Artwork and to authorize third parties to do the same. 

Artist acknowledges and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or 

reproducing the image of Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or 

portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the 

original Artwork onto a traffic control box, or for other purpose, in City’s sole discretion. 

 

C. Copyright.  Neither Artist nor Contractor shall make any claim to the copyright of the Artwork.  

Contractor expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created 

using Artwork.  Contractor understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Contractor agrees to relinquish and waive any 

and all rights, title, and interest to the Artwork, images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the 

Page 388

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 2 of 4 

Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Contractor understands and agrees 

that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby 

expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent that the provisions of this 

Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the 

provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties created 

thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Limited edition.  Contractor warrants and represents that the Artwork has never before been 

created, published, produced, reproduced, or copied; that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Contractor, as Artist’s parent or legal guardian, is the lawful owner of all rights in the 

Artwork.   

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any portion or product 

thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created therefrom.  City shall also own the copyright to 

Artwork and any product or component thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created 

therefrom.  The installation location(s) of the vinyl wrap(s) created from Artwork, if any, will be 

selected in the City’s sole discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may 

modify or remove, or allow modification or removal of same, in City’s or other applicable 

agency’s sole discretion.  Contractor specifically waives the right to claim any remedy concerning 

the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps 

created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this Agreement to install any vinyl wrap or 

wraps featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 

Agreement in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00).  This payment shall constitute full 

compensation from City to Contractor and to Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses 

related to services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor and/or Artist shall be responsible 

for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Contractor consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or 

recordings of Artist, Artwork, or installations created using Artwork, for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Contractor acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this 

Agreement presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and 

forever discharge City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, 

actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused 

or incurred by Contractor or Artist in the course of any activity associated with this Agreement not 

caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, regardless of the manner by which such 

claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 

creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Contractor and City or 

any official, agent, or employee of City. 

 

Page 389

Item #19.



Page 390

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

VIVIANA OCHOA 

 
 

Page 391

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – UTILITY BOX WRAP                     PAGE 1 of 4 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK  

FOR TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK FOR TRAFFIC BOX ART 

PROJECT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _____________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and 

between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho 

(“City”), and Heather Schumacher, (“Contractor”), an individual person and parent or legal guardian of 

Sienna Meuser, a minor child (“Artist”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community and to that 

end, has undertaken the Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), within which artwork created by 

community members will be transformed into vinyl wraps and used to cover traffic control boxes at 

various locations throughout Meridian, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) selected a piece of art 

created by Artist entitled “Lily Pads,” as depicted in Exhibit A hereto (“Artwork”), to become an 

installation as part of the Project; MAC made this recommendation to Meridian City Council, and the 

Meridian City Council accepts MAC’s recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Artist and Contractor wish to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to 

become a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Contractor shall allow City to temporarily take possession of 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image on a vinyl 

wrap, and installing the vinyl wrap on one or more traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho.  City 

shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork and/or of 

Contractor’s or Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of Artwork shall be in 

Contractor’s sole discretion and responsibility.  Contractor shall bear any and all risks of and 

actual loss, theft, and/or damage to the original Artwork. 

 

B. License; alterations.  Contractor grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or 

photographically reproduce the image of the Artwork and to authorize third parties to do the same. 

Artist acknowledges and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or 

reproducing the image of Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or 

portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the 

original Artwork onto a traffic control box, or for other purpose, in City’s sole discretion. 

 

C. Copyright.  Neither Artist nor Contractor shall make any claim to the copyright of the Artwork.  

Contractor expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created 

using Artwork.  Contractor understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Contractor agrees to relinquish and waive any 

and all rights, title, and interest to the Artwork, images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the 

Page 392

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 2 of 4 

Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Contractor understands and agrees 

that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby 

expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent that the provisions of this 

Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the 

provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties created 

thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Limited edition.  Contractor warrants and represents that the Artwork has never before been 

created, published, produced, reproduced, or copied; that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Contractor, as Artist’s parent or legal guardian, is the lawful owner of all rights in the 

Artwork.   

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any portion or product 

thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created therefrom.  City shall also own the copyright to 

Artwork and any product or component thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created 

therefrom.  The installation location(s) of the vinyl wrap(s) created from Artwork, if any, will be 

selected in the City’s sole discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may 

modify or remove, or allow modification or removal of same, in City’s or other applicable 

agency’s sole discretion.  Contractor specifically waives the right to claim any remedy concerning 

the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps 

created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this Agreement to install any vinyl wrap or 

wraps featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 

Agreement in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00).  This payment shall constitute full 

compensation from City to Contractor and to Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses 

related to services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor and/or Artist shall be responsible 

for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Contractor consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or 

recordings of Artist, Artwork, or installations created using Artwork, for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Contractor acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this 

Agreement presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and 

forever discharge City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, 

actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused 

or incurred by Contractor or Artist in the course of any activity associated with this Agreement not 

caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, regardless of the manner by which such 

claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 

creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Contractor and City or 

any official, agent, or employee of City. 

 

Page 393

Item #19.



Page 394

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

SIENNA MEUSER 

 

 

Page 395

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – UTILITY BOX WRAP                     PAGE 1 of 4 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK  

FOR TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK FOR TRAFFIC BOX ART 

PROJECT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _____________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and 

between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho 

(“City”), and Jennifer Delfin, (“Contractor”), an individual person and parent or legal guardian of Emery 

Grace Delfin, a minor child (“Artist”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community and to that 

end, has undertaken the Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), within which artwork created by 

community members will be transformed into vinyl wraps and used to cover traffic control boxes at 

various locations throughout Meridian, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) selected a piece of art 

created by Artist entitled “Childish Dreams,” as depicted in Exhibit A hereto (“Artwork”), to become an 

installation as part of the Project; MAC made this recommendation to Meridian City Council, and the 

Meridian City Council accepts MAC’s recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Artist and Contractor wish to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to 

become a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Contractor shall allow City to temporarily take possession of 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image on a vinyl 

wrap, and installing the vinyl wrap on one or more traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho.  City 

shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork and/or of 

Contractor’s or Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of Artwork shall be in 

Contractor’s sole discretion and responsibility.  Contractor shall bear any and all risks of and 

actual loss, theft, and/or damage to the original Artwork. 

 

B. License; alterations.  Contractor grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or 

photographically reproduce the image of the Artwork and to authorize third parties to do the same. 

Artist acknowledges and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or 

reproducing the image of Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or 

portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the 

original Artwork onto a traffic control box, or for other purpose, in City’s sole discretion. 

 

C. Copyright.  Neither Artist nor Contractor shall make any claim to the copyright of the Artwork.  

Contractor expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created 

using Artwork.  Contractor understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Contractor agrees to relinquish and waive any 

and all rights, title, and interest to the Artwork, images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the 

Page 396

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 2 of 4 

Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Contractor understands and agrees 

that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby 

expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent that the provisions of this 

Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the 

provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties created 

thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Limited edition.  Contractor warrants and represents that the Artwork has never before been 

created, published, produced, reproduced, or copied; that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Contractor, as Artist’s parent or legal guardian, is the lawful owner of all rights in the 

Artwork.   

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any portion or product 

thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created therefrom.  City shall also own the copyright to 

Artwork and any product or component thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created 

therefrom.  The installation location(s) of the vinyl wrap(s) created from Artwork, if any, will be 

selected in the City’s sole discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may 

modify or remove, or allow modification or removal of same, in City’s or other applicable 

agency’s sole discretion.  Contractor specifically waives the right to claim any remedy concerning 

the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps 

created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this Agreement to install any vinyl wrap or 

wraps featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 

Agreement in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00).  This payment shall constitute full 

compensation from City to Contractor and to Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses 

related to services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor and/or Artist shall be responsible 

for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Contractor consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or 

recordings of Artist, Artwork, or installations created using Artwork, for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Contractor acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this 

Agreement presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and 

forever discharge City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, 

actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused 

or incurred by Contractor or Artist in the course of any activity associated with this Agreement not 

caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, regardless of the manner by which such 

claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 

creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Contractor and City or 

any official, agent, or employee of City. 

 

Page 397

Item #19.



Page 398

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

EMERY GRACE DELFIN 

 

 

Page 399

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – UTILITY BOX WRAP                     PAGE 1 of 4 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK  

FOR TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK FOR TRAFFIC BOX ART 

PROJECT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _____________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and 

between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho 

(“City”), and Anissa Bramlet, (“Contractor”), an individual person and parent or legal guardian of Carissa 

Bramlet, a minor child (“Artist”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community and to that 

end, has undertaken the Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), within which artwork created by 

community members will be transformed into vinyl wraps and used to cover traffic control boxes at 

various locations throughout Meridian, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) selected a piece of art 

created by Artist entitled “Winter Tree and Me,” as depicted in Exhibit A hereto (“Artwork”), to become 

an installation as part of the Project; MAC made this recommendation to Meridian City Council, and the 

Meridian City Council accepts MAC’s recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Artist and Contractor wish to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to 

become a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Contractor shall allow City to temporarily take possession of 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image on a vinyl 

wrap, and installing the vinyl wrap on one or more traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho.  City 

shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork and/or of 

Contractor’s or Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of Artwork shall be in 

Contractor’s sole discretion and responsibility.  Contractor shall bear any and all risks of and 

actual loss, theft, and/or damage to the original Artwork. 

 

B. License; alterations.  Contractor grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or 

photographically reproduce the image of the Artwork and to authorize third parties to do the same. 

Artist acknowledges and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or 

reproducing the image of Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or 

portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the 

original Artwork onto a traffic control box, or for other purpose, in City’s sole discretion. 

 

C. Copyright.  Neither Artist nor Contractor shall make any claim to the copyright of the Artwork.  

Contractor expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created 

using Artwork.  Contractor understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Contractor agrees to relinquish and waive any 

and all rights, title, and interest to the Artwork, images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the 

Page 400

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 2 of 4 

Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Contractor understands and agrees 

that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby 

expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent that the provisions of this 

Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the 

provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties created 

thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Limited edition.  Contractor warrants and represents that the Artwork has never before been 

created, published, produced, reproduced, or copied; that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Contractor, as Artist’s parent or legal guardian, is the lawful owner of all rights in the 

Artwork.   

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any portion or product 

thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created therefrom.  City shall also own the copyright to 

Artwork and any product or component thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created 

therefrom.  The installation location(s) of the vinyl wrap(s) created from Artwork, if any, will be 

selected in the City’s sole discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may 

modify or remove, or allow modification or removal of same, in City’s or other applicable 

agency’s sole discretion.  Contractor specifically waives the right to claim any remedy concerning 

the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps 

created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this Agreement to install any vinyl wrap or 

wraps featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 

Agreement in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00).  This payment shall constitute full 

compensation from City to Contractor and to Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses 

related to services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor and/or Artist shall be responsible 

for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Contractor consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or 

recordings of Artist, Artwork, or installations created using Artwork, for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Contractor acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this 

Agreement presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and 

forever discharge City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, 

actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused 

or incurred by Contractor or Artist in the course of any activity associated with this Agreement not 

caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, regardless of the manner by which such 

claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 

creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Contractor and City or 

any official, agent, or employee of City. 

 

Page 401

Item #19.



Page 402

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

CARISSA BRAMLET 

 

 

Page 403

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – UTILITY BOX WRAP                     PAGE 1 of 4 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK  

FOR TRAFFIC BOX COMMUNITY ART PROJECT 

 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ARTWORK FOR TRAFFIC BOX ART 

PROJECT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of _____________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and 

between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho 

(“City”), and Rob Bauman or Debbie Bauman, (“Contractor”), an individual person and parent or legal 

guardian of Gabby Bauman, a minor child (“Artist”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of our community and to that 

end, has undertaken the Traffic Box Community Art Project (“Project”), within which artwork created by 

community members will be transformed into vinyl wraps and used to cover traffic control boxes at 

various locations throughout Meridian, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, as a benefit to the public; 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Meridian Arts Commission (“MAC”) selected a piece of art 

created by Artist entitled “Art as an Escape,” as depicted in Exhibit A hereto (“Artwork”), to become an 

installation as part of the Project; MAC made this recommendation to Meridian City Council, and the 

Meridian City Council accepts MAC’s recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Artist and Contractor wish to participate in the Project by allowing the Artwork to 

become a vinyl wrap installation on a traffic control box, subject to the following terms and conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

I. SCOPE. 

 

A. Delivery of Artwork; purpose.  Contractor shall allow City to temporarily take possession of 

Artwork for the purpose of creating a digital image of the Artwork, printing such image on a vinyl 

wrap, and installing the vinyl wrap on one or more traffic control boxes in Meridian, Idaho.  City 

shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or damage of original Artwork and/or of 

Contractor’s or Artist’s person, property, or interests.  Insurance of Artwork shall be in 

Contractor’s sole discretion and responsibility.  Contractor shall bear any and all risks of and 

actual loss, theft, and/or damage to the original Artwork. 

 

B. License; alterations.  Contractor grants to City an irrevocable license to digitally and/or 

photographically reproduce the image of the Artwork and to authorize third parties to do the same. 

Artist acknowledges and agrees that the process of photographing, digitizing, printing, and/or 

reproducing the image of Artwork on a vinyl wrap or wraps may require that the image, or 

portions thereof, be cropped, resized, or otherwise altered in order to transfer the image of the 

original Artwork onto a traffic control box, or for other purpose, in City’s sole discretion. 

 

C. Copyright.  Neither Artist nor Contractor shall make any claim to the copyright of the Artwork.  

Contractor expressly waives any and all right, title, or interest in the images or products created 

using Artwork.  Contractor understands that this waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of 

reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Contractor agrees to relinquish and waive any 

and all rights, title, and interest to the Artwork, images thereof, or images of any portion thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the 

Page 404

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 2 of 4 

Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Contractor understands and agrees 

that the right of attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby 

expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein.  To the extent that the provisions of this 

Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the 

provisions of this Agreement will govern and any such differences in the rights and duties created 

thereunder are expressly waived. 

 

D. Limited edition.  Contractor warrants and represents that the Artwork has never before been 

created, published, produced, reproduced, or copied; that Artist is the sole creator of the Artwork; 

and that Contractor, as Artist’s parent or legal guardian, is the lawful owner of all rights in the 

Artwork.   

 

E. Ownership.  City shall own the digital image created from Artwork and any portion or product 

thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created therefrom.  City shall also own the copyright to 

Artwork and any product or component thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps created 

therefrom.  The installation location(s) of the vinyl wrap(s) created from Artwork, if any, will be 

selected in the City’s sole discretion, and once installed, City or other duly authorized party may 

modify or remove, or allow modification or removal of same, in City’s or other applicable 

agency’s sole discretion.  Contractor specifically waives the right to claim any remedy concerning 

the alteration of any image of Artwork or portion thereof, including the vinyl wrap or wraps 

created therefrom.  City shall not be obligated by this Agreement to install any vinyl wrap or 

wraps featuring the digital image of Artwork or any portion thereof.   

 

F. Payment.  City shall make total payment to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 

Agreement in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00).  This payment shall constitute full 

compensation from City to Contractor and to Artist for any and all services, costs, and expenses 

related to services performed under this Agreement.  Contractor and/or Artist shall be responsible 

for payment of any and all taxes due and owing for payment received under this Agreement.   

 

G. Photographs.  Contractor consents to City’s publication and/or use of any photographs or 

recordings of Artist, Artwork, or installations created using Artwork, for promotional purposes. 

 

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. Acknowledgment.  Contractor acknowledges that activity undertaken in conjunction with this 

Agreement presents risks, some of which are unknown, and agrees to assume all such risks. 

 

B. Indemnification; waiver.  Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, release and 

forever discharge City and its agents and employees from and for any and all losses, claims, 

actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused 

or incurred by Contractor or Artist in the course of any activity associated with this Agreement not 

caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of City, regardless of the manner by which such 

claim may be brought. 

 

C. Relationship of Parties.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 

creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Contractor and City or 

any official, agent, or employee of City. 

 

Page 405

Item #19.



Page 406

Item #19.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – TRAFFIC BOX WRAP                     PAGE 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

GABBY BAUMAN 

 

 

Page 407

Item #19.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Subrecipient Agreement Between City of Meridian and NeighborWorks Boise 
for Program Year 2019 Community Development Block Grant Funds

Page 408

Item #20.



Page 409

Item #20.



Page 410

Item #20.



Page 411

Item #20.



Page 412

Item #20.



Page 413

Item #20.



Page 414

Item #20.



Page 415

Item #20.



Page 416

Item #20.



Page 417

Item #20.



Page 418

Item #20.



Page 419

Item #20.



Page 420

Item #20.



Page 421

Item #20.



Page 422

Item #20.



Page 423

Item #20.



Page 424

Item #20.



Page 425

Item #20.



Page 426

Item #20.



Page 427

Item #20.



Page 428

Item #20.



Page 429

Item #20.



Page 430

Item #20.



Page 431

Item #20.



Page 432

Item #20.



Page 433

Item #20.



Page 434

Item #20.



Page 435

Item #20.



Page 436

Item #20.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Task Order #3 for February 2, 2010 Professional Services Agreement with Idaho 

Information Consortium, LLC, dba Access Idaho, for Electronic Transactions and Access for Transaction 
Payments to Meridian Police Department

Page 437

Item #21.



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Emily Kane, Deputy City Attorney Meeting Date: July 6, 2021 

Presenter: Mike Tanner Estimated Time: .5 minutes 

Topic: Task Order #3 for February 2, 2010 Professional Services Agreement with Idaho 
Information Consortium, LLC, dba Access Idaho, for Electronic Transactions and 
Access for Transaction Payments to Meridian Police Department 

 

Recommended Council Action: 

Authorize the Mayor’s signature to allow the City to enter into this agreement with Access Idaho 

Background: 
On February 2, 2010, Access Idaho and the City of Meridian entered into a Master Agreement for 
Professional Services for the provision of online payment portal services, which services allow the 
City’s customers to make payments online.  The February 2, 2010 Agreement says that the City and 
Access Idaho will execute task orders when the City needs to add online portals to serve different 
departments.  This task order establishes the terms and conditions for setting up online payment 
portal access for the Meridian Police Department, for online payment of parking tickets and fees 
related to public records requests. 
 

 

Page 438

Item #21.



 

City of Meridian/Access Idaho 

Exhibit B, Task Order #3 to Master Agreement for Professional Services     Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT B TO  

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
TASK ORDER #3 

FOR ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS AND ACCESS FOR TRANSACTION PAYMENT 

ENGINE (TPE) PAYMENTS TO CITY OF MERIDIAN—POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 This TASK ORDER #3 is made and entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2021, 

by and between the City of Meridian (hereinafter “City”), a municipal corporation organized 

under the laws of the State of Idaho, and Idaho Information Consortium, LLC, (d.b.a. Access 

Idaho) a limited liability company (hereinafter “Portal Manager”) organized under the laws of 

the State of Idaho. 

 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2010, Portal Manager and City entered into a Master 

Agreement for Professional Services (“Master Agreement”), which, inter alia, established the 

terms, conditions, and scope of services to be provided by Portal Manager; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties, the 

Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Access by Portal Manager.  City authorizes Portal Manager to electronically access 

information contained in the City computer database maintained by the City or its agents to 

create an electronic transaction service, in accordance with this Agreement. Description of 

Service is as follows: 

 

 Access by the Portal Manager will be on an inquiry-only, as needed basis for the 

purposes of processing funds through the Portal’s Transaction Payment Engine (TPE) 

integrated with the City’s Ticketing service. The City authorizes Portal Manager to be the 

exclusive agent for electronic transactions by private Users. Any changes or amendments 

to the terms of this Exhibit must be documented and agreed to in writing by the parties to 

this Exhibit. 

 

 

2. Record Supply Costs and Computer Programs. Portal Manager shall be responsible for costs 

and expenses in establishing electronic access to the records and providing record 

transactions to Users, including without limitation, the cost for purchasing or developing and 

maintaining all programs used to access the records. Computer programs used by the Portal 

Manager shall: 

 

a. Protect information from unauthorized access; 

 

b. Supply records to the City on a timely basis in an accurate, understandable and logical 

format acceptable to the City; 

 

c. Be tested by the Portal Manager and prototyped for City review and approval before it is 

offered to the public. 

 

Page 439

Item #21.



 

City of Meridian/Access Idaho 

Exhibit B, Task Order #3 to Master Agreement for Professional Services     Page 2 of 3 

 

 

3. Use messages.  If required by the City, the Portal Manager shall cause the Portal to require 

Users to signify online that they will comply with any restriction on use of the records 

required by law, as amended from time to time.  Such user agreement will be in the form of a 

use message displayed online, with a required positive response, all as captured in a log file, 

prior to the User being permitted to further search or view the record. 

 

 

4. Payment and Collection. 

 

a. Collection.  The cost of services is set by the City. The Portal Manager 

additionally will assess and collect a Portal Administration Fee of 3% of the 

transaction subtotal plus $1.00 for the services provided. The Portal Manager 

shall be entirely responsible for the assessment and collection of payments from 

Users. The City will not receive a bill from the Portal Manager for this 

service or any fees. 

 

For every electronic check (e-check) transaction—should the City choose to offer 

this online payment option for its Users—in which TPE is used, User shall pay, in 

addition to User’s payment to the City, a non-refundable Portal Administration 

Fee of $2.50, due at the time the transaction is performed. This Fee will be 

retained by Portal Manager as compensation for its services under this agreement. 

The City understands that, unlike credit/debit card payments, e-check payments 

are not guaranteed funds; therefore the City shall be responsible for collecting 

such funds on unsuccessful payments due to, but not limited to, non-sufficient 

funds in a User’s account, incorrect account and/or routing number entry by User, 

closed bank accounts, and stopped payments. 

 

b. Payment.  Payments of the fee for each billable service shall be made from the 

Portal via ACH transaction directly to a numbered account or accounts furnished 

by the City.  It is the responsibility of the City to collect on failed e-check 

payments. If funds are withdrawn from the Portal account due to an e-check 

failure (insufficient funds or invalid account numbers etc.) the Portal will have the 

ability to request reimbursement from the City. In addition, a payment/deposit 

statement shall be available electronically as mutually agreed to the parties: 

 

Project contact: City of Meridian 

   Cortni Klucken 

38 East Broadway Avenue 

Meridian, ID 83642 

 

 

c. Payment Due Date.  The Portal Manager shall remit payments to the appropriate 

City account within 24 hours of when funds are received by the Portal Manager. 

 

 

 

 

Page 440

Item #21.



 

City of Meridian/Access Idaho 

Exhibit B, Task Order #3 to Master Agreement for Professional Services     Page 3 of 3 

5. Records and Finances.  All Portal documents and records maintained by the Portal Manager 

relating to City records shall be available for inspection; auditing and copying by the City or 

other authorized representatives. 

 

 

6. Delivery of Services.  In accordance with the Agreement, both parties will make every effort 

to meet the following deadlines: 

 

 

Milestones for Attachment of AI Billing System                                                                        Completion Date 

City completes E-Commerce Payment update released to production.  5/10/2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Exhibit the day and year listed below 

on the City signature line. 

 

City of Meridian 

 

 

By______________________________________   Date_____________ 

      Robert Simison, Mayor 

 

 

Idaho Information Consortium (d.b.a. Access Idaho) 

 

 

By_____________________________________   Date_____________ 

     Jeff T. Walker, General Manager 

 

 

Page 441

Item #21.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 21-2272: A Resolution Vacating a 5-Foot Drainage, Utility 
Construction and Maintenance Easement Within a Portion of Lots 2 and 3 as Shown on Heritage 
Subdivision No. 2, Book 23, Page 1453, Within the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 
32, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho; and 
Providing an Effective Date

Page 442

Item #22.



Roberts Annexation Easement Vacation – H-2021-0038   

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO.   21-2272   

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: BERNT, BORTON, CAVENER, 

HOAGLUN, PERREAULT, STRADER 

 

  

A RESOLUTION VACATING A 5-FOOT DRAINAGE, UTILITY CONSTRUCTION 

AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT WITHIN A PORTION OF LOTS 2 AND 3 AS 

SHOWN ON HERITAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 2, BOOK 23 PAGE 1453, WITHIN THE 

SOUTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, 

RANGE 1 EAST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO; 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, on June 22, 2021 the City Council of Meridian, held a hearing on the vacation 

of the 5-foot drainage, utility construction and maintenance easement within a portion of lots 2 

and 3 as shown on Heritage Subdivision no. 2, book 23, page 1453, within the southwest ¼ of the 

northwest ¼ of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, 

Ada County, Idaho; and 

 WHEREAS, after such hearing, the City Council, by formal motion, did approve said 

described vacation; and  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN CITY, IDAHO: 

Section 1.  That the 5-foot drainage, utility construction and maintenance easement within 

a portion of lots 2 and 3 as shown on Heritage Subdivision no. 2, book 23, page 1453, within the 

southwest ¼ of the northwest ¼ of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, 

City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, as attached in Exhibit A, is hereby vacated.  

Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 

Passed by the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this _______ day of July, 2021. 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this _______ day of July, 2021. 

 

      Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________   __________________________________ 

Mayor Robert E. Simison    Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

Page 443

Item #22.



1W ineennS/, Jl Fox HMH
LAND SURVEYS eng g

Exhibit 'A'

Denton and Anncheri Roberts

5- Foot Public Utility Easement Description

A Public Utility Easement within a portion of Lots 2 and 3 as shown on Heritage Subdivision No. 2, Book

23 Page 1453, within the Southwest 1/ 4, of the Northwest 1/ 4, of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range

1 East, Boise Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, being a ( portion of Warranty Deed Instrument No.
113131269) more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2 as monumented by a found 1/ 2- inch rebar, placed
cap stamped " FLSI PLS 8575", thence North 89° 31' 13" West, 257. 95 feet, to the Northwest corner of

said Lot 2 as monumented by a found 1/ 2- inch rebar, placed cap stamped " FLSI PLS 8575"; thence

South 44°29' 12" East, 7. 07 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

Thence South 89° 31' 13" East, 247. 95 feet, along the south edge of existing utility easement;

Thence South 00' 32' 52" West, 140. 00 feet, along the west edge of existing utility easement;

Thence North 89° 31' 37" West, 5. 00 feet;

Thence North 00' 32' 52" East, 135. 00 feet;

Thence North 89' 31' 13" West, 242. 95 feet;

Thence North 00' 32' 49" East, 5. 00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 1914. 75 square feet more or less

As shown on Exhibit ' B' Survey Map
End of description

Prepared By:
Ronald M. Hodge, PLS 8575 r£

Project Manager

0.      8575
s / Z•3 h g o

p F  \ OP 4,

RH: 1R
AC D M' NOO

680 S. Progress Ave., Suite# 26 • Meridian, Idaho 83642 • Tel: 208- 342- 7957 • Web: hmh- Ilc.com

Equal Opportunity Employer

EXHIBIT A

Roberts Annexation Easement Vacation H-2021-0038

Page 444

Item #22.



EXHIBIT F

POINT OF
SURVEYMAP

POINT OF

BEGINNING I COMMENCEMENT

S44° 29' 12" E

7. 07' N89°31' 13' W- - - - - - - - - -   257. 95'- - - - - -
S89` 31' 13" E 247.95'

l N89° 31' 13" W 242. 95' IN00° 32' 49" E

5. 00'  o o t\

5. 00'     to o i

C,

5. 00, con

0 o I
0 25 50

6
I

4 ` 1 o

SCALE: 1"= 50'   
W

puts

N . I pM° ppee 1269 N` N
pent0 arras

y 113i M M I
n t 3

Z I
Instr

ent N°      
Z

O
oI
o

o 10. 00,

S89° 31' 13" E Lo N89° 31' 37" Ww F 5. 00' 5. 00,

0
S89° 31' 13" E 242.95'     T

POINT OF POINT OF

BEGINNING TERMINUS
H S89° 31' 13" E

I I POINT OF 10. 00'   I I

UI COMMENCEMENT I I

I o

I o0 r'

inVdaDt
3
riwR° 

e tS

N nn0ed 5&pe

pent°     rant A;
V28

t No III
Mo

Z root,
str

N

I I I
I I I
I I I

I I I I

N89° 31' 13" W 257. 95'

PARADISE LANE

LEGEND

BOUNDARY
t Q NEW EASEMENT

S T R RECORD EASEMENT PER HERITAGE SUB. No. 1
F

G
TIE

O     R'     O FOUND 1/ 2" REBAR, NO CAP, SET CAP" FLSI PLS8575"

857 SET 1/ 2" REBAR, PLASTIC CAP" FLSI PLS8575"

cry rZ- 31• I to A CALCULATION POINT

9T pQ      NEW UTILITY EASEMENT AREA
O   F DF

40 M .  
O x

PLATTED EASEMENT AREA TO BE RELINQUISHED

NOTE: THIS DRAWING IS A VISUAL REFERENCE ONLY.

DS. JR
SCALE: 1•= 3V DATE: 12- 31- 2019 DENTON AND ANNCHERI ROBERTS FOX LAND SURVEYS WC.

DR. TRC ADA COUNTY, IDAHO
208) 342- 7957

SV. RMH
SHT. 1/ 1 19044MS.dwg SEC. 32 TAN, R. 1 E B. M.   f 1 1M wawkrm Wm Page 445

Item #22.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 21-2273: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of 
the City of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Northern Gateway
Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and Justification for Designating 
the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; Determining the Area Identified in the 
Report to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, or a Combination Thereof, as Defined 
by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the 
City of Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to Commence 
the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan for the Area Subject to Certain Conditions, which Plan 
May Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective 
Date

Page 446

Item #23.



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Cameron Arial, Community Development Meeting Date: July 6, 2021 

Presenter: Cameron Arial Estimated Time:  15 minutes 

Topic: Resolution No. 21-2273: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Northern 
Gateway Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and 
Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; 
Determining the Area Identified in the Report to be a Deteriorated Area or a 
Deteriorating Area, or a Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-
2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 
Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to 
Commence the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan for the Area Subject to Certain 
Conditions, which Plan May Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of 
the Area; and Providing an Effective Date 

 

Background 

While downtown Meridian is beginning to experience renewed interest, the challenges in 
revitalizing aging downtown properties are still apparent. New private investment in the original 
downtown Meridian Revitalization District (“original District”) has been hampered by the 2008-
2009 recession and, more recently, by uncertainties surrounding COVID-related changes in the 
commercial real estate market and rising development costs. 

Meridian Development Corporation (“MDC”) has been engaged in urban renewal efforts in the 
original District since its adoption in late 2002. The original District will sunset in 2026. With 
limited time to utilize the urban renewal tools available to assist in funding public infrastructure 
improvements, many properties are likely to remain underutilized without intervention. 

It is difficult for property owners to justify redevelopment of the small, infill sites that make up the 
majority of the original District and fund the required public infrastructure improvements that 
condition development. 

Historically, the majority of infrastructure improvements and façade improvement projects in the 
original District have been in the downtown core. With increasing interest in downtown extending 
north to Fairview Avenue/Cherry Lane, MDC retained Kushlan | Associates to prepare an 
Eligibility Report to assess the viability of the Northern Gateway Study Area as an urban renewal 
project and evaluate its concurrence with Idaho Code requirements. The Eligibility Report (Exhibit 
A of the proposed resolution) cites the conditions necessary as well as the financial findings 
required.  

  
Page 447

Item #23.



2 
 

 
                  Northern Gateway Study Area 

 

 
Current market rents cannot support development costs or produce the returns necessary to 
secure private equity investment or traditional bank financing for redevelopment of the small 
parcels in the Study Area. The assemblage of parcels can spread soft development costs over a 
larger area and when coupled with MDC’s ability to fund public infrastructure improvements 
required of new development, can spur development interest. 

MDC accepted the Northern Gateway Study Area Eligibility Report and, through MDC Resolution 
21-026 adopted on June 9, 2021 (Exhibit B of the proposed resolution), authorized its transmittal 
to the City Council for consideration and, if accepted as appropriate for an urban renewal project, 
subsequent direction for MDC to proceed with preparation of an urban renewal plan. 

 

Page 448

Item #23.



3 
 

The Northern Gateway Study Area encompasses 150 parcels within 126.226 acres. Approximately 
77 acres, 133 parcels, are currently within the boundaries of the original District, and the subject 
of a deannexation action. 

A study area is required to meet at least one of ten conditions specified in Idaho Code Sections 50-
2018(9) and 50-2903(8) to qualify for urban renewal activities. The Eligibility Report finds that 
the Study Area meets eight of the ten criteria (Eligibility Report, page 15). 

Approval of this resolution provides for: 

 Acceptance of the Northern Gateway Study Area Eligibility Report, 

 Determination that the Study Area meets the findings and characteristics stipulated in Idaho 
Code to establish an urban renewal plan, and 

 Directs MDC to prepare a Northern Gateway District Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

Future Actions 

The public hearing and second reading of the ordinance to adopt the Second Amendment to the 
Meridian Revitalization Urban Renewal District providing for the deannexation of that portion of 
the Northern Gateway properties from the original District included in the Study Area also appear 
on this evening’s agenda for Council consideration. 

Following Council acceptance of the Eligibility Report and direction for MDC to begin preparation 
of an urban renewal plan, staff and consultants will prepare the Northern Gateway Urban Renewal 
Plan. City and MDC staff will inform and engage property owners. In addition, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission must review the proposed plan to validate its conformity with the City 
Comprehensive Plan.  

The Northern Gateway Urban Renewal Plan will then be brought to the City Council for 
consideration and adoption following three ordinance readings and a public hearing. It is 
anticipated that these final actions will occur mid-November through early December 2021. 

Page 449

Item #23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2273 - 1 

          

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO. __21-2273_______________ 

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: BERNT, BORTON, CAVENER,  

HOAGLUN, PERREAULT, STRADER 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MERIDIAN, IDAHO, ACCEPTING THAT CERTAIN REPORT ON ELIGIBILITY FOR 

THE NORTHERN GATEWAY AREA AS AN URBAN RENEWAL AREA AND 

REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA AND JUSTIFICATION FOR DESIGNATING THE 

AREA AS APPROPRIATE FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT; DETERMINING 

THE AREA IDENTIFIED IN THE REPORT TO BE A DETERIORATED AREA OR A 

DETERIORATING AREA, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, AS DEFINED BY 

IDAHO CODE SECTIONS 50-2018(9) AND 50-2903(8); DIRECTING THE URBAN 

RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS THE 

MERIDIAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, TO COMMENCE THE 

PREPARATION OF AN URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE AREA SUBJECT TO 

CERTAIN CONDITIONS, WHICH PLAN MAY INCLUDE REVENUE ALLOCATION 

PROVISIONS FOR ALL OR PART OF THE AREA; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Meridian, Idaho (the 

“City”), found that deteriorating areas exist in the City, therefore, for the purposes of the Idaho 

Urban Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”), created 

an urban renewal agency pursuant to the Law, authorizing the agency to transact business and 

exercise the powers granted by the Law and the Local Economic Development Act, Chapter 29, 

Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”) upon making the findings of necessity required for 

creating the Urban Renewal Agency of the city of Meridian, Idaho, also known as the Meridian 

Development Corporation (”MDC”);      
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has duly appointed the Board of Commissioners of MDC (the 

“MDC Board”), which appointment was confirmed by the City Council;  

 

 WHEREAS, on October 8, 2002, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted 

a public hearing on the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project, which is also 

referred to as the Downtown District (the “Downtown District Plan”);   

 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

02-987 on December 3, 2002, approving the Downtown District Plan, making certain findings 

and establishing the Downtown District revenue allocation area (the “Downtown District Project 

Area”);   

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the Ten Mile Road Urban Renewal Plan (the “Ten Mile Plan”). The public hearing was 

continued to June 21, 2016, for further testimony; 

 

Page 450

Item #23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2273 - 2 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearings, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

16-1695 on June 21, 2016, approving the Ten Mile Plan, making certain findings and 

establishing the Ten Mile revenue allocation area (the “Ten Mile Project Area”);  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the First Amendment to the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project (“First 

Amendment to the Downtown District Plan”); 

 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

20-1881 on June 9, 2020, approving the First Amendment to the Downtown District Plan 

deannexing certain parcels and making certain findings (collectively, the Downtown District 

Plan, and amendments thereto, are referred to as the “Existing Downtown District Plan,” and the 

Downtown District Project Area, and amendments thereto, are referred to as the “Existing 

Downtown District Project Area”); 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the Urban Renewal Plan for the Union District Urban Renewal Project (the “Union District 

Plan”);   

 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

20-1882 on June 9, 2020, approving the Union District Plan, making certain findings and 

establishing the Union District revenue allocation area (the “Union District Project Area”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Existing Downtown District Plan, the Ten Mile Plan, and the Union 

District Plan and their project areas are collectively referred to as the “Existing Project Areas;” 

 

 WHEREAS, it has become apparent that additional property, most of which is located 

within the City, and a portion of which is located within the City’s area of operation within 

unincorporated Ada County, may be deteriorating or deteriorated and should be examined as to 

whether such an area is eligible for an urban renewal project;    

 

 WHEREAS, in 2021, Kushlan | Associates commenced an eligibility study and 

preparation of an eligibility report for an area 126.226 acres in size, approximately 77 acres of 

which is currently located within the boundaries of the Existing Downtown District Project Area, 

which area is subject to a deannexation. The area is generally located in the central part of 

Meridian, northeast of the City’s downtown core, and east of Meridian Road and south of 

Fairview Avenue extending to Pine Avenue between NE 2nd Street and E. 3rd Street, and which 

area also includes a commercial area east of Meridian Road fronting Fairview Avenue on the 

north and a 17.64-acre parcel located on the northwest corner of Meridian Road and Cherry 

Lane.  The eligibility study area is commonly referred to as the Northern Gateway District Study 

Area (the “Study Area”);   

 

 WHEREAS, MDC obtained an eligibility report entitled Northern Gateway Urban 

Renewal District (Proposed) Eligibility Report, dated May 2021 (the “Report”), which examined 

the Study Area, which area also includes real property located within unincorporated Ada 

County, for the purpose of determining whether such area was a deteriorating area and/or a 

deteriorated area as defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(8), (9) and 50-2903(8);   

 

Page 451

Item #23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2273 - 3 

WHEREAS, the Report, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, found the 

existence of one or more of the statutory criteria for the area to be considered eligible for urban 

renewal activities; 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(8), (9) and 50-2903(8), which 

define the qualifying conditions of a deteriorating area and a deteriorated area, many of the 

conditions necessary to be present in such an area are found in the Study Area, i.e., 

 

a. the presence of a substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures; 

and deterioration of site; 

b. age or obsolescence;  

c. the predominance of defective or inadequate street layout; 

d. faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness; obsolete 

platting; 

e. insanitary or unsafe conditions; 

f. diversity of ownership; 

g. results in economic underdevelopment of the area; and 

h. substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a municipality. 

 

WHEREAS, the Study Area contains open land; 

 

WHEREAS, under the Act a deteriorated area includes any area which is predominantly 

open and which, because of obsolete platting, diversity of ownership, deterioration of structures 

or improvements, or otherwise, results in economic underdevelopment of the area or 

substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a municipality;  

 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9), 50-2903(8) and 50-2008(d) list the 

additional conditions applicable to open land or open areas, including open land areas to be 

acquired by MDC, which are the same or similar to the conditions set forth in the definitions of 

“deteriorating area” and “deteriorated area;”  

 

WHEREAS, the Study Area is not “predominantly” open; however, the Report addresses 

the necessary findings concerning including open land within any urban renewal area as defined 

in Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9), 50-2903(8)(c), and 50-2008(d);  

 

WHEREAS, the effects of the listed conditions cited in the Report result in economic 

underdevelopment of the area, substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a 

municipality, constitutes an economic or social liability, and is a menace to the public health, 

safety, morals, or welfare in its present condition or use; 

 

WHEREAS, MDC, on June 9, 2021, adopted Resolution No. 21-026 (a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference, without attachments 

thereto) accepted the Report and authorized the Chair, Vice-Chair, or Administrator of MDC to 

transmit the Report to the City Council requesting its consideration for designation of an urban 

renewal area and requesting the City Council to direct MDC to prepare an urban renewal plan for 

the Study Area, which plan may include a revenue allocation provision as allowed by law;  

 

WHEREAS, under the Law and Act, Idaho Code Sections 50-2903(8)(f) and 50-2018(8) 

Page 452

Item #23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2273 - 4 

and (9), the definition of a deteriorating area shall not apply to any agricultural operation as 

defined in Section 22-4502(2), Idaho Code, absent the consent of the owner of the agricultural 

operation except for an agricultural operation that has not been used for three (3) consecutive 

years;  

 

WHEREAS, the Study Area includes a parcel subject to such consent. While the 

necessary consent has not been obtained, it is anticipated the consent will be obtained prior to 

City Council consideration of any urban renewal plan;  

 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code Section 50-2018(18) provides that an urban renewal agency 

cannot exercise jurisdiction over any area outside the city limits without the approval of the other 

city or county declaring the need for an urban renewal plan for the proposed area;  

 

WHEREAS, the portion of the Study Area lying outside the City limits and within 

unincorporated Ada County includes a parcel which is anticipated to proceed through the formal 

annexation process of the City; 

 

WHEREAS, though a portion of the Study Area lies outside the City limits, because that 

parcel is anticipated to proceed through the voluntary annexation process, no formal resolution 

from Ada County, Idaho, has been requested.  In the event annexation of that parcel has not been 

obtained by the time the City Council considers approval of a new urban renewal plan, it is 

anticipated the City would seek to obtain an agreement with Ada County, Idaho, as required by 

Idaho Code Section 50-2906(3); 

 

 WHEREAS, the Report includes a preliminary analysis concluding the base assessment 

roll value for the Study Area along with the base assessment rolls for the Existing Project Areas 

and any proposed revenue allocation areas or amendments thereto, do not exceed 10% of the 

current assessed valuation of all taxable property within the City;   

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code Section 50-2008, an urban renewal project may not 

be planned or initiated unless the local governing body has, by resolution, determined such area 

to be a deteriorated area or a deteriorating area, or combination thereof, and designated such area 

as appropriate for an urban renewal project;   

 

 WHEREAS, Idaho Code Section 50-2906 also requires that in order to adopt an urban 

renewal plan containing a revenue allocation financing provision, the local governing body must 

make a finding or determination that the area included in such plan is a deteriorated area or a 

deteriorating area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best public interest that MDC prepare an urban 

renewal plan for the area identified as the Northern Gateway District Study Area in the Report 

located in the city of Meridian, county of Ada, state of Idaho. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, AS FOLLOWS:     

 

 Section 1. That the City Council acknowledges acceptance and receipt of the Report.  

 

Page 453

Item #23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2273 - 5 

 Section 2. That the City Council finds and declares that the Northern Gateway 

District Study Area identified in the Report, attached hereto as Exhibit A, which a portion of 

such area is subject to deannexation from the Existing Downtown District Project Area, is a 

deteriorated area and/or a deteriorating area existing in the City and the City’s area of operation, 

as defined in Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, Idaho Code, as amended, and qualifies as an urban 

renewal project and justification exists for designating the area as appropriate for an urban 

renewal project. 

 

 Section 3.  That the City Council finds and declares there is a need for MDC, an 

urban renewal agency, to function in accordance with the provisions of Title 50, Chapters 20 and 

29, Idaho Code, as amended, within a designated area for the purpose of establishing an urban 

renewal plan. 

 

Section 4. That having made such designation, the City Council hereby directs MDC 

to commence preparation of an urban renewal plan for the Northern Gateway District Study Area 

described in the Report for consideration by the MDC Board and, if acceptable, final 

consideration by the City Council in compliance with Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, Idaho Code, 

as amended. 

 

 Section 5. That the City Council directs MDC to obtain the required agricultural 

consent from the property owner(s) prior to formally submitting the proposed urban renewal plan 

to the City Council for its consideration. 

 

 Section 6. That in the event annexation of the parcel currently located within 

unincorporated Ada County has not been obtained by the time the City Council considers 

approval of a new urban renewal plan, it is anticipated the City Council would seek to obtain an 

agreement with Ada County, Idaho, as required by Idaho Code Section 50-2906(3). 

 

 Section 7. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.   

 

 ADOPTED By the Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 6th day of July 2021. 

 

 APPROVED By the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 6th day of July 2021. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

Page 454

Item #23.



1 | P a g e

Northern Gateway Urban Renewal District 
(Proposed) 

Eligibility Report 
Prepared for 

The City of Meridian  
and 

The Meridian Development Corporation 
May 2021 

Kushlan | Associates 
Boise, Idaho 

  Exhibit A

Page 455

Item #23.



2 | P a g e

Introduction:  Kushlan | Associates was retained by the Urban Renewal Agency of
the City of Meridian, Idaho, also known as the Meridian Development Corporation (the 
“MDC”) to assist in their consideration of establishing a new urban renewal district1 in the 
City of Meridian, Idaho, and its area of operation.   

Elected Officials serving the City of Meridian are: 
Mayor: Robert Simison  
Council President:  Treg Bernt  
Council Vice President: Brad Hoaglun  
Council Members:  Joe Borton 

Luke Cavener 
Liz Strader 
Jessica Perreault 

City Staff 
Community Development Director: Cameron Arial 

Idaho Code § 50-2006 states:  “URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY. (a) There is hereby created 
in each municipality an independent public body corporate and politic to be known as the 
"urban renewal agency" that was created by resolution as provided in section 50-2005, 
Idaho Code, before July 1, 2011, for the municipality…” to carry out the powers 
enumerated in the statutes.  The Meridian City Council adopted Resolution 01-397 on July 
24, 2001 bringing forth those powers within the City of Meridian.  

The Mayor, with the confirmation of the City Council, has appointed nine members to the 
MDC Board of Commissioners (the “MDC Board”). The MDC Board currently oversees the 
implementation of three urban renewal districts.  Two are focused on the revitalization of 
downtown Meridian.  The first, the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project 
(the “Downtown District”) was established by the City Council’s adoption of Ordinance 
No. 02-987 on December 3, 2002.  The second district, the Urban Renewal Plan for the 
Union District Urban Renewal Project (the “Union District”) was established with the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 20-1882 on June 9, 2020. Both the Downtown District and the 
Union District are focused on redevelopment activities in and around the City’s downtown 
core.  The third district, the Urban Renewal Plan for the Ten Mile Road- A Urban Renewal 
Project (the “Ten Mile District”) was established by Ordinance No. 16-1695 adopted on 
June 21, 2016, and is focused on economic development outside of the City’s core to 
support implementation of the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan.    

The current membership of the Commission is as follows: 

Chair:    David Winder 
Vice Chairman Nathan Mueller 
Secretary/ Treasurer Steve Vlassek 
Commissioners  Dan Basalone 

Rob McCarvel 
Treg Bernt 
Tammy deWeerd 
Diane Bevan 
Kit Fitzgerald 

1 Throughout this Study, urban renewal/revenue allocation area will be referred to as an “urban renewal 
district.” 

Page 456

Item #23.



3 | P a g e

Staff: 
Urban Renewal Administrator: Ashley Squyres 
Legal Counsel:  Todd Lakey 

 Map of the Downtown District (excluding shaded area) 

Page 457

Item #23.



4 | P a g e

Map of Union District 

Page 458

Item #23.



5 | P a g e

Map of Ten Mile Road District 

Background: 

While Native Americans inhabited the area for centuries, the development of the 
community of Meridian, as we know it today, evolved through the late nineteenth century. 
European settlement started in the 1880s and was originally located on a farm owned by 
the Onweiler family. A school was opened in 1885. The U.S. Postal Service established a 
mail drop along the Oregon Short Line Railroad and the site was named Hunter after its 
superintendent.  Community activity grew around this mail stop focused on the railroad. 
In 1893 an Odd Fellows lodge was organized and called itself Meridian, acknowledging 
that it was located on the Boise Meridian the primary North-South survey benchmark for 
Idaho.  That name grew in primary use as the name of the settlement and the Village of 
Meridian was incorporated in 1903 with a population of approximately 200.  

The economy had traditionally been focused on the support of the surrounding 
agricultural activities.  A major creamery was established in the community in 1897 to 
support the nearby dairies.  Fruit orchards were located throughout the area. 

Meridian was a significant stop on the Interurban electric railway from 1908 to 1928.  This 
service provided convenient access for passengers and freight in both easterly and westerly 
directions.   

Throughout most of the 20th century, Meridian remained a relatively quiet community 
focused on its agricultural roots. US Census Bureau data, reflects a 1910 population of 619 
people growing to 2,616 by 1970.  However, starting in 1970 the pace of growth in 
Southwest Idaho quickened and Meridian’s growth initially reflected, and then exceeded 

Page 459

Item #23.



6 | P a g e

the regional rates by significant margins.  Over the past twenty-five years the rate of 
growth has been startling by any reasonable standard.  The following table reflects that 
population growth over the city’s history. 

1903 (Incorporation Estimate) 200 
1910 619 
1920 1,013 
1930 1,004 
1940 1,465 
1950 1,500 
1960 2,100 
1970 2,600 
1980 6,658 
1990 9,596 
2000 34,919 
2010 75,092 
2020  114,200 
2021 (Estimate) 129,555 

When income statistics are compared to statewide numbers, the population of Meridian 
compares favorably with the rest of Idaho in these categories.  The median household 
income in Meridian is $71,389, approximately 28% above the statewide figure of $55,785. 
Per capita money income for the Meridian population is $33,328 as compared to the 
statewide number of $27,970.   The percentage of the Meridian population below poverty 
level is 8.6% as compared to the statewide number of 11.2%.  

Investment Capacity:  Cities across the nation actively participate in the economic 
vitality of their communities through investment in infrastructure. Water and sewer 
facilities as well as transportation, communication, electrical distribution and other 
systems are all integral elements of an economically viable community.   Idaho cities have 
a significant challenge in responding to these demands along with the on-going need to 
reinvest in their general physical plant to ensure it does not deteriorate to the point of 
system failure.  They face stringent statutory and constitutional limitations on revenue 
generation and debt as well as near total dependence upon state legislative action to 
provide funding options. These strictures severely constrain capital investment strategies. 

The tools made available to cities in Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, the Urban Renewal Law 
and the Local Economic Development Act are some of the few that are available to assist 
communities in their efforts to support economic vitality.  New sources of State support 
are unlikely to become available in the foreseeable future, thus the City of Meridian’s 
interest in exploring the potential for establishing another urban renewal district is an 
appropriate public policy consideration. 

The City of Meridian initially established its Urban Renewal Agency in 2001.  As noted 
above, the Downtown District’s exclusive focus, limited by the boundaries of the district, 
is on the traditional downtown area of Meridian.  The Ten Mile District was created in 
2016 and was designed to support the implementation of the Ten Mile Interchange 
Specific Area Plan.  A third urban renewal district was created in 2020 from an area de-

Page 460

Item #23.



7 | P a g e

annexed from the original Downtown District to support a significant mixed use-project.  
The Northern Gateway Urban Renewal District would, if approved by the MDC Board of 
Commissioners and Meridian City Council, would remove 133 parcels from the existing 
Downtown District2 and combine those with other properties and rights-of-way north of 
Fairview Avenue and southeast of Fairview Avenue to establish a new district.  One large 
property (Kobe property ~ 17.64 acres) currently under consideration for inclusion in the 
district remains outside the city limits and in unincorporated Ada County.  To include this 
parcel in a district under the jurisdiction of MDC, an agreement would be required 
between the City and Ada County to permit this inclusion.  Should annexation of this 
parcel be effectuated prior to the establishment of the district by the City Council, no 
agreement would be required.    

Comprehensive Plan: 

The City of Meridian Comprehensive Plan, updated in 2019 calls for a mixture of Office, 
High Density Residential, Commercial and Mixed-Use development in the Study Area 
under current review.  The Study Area is in transition from a predominately single-family 
residential area dating back to the early years of the community.  While many of the 
residences remain in their original use, many others have been converted to office uses 
creating a patchwork of uses with more intense commercial activity along the arterial 
streets.  

2 The Second Amendment to the Meridian Revitalization Plan seeking to deannex certain parcels from the 
existing Downtown District, including those parcels that are contemplated to be considered for inclusion in 
the proposed Northern Gateway District, has been approved by the MDC Board and submitted to the City 
for its consideration.   

Page 461

Item #23.



8 | P a g e

Steps in Consideration of an Urban Renewal District: 

The first step in consideration of establishing an urban renewal district in Idaho is to 
define a potential area for analysis as to whether conditions exist within it to qualify for 
redevelopment activities under the statute. We have called this the “Study Area.”  

The next step in the process is to review the conditions within the Study Area to determine 
whether the area is eligible for creating a district. The State Law governing urban renewal 
sets out the following criteria, at least one of which must be found, for an area to be 
considered eligible for urban renewal activities:  

1. The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating
Structures and Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements [50-2018(9)
and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

2. Age or Obsolescence [50-2018(8) and 50-2903(8)(a)]

3. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout [50-2018(9) and
50-2903(8)(b)]

Page 462

Item #23.



9 | P a g e

4. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or
Usefulness; Obsolete Platting [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-
2903(8)(c)]

5. Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

6. Diversity of Ownership [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

7. Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

8. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

9. Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area [50-2903(8)(b); 50-
2903(8)(c)]

10. Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality [50-
2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

If the Eligibility Report finds that one or more of the conditions noted above exists within 
the Study Area, then the Agency may accept the findings and forward the Eligibility Report 
to the City Council for their consideration. If the City Council concurs with the 
determination of the Agency, they may direct that an Urban Renewal Plan be developed 
for the area that addresses the issues raised in the Eligibility Report. 

The Agency then acts to prepare the Urban Renewal Plan for the new District and 
establishing a Revenue Allocation Area to fund improvements called for in the Plan. Once 
the Plan for the District and Revenue Allocation Area are completed, the Agency Board 
forwards it to the City Council for their consideration.  

The City Council must refer the Urban Renewal Plan to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to determine whether the Plan, as presented, is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and make a corresponding finding. At the same time, other taxing 
entities levying property taxes within the boundaries of the proposed Urban Renewal 
District are provided a thirty-day opportunity to comment on the Plan to the City Council. 
While the taxing entities are invited to comment on the Plan, their concurrence is not 
required for the City Council to proceed with formal consideration.   

Based on legislative changes to Idaho Code § 50-2908(2)(a), effective July 1, 2020, the 
Ada County Highway District (ACHD) is allocated all of the taxes levied by ACHD within 
a revenue allocation area first formed or expanded to include property on or after July 1, 
2020 (including taxes levied on the base and increment values), which would apply to this 
proposed district, if formed.  However, ACHD and MDC may enter into an agreement for 
a different allocation, which agreement shall be submitted to the State Tax Commission 
and to the Ada County Clerk by ACHD as soon as practicable after the parties have entered 
in the agreement and by no later than September 1 of the year in which the agreement 
takes effect.   In the case of the Northern Gateway Study Area, the affected taxing districts 
for those properties located within the city limits of Meridian are: 

• The City of Meridian
• The West Ada School District (School District No. 2)
• Ada County

Page 463

Item #23.



10 | P a g e

• Emergency Medical District/Ada County Ambulance
• Mosquito Abatement District
• The Ada County Highway District
• Meridian Library District
• Meridian Cemetery District
• Western Ada Recreation District
• College of Western Idaho

For the parcel located in unincorporated Ada County, the affected taxing districts are: 

• The West Ada School District (Joint School District No. 2)
• Ada County
• Emergency Medical District/Ada County Ambulance
• Mosquito Abatement District
• The Ada County Highway District
• Meridian Library District
• Meridian Cemetery District
• Western Ada Recreation District
• College of Western Idaho
• Meridian Fire District
• Pest Extermination District

Once the Planning and Zoning Commission makes their finding of conformity and the 
thirty-day comment period has passed, the City Council is permitted to hold a public 
hearing and formally consider the adoption of the Plan creating the new Urban Renewal 
District and Revenue Allocation Area.  

The City Council must also find that the taxable value of the district to be created plus the 
Base Assessed Value of any existing Urban Renewal / Revenue Allocation Area does not 
exceed the statutory maximum of 10% of the citywide assessed valuation. 

If the City Council, in their discretion chooses to proceed, they will officially adopt the 
Urban Renewal Plan and Revenue Allocation Area and provide official notification of that 
action to the affected taxing districts, County Assessor and Idaho State Tax Commission. 

The Agency then proceeds to implement the Plan. 

Description of the Northern Gateway Study Area: 

The Study Area subject to the current review is generally located in the central part of 
Meridian, northeast of the City’s downtown core, and is generally bounded by Meridian 
Road on the west to the intersection of Meridian Road and W. Cherry Lane travelling west 
and E. Fairview Avenue travelling east.   The Study Area then includes a large 17.64-acre 
parcel (Kobe Property) bounded by W. Cherry Lane to the south and Meridian Road to the 
east.  The Study Area also includes the commercial area east of Meridian Road and north 
of Fairview Avenue. The eastern boundary extends south along NE 5th Avenue and then 
over to what would be NE 4th Street if extended, and then over to NE 3rd Street.  The 
southern boundary extends to E. Pine Avenue between NE 3rd Street and NE 2nd Street, 
and then travels up NE 2nd Street and over E. Washington Avenue to connect back to 
Meridian Road.   

Page 464

Item #23.



11 | P a g e

The size and value information presented in Attachment 1 was derived from the Ada 
County Assessor’s on-line parcel information system3. The 2020 taxable value of the 
portion of the Study Area located in unincorporated Ada County, represents exceptionally 
low assessed value as compared to the more developed area surrounding it located within 
the corporate limits of the City of Meridian.  Land values in the more developed, 
commercially zoned areas range from approximately $5.00 to $15.00 per square foot.  The 
unincorporated agricultural land reflects a current assessed value of $.04 per square foot 
consistent with assessed values assigned to agricultural properties in the broader area.  As 
a comparison, the vacant parcel across Meridian Road within the city limits and zones for 
commercial purposes has an assessed value of $8.50 per square foot.    

Northern Gateway Urban Renewal Area 

The Study Area 

The Northern Gateway Study Area consists of one hundred fifty (150) tax parcels located 
in central Meridian, northeast of the City’s downtown core, and generally east of Meridian 
Road and south of Fairview Avenue. A portion of the Study Area fronts the north side of 
Fairview Avenue east of Meridian Road and there is a 17.64 acre parcel (Kobe Property) 

3 For purposes of this Study, the 2020 taxable values were reviewed as at the time of this review the 2021 
value information was not available.  Use of the 2020 values provides a more conservative analysis as it is 
generally understood significant value increases will occur in 2021. Further, based on the adoption of 
H389, effective retroactive to January 1, 2021, the Homeowner Property Tax Exemption will increase to a 
maximum of $125,000.  This is anticipated to further reduce the base.  Again, as the 2021 tax assessments 
were not yet available at the time this Study was prepared, the 2020 data has been used.  The 10% analysis 
set forth below will ultimately be revisited in any further urban renewal plan.   

Page 465

Item #23.



12 | P a g e

located at the northwest corner of Meridian Road and Cherry Lane included as well.  The 
Kobe Property is undeveloped and retains its historic agricultural use.  The Kobe Property 
is currently located in unincorporated Ada County necessitating an inter-governmental 
agreement between MDC and Ada County to permit its inclusion within the boundaries of 
any future revenue allocation area.  The area contains 105.63 acres in 150 separate tax 
parcels not including public rights-of-way.  The properties within the Study Area carry 
zoning designations consistent with its historic usage.  Commercial zoning designations 
are in place on 59.55 acres (56.4% of the district). Residential zoning of R-8 and R-15 
predominate in the area. One parcel is zoned R-40.  Commercial zoning is in place on 104 
of the parcels.  Residential zoning of R-8 occupies 11.61 acres, R-15 occupies 14.54 acres 
and R-40 occupies 2.29 acres.  Properties designated as residential constitute 26.9% of the 
total acreage.  The balance of the area is zoned Rural Urban Transition (RUT) in 
unincorporated Ada County.  Ada County Assessor records show that 28 of the residential 
properties reflect a Homeowners Property Tax Exemption indicating they are owner 
occupied residences.  

Nineteen (19) vacant parcels represent 28.75% of the total land area of the Study Area. 

Religious and fraternal institutions and governmental entities occupy 13 tax parcels 
representing 8% of the total.  

The Study Area is one of the older developed areas in the community.  As noted above, 
Meridian was established in the 1880s and eventually incorporated as a Village under 
Idaho law in 1903.  Most of the structures constructed as residences date to the first 20 
years of the 20th Century and most predate 1960.  Many of these residential structures 
have transitioned into commercial uses over time. 

When the improvement value assigned to a parcel is less than or approaches the land 
value, a deteriorated or deteriorating condition is present. National real estate appraisal 
standards suggest that in an economically viable property, land value should contribute 
approximately 30% of the total value leaving 70% to the improvements. As that ratio 
shifts, with improvement value declining as a proportion of the total, a condition of 
disinvestment is determined to be present. At a point when the improvement value 
represents less than 50% of the total (i.e. improvement value is less than land value) 
such condition represents a “deteriorated condition” for the purposes of this analysis. We 
have assumed for this Study that those properties with improvement values less than 150% 
of land value approach the “deteriorated condition” and thus can be classified as 
“deteriorating” under the definitions in state law.  With these benchmarks in mind, we 
find that 33 properties (20.4%) reflect improvement values less than land values and an 
additional 23 properties (14.2%) reflect improvement values less than 150% of land values. 
When considered together, 56 properties representing 34.6% of the total taxable parcels 
reflect a deteriorated or deteriorating condition. 

Streets:  Fairview /Cherry Lane, Meridian Road, Main Street and Pine Avenue constitute 
the backbone of the street network in the Study Area.  These streets have received recent 
investment with their condition reflecting current urban standards.  The 17.64-acre Kobe 
property has not been subdivided to accommodate the vision expressed in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, so no street network has been established in this property which 
represents the largest single land holding in the Study Area.  The 4.0-acre parcel located 
at the extreme northerly edge of the Study Area has no direct access to a public street and 
therefore is landlocked.  The area south of Fairview reflects a fine-grained grid pattern 

Page 466

Item #23.



13 | P a g e

common to communities developed in the early 20th century.  However, the grid is 
incomplete in a number of places.  For example, NE 3rd Street is interrupted in three 
places.  Similar interruptions can be found on Gruber Avenue, Bradley Avenue and 
Washington Avenue.  Improvement conditions reflecting current City and ACHD 
standards are in place in parts of the Study Area, but significant portions still lack curb, 
gutter and sidewalks.  Pavement conditions vary from Good to Poor.  Sections of East 
Washington and East Carlton located east of NE  2½ Street appear to provide only half of 
the street width.  

Illumination:  Street lighting levels are inconsistent creating a hazard as drivers’ eyes must 
frequently adjust to differing light levels potentially obscuring pedestrians and roadway 
obstructions.  Spacing between standard lighting fixtures varies throughout the Study 
Area and some arterial sections have smaller-scale decorative lighting in lieu of the 
standard fixture.  

Sidewalks:  Pedestrian facilities are incomplete.  Even where curb and gutter sections have 
been installed, sidewalks are often nonexistent.  The fine-grained street grid pattern 
invites movements through the area on foot.  Yet, in many situations in the Study Area, 
pedestrian traffic is forced to walk in the street due to a lack of facilities to accommodate 
that type of traffic.  

Storm Drainage:  Those areas without modern curb and gutter sections in place also do 
not provide a means to collect and dispose of storm drainage or snow melt.  This condition 
allows for surface ponding undermining the integrity of the street surface and obscuring 
hazards in wet conditions. 

Water System:  A major portion of the Study Area is served by an 8” pipe grid providing 
looping for sufficient redundancy in case of a failure of a section of pipe.  However, the 
City’s Water System Master Plan notes several locations where 6” pipes remain in place 
and one location, north of Pine Avenue, on NE 2nd Street is served by a 4” pipe.   These 6” 
and 4” pipes would provide insufficient capacity to support fire flows as the area 
redevelops as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan. 

Sewage Collection System:  No deficiencies in this area were noted.  

Analysis of the Study Area: 

A review of the Study Area reflects an area in transition.  Much of the traditional housing 
stock has been converted to commercial uses and investment in multi-family structures 
has occurred in some instances.  These investments reflect the vision expressed in the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan.  However, many of the residential structures remain in that 
use suggesting an area in transition. Substantial investment in public infrastructure 
throughout the entire Study Area will be required to support the achievement of the City’s 
vision.  The Kobe property will require investment as it currently has no infrastructure, 
other than the peripheral arterial streets, to support development consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Meaningful progress may depend upon some level of public 
intervention to support the private investment envisioned in the Plan.   

For the convenience of the reader, the statutory criteria are reiterated, at least one of which 
must be found to qualify an area for urban renewal activities.  Those conditions are: 

Page 467

Item #23.



14 | P a g e

1. The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating Structures
and Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b);
50-2903(8)(c)]

2. Age or Obsolescence [50-2018(8) and 50-2903(8)(a)]

3. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout [50-2018(9) and 50-
2903(8)(b)]

4. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or Usefulness;
Obsolete Platting [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

5. Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

6. Diversity of Ownership [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

7. Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

8. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)]

9. Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area [50-2903(8)(b); 50-
2903(8)(c)]

10. Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality [50-2018(9)
and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

Analysis: Northern Gateway 

Criterion #1: The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating 
Structures; and Deterioration of Site:  We found that 33 properties (20.4%) reflect 
improvement values less than land values and an additional 23 properties (14.2%) reflect 
improvement values less than 150% of land values.  When considered together, 56 
properties representing 34.6% of the total taxable parcels reflect a deteriorated or 
deteriorating condition.  Therefore, criterion #1 is met. 

Criterion #2: Age or Obsolescence:  Most of the structures within the Study Area date 
from the first half of the 20th Century. Most were constructed as residential buildings and 
while many having been converted to office uses, modern requirements for commercial 
use suggests the converted homes will eventually transition into more up-to-date 
office/commercial designs.   A manufactured home community occupies land along NE 3rd 
Street that is designated for High Density Residential uses in the Comprehensive Plan.  
Over 28 acres in the Study Area, which is located in the central part of the City, northeast 
of the City’s downtown core, remains vacant despite the City’s articulated vision calling for 
a significantly more intense development pattern.  Therefore, criterion #2 is met. 

Criterion #3: Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout: As noted above, 
certain streets in the Study Area are interrupted creating breaks in the traditional street 
grid pattern, which impairs traffic circulation and mobility goals. Several sections do not 
meet current urban street development standards.  Therefore, criterion #3 is met. 

Page 468

Item #23.



15 | P a g e

Criterion #4: Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility or 
Usefulness; Obsolete Platting:  One 4-acre parcel located north of Fairview Avenue has no 
direct access to a public right-of-way.  The Kobe 17.67-acre parcel has not been subdivided 
to accommodate the development pattern envisioned in City planning documents.  Large 
vacant parcels south of Fairview interrupt the historic grid pattern of streets.  The small 
residential parcel sizes impair development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as 
property assembly would be necessary.  Therefore, criterion #4 is met. 

Criterion #5: Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions:  The lack of a complete system of 
sidewalks forcing pedestrians into the street creates an unsafe condition.  This condition 
forces vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians to share roadways in an inconsistent manner and 
impairs multi-modal usages and overall mobility. Inconsistent street lighting patterns 
contribute to an unsafe driving situation.   Therefore, criterion #5 is met. 

Criterion #6: Diversity of Ownership:  The ownership of the 105.63 acres in the Study 
Area is in the hands of one hundred fifty (150) entities.  Such diversity of ownership creates 
significant issues with property assemblage necessary to support the goals of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, criterion #6 is met. 

Criterion #7: Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency:  According to Ada County Assessor 
records, no delinquencies exist.  Therefore, criterion #7 is not met. 

Criterion #8: Defective or unusual condition of title:  No defective or unusual conditions 
of title are reflected in Ada County records.  Therefore, criterion #8 is not met. 

Criterion #9: Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area: Current uses within 
the Study Area are inconsistent with the goals set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
Additionally, as set forth above, a significant number of parcels reflect deteriorated or 
deteriorated conditions showing significant disinvestment in the Study Area.  More than 
Twenty-eight (28.75) vacant acres in the central part of the City, one of the fastest growing 
communities in the nation, further suggests “Economic Underdevelopment” exists in the 
Study Area. Therefore, criterion #9 is met. 

Criterion #10: Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality: The 
State of Idaho, the City of Meridian and the Ada County Highway District have made 
substantial investment in the transportation and utility facilities serving this and the 
surrounding areas.  The City of Meridian has expressed its vision for this area in the 
creation and adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, but without the capacity to provide full 
public infrastructure, the Study Area will remain an under-utilized area in the midst of the 
fastest growing area in the State of Idaho.  Criterion #10 is met. 

Findings:  Northern Gateway:  Conditions exist within the Study Area to allow the 
Board of Commissioners of the Meridian Development Corporation and the Meridian City 
Council to determine that the area is eligible for urban renewal activities as prescribed in 
State Law.  

Summary of Findings 
Criteria Met Not 

Met 
1 The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated 

or Deteriorating Structures; and Deterioration of Site 
X 

Page 469

Item #23.



16 | P a g e

2 Age or Obsolescence X 
3 Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street 

Layout  
X 

4 Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, 
Accessibility or Usefulness; Obsolete Platting  

X 

5 Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions X 
6 Diversity of Ownership X 
7 Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency X 
8 Defective or unusual condition of title X 

9 Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area X 
10 Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of 

a Municipality 
X 

Analysis: Open Land Conditions: In addition to the eligibility conditions
identified above, the geographic area under review also considers the “open land” 
conditions. Idaho Code Section 50-2903(8)(c) states: “[a]ny area which is predominately4 
open and which because of obsolete platting, diversity of ownership, deterioration of 
structures or improvements, or otherwise, results in economic underdevelopment of the 
area or substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a municipality. The provisions 
of section 50-2008(d), Idaho Code, shall apply to open areas.” 

The eligibility criteria set forth in Idaho Code Section 50-2903(8)(c) for predominantly 
open land areas mirror or are the same as those criteria set forth in Idaho Code Sections 
50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b). “Diversity of ownership” is the same, while “obsolete
platting” appears to be equivalent to “faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy,
accessibility, or usefulness.” “Deterioration of structures or improvements” is the same or
similar to “a substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures” and
“deterioration of site or other improvements.” There is also an additional qualification that 
the provisions of Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d) shall apply to open areas.

Idaho Code Section 50-2008 primarily addresses the urban renewal plan approval process 
and Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d)(4) sets forth certain conditions and findings for 
agency acquisition of open land as follows:  

the urban renewal plan will afford maximum opportunity, consistent with 
the sound needs of the municipality as a whole, for the rehabilitation or 
redevelopment of the urban renewal area by private enterprise: Provided, 
that if the urban renewal area consists of an area of open land to be acquired 
by the urban renewal agency, such area shall not be so acquired unless (1) 
if it is to be developed for residential uses, the local governing body shall 
determine that a shortage of housing of sound standards and design which 
is decent, safe and sanitary exists in the municipality; that the need for 

4 The statutes governing urban renewal set forth in Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, Idaho Code, do not 
provide any guidance as to the definition of “predominantly.”  It is assumed for purposes of this Study that 
predominantly means more than 50% of the Study Area is “open land.”  Less than 25% of the parcels 
within the Study Area could conceivably fall within an open land designation. While the Study Area 
includes parcels that likely qualify as “open land,” making the findings pursuant to Idaho Code Section 50-
2903(8)(c) is not required.   

Page 470

Item #23.



17 | P a g e

housing accommodations has been or will be increased as a result of the 
clearance of slums in other areas; that the conditions of blight in the area 
and the shortage of decent, safe and sanitary housing cause or contribute 
to an increase in and spread of disease and crime and constitute a menace 
to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare; and that the acquisition of 
the area for residential uses is an integral part of and essential to the 
program of the municipality, or (2) if it is to be developed for nonresidential 
uses, the local governing body shall determine that such nonresidential 
uses are necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and 
development of the community in accordance with sound planning 
standards and local community objectives, which acquisition may require 
the exercise of governmental action, as provided in this act, because of 
defective or unusual conditions of title, diversity of ownership, tax 
delinquency, improper subdivisions, outmoded street patterns, 
deterioration of site, economic disuse, unsuitable topography or faulty lot 
layouts, the need for the correlation of the area with other areas of a 
municipality by streets and modern traffic requirements, or any 
combination of such factors or other conditions which retard development 
of the area. 

In sum, there is one set of findings if the area of open land is to be acquired and developed 
for residential uses and a separate set of findings if the land is to be acquired and developed 
for nonresidential uses. 

Basically, open land areas may be acquired by an urban renewal agency and developed for 
nonresidential uses if such acquisition is necessary to solve various problems, associated 
with the land or the infrastructure, that have delayed the area’s development. These 
problems include defective or usual conditions of title, diversity of ownership, tax 
delinquency, improper subdivisions, outmoded street patterns, deterioration of site, and 
faulty lot layout. All of the stated conditions are included in one form or another in the 
definition of a deteriorated area and/or a deteriorating area set forth in Idaho Code 
Sections 50-2903(8)(b) and 50-2018(9). The conditions listed only in Section 50-
2008(d)(4)(2) (the open land section) include economic disuse, unsuitable topography, 
and “the need for the correlation of the area with other areas of a municipality by streets 
and modern traffic requirements, or any combination of such factors or other conditions 
which retard development of the area.” 

The conclusion of this discussion concerning open land areas is that the area qualifies if 
any of the eligibility conditions set forth in Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-
2903(8)(b) apply. Alternatively, the area under consideration qualifies if any of the 
conditions listed only in Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d)(4)(2) apply. The size of some of 
the parcels, the lack of water and sewer facilities in the undeveloped portion of the Study 
Area; a nonexistent access and internal street system; an inadequate storm drain system; 
and lack of fire protection, are all conditions which delay development of the large 
undeveloped properties in the Study Area. 

Based on the above analysis, to the extent the Study Area is “predominantly open land,” 
which is not a defined term, obsolete platting/faulty lot layout and economic 
underdevelopment are conditions found in the Study Area, and therefore, the open land 
condition is satisfied.  

Page 471

Item #23.



18 | P a g e

Other Relevant Issues: 

Agricultural Landowners Concurrence:
The statutory provisions concerning the creation of an urban renewal district prohibit 
inclusion of any land used for an agricultural operation without the express written 
consent of the property owner. An agricultural operation is broadly defined in Idaho Code 
§ 22-4502(2) and means “an activity or condition that occurs in connection with the
production of agricultural products for food, fiber, fuel and other lawful uses…”  One
method of determining whether there exists an agricultural operation on a parcel is the
presence of an agricultural property tax exemption5. As of the date of this Eligibility Study,
one parcel, the Kobe property, particularly located in the northwest corner of the Study
Area, maintains assessed values consistent with other agricultural lands and appears, from
a visual inspection, to be an active agricultural operation.  As a result, property owner
consent is required prior to final consideration of the proposed district’s creation.

CONCLUSION: 

Based upon the data and the conditions that exist within the Study Area as noted above, 
the Meridian Development Corporation Board and Meridian City Council may determine 
that the Northern Gateway Study Area is eligible for the establishment of an urban renewal 
district.  

10% Analysis:  In addition to the findings reported above, verification that the
assessed value of the proposed Study Area is within the statutory limits is needed.  State 
Law limits the percentage of values on the combined base assessment rolls that can be 
included in urban renewal / revenue allocation districts to 10% of the current assessed 
valuation of all taxable property within the City.  According to Ada County Assessor 
records, the 20206 total certified value for the City of Meridian is $13,230,528,301 (does 
not include operating property).  This number does not reflect exemptions.  Therefore, 
taking a more conservative approach, the net taxable value for this calculation is used.  
That number is $10,375,837,804.  As shown in the analysis in Table 1 the current taxable 
value of the entire Study Area is estimated to be $68,832,947.  This value then must be 
added to the Base Assessed Values of the Downtown District, the Ten Mile District and the 
Union District to test for the 10% limitation.  Given that at this time the City and MDC are 
considering the potential creation of an additional urban renewal district (the Linder 
URD) and an amendment to the Union URD to add additional area pursuant to Idaho 
Code Section 50-2033, we added their assessed values to this analysis to provide decision 
makers with the scale of the various districts compared to the statutory limitation.  The 
analysis for these purposes in presented in Table 1, below.   The combined base assessment 
roll values remain well below the statutory limit.   

Table 1  
Statutory 10% Limitation Analysis 

5 With House Bill 560 (2020) effective July 1, 2020, eliminating the property tax exemption for agricultural 
land and replacing it with a method to value agricultural land, going forward the method to determine the 
existence of an agricultural operation will change.  
6 At the time this Study was prepared the 2021 values were not available.  It is generally understood the 
2021 values will increase; therefore, using the 2020 assessed values may be more conservative than the 
current conditions.   

Page 472

Item #23.



19 | P a g e

Area Taxable Value Percentage 
Total City $10,375,837,804 100% 

Downtown URD Base Value $146,334,050 1.41% 
Ten Mile URD $   39,539,125 0.38% 
Union URD $2,144,360 0.02% 
Proposed Northern Gateway URD $68,832,974 0.66% 
*Proposed Linder URD $11,978,500 0.12% 
*Proposed Union District Addition (est.) $3,414,100 0.03% 
Total UR Base Assessed Value Percentage $272,243,109 2.62% 

*The MDC Board has considered and accepted the proposed Linder District
Eligibility Study.  The MDC Board is anticipated to consider the eligibility of the
proposed Union District Addition in June.

The effect of creating this district on the capacity of the City and MDC to consider future 
districts should they choose to do so is also explored.  The table below shows there is 
capacity to consider additional districts. 

Table 2 
Remaining Urban Renewal Capacity 

Maximum 10% Limitation $1,037,583,780 10% 
Downtown URD $146,334,779 1.41% 
Ten Mile URD $39,539,125 0.38% 
Union URD $2,144,360 0.02% 
Proposed Northern Gateway URD $68,832,947 0.66% 
Proposed Linder URD $11,996,035 0.12% 
Proposed Union District Addition (est.) $3,414,100 0..03% 
Available AV within limitation $765,340,671 7.38% 

Page 473

Item #23.



Exhibit B

Page 474

Item #23.



Page 475

Item #23.



Page 476

Item #23.



Page 477

Item #23.



Page 478

Item #23.



Page 479

Item #23.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 21-2274: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City 

of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Idaho Block Annexation Area as an
Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and Justification for Designating the Area as 
Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; Determining that the Area Identified in the Report as the 
Proposed Amendment Area Adjacent and Contiguous to the Existing Union District Revenue Allocation 
Area Within the City of Meridian, to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, or a Combination 
Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal 
Agency of the City of Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to 
Commence the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment, which Plan Amendment May 
Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective Date

Page 480

Item #24.



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Cameron Arial, Community Development Meeting Date: July 6, 2021 

Presenter: Cameron Arial Estimated Time:  15 minutes 

Topic: Resolution No. 21-2274: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 
Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Idaho Block 
Annexation Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and 
Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; 
Determining that the Area Identified in the Report as the Proposed Amendment Area 
Adjacent and Contiguous to the Existing Union District Revenue Allocation Area 
Within the City of Meridian, to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, or a 
Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-
2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Meridian, Idaho, also 
Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to Commence the Preparation of 
an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment, which Plan Amendment May Include Revenue 
Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective Date 

 

Background 

While downtown Meridian is beginning to experience renewed interest, the challenges in 
revitalizing aging downtown properties are still apparent. New private investment in the original 
downtown Meridian Revitalization District (“original District”) has been hampered by the 2008-
2009 recession and, more recently, by uncertainties surrounding COVID-related changes in the 
commercial real estate market and rising development costs. 

Meridian Development Corporation (“MDC”) has been engaged in urban renewal efforts in the 
original District since its adoption in late 2002. The original District will sunset in 2026. With 
limited time to utilize the urban renewal tools available to assist in funding public infrastructure 
improvements, many properties are likely to remain underutilized without intervention. 

It is difficult for property owners to justify redevelopment of the small, infill sites that make up the 
majority of the original District and fund the required public infrastructure improvements that 
condition development. 

Based on inquires and interest in the Idaho Block Study Area (“Study Area”), pictured below, MDC 
retained Kushlan | Associates to prepare an Eligibility Report to assess the viability of the Study 
Area as an urban renewal project and evaluate its concurrence with Idaho Code requirements. The 
Eligibility Report (Exhibit A of the proposed resolution) cites the conditions necessary as well as 
the financial findings required. The Study Area is proposed to be annexed into the adjacent Union 
District, created in 2020. 

  
Page 481

Item #24.



2 
 

 
                    Idaho Block Study Area 

 

 
Current market rents cannot support development costs or produce the returns necessary to 
secure private equity investment or traditional bank financing for redevelopment of the small 
parcels in the Study Area. The assemblage of parcels can spread soft development costs over a 
larger area and when coupled with MDC’s ability to fund public infrastructure improvements 
required of new development, can spur development interest. 

MDC accepted the Idaho Block Study Area Eligibility Report and, through MDC Resolution 21-027 
adopted on June 9, 2021 (Exhibit B of the proposed resolution), authorized its transmittal to the 
City Council for consideration and, if accepted as appropriate for an urban renewal project, 
subsequent direction for MDC to proceed with preparation of an amended urban renewal plan 
providing for the annexation of the Study Area into the Union District. 

 

Page 482

Item #24.



3 
 

Annexation of the Idaho Block Study Area’s 11 parcels will add 1.461 acres to the existing 16-acre 
Union District. Idaho Code allows for a one-time amendment to extend the boundary of an existing 
revenue allocation area if the new area is contiguous and not more than ten percent of the existing 
area. 

A study area is required to meet at least one of ten conditions specified in Idaho Code Sections 50-
2018(9) and 50-2903(8) to qualify for urban renewal activities. The Eligibility Report finds that 
the Study Area meets four of the ten criteria (Eligibility Report, page 13). 

Approval of this resolution provides for: 

 Acceptance of the Idaho Block Study Area Eligibility Report, 

 Determination that the Study Area is contiguous to the existing Union District and, as 
specified in the Eligibility Report, meets the findings and characteristics stipulated in Idaho 
Code to establish an urban renewal plan amendment, and 

 Directs MDC to prepare a First Amendment to the Union District Urban Renewal Plan to 
annex the Study Area into the Union District. 
 

Future Actions 

The public hearing and second reading of the ordinance to adopt the Second Amendment to the 
Meridian Revitalization Urban Renewal District providing for the deannexation of the Idaho Block 
Study Area from the original District also appear on this evening’s agenda for Council 
consideration. 

Following Council acceptance of the Eligibility Report and direction for MDC to begin preparation 
of an amendment, staff and consultants will prepare a plan amendment specific to the annexation 
of the Study Area into the Union District. City and MDC staff will inform and engage property 
owners. In addition, Planning and Zoning Commission must review the proposed plan to validate 
its conformity with the City Comprehensive Plan. 

The First Amendment to the Union District Urban Renewal Plan will then be brought to the City 
Council for consideration and final adoption following three ordinance readings and a public 
hearing. It is anticipated that these final actions will occur mid-November through early December 
2021. 

Page 483

Item #24.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2274 - 1 

          

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO. ___21-2274_________________ 

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: BERNT, BORTON, CAVENER,  

HOAGLUN, PERREAULT, STRADER 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MERIDIAN, IDAHO, ACCEPTING THAT CERTAIN REPORT ON ELIGIBILITY FOR 

THE IDAHO BLOCK ANNEXATION AREA AS AN URBAN RENEWAL AREA AND 

REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA AND JUSTIFICATION FOR DESIGNATING THE 

AREA AS APPROPRIATE FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT; DETERMINING 

THAT THE AREA IDENTIFIED IN THE REPORT AS THE PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT AREA ADJACENT AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE EXISTING UNION 

DISTRICT REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA WITHIN THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, TO 

BE A DETERIORATED AREA OR A DETERIORATING AREA, OR A 

COMBINATION THEREOF, AS DEFINED BY IDAHO CODE SECTIONS 50-2018(9) 

AND 50-2903(8); DIRECTING THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 

MERIDIAN, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS THE MERIDIAN DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, TO COMMENCE THE PREPARATION OF AN URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT, WHICH PLAN AMENDMENT MAY INCLUDE REVENUE 

ALLOCATION PROVISIONS FOR ALL OR PART OF THE AREA; AND PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Meridian, Idaho (the 

“City”), found that deteriorating areas exist in the City, therefore, for the purposes of the Idaho 

Urban Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”), created 

an urban renewal agency pursuant to the Law, authorizing the agency to transact business and 

exercise the powers granted by the Law and the Local Economic Development Act, Chapter 29, 

Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”) upon making the findings of necessity required for 

creating the Urban Renewal Agency of the city of Meridian, Idaho, also known as the Meridian 

Development Corporation (”MDC”);      
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has duly appointed the Board of Commissioners of MDC (the 

“MDC Board”), which appointment was confirmed by the City Council;  

 

 WHEREAS, on October 8, 2002, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted 

a public hearing on the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project, which is also 

referred to as the Downtown District (the “Downtown District Plan”);   

 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

02-987 on December 3, 2002, approving the Downtown District Plan, making certain findings 

Page 484

Item #24.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2274 - 2 

and establishing the Downtown District revenue allocation area (the “Downtown District Project 

Area”);   

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the Ten Mile Road Urban Renewal Plan (the “Ten Mile Plan”). The public hearing was 

continued to June 21, 2016, for further testimony; 

 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearings, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

16-1695 on June 21, 2016, approving the Ten Mile Plan, making certain findings and 

establishing the Ten Mile revenue allocation area (the “Ten Mile Project Area”);  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the First Amendment to the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project (“First 

Amendment to the Downtown District Plan”); 

 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

20-1881 on June 9, 2020, approving the First Amendment to the Downtown District Plan 

deannexing certain parcels and making certain findings (collectively, the Downtown District 

Plan, and amendments thereto, are referred to as the “Existing Downtown District Plan,” and the 

Downtown District Project Area, and amendments thereto, are referred to as the “Existing 

Downtown District Project Area”); 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 

the Urban Renewal Plan for the Union District Urban Renewal Project (the “Union District 

Plan”);   

 

 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its Ordinance No. 

20-1882 on June 9, 2020, approving the Union District Plan, making certain findings and 

establishing the Union District revenue allocation area (the “Union District Project Area”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Existing Downtown District Plan, the Ten Mile Plan, and the Union 

District Plan and their project areas are collectively referred to as the “Existing Project Areas;” 

 

 WHEREAS, based on inquiries and information presented by certain interested parties 

and property owners, MDC commenced certain discussions concerning examination of an 

additional area as appropriate for an urban renewal project;    

 

 WHEREAS, in 2021, Kushlan | Associates commenced an eligibility study and 

preparation of an eligibility report for an area 1.461 acres in size, which is currently located 

within the boundaries of the Existing Downtown District Project Area, which area is subject to a 

deannexation from the Existing Downtown Project Area. The area is located generally in the 

central part of the City on the block bounded by Main Street on the west, Idaho Avenue on the 

north, NE 2nd Street on the east, and Broadway Avenue on the south. The area is adjacent and 

contiguous to the Union District Project Area. The eligibility study area is commonly referred to 

as the Idaho Block Annexation Study Area (the “Study Area”);   

 

 WHEREAS, MDC obtained an eligibility report entitled Idaho Block Annexation to 

Union District (Proposed) Eligibility Report, dated June 2021 (the “Report”), which examined 

Page 485

Item #24.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2274 - 3 

the Study Area, for the purpose of determining whether such area is a deteriorating area, a 

deteriorated area, or a combination of both a deteriorating area and a deteriorated area, as those 

terms are defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(8), (9) and 50-2903(8);   

 

WHEREAS, the Report, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, found the 

existence of one or more of the statutory criteria for the Study Area to be considered eligible for 

urban renewal activities; 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(8), (9) and 50-2903(8), which 

define the qualifying conditions of a deteriorating area and a deteriorated area, several of the 

conditions necessary to be present in such an area are found in the Study Area, i.e., 

 

a. age or obsolescence;  

b. faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness; obsolete 

platting; 

c. diversity of ownership; and 

d. results in economic underdevelopment of the area; 

 

WHEREAS, the effects of the listed conditions cited in the Report result in economic 

underdevelopment of the area, constitutes an economic or social liability, and is a menace to the 

public health, safety, morals, or welfare in its present condition or use; 

 

WHEREAS, the Report finds there is no open land within the Study Area as 

contemplated in Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9), 50-2903(8)(c), and 50-2008(d), and there are 

not any agricultural operation parcels subject to property owner consent pursuant to Idaho Code 

Sections 50-2903(8)(f) and 50-2018(8) and (9); 

 

WHEREAS, MDC, on June 9, 2021, adopted Resolution No. 21-027 (a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference, without attachments 

thereto) accepted the Report and authorized the Chair, Vice-Chair, or Administrator of MDC to 

transmit the Report to the City Council requesting its consideration for designation of an urban 

renewal area and requesting the City Council to direct MDC to prepare an urban renewal plan for 

the Study Area, which plan may include a revenue allocation provision as allowed by law;   

 

 WHEREAS, the Report includes a preliminary analysis concluding the base assessment 

roll value for the Study Area along with the base assessment rolls for the Existing Project Areas 

and any proposed revenue allocation areas, do not exceed 10% of the current assessed valuation 

of all taxable property within the City;   

 

 WHEREAS, the Report includes a preliminary analysis concluding the Study Area does 

not exceed 10% of the geographical area contained within the existing Union District Revenue 

Allocation Area, and the Study Area is contiguous to the Union District Project Area;  

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code Section 50-2008, an urban renewal project may not 

be planned or initiated unless the local governing body has, by resolution, determined such area 

to be a deteriorated area or a deteriorating area, or combination thereof, and designated such area 

as appropriate for an urban renewal project;   

 

Page 486

Item #24.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2274 - 4 

 WHEREAS, Idaho Code Section 50-2906 also requires that in order to adopt an urban 

renewal plan (or plan amendment) containing a revenue allocation financing provision, the local 

governing body must make a finding or determination that the area included in such plan (or plan 

amendment) is a deteriorated area, a deteriorating area, or a combination thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best public interest that MDC prepare an urban 

renewal plan amendment for the area identified as the Idaho Block Annexation Study Area in the 

Report located in the city of Meridian, county of Ada, state of Idaho. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, AS FOLLOWS:     

 

 Section 1. That the City Council acknowledges acceptance and receipt of the Report.  

 

 Section 2. That the City Council finds and declares that the Idaho Block Annexation 

Study Area identified in the Report, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is a deteriorated area, a 

deteriorating area, or a combination thereof, existing in the City, as defined in Title 50, Chapters 

20 and 29, Idaho Code, as amended, and qualifies as an urban renewal project and justification 

exists for designating the area as appropriate for an urban renewal project. 

 

 Section 3.  That the City Council finds and declares there is a need for MDC, an 

urban renewal agency, to function in accordance with the provisions of Title 50, Chapters 20 and 

29, Idaho Code, as amended, within a designated area for the purpose of establishing an urban 

renewal plan amendment. 

 

Section 4. That having made such designation, the City Council hereby directs MDC 

to commence preparation of an urban renewal plan amendment to annex the Study Area into the 

existing Union District Project Area for consideration by the MDC Board and, if acceptable, 

final consideration by the City Council in compliance with Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, Idaho 

Code, as amended. 

 

 Section 5. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.   

 

 ADOPTED By the Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 6th day of July 2021. 

 

 APPROVED By the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 6th day of July 2021. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

Page 487

Item #24.



Idaho Block Annexation to Union District 
(Proposed) 

Eligibility Report 
Prepared for 

The Meridian Development Corporation 
June 2021 

Kushlan | Associates 
Boise, Idaho 

Exhibit A

Page 488

Item #24.



1 | P a g e

Introduction: Kushlan | Associates was retained by the Urban Renewal Agency of
the City of Meridian, Idaho, also known as the Meridian Development Corporation (the 
“MDC”) to assist in their consideration of annexing a portion of the existing Downtown 
District to the Union Urban Renewal District1 in the City of Meridian, Idaho.  

Elected Officials serving the City of Meridian are: 
Mayor: Robert Simison  
Council President:  Treg Bernt  
Council Vice President: Brad Hoaglun  
Council Members:  Joe Borton 

Luke Cavener 
Liz Strader 
Jessica Perreault 

City Staff 
Community Development Director: Cameron Arial 

Idaho Code § 50-2006 states: “URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY. (a) There is hereby created 
in each municipality an independent public body corporate and politic to be known as the 
"urban renewal agency" that was created by resolution as provided in section 50-2005, 
Idaho Code, before July 1, 2011, for the municipality…” to carry out the powers 
enumerated in the statutes. The Meridian City Council adopted Resolution 01-397 on July 
24, 2001 bringing forth those powers within the City of Meridian.  

The Mayor, with the confirmation of the City Council, has appointed nine members to the 
MDC Board of Commissioners (the “MDC Board”). The MDC Board currently oversees the 
implementation of three urban renewal districts. Two are focused on the revitalization of 
downtown Meridian. The first, the Meridian Revitalization Plan Urban Renewal Project 
(the “Downtown District”) was established by the City Council’s adoption of Ordinance 
No. 02-987 on December 3, 2002. The second district, the Urban Renewal Plan for the 
Union District Urban Renewal Project (the “Union District”) was established with the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 20-1882 on June 9, 2020. Both the Downtown District and the 
Union District are focused on redevelopment activities in and around the City’s downtown 
core. The third district, the Urban Renewal Plan for the Ten Mile Road- A Urban Renewal 
Project (the “Ten Mile District”) was established by Ordinance No. 16-1695 adopted on 
June 21, 2016, and is focused on economic development outside of the City’s core to 
support implementation of the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan.  

The current membership of the Commission is as follows: 

Chair:   David Winder 
Vice Chairman Nathan Mueller 
Secretary/ Treasurer Steve Vlassek 
Commissioners  Dan Basalone 

Rob McCarvel 
Treg Bernt 
Tammy deWeerd 
Diane Bevan 
Kit Fitzgerald 

1 Throughout this Study, urban renewal/revenue allocation area will be referred to as an “urban renewal 
district.” 

Page 489

Item #24.



2 | P a g e

Staff: 
Urban Renewal Administrator: Ashley Squyres 
Legal Counsel:  Todd Lakey 

 Map of the Downtown District (excluding shaded area) 

Page 490

Item #24.



3 | P a g e

Map of Union District 

Page 491

Item #24.



4 | P a g e  

Map of Ten Mile Road District 

 
Background:  
 
While Native Americans inhabited the area for centuries, the development of the 
community of Meridian, as we know it today, evolved through the late nineteenth century. 
European settlement started in the 1880s and was originally located on a farm owned by 
the Onweiler family. A school was opened in 1885. The U.S. Postal Service established a 
mail drop along the Oregon Short Line Railroad and the site was named Hunter after its 
superintendent. Community activity grew around this mail stop focused on the railroad. 
In 1893 an Odd Fellows lodge was organized and called itself Meridian, acknowledging 
that it was located on the Boise Meridian the primary North-South survey benchmark for 
Idaho. That name grew in primary use as the name of the settlement and the Village of 
Meridian was incorporated in 1903 with a population of approximately 200.  
 
The economy had traditionally been focused on the support of the surrounding 
agricultural activities. A major creamery was established in the community in 1897 to 
support the nearby dairies. Fruit orchards were located throughout the area. 
 
Meridian was a significant stop on the Interurban electric railway from 1908 to 1928. This 
service provided convenient access for passengers and freight in both easterly and westerly 
directions.  
 
Throughout most of the 20th century, Meridian remained a relatively quiet community 
focused on its agricultural roots. US Census Bureau data, reflects a 1910 population of 619 
people growing to 2,616 by 1970. However, starting in 1970 the pace of growth in 
Southwest Idaho quickened and Meridian’s growth initially reflected, and then exceeded 
the regional rates by significant margins. Over the past twenty-five years the rate of growth 

Page 492

Item #24.



5 | P a g e

has been startling by any reasonable standard. The following table reflects that population 
growth over the city’s history. 

1903 (Incorporation Estimate) 200 
1910 619 
1920 1,013 
1930 1,004 
1940 1,465 
1950 1,500 
1960 2,100 
1970 2,600 
1980 6,658 
1990 9,596 
2000 34,919 
2010 75,092 
2020 114,200 
2021 (Estimate) 129,555 

When income statistics are compared to statewide numbers, the population of Meridian 
compares favorably with the rest of Idaho in these categories. The median household 
income in Meridian is $71,389, approximately 28% above the statewide figure of $55,785. 
Per capita money income for the Meridian population is $33,328 as compared to the 
statewide number of $27,970. The percentage of the Meridian population below poverty 
level is 8.6% as compared to the statewide number of 11.2%.  

Investment Capacity: Cities across the nation actively participate in the economic 
vitality of their communities through investment in infrastructure. Water and sewer 
facilities as well as transportation, communication, electrical distribution and other 
systems are all integral elements of an economically viable community. Idaho cities have 
a significant challenge in responding to these demands along with the on-going need to 
reinvest in their general physical plant to ensure it does not deteriorate to the point of 
system failure. They face stringent statutory and constitutional limitations on revenue 
generation and debt as well as near total dependence upon state legislative action to 
provide funding options. These strictures severely constrain capital investment strategies. 

The tools made available to cities in Title 50, Chapters 20 and 29, the Urban Renewal Law 
and the Local Economic Development Act are some of the few that are available to assist 
communities in their efforts to support economic vitality. New sources of State support 
are unlikely to become available in the foreseeable future, thus the City of Meridian’s 
interest in exploring the potential for modifying the Union Urban Renewal District is an 
appropriate public policy consideration. 

The City of Meridian initially established its Urban Renewal Agency in 2001. As noted 
above, the Downtown District’s exclusive focus, limited by the boundaries of the district, 
is on the traditional downtown area of Meridian. The Ten Mile District was created in 2016 
and was designed to support the implementation of the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area 
Plan. A third urban renewal district, the Union District, was created in 2020 from an area 

Page 493

Item #24.



6 | P a g e

de-annexed from the original Downtown District to support a significant mixed use-
project.  

The proposed Northern Gateway Urban Renewal District would, if approved by the MDC 
Board of Commissioners and Meridian City Council, would remove 145 parcels from the 
existing Downtown District and combine those with other properties and rights-0f-way 
north of Fairview Avenue and southeast of Fairview Avenue to establish a new district.  

The Union District annexation of the block located in downtown Meridian, bounded by 
Main Street, Idaho Avenue, NE 2nd Street and Broadway Avenue is designated for this 
study as the Idaho Block. The Idaho Block is currently located within the boundaries of 
the Downtown District2 but is being considered for de-annexation to allow for inclusion 
into the adjacent Union District.  

Comprehensive Plan: 

The City of Meridian Comprehensive Plan, updated in 2019 designates the area under 
review as Old Town. 

2 The Second Amendment to the Meridian Revitalization Plan seeking to deannex certain parcels from the 
existing Downtown District, including what is referred to as the Idaho Block parcels that are contemplated 
to be considered for annexation into the existing Union District Project Area pursuant to Idaho Code 
Section 50-2033, has been approved by the MDC Board and submitted to the City for its consideration.  

Page 494

Item #24.



7 | P a g e

The Meridian Comprehensive Plan details the anticipated land uses in the various 
designations throughout the city. Those uses for the Old Town Area are articulated 
below. 

Old Town Land Uses 

This designation includes the historic downtown and the true community center. 
The boundary of the Old Town district predominantly follows Meridian’s historic 
plat boundaries. In several areas, both sides of a street were incorporated into the 
boundary to encourage similar uses and complimentary design of the facing 
houses and buildings. Sample uses include offices, retail and lodging, theatres, 
restaurants, and service retail for surrounding residents and visitors. A variety of 
residential uses are also envisioned and could include reuse of existing buildings, 
new construction of multi-family residential over ground floor retail or office 
uses.  

The City has developed specific architectural standards for Old Town and other 
traditional neighborhood areas. Pedestrian amenities are emphasized in Old 
Town via streetscape standards. Additional public and quasi-public amenities and 
outdoor gathering area are encouraged. Future planning in Old Town will be 
reviewed in accordance with Destination Downtown, a visioning document for 
redevelopment in Downtown Meridian. Please see Chapter 2 Premier Community 
for more information on Destination Downtown. Sample zoning include O-T  

Steps in Consideration of an Amendment to an Urban 
Renewal District:  

The first step in consideration of amending an urban renewal district to add area in Idaho 
is to define a potential area for analysis as to whether conditions exist within it to qualify 
for redevelopment activities under the statute. We have called this the “Study Area.”  

The next step in the process is to review the conditions within the Study Area to determine 
whether the area is eligible for annexation into an existing district. The State Law 
governing urban renewal sets out the following criteria, at least one of which must be 
found, for an area to be considered eligible for urban renewal activities:  

1. The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating
Structures and Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements [50-2018(9)
and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]

2. Age or Obsolescence [50-2018(8) and 50-2903(8)(a)]

3. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout [50-2018(9) and
50-2903(8)(b)]

Page 495

Item #24.



8 | P a g e  

4. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or 
Usefulness; Obsolete Platting [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-
2903(8)(c)] 

 
5. Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
6. Diversity of Ownership [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)] 

 
7. Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
8. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
9. Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area [50-2903(8)(b); 50-

2903(8)(c)] 
 
10. Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality [50-

2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)] 
 
If the Eligibility Report finds that one or more of the conditions noted above exists within 
the Study Area, then the Agency may accept the findings and forward the Eligibility Report 
to the City Council for their consideration. If the City Council concurs with the 
determination of the Agency, they may direct that an Amendment to the Urban Renewal 
Plan be developed for the area that addresses the issues raised in the Eligibility Report. 
 
The Agency then acts to prepare the Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan annexing the 
area into the existing District and establishing a Revenue Allocation Area for the expansion 
area to fund improvements called for in the Plan Amendment. Once the Plan Amendment 
for the District and Revenue Allocation Area are completed, the Agency Board forwards it 
to the City Council for their consideration.  
 
The City Council must refer the Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission to determine whether the Plan Amendment, as presented, is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and make a corresponding finding. At the 
same time, other taxing entities levying property taxes within the boundaries of the 
proposed Urban Renewal District are provided a thirty-day opportunity to comment on 
the Plan Amendment to the City Council. While the taxing entities are invited to comment 
on the Plan Amendment, their concurrence is not required for the City Council to proceed 
with formal consideration.  
 
Based on legislative changes to Idaho Code § 50-2908(2)(a), effective July 1, 2020, the 
Ada County Highway District (ACHD) is allocated all of the taxes levied by ACHD within 
a revenue allocation area first formed or expanded to include property on or after July 1, 
2020 (including taxes levied on the base and increment values), which would apply to this 
proposed district, if formed. However, ACHD and MDC may enter into an agreement for 
a different allocation, which agreement shall be submitted to the State Tax Commission 
and to the Ada County Clerk by ACHD as soon as practicable after the parties have entered 
in the agreement and by no later than September 1 of the year in which the agreement 
takes effect. In the case of the Union District Annexation Study Area, the affected taxing 
districts are: 

 

Page 496

Item #24.



9 | P a g e  

• The City of Meridian 
• The West Ada School District (School District No. 2) 
• Ada County 
• Emergency Medical District/Ada County Ambulance 
• Mosquito Abatement District 
• The Ada County Highway District 
• Meridian Library District 
• Meridian Cemetery District 
• Western Ada Recreation District 
• College of Western Idaho 

 
 
Once the Planning and Zoning Commission makes their finding of conformity and the 
thirty-day comment period has passed, the City Council is permitted to hold a public 
hearing and formally consider the adoption of the Plan Amendment annexing the 
expansion area into the existing Urban Renewal District and Revenue Allocation Area.  
 
The City Council must also find that the taxable value of the district to be created plus the 
Base Assessed Value of any existing Urban Renewal / Revenue Allocation Area does not 
exceed the statutory maximum of 10% of the citywide assessed valuation. 
 
If the City Council, in their discretion chooses to proceed, they will officially adopt the 
Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan and Revenue Allocation Area and provide official 
notification of that action to the affected taxing districts, County Assessor and Idaho State 
Tax Commission. 
 
The Agency then proceeds to implement the Plan Amendment.  
 
Description of the Union District Annexation Study Area:  
 
The Study Area subject to the current review is generally located in the central part of 
Meridian on the block bounded by Main Street on the west, Idaho Avenue on the north, 
NE 2nd Street on the east and Broadway Avenue on the south. It contains 1.165 parcel acres 
(1.461 acres including to the centerline of Idaho Avenue) or 45,867.48square feet divided 
into eleven separate lots. Three lots3 are vacant with the remaining lots containing 
structures built during the early part of the 20th Century. 
 
The size and value information presented below was derived from the Ada County 
Assessor’s on-line parcel information system4.  
 

                                                        
3 While R5672000631 and R5672000632 are also vacant, combined these vacant lots represent .005 acres.   
4 For purposes of this Study, the 2020 taxable values were reviewed as at the time of this review the 2021 
value information was not available. Use of the 2020 values provides a more conservative analysis as it is 
generally understood significant value increases will occur in 2021. Further, based on the adoption of 
H389, effective retroactive to January 1, 2021, the Homeowner Property Tax Exemption will increase to a 
maximum of $125,000. This is anticipated to further reduce the base. Again, as the 2021 tax assessments 
were not yet available at the time this Study was prepared, the 2020 data has been used. The 10% analysis 
set forth below will ultimately be revisited in any further amendment to the urban renewal plan.  

Page 497

Item #24.



10 | P a g e  

Idaho Block Parcel Data 
Table 1 

Tax Parcel Site Address Lot Size 
Sq. Ft. 

Assessed 
Value Land 

Assessed 
Value 

Improvements 

Total 
Assessed 

Value 

Year 
Constructed 

R5672000680 105 E Idaho Ave 6,098 $85,400 $535,100 $620,500 1935 
R567200069 720 N Main St 2,178 $28,300 $369,100 $397,400 1937 
R5672000651 113 E Idaho Ave 14,810 $162,900 $927,200 $1,090,100 1947 
R5672000642 127 E Idaho Ave 5,314 $74,400 $428,000 $502,400 1905 
R5672000636 139 E Idaho Ave 2,875 $37,400 $203,600 $241,000 1915 
R5672000630 725 NE 2nd St 3,485 $45,300 $380,900 $426,200 1945 
R5672000610 130 E Broadway Ave 3,485 $41,800 $0 $41,800 Vacant 
R5672000615 132 E Broadway Ave 4,356 $52,300 $0 $52,300 Vacant 
R5672000625 109 NE 2nd St 3,049 $39,600 $0 $39,600 Vacant 
R5672000631 NE 2nd St 87.12 $1,100 $0 $1,100 Vacant 
R5672000632 NE 2nd St 130.68 $1,700 $0 $1,700 Vacant 
  45,867.48 $570,200 $2,843,900 $3,414,100  

 
Union Urban Renewal District Annexation  

 

 
 
 
The Study Area 
 
The Union District Annexation Study Area consists of eleven (11) tax parcels located in 
central Meridian on the block bounded by Main Street on the west, Idaho Avenue on the 
north, NE 2nd Street on the east and Broadway Avenue on the south. The properties within 
the Study Area carry zoning designations consistent with its historic usage. Old Town (OT) 
zoning designations are in place on all eleven parcels. Ada County Assessor records show 
that none of the properties reflect a Homeowners Property Tax Exemption indicating there 
are no owner-occupied residences. The rights-of way for the afore-mentioned streets are 
excluded from the de-annexation with the exception of the south half of Idaho Avenue 
between Main Street and NE 2nd Street. 
 
The Study Area is one of the older developed areas in the community. As noted above, 
Meridian was established in the 1880s and eventually incorporated as a Village under 
Idaho law in 1903. All of the structures date from the period from 1905 to 1947. 
 

Page 498

Item #24.



11 | P a g e  

When the improvement value assigned to a parcel is less than or approaches the land 
value, a deteriorated or deteriorating condition is present. National real estate appraisal 
standards suggest that in an economically viable property, land value should contribute 
approximately 30% of the total value leaving 70% to the improvements. As that ratio 
shifts, with improvement value declining as a proportion of the total, a condition of 
disinvestment is determined to be present. At a point when the improvement value 
represents less than 50% of the total (i.e., improvement value is less than land value) 
such condition represents a “deteriorated condition” for the purposes of this analysis. 
With these benchmarks in mind, we find that none of the properties reflect improvement 
values less than land values.  
 
Three properties constituting 0.25 acres (10,890 Sq. Ft.) are currently vacant as the 
historic structures formerly located thereon having been razed. 
 
Streets: Only the south half of Idaho Avenue between Main Street and NE 2nd Street would 
be included within the boundaries of the annexation. The other abutting streets and 
associated rights-of-way will remain either in the Downtown District (North half of Idaho 
Avenue and Main Street) or are already included in the Union District (NE 2nd Street and 
Broadway Avenue). The portion of Idaho Avenue that is to be included in the annexation 
has been improved to urban standards. An alley bisects the block in an East-West 
orientation and the pavement reflects a deteriorated condition.  
 
Illumination: Street lighting, to City standards, has been provided along Idaho Avenue. 
 
Sidewalks: Pedestrian facilities on Idaho Avenue within the Study Area are in place and 
are in good condition.  
 
Storm Drainage: Street drainage is accommodated by a curb along the south side of Idaho 
Avenue carrying storm water to a catch basin located at the intersection of Idaho Avenue 
and Main Street.  
 
Water System: The Study Area is served by facilities located within those rights-of-way 
that will remain in the Downtown District. The facilities located within the right-of-way of 
Idaho Avenue appear sufficient to handle anticipated demands.  
 
Sewage Collection System: No deficiencies in this area were noted.  
 
Analysis of the Study Area:  
 
A review of the Study Area reflects an area in transition. The Union Urban Renewal 
District, created in 2020, is anticipated to accommodate a significant mixed-use 
commercial and residential development. New high-density housing is being constructed 
directly across Main Street. However, the Study Area retains its historic form of small lots 
and older buildings. 
 
For the convenience of the reader, the statutory criteria are reiterated, at least one of which 
must be found to qualify an area for urban renewal activities. Those conditions are: 
 

1. The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating 
Structures and Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements [50-2018(9) 
and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)]  

Page 499

Item #24.



12 | P a g e  

 
2. Age or Obsolescence [50-2018(8) and 50-2903(8)(a)] 

 
3. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout [50-2018(9) and 

50-2903(8)(b)] 
 

4. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or 
Usefulness; Obsolete Platting [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-
2903(8)(c)] 

 
5. Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
6. Diversity of Ownership [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)] 

 
7. Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
8. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title [50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b)] 

 
9. Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area [50-2903(8)(b); 50-

2903(8)(c)] 
 
10. Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality [50-

2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b); 50-2903(8)(c)] 
 
Analysis: Union District Annexation of the Idaho Block 
 
Criterion #1: The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated or Deteriorating 
Structures; and Deterioration of Site: While all of the buildings within the Study Area are 
between 74 and 116 years old, they have been maintained and their assessed values do not 
reflect a deteriorated condition as described above. Therefore, criterion #1 is not met. 
Criterion #2: Age or Obsolescence: All of the structures within the Study Area date from 
the first half of the 20th Century. The area around the Study Area is quickly transitioning 
into a modern commercial center. The configuration of the block into a series of small lots 
does not accommodate modern commercial floorplates making redevelopment 
economically infeasible. Three lots at the southeast corner of the Study Area have been 
cleared of their former structures and remain vacant. Therefore, criterion #2 is met. 
 
Criterion #3: Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout: The area is served 
by the existing urban street grid and, with the exception of the south half of Idaho Avenue, 
will remain outside the annexation area. Therefore, criterion #3 is not met. 
 
Criterion #4: Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility or 
Usefulness; Obsolete Platting: The eleven (11) parcels within the Study Area range in size 
from 2,178 square feet5 up to 14,810 square feet with the majority of the lots containing 
under 5,000 square feet. Modern commercial structures call for larger lot sizes to 
accommodate economical development. Therefore, criterion #4 is met. 
 

                                                        
5 Note the two sliver parcels R5672000631 and R5672000632 combined represent .005 acres, 87.12 and 
130.68, respectively, but are negligible to the analysis.   

Page 500

Item #24.



13 | P a g e  

Criterion #5: Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions: While the structures are old as compared 
to those in the broader community, there is no indication that any of them are in an unsafe 
condition. Community infrastructure providing services to the Study Area is either 
adequate or being upgraded with surrounding redevelopment activities. Therefore, 
criterion #5 is not met. 
 
Criterion #6: Diversity of Ownership: The ownership of the eleven lots located on 1.165 
acres in the Study Area is in the hands of five (5) entities making a coordinated 
redevelopment effort difficult to achieve. Therefore, criterion #6 is met. 
 
Criterion #7: Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency: According to Ada County Assessor 
records, no delinquencies exist. Therefore, criterion #7 is not met. 
 
Criterion #8: Defective or unusual condition of title: No defective or unusual conditions 
of title are reflected in Ada County records. Therefore, criterion #8 is not met. 
 
Criterion #9: Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area: Three lots6 containing 
10,890 square feet, approximately 31% of the Study Area are vacant, having had their 
obsolete structures razed. The remaining lots are of a relatively small size making them 
uneconomic for redevelopment consistent with the regenerative activities occurring 
around the Study Area. Therefore, criterion #9 is met. 
 
Criterion #10: Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of a Municipality: The 
City of Meridian has expressed its vision for this area in the creation and adoption of the 
Comprehensive Plan, and significant redevelopment is occurring around the Study Area. 
However, the area represented is relatively small representing only 1.165 acres and eleven 
lots. Therefore criterion #10 is met. 
 
Findings: Union District Annexation: Conditions exist within the Study Area to 
allow the Board of Commissioners of the Meridian Development Corporation and the 
Meridian City Council to determine that the area is eligible for urban renewal activities as 
prescribed in State Law.  
 
Summary of Findings 

 Criteria Met Not 
Met 

1 The Presence of a Substantial Number of Deteriorated 
or Deteriorating Structures; and Deterioration of Site 

 X 

2 Age or Obsolescence  X  
3 Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street 

Layout  
 X 

4 Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, 
Accessibility or Usefulness; Obsolete Platting  

X  

5 Insanitary or Unsafe Conditions   X 
6 Diversity of Ownership  X  
7 Tax or Special Assessment Delinquency  X 
8 Defective or unusual condition of title  X 

                                                        
6 Note the two vacant sliver parcels R5672000631 and R5672000632 combined represent .005 acres, 87.12 
and 130.68, respectively, but are negligible to the analysis.   

Page 501

Item #24.



14 | P a g e  

 
9 Results in Economic Underdevelopment of the Area  X  
10 Substantially Impairs or Arrests the Sound Growth of 

a Municipality 
 X 

 
Analysis: Open Land Conditions: In addition to the eligibility conditions 
identified above, the geographic area under review is also reviewed for compliance with 
the “open land” conditions. Idaho Code Section 50-2903(8)(c) states: “[a]ny area which is 
predominately open and which because of obsolete platting, diversity of ownership, 
deterioration of structures or improvements, or otherwise, results in economic 
underdevelopment of the area or substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a 
municipality. The provisions of section 50-2008(d), Idaho Code, shall apply to open 
areas.” 
 
The eligibility criteria set forth in Idaho Code Section 50-2903(8)(c) for predominantly 
open land areas mirror or are the same as those criteria set forth in Idaho Code Sections 
50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8)(b). “Diversity of ownership” is the same, while “obsolete 
platting” appears to be equivalent to “faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, 
accessibility, or usefulness.” “Deterioration of structures or improvements” is the same or 
similar to “a substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures” and 
“deterioration of site or other improvements.” There is also an additional qualification that 
the provisions of Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d) shall apply to open areas.  
 
Idaho Code Section 50-2008 primarily addresses the urban renewal plan approval process 
and Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d)(4) sets forth certain conditions and findings for 
agency acquisition of open land as follows:  
 

the urban renewal plan will afford maximum opportunity, consistent with 
the sound needs of the municipality as a whole, for the rehabilitation or 
redevelopment of the urban renewal area by private enterprise: Provided, 
that if the urban renewal area consists of an area of open land to be acquired 
by the urban renewal agency, such area shall not be so acquired unless (1) 
if it is to be developed for residential uses, the local governing body shall 
determine that a shortage of housing of sound standards and design which 
is decent, safe and sanitary exists in the municipality; that the need for 
housing accommodations has been or will be increased as a result of the 
clearance of slums in other areas; that the conditions of blight in the area 
and the shortage of decent, safe and sanitary housing cause or contribute 
to an increase in and spread of disease and crime and constitute a menace 
to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare; and that the acquisition of 
the area for residential uses is an integral part of and essential to the 
program of the municipality, or (2) if it is to be developed for nonresidential 
uses, the local governing body shall determine that such nonresidential 
uses are necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and 
development of the community in accordance with sound planning 
standards and local community objectives, which acquisition may require 
the exercise of governmental action, as provided in this act, because of 
defective or unusual conditions of title, diversity of ownership, tax 
delinquency, improper subdivisions, outmoded street patterns, 
deterioration of site, economic disuse, unsuitable topography or faulty lot 

Page 502

Item #24.



15 | P a g e  

layouts, the need for the correlation of the area with other areas of a 
municipality by streets and modern traffic requirements, or any 
combination of such factors or other conditions which retard development 
of the area. 
 

In sum, there is one set of findings if the area of open land is to be acquired and developed 
for residential uses and a separate set of findings if the land is to be acquired and developed 
for nonresidential uses. 
 
Basically, open land areas may be acquired by an urban renewal agency and developed for 
nonresidential uses if such acquisition is necessary to solve various problems, associated 
with the land or the infrastructure, that have delayed the area’s development. These 
problems include defective or usual conditions of title, diversity of ownership, tax 
delinquency, improper subdivisions, outmoded street patterns, deterioration of site, and 
faulty lot layout. All of the stated conditions are included in one form or another in the 
definition of a deteriorated area and/or a deteriorating area set forth in Idaho Code 
Sections 50-2903(8)(b) and 50-2018(9). The conditions listed only in Section 50-
2008(d)(4)(2) (the open land section) include economic disuse, unsuitable topography, 
and “the need for the correlation of the area with other areas of a municipality by streets 
and modern traffic requirements, or any combination of such factors or other conditions 
which retard development of the area.” 
 
The conclusion of this discussion concerning open land areas is that the area qualifies if 
any of the eligibility conditions set forth in Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-
2903(8)(b) apply. Alternatively, the area under consideration qualifies if any of the 
conditions listed only in Idaho Code Section 50-2008(d)(4)(2) apply.  
 
Given the historic nature of the Study Area and that it has been developed for several 
decades, even though three of the lots are vacant, the area should not be considered “Open 
Land” under the statutory definition. 
 
Other Relevant Issues: 
 
Agricultural Landowners Concurrence: None of the properties located 
within the Study Area have been used for agricultural operations purposes during the past 
three years so property owner concurrence is not required.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Based upon the data and the conditions that exist within the Study Area as noted above, 
the Meridian Development Corporation Board and Meridian City Council may determine 
that Union District Annexation Study Area is eligible for the annexation to the Union 
Urban Renewal District.  
 
10% Valuation Analysis: In addition to the findings reported above, verification 
that the assessed value of the proposed Study Area is within the statutory limits is needed. 
State Law limits the percentage of values on the combined base assessment rolls that can 
be included in urban renewal / revenue allocation districts to 10% of the current assessed 
valuation of all taxable property within the City. According to Ada County Assessor 

Page 503

Item #24.



16 | P a g e

records, the 20207 total certified value for the City of Meridian is $13,230,528,301 (does 
not include operating property). This number does not reflect exemptions. Therefore, 
taking a more conservative approach, the net taxable value for this calculation is used. 
That number is $10,375,837,804. As shown in the analysis in Table 1 the 2020 taxable 
value of the entire Study Area is estimated to be $3,414,100. This value then must be 
added to the Base Assessed Values of the Downtown District8, the Ten Mile District and 
the Union District to test for the 10% limitation. Given that at this time the City and MDC 
are considering the potential creation of additional urban renewal districts (the Linder 
URD and the Northern Gateway URD), we added their assessed values to this analysis to 
provide decision makers with the scale of the various districts compared to the statutory 
limitation. The analysis for these purposes in presented in Tables 2 and 3, below. The 
combined base assessment roll values remain well below the statutory limit.  

Table 2 
Statutory 10% Limitation Analysis 

Area Taxable Value Percentage 
Total City $10,375,837,804 100% 

Downtown URD Base Value $146,334,050 1.41% 
Ten Mile URD $ 39,539,125 0.38% 
Union URD $2,144,360 0.02% 
*Proposed Northern Gateway URD $68,832,974 0.66% 
*Proposed Linder URD $11,978,500 0.12% 
Proposed Union District Annexation (est.) $3,414,100 0.03% 
Total UR Base Assessed Value 
Percentage 

$272,243,109 2.62% 

*The MDC Board has considered and accepted the proposed Linder District Eligibility
Study. The MDC Board is anticipated to consider the eligibility of the proposed
Northern Gateway District in June.

The effect of annexing the Idaho Block into the existing Union District on the capacity of 
the City and MDC to consider future districts should they choose to do so is also explored. 
The table below shows there is capacity to consider additional districts. 

Table 3 
Remaining Urban Renewal Capacity 

Maximum 10% Limitation $1,037,583,780 10% 
Downtown URD $146,334,050 1.41% 
Ten Mile URD $ 39,539,125 0.38% 
Union URD $2,144,360 0.02% 
Proposed Northern Gateway URD $68,832,947 0.66% 
Proposed Linder URD $11,996,035 0.12% 

7 At the time this Study was prepared the 2021 values were not available. It is generally understood the 
2021 values will increase; therefore, using the 2020 assessed values may be more conservative than the 
current conditions. 
8 For purposes of this Study and since the Second Amendment to the Meridian Revitalization Plan has not 
yet been adopted, the values of the certain geographic areas to be de-annexed from the Downtown District 
have not been adjusted downwards. This presents a more conservative scenario.  

Page 504

Item #24.



17 | P a g e

Proposed Union District Annexation 
(est.) 

$3,414,100 0.03% 

Available AV within limitation $765,340,671 7.38% 

10% Geographic Analysis: In addition to the findings reported above,
verification that the geographic area proposed to be annexed into the existing Union 
District is within the statutory limits is needed. State Law limits the number of acres that 
may be annexed into an existing district. Idaho Code Section 50-2033 states, in pertinent 
part: “…an urban renewal plan that includes a revenue allocation area may be extended 
only one (1) time to extend the boundary of the revenue allocation so long as the total 
area to be added is not greater than ten percent (10%) of the existing revenue allocation 
area and the area to be added is contiguous to the existing revenue allocation area but 
such contiguity cannot be established solely by a shoestring or strip of land which 
comprises a railroad or public right-of-way.” The existing Union District is 15.86 acres; 
therefore, the Union District is permitted to be amended one (1) time to include up to 
1.58 acres. The Idaho Block represents 1.461 acres, which is within the permitted 
annexation limitation.  

A plan amendment to increase the revenue allocation area boundary as permitted in 
Idaho Code Section 50-2033 is not a modification pursuant to Idaho Code Section 50-
2903A. Idaho Code Section 50-2903A(1)(a)(ii). 

4852-9840-1516, v. 4

Page 505

Item #24.



Exhibit B

Page 506

Item #24.



Page 507

Item #24.



Page 508

Item #24.



Page 509

Item #24.



Page 510

Item #24.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Mayor's Office: Budget Amendment in the Amount of $4500.00 for 
Production Room Computer Replacement, Software and Equipment

Page 511

Item #25.



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Dave Miles, Mayor’s Office Meeting Date: July 6 2021 

Presenter: Dave Miles Estimated Time: 5 mins 

Topic: Budget Amendment – Production Room Computer Replacement, Software & 
Equipment 

 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approve the fiscal year 2021 budget amendment in the amount of $4,500 for costs associated with 
replacing the computer, and acquiring updated software & equipment associated with video 
production needs. 

Background: 

The City maintains a video production computer and software in the Council Chambers 
Production Room.  The computer and software is used for various communication video needs 
including internal and external video products and requires various video equipment 
(microphones, tripods, etc.) for production needs.  The current MAC computer has malfunctioned 
beyond repair based on IT evaluation.  Based on needs and functionality it is recommended to 
replace with a windows-based machine and the associated software for video production.  During 
this evaluation, the Communication’s team also inventoried equipment and has the need to 
acquire equipment to maintain continuity in active video production projects and needs.  This 
budget amendment will allow for video production needs to continue uninterrupted.  (Examples 
of representative projects include promotional and educational videos of National Night Out, 
Movie Night, TVYSS, and other Departmental needs across the City, as well as internal needs.)   

 <end> 

Page 512

Item #25.



Page 513

Item #25.



Page 514

Item #25.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2021 Action Plan
Presentation

Page 515

Item #26.



Meridian CDBG
Program PY21

Action Plan

October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022
Page 516

Item #26.



Planning Documents 

Analysis of Impediments
Housing Assessment
Current Plan 2017-2021

Plan for administering the upcoming year

Consolidated Plan 

Action Plan

Community Involvement

Public Comment Period - June 11 to July 20
Public Presentations - July 6 and July 20
Public Hearing - July 20

Regular involvement
Feedback requested

Citizen Participation 

Consultation with Stakeholders

The Process

Page 517

Item #26.



Year 5
Action Plan

Total $597,246

Accessibility
56.3% Housing

28.6%

Admin/Fair Housing
7.5%

Public Services
7.5%

PY21 $501,559

Reallocated Funds $95,687

Page 518

Item #26.



Admin/Fair Housing

 2022-2026 Con Plan
Housing Assessment
Fair Housing Campaign
General Administration

Federal Cap: $100,312
Allocation: $45,000

Activities

Page 519

Item #26.



Public Services

Access to extended care programs for eligible
participants.

Temporary rental assistance for those at risk of
losing their housing. 

Emergency Rental Assistance - $20,000

Scholarships for Youth - $25,000

Federal Cap: $75,234
Allocation: $45,000

Page 520

Item #26.



Housing

Rehabilitate owner-occupied homes for households within
Meridian City limits.

Homeowner Repair - $171,000

Allocation: $171,000

Page 521

Item #26.



Accessibility

Replace current playground with an all-abilities
playground and develop a pathway to connect it to
the nearby LMI neighborhoods

Chateau Park Playground and Pathway

Allocation: $336,246

Hombuyer Assistance
Streetlights near Peregrine Elementary
Streetlights near Meridian Middle

Backup Projects

Page 522

Item #26.



Next
Steps

Public Comment 
June 11 to July 20

Public Hearing 
July 20

Final Report and
Resolution 

July 27

Submit to HUD 
July 30

Page 523

Item #26.



Questions or
comments?

Crystal Campbell
ccampbell@meridiancity.org

(208) 489-0575

Page 524

Item #26.



CDBG PROGRAM
Meridian

The Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Program is a flexible
program that provides funding to address
a wide range of unique community
development needs with a focus on those
with low to moderate incomes (LMI). The
City of Meridian receives CDBG funds
annually from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

www.meridiancity.org/cdbg

Five year plan that determines the
direction of the CDBG Program.

Consolidated Plan

Annual plan that shows how the program
will approach the goals for the upcoming
program year.

Action Plan

The Meridian CDBG Program Year (PY)
runs from October 1 to September 30.

Program Year

The Consolidated Annual Performance
and Evaluation Report (CAPER) is an end
of year report to evaluate the program.

CAPER

Key Terms

What is CDBG?

Page 525

Item #26.



2017-2021
CONSOLIDATED PLAN

www.meridiancity.org/cdbg

Goals
Improve Accessibility
Enhance Homeownership Opportunities
Provide Social Services
Stabilize the Rental Gap
Administration and Fair Housing Activities

Funding

PY18 - $422,148         PY21 - $501,559

 
                                            PY19 - $424,162

PY17 - $349,131         PY20 - $489,670

Accomplishments through PY19

143
Households

received
Homelessness

Prevention

11
First-time

Homebuyers
Purchased 

Homes

10,515
Individuals
(duplicated)

received hunger
relief

1,052
Feet of sidewalk

installed allowing
safe passage in

LMI areas

Streetlights were
modernized in

LMI areas

1
Picnic Shelter
provided at

Meridian
Elementary

69

2
Restrooms that

are now accessible
to all abilities

97
Children received
scholarships for
extended care

programs

Page 526

Item #26.



PY21 ACTIVITIES
OCTOBER 1, 2021 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

www.meridiancity.org/cdbg

Jesse Tree

Parks and Recreation Department

Boys & Girls Club

Temporary assistance
with rent to eligible

households that are at
risk of losing their

housing.  

Replace current
playground with an all-

abilities playground and
provide a path to connect
it to LMI neighborhoods.

Access to before and
after school programs as
well as summer
programs.

Homelessness Prevention

Youth Extended Care Scholarships

Chateau Park Playground and Pathway

NeighborWorks Boise

Assistance with repairs
to allow residents to live
safely and comfortably
in their homes.

 Homeowner Repair

Page 527

Item #26.



 

 

  

Page 528

Item #26.



 

Contents 
Executive Summary .................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

AP-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) ...................................................................................................... 1 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies – 91.200(b) ................................................................................................................... 3 

AP-10 Consultation – 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) ................................................................................................................ 4 

AP-12 Participation – 91.105, 91.200(c)...............................................................................................................................19 

Expected Resources ................................................................................................................................................................23 

AP-15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c)(1,2) .........................................................................................................................23 

Annual Goals and Objectives ...................................................................................................................................................26 

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives .....................................................................................................................................26 

Projects ..............................................................................................................................................................................29 

AP-35 Projects – 91.220(d)..................................................................................................................................................29 

AP-38 Project Summary ......................................................................................................................................................31 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f) ..........................................................................................................................37 

Affordable Housing .................................................................................................................................................................37 

AP-55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g) .................................................................................................................................37 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) .......................................................................................................................................38 

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i) ...........................................................................................40 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing – 91.220(j) .................................................................................................................43 

AP-85 Other Actions – 91.220(k) .........................................................................................................................................44 

Program Specific Requirements ...............................................................................................................................................47 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(l)(1,2,4) .....................................................................................................47 

Attachments ...........................................................................................................................................................................48 

Citizen Participation Comments ..........................................................................................................................................49 

Grantee Unique Appendices ...............................................................................................................................................50 

Consolidated Plan and Fair Housing Assessment ...................................................................Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Public Notice .................................................................................................................................................................50 

Resolution .....................................................................................................................................................................51 

SF 424’s and Certifications ..................................................................................................................................................52 

 

Page 529

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   1 | P a g e  

 

Executive Summary  

AP-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Meridian was designated an Entitlement Community by the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) in 2007. This designation allows the City to receive funds directly from HUD's 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program on an annual basis. The City is currently working 

under the regulatory Five-Year Consolidated Plan (Con Plan) for program years 2017-2021. The Con Plan 

describes the anticipated strategies, goals, and community development needs identified during a 

collaborative process that included input from community members and local entities. 

This Action Plan is for the final year of the 2017-2021 Con Plan and will provide direction to the City of 

Meridian CDBG Program (Program) for Program Year 2021 (PY21) which spans from October 1, 2021 – 

September 30, 2022. The PY21 Action Plan provides a summary of the actions, activities, and resources 

that will be used during PY21 to address the goals and priority needs identified in the 2017-2021 Con 

Plan. 

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   

The City is focusing its activities and funding during PY21 on 1) improving accessibility by prioritizing 

projects that improve residents’ access to public facilities and community resources; 2) enhancing 

homeownership opportunities by obtaining or maintaining homes that are affordable; 3) promoting fair 

housing, and 4) providing social services that provide stability to Meridian residents with a low to 

moderate income. 

3. Evaluation of past performance  

Since 2007, Meridian has successfully managed over $4.7 million in resources from its annual CDBG 

allocation. Over the years, the City’s expenditures from its CDBG allocation have focused on supporting 

social service provider operations such as the Meridian Food Bank, improving community facilities for 

organizations such as the Boys and Girls Club and Meridian Development Corporation; addressing 

accessibility barriers to places such as parks and trails, Meridian Libraries, and sidewalk projects; 

preventing homelessness with emergency assistance through The Jesse Tree of Idaho; and assisting with 

homeownership attainment for low- and moderate-income buyers through the Ada County Housing 

Authority and NeighborWorks Boise. 

The City has submitted Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Reports (CAPERs) for all 

previous program years. The CAPERs demonstrate that the City exceeds the statutory requirement of at 

least 70 percent of funds expended being invested in activities that benefit low to moderate-income 

Page 530

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   2 | P a g e  

 

individuals and families. Aside from Program Year 2016, the City has met its expenditure of grant funds 

deadlines imposed by HUD each year. 

All of the prior program years’ activities meet critical needs in Meridian. The primary challenges 

encountered during the last Consolidated Plan period were timing and contract related. To address 

these challenges, the City has implemented more stringent requirements for subrecipients, particularly 

in meeting expected schedules. Over the several years, the City has been effective at organizing, 

streamlining, and managing its CDBG processes to provide the most benefit for each CDBG dollar 

granted while complying with federal timeliness requirements. 

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  

The citizen participation process for the PY21 Action Plan followed the process identified in the City’s 

Citizen Participation Plan, adopted with the 2017-2021 Con Plan. Public comments were accepted from 

June 11, 2021 to July 20, 2021 with a public hearing being held on July 20, 2021. The City published legal 

notices in two local newspapers (Idaho Statesman and Meridian Press Tribune) and posted the draft 

Action Plan on the City’s website on June 11, 2021. Presentations of the draft Action Plan and included 

projects were provided to stakeholders at the City Council meetings on July 6, 2021 and July 20, 2021.  

To broaden public participation in the development of the plan, the City coordinated with several 

organizations that work with LMI populations to gain a better understanding of the community needs 

and identify projects that would be beneficial to the residents of Meridian. The feedback received 

supported the goals and strategies identified in the 2017-2021 Con Plan. Invitations to apply were 

provided through e-mails, phone calls, and publication announcements on the City website, Boise 

City/Ada County Continuum of Care (CoC) distribution list, Region 4 Behavioral Health Board distribution 

list, and in the local newspapers. 

5. Summary of public comments 

Will be updated after public comment period. 

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

Update as necessary. 

7. Summary 

The City of Meridian has collaborated with stakeholders throughout the community to develop the PY21 

Action Plan in a manner that is consistent with the goals and strategies identified in the 2017-2021 Con 

Plan, which remains relevant to the current needs of the community.  The City plans to continue 

improving the Program based on feedback from the community to ensure the intent of the Program 

continues to be met. 

Page 531

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   3 | P a g e  

 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies – 91.200(b) 

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 

Describe the agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of each grant 

program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

   

CDBG Administrator MERIDIAN Economic Development , Community Development Dept. 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative (optional) 

The Meridian CDBG Program is part of the City of Meridian’s Community Development Department and falls under the Economic Development 

Division.  The Program works closely with Planning Division staff and Economic Development Division staff as well as other Departments in the 

City such as Public Works, Finance, and Parks and Recreation. 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Crystal Campbell, Community Development Program Coordinator 

Community Development Department 

City of Meridian  

33 E. Broadway Avenue 

Meridian, ID 83642 

208-489-0575 

Page 532

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   4 | P a g e  

 

AP-10 Consultation – 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Meridian engages stakeholders via social media, email, and the City’s website.  Community 

stakeholders include, but are not limited to: citizens of Meridian; current and past CDBG subrecipients; 

Idaho Housing and Finance Association (IHFA); Idaho Department of Health and Welfare (Divisions of 

Behavioral Health, Medicaid, and Public Health); Central District Health Department; Meridian 

Downtown Business Association; Region 4 Behavioral Health Board; Our Path Home Connect 

(coordinated entry); Region 4 Crisis Center; and Boise City/Ada County Continuum of Care 

(CoC).  Agencies were identified for participation in the PY21 Meridian CDBG competitive application 

based on the needs and priorities identified during the 2017-2021 Con Plan planning process. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(l)) 

The City collaborated with the Ada County Housing Authority (ACHA), which is the local public housing 

authority, to assist the City in better understanding ACHA’s resources and needs. While there are no 

public housing units in Meridian, an estimated 10 percent of the housing authority’s total voucher 

supply are used within Meridian City limits. 

ACHA and the City are both involved with the CoC. The CoC meetings provide an opportunity to 

collaborate with regional and local housing providers (public, nonprofit, and private) and health and 

social service agencies (including private and non-profit mental health, emergency, and healthcare 

providers).  

During PY18 the City and CoC connected with the Region 4 Behavioral Health Board (BHB), a 

government entity established by the State of Idaho in coordination with Idaho Health and Welfare. The 

BHB advises the State Behavioral Health Authority and the State Planning Council of the needs in this 

region and is facilitated by Central District Health (CDH). This collaboration provides access to a large 

number of agencies and citizens with expertise in mental health services, substance use disorders, law 

enforcement, education, and healthcare. City staff continues to be engaged with the BHB to identify 

ways to enhance coordination between ACHA and healthcare providers, mental health services, and 

other supportive service agencies.  

CDH also provides information related to housing units in which children have been identified as being 

lead poisoned concerning lead-based paint hazards, but since the majority of houses in Meridian were 

built after 1980 this has not been a concern. 

Page 533

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   5 | P a g e  

 

Additionally, the City has developed a socioeconomic profile of Meridian that will identify gaps in 

service, likely partnerships, and needs of the community. The City is dedicated to extending further 

support to organizations that help to meet the identified needs of the community. One need that is 

readily apparent is the need for housing affordability and rental support. Meridian is dedicated to 

increasing its inventory of housing that is affordable to ensure residents of all income levels can find 

housing in Meridian and to provide necessary supportive services. City staff will continue to stay 

engaged with the housing affordability and supportive service community so the City can better provide 

important tools and resources to affordable housing developers and supportive service providers. 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

The City participates in the CoC, locally branded as Our Path Home Connect, which includes staff 

members from neighboring communities along with healthcare, foster care and other youth programs, 

mental health providers, Ada County, law enforcement, nonprofit providers, state departments and 

school districts among other entities. In 2017 Our Path Home Connect launched coordinated entry 

which provides a single point of entry for households experiencing homelessness. Due to the data 

collected through coordinated entry, Our Path Home Connect has identified four strategic initiatives: 

end family homelessness, prevent first-time homelessness, expand supportive housing opportunities, 

and evolve the partnership. The involvement of foster care and other youth programs has encouraged 

the City to further evaluate the non-traditional homelessness experienced by youth and their families in 

Meridian. 

The City has also updated internal policies to include a representative from the CoC to provide feedback 

on the current needs to the CDBG Scoring Committee, which reviews applications for CDBG funding and 

recommends projects to be funded. This collaboration provides an opportunity to involve the CoC in the 

planning process and identify projects that will address the needs of those who are currently or at risk of 

homelessness. 

Additionally, the City acts as a liaison between the Behavioral Health Board (BHB) and the CoC. The BHB 

is facilitated by Central District Health (CDH) and is comprised of 23 stakeholders, advocates, and 

professionals including the Idaho Department of Corrections for adults, Boise Police Department, Adult 

Mental Health staff that are responsible for discharging participants from state run psychiatric facilities, 

and Children’s Mental Health staff that work with families in crisis. Involvement with this group allows 

the City to understand the broader needs of the community as related to behavioral health in general 

and specifically for those who are being discharged from institutional settings such as mental health 

facilities and corrections programs. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate 

Page 534

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   6 | P a g e  

 

outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and 

procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

The City of Meridian does not receive ESG funds; the state is the only recipient. Allocation of ESG is 

discussed at the CoC meetings, which Meridian staff attend. The City leverages the CoC’s strategy for 

use of ESG funds by funding homeless prevention activities. The City does not have any emergency 

shelters and the RRH program serves countywide. The City continues its work with the Executive and 

Data and Performance Management Committees of the CoC to provide feedback on changes to the 

HMIS and data management process of the CoC. 

2. Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process 

and describe the jurisdiction’s consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 

entities 

Page 535

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   7 | P a g e  

 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Boise City/Ada County Continuum of Care 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

PHA 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

Service-Fair Housing 

Services - Victims 

Health Agency 

Child Welfare Agency 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

Other government - State 

Other government - Local 

Regional organization 

Planning organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Page 536

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   8 | P a g e  

 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The CoC was consulted as part of the 2017 Consolidated Planning efforts as well as 

during the current action planning efforts.  Members of this group represent all of 

the agency/group/organization types listed above and assists the City in 

understanding the needs of the community as it relates to housing, homelessness, 

and fair housing. This consultation was effective in helping the City develop 

funding recommendations to address homelessness, homelessness prevention, 

and fair housing activities. 

2 Agency/Group/Organization Boise City/Ada County Housing Authority (BCACHA) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

PHA 

Services - Housing 

Regional organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Public Housing Needs 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

HOPWA Strategy 

Market Analysis 

Page 537

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   9 | P a g e  

 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

ACHA was contacted by the City to discuss the viability of its homebuyer 

assistance program in the midst of a difficult housing market. These discussions 

helped the City develop funding recommendation for continuing to provide CDBG 

dollars to ACHA for down payment assistance. This consultation also led to a 

discussion about housing development and policies that may change how the City 

interacts and funds these efforts in the future. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization West Ada School District No.2 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City discussed the needs of homeless and unaccompanied youth in Meridian's 

public education system with the West Ada School District. Conversations led to 

the City's understanding of the number of unaccompanied youth in the school 

system with relatively limited resources and services available to these students 

and their families. The City identified gaps in services and will continue to work 

with the West Ada School District to develop a plan to fill those gaps. 

4 Agency/Group/Organization CATCH, INC. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-homeless 

Page 538

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   10 | P a g e  

 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City meets often with CATCH to discuss the state of homelessness in Meridian. 

CATCH currently houses the coordinated entry efforts of the County and is 

tracking data related to Meridian's homeless population. These consultations 

clarify the need for certain support in Meridian and helping to develop a short- 

and long-term strategy to meet the needs of those experiencing homelessness in 

Meridian and across the County. 

5 Agency/Group/Organization City of Meridian 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Other government - Local 

Planning organization 

Civic Leaders 

Grantee Department 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Page 539

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   11 | P a g e  

 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City regularly consults with the Mayor's Office, Department of Community 

Development, Planning Division, Economic Development officials, Finance 

Department, Public Works Department, and law enforcement officials to explore 

and operationalize the needs of community members in Meridian. Much of the 

conversation during the consultations surrounding the Action Plan deals with 

housing needs, wage growth, vacancy and affordability rates of housing, 

identifying households and areas that may be affected by lead-based paint 

requirements, and work to address poverty in the community. Many of these 

conversations are still in their preliminary stage and have not directly created 

outcomes or improved coordination, but work continues to plan and strategize to 

develop 1) incentives for affordable housing development; 2) partnerships to 

address service gaps in Meridian; 3) a clear plan/strategy to increase workforce 

housing developments; 4) a new City Comprehensive Plan that better-addresses 

and plans for the needs of LMI residents, including those experiencing 

homelessness; and 5) a socioeconomic profile of the City. All of these will offer 

insight, strategy, and structure to the City's community development efforts in the 

coming years. 

6 Agency/Group/Organization THE JESSE TREE OF IDAHO, INC. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The Jesse Tree was consulted to discuss the possibility to expand their emergency 

rental assistance program in Meridian. They provided insights and clarity into the 

need for their program due to continually rising rents across the City. This 

consultation contributed to an expansion of CDBG funding that will be given to 

this organization for homelessness prevention services. 

Page 540

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   12 | P a g e  

 

7 Agency/Group/Organization UNITED WAY OF TREASURE VALLEY 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Planning organization 

Foundation 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The United Way was consulted in efforts to create a Socioeconomic Profile of 

Meridian in an effort to better understand the housing, transportation, health, 

food, financial, and education needs of Meridian's residents. This partnership is 

ongoing and will likely result in funding provided to the City by this organization to 

conduct research and create plans to understand and meet these needs. 

8 Agency/Group/Organization City of Boise 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Administrative 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City regularly consults with the City of Boise to ensure that funding 

recommendations, administrative practices, and other activities are compliant 

with federal regulations. The coordination also reflects a shared goal to ensure 

that all activities undertaken with CDBG funds work to meet regional needs as well 

as local needs. 

Page 541

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   13 | P a g e  

 

9 Agency/Group/Organization Neighborworks Boise 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Service-Fair Housing 

Major Employer 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City worked with NeighborWorks Boise to discuss the viability of a 

homeowner rehabilitation program in Meridian. 

10 Agency/Group/Organization Idaho Fair Housing Forum 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Service-Fair Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Fair Housing 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City meets with this group to consult on how to advance the fair housing work 

of the City and region. These consultations have brought forth fair housing 

trainings and conferences educating over 1000 people about fair housing law and 

practice. These meetings also inform how the City will implement its strategies to 

affirmatively further fair housing. 

Page 542

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   14 | P a g e  

 

11 Agency/Group/Organization Neighbors United Collaborative 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

Service-Fair Housing 

Services - Refugees 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Fair Housing 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City regularly consults with this group to understand how to address the 

needs of LMI refugees in Meridian. Much of the discussion leading up to the 

development of this Annual Action Plan has been around fair housing and 

language access services in the community. The City is working with this and other 

groups to develop resources and materials that can better educate about fair 

housing best practices while providing refugees and others facing housing 

discrimination support to overcome negative situations. 

12 Agency/Group/Organization Idaho Apartment Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Business and Civic Leaders 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Fair Housing 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City consults, as needed, with this organization to get the private-sector 

perspective on micro and macro issues in the world of housing and fair housing. 

These consultations have often informed the conversations and decisions taken to 

and made by Neighbors United, Idaho Fair Housing Forum, and the CoC's Fair 

Housing Subcommittee. 

Page 543

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   15 | P a g e  

 

13 Agency/Group/Organization Region 4 Behavioral Health Board 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services - Victims 

Health Agency 

Child Welfare Agency 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

Other government - State 

Other government - Local 

Regional organization 

Planning organization 

Business Leaders 

Civic Leaders 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The BHB was consulted as part of the current action planning efforts. Members of 

this group represent all of the agency/group/organization types listed above and 

assists the City in understanding the needs of the community as it relates to 

people with mental health and substance use disorders. This consultation was 

effective in helping the City develop funding recommendations to address 

economic stability for people with disabilities. 

14 Agency/Group/Organization Unity Through Inclusion 

Page 544

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   16 | P a g e  

 

 Agency/Group/Organization Type Regional organization 

Planning organization 

 What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

 Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

The City consults with this group to identify the needs of diverse populations in 

Meridian. 

15 Agency/Group/Organization Central District Health 

 Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services - Victims 

Health Agency 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

Other government - Local 

Regional organization 

Planning organization 

 What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Public Housing Needs 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

HOPWA Strategy  

Lead-based Paint Strategy 

Page 545

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   17 | P a g e  

 

 Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation 

or areas for improved coordination? 

Consulted with CDH regarding strategies related to lead-based paint, 

transportation options in Meridian, and health disparities related to Meridian's 

LMI residents. 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

Not applicable; every agency identified was offered an opportunity to participate in the development of the plan. While no agencies were left 

out, the City does not have a citizen’s advisory group to consult with. Citizens are requested to participate in public hearings and public 

presentations via social media and local newspapers, but there is no formal group. To gather citizen input specific to the slum and blighted area 

where CDBG funds are to be used, the City contacted residents who live in that area directly while the Redevelopment Plan was being developed 

and again when the Redevelopment Plan was being approved. Residents were also informed of the potential projects in this area during the 

development of the plan as well as the CDBG process of selecting projects annually. Invitations for public presentations related to the Action 

Plan and Project Applications were then sent out by email and social media.  

Moving forward, the City would like to improve its coordination with housing developers, particularly those developers who specialize in the 

development of workforce and affordable housing. Increased efforts were not made this year to reach out to these groups as the City is still 

working to develop internal strategies and plans about how it wants to address the housing affordability needs in the community and how to 

engage developers in that process. The City is also developing a new Comprehensive Plan that includes consultants doing consultations in the 

coming months. The decision was made to couple the needed consultation efforts of these Community Development activities with 

comprehensive planning consultation activities. 

 

Page 546

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   18 | P a g e  

 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 

Idaho Housing and 

Finance Association, Ada 

County, City of Boise 

The City maintains goals of improving economic outcomes of low income residents, 

providing emergency rental assistance, and improving housing options and social and 

supportive services for people including but not limited to people with special needs and 

individuals/families leaving domestic violence situations. These will contribute to the CoC 

objective of Ending Chronic Homelessness by preventing Meridian residents from falling 

into homelessness. 

State of Idaho 

Analysis of 

Impediments 

Idaho Housing and 

Finance Association; 

Idaho Department of 

Commerce 

The fair housing strategies established for Meridian considered opportunities to 

collaborate with the State. The City regularly involves representatives from IHFA, City of 

Boise, City of Nampa, City of Caldwell, and Idaho Department of Commerce in the 

planning, funding, and implementation efforts of fair housing activities in the region and 

state. 

Meridian 

Comprehensive Plan 

Meridian Planning 

Division 

The City Comprehensive Plan was consulted during preparation of the Consolidated Plan 

to ensure goals were consistent with the needs and desires of the community. Land use 

and zoning regulations were reviewed to assess barriers to housing choice. 

ACHA Policies and 

Procedures 
ACHA 

The housing authority policies and procedures were reviewed to ensure they support 

housing choice and address the greatest needs of low income residents. 

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

Narrative (optional) 

The City is working with various stakeholders throughout the region to develop a comprehensive Action Plan, which will improve collaboration 

between entities, thereby reducing the duplication of efforts and using limited time and resources more effectively.  

Page 547

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   19 | P a g e  

 

AP-12 Participation – 91.105, 91.200(c) 

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 
 

In 2017, the City completed an extensive citizen participation procedure to gain public guidance and information for the 2017-2021 Consolidated 

Plan. The findings of those efforts have informed the priorities, needs, and goals entirely. During the consolidated planning process, the 

feedback received from public surveys, stakeholder interviews, and other public feedback created the framework for which all CDBG goals and 

action plans will be based on. The City has the goal to use the public feedback from the Con Plan to inform funding decisions proposed in this 

and subsequent annual action plans.  

In addition to the consolidated plan citizen participation processes, the City has undergone all federally required citizen participation 

requirements for this action plan. The City encouraged participation in developing and implementing the plan with not only low- and moderate-

income persons but also with local and regional institutions, the Continuum of Care, businesses, developers, non-profits, community members, 

and faith based organizations. These include a minimum 30-day public comment period with a formal public hearing during that comment 

period. The City published legal notices in two local newspapers (Idaho Statesman and Meridian Press) and posted the PY20 Draft Action Plan on 

the City’s website. Staff worked with the City’s Communication Department to share information regarding the recommended projects and 

priorities for the upcoming year as well as the public comment period and public hearing. The Communication Department shares information 

via Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn, Nextdoor, and a City-wide distribution list. CDBG staff also maintains a distribution list specific to 

those who have shown interest in CDBG and the same information was sent to that distribution list as well as several partner organizations 

distribution lists. All comments received were reviewed, acknowledged, and included as an attachment to this plan. 

The CDBG Public Service Scoring Committee was responsible for scoring, ranking, and providing funding recommendations for public service 

applications submitted. This Committee consisted of the following representatives: 

• Two (2) to four (4) Meridian residents; 

• One (1) Finance Department staff; 

• One (1) City Council member; 

• One (1) Community Development Department staff; and 

Page 548

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   20 | P a g e  

 

• One (1) Mayor’s Office staff. 

 

As part of the scoring process, a member of the CoC reviews the public service applications and provides feedback on how the proposed projects 

meet the needs of the community and past history with the applying agency, if applicable. This multi-perspective approach to project funding 

recommendations allows the City to incorporate the viewpoints of a wide representation of interests throughout the community to better 

embody the needs of Meridian. The largest representation was intentionally Meridian residents to encourage the public to more actively 

participate in determining the path of the Program in the coming year. 

Citizen Participation Outreach 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Public Hearing 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

A public hearing was 

held at the City 

Council meeting on 

July 20. 

update update   

Page 549

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   21 | P a g e  

 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

2 Public Meeting 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

Public meetings were 

held during the City 

Council meetings on 

July 6 and 20. 

Meetings included 

presentations that 

outlined the 

applications received, 

funding 

recommendations, 

specific projects, and 

discussion by Council 

on the proposed 

projects. 

update update   

3 Newspaper Ad 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

Legal notices were 

published in the 

Idaho Statesman and 

Meridian Press 

Tribune newspapers 

on June 11 that 

described the public 

presentations, 

comment period, and 

hearing regarding this 

plan. 

update update   

Page 550

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   22 | P a g e  

 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

4 Internet Outreach 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

Notices of the public 

comment period and 

public hearing were 

sent out using the 

City's social media 

accounts (Facebook, 

Twitter, Instagram, 

LinkedIn, Nextdoor). 

update update   

5 Email 

Minorities 

  

Persons with 

disabilities 

  

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

Residents of Public 

and Assisted 

Housing 

Notices of the public 

comment period and 

public hearing were 

sent out using 

multiple distribution 

lists including that of 

the Meridian CDBG 

Program, Mayor's 

Office, Behavioral 

Health Board, CoC 

and ACHA. 

update update   

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

Page 551

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   23 | P a g e  

 

 

Expected Resources  

AP-15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction 

The City of Meridian anticipates receiving $501,559 in CDBG funds for PY21 and will be reallocating an additional $95,687 in PY20 funds.  The 

City will leverage staff time to complete projects implemented by the City.  The majority of CDBG projects are implemented by subrecipients and 

the City expects funds to be leveraged with CDBG funds to improve the outcome of the project. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and 

Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public 

Improvements 

Public Services 501,559 0 95,687 597,246 0 

The City will be reallocating $95,687 

of PY20 funds. 

This is the final year of the Con Plan, 

so the City will not receive any 

additional funding under this Con 

Plan.  

Table 5 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 

Page 552

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   24 | P a g e  

 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 

matching requirements will be satisfied 

The City of Meridian does not receive funding for HUD programs other than CDBG and there are no additional state or federal funds available to 

leverage for program activities. The City uses local funds to leverage staff time to implement all CDBG activities. 

The projects identified below anticipates leveraging the following resources: 

• Boys & Girls Club – private funds to administer the scholarship program and provide additional scholarships to those who are unable to access 

CDBG funding; 

• City of Meridian – local funds to pay staff salaries; 

• Jesse Tree of Idaho –private funds will be used to administer the program and provide additional assistance to those who are unable to access 

CDBG funding. 

Page 553

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   25 | 

P a g e  

 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 

may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

There are currently no publically owned lands within Meridian that have been identified to specifically 

address needs of the Con Plan or the Action Plan.  

Discussion 

The City and its subrecipients will work to leverage funding and in-kind resources to help maximize the 

usage of CDBG funding. 

Page 554

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   26 | P a g e  

 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

 

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives 

Goals Summary Information 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Improve Accessibility 2017 2021 Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

  Better Accessibility in 

Meridian 

Improve Accessibility 

in Meridian 

CDBG: 

$336,246 

Public Facility or Infrastructure 

Activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 6205 Persons Assisted 

2 Enhance 

Homeownership 

Opportunities 

2017 2021 Affordable 

Housing 

  Improved Housing 

Options and 

Supportive Services 

Improved 

Weatherization of 

Housing Stock 

Better Accessibility in 

Meridian 

Housing 

Rehabilitation 

Opportunities 

Improve Accessibility 

in Meridian 

CDBG: 

$171,000 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated: 15 Household 

Housing Unit 

 

Page 555

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   27 | P a g e  

 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

3 Provide Social 

Services 

2017 2021 Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Low income 

services 

  Improvements in 

Economic Stability 

Service Programs - 

Low Income and 

Special Needs 

Improved Housing 

Options and 

Supportive Services 

CDBG: 

$45,000 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 100 Persons Assisted 

4 Administration and 

Fair Housing 

Activities 

2017 2021 Admin     CDBG: 

45,000  

Other: 0 Other 

Table 6 – Goals Summary 

 

Goal Descriptions 

 

1 Goal Name Improve Accessibility 

Goal 

Description 

The City will coordinate with City and local stakeholders to implement projects that will improve accessibility in LMI 

areas. 

2 Goal Name Enhance Homeownership Opportunities 

Goal 

Description 

The City will provide funding to support LMI households obtain or maintain housing that is affordable to them. 

Page 556

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   28 | P a g e  

 

3 Goal Name Provide Social Services 

Goal 

Description 

The City will address identified needs by providing local agencies with funding to provide necessary public services to 

LMI residents. 

4 Goal Name Administration and Fair Housing Activities 

Goal 

Description 

The City will administer the Program, including collaboration with local entities to educate residents and landlords on 

fair housing rights and responsibilities. 

 

 

Page 557

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   29 | 

P a g e  

 

Projects 

AP-35 Projects – 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

The City has allocated CDBG funds to projects that meet the priority needs and goals identified in the 

2017-2021 Con Plan. 

Projects 

# Project Name 

1 Homelessness Prevention and Stability 

2 Youth Extended Care Scholarships 

3 Homeowner Repair 

4 Chateau Park All Abilities Playground and Pathway 

5 Alternate: Peregrine Elementary Streetlights 

6 Alternate: E. MHS/MMS Streetlights 

7 Alternate: Homebuyer Assistance 

8 Administration 

9 Fair Housing 

Table 7 - Project Information 

 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

Projects were prioritized based on the needs identified in the 2017-2021 Con Plan, needs expressed in 

the PY21 CDBG competitive application process, and the experiences of the CDBG Scoring Committee. 

A common obstacle for public service projects is the lack of available funding to provide the necessary 

level of services. To address this, subrecipients will leverage other funding sources and utilize screening 

criteria to provide services to those with the highest level of need first. 

The main obstacle for housing projects in Meridian is related to the soaring housing market in Meridian 

and lack of affordable homes. The Homeowner Repair Program provides owner-occupied rehabilitation 

for those who already own homes they can afford in order to keep them stably housed. A potential 

obstacle to addressing the underserved needs is making the community aware of this program. The City 

will continue to assist the subrecipient with outreach for this program. 

The accessibility projects have the potential obstacle of rising construction costs, which is related to the 

soaring housing market.  It is often difficult to find a contractor to complete smaller construction 

Page 558

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   30 | 

P a g e  

 

projects because there is such a demand for large construction projects right now. 

No obstacles have been identified for Administration and Fair Housing. 

 

 

Page 559

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   31 | 

P a g e  

 

AP-38 Project Summary 

Project Summary Information 

1 Project Name Homelessness Prevention and Stability 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Provide Social Services 

Needs Addressed Improvements in Economic Stability 

Service Programs - Low Income and Special Needs 

Improved Housing Options and Supportive Services 

Funding CDBG: $25,000 

Description Provide emergency payments for rent, mortgage, and/or utilities on 

behalf of LMI eligible individuals or families for the purpose of stabilizing 

housing and preventing homelessness. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

20 LMI households averaging 3 people per household who are at risk of 

homelessness. 

Location 

Description 

Services will be offered in the community and at provider offices and 

will benefit households throughout Meridian.  Services may also be 

provided virtually. 

Planned Activities (05Q) Subsistence Payments 

2 Project Name Youth Extended Care Scholarships 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Provide Social Services 

Needs Addressed Improvements in Economic Stability 

Service Programs - Low Income and Special Needs 

Improved Housing Options and Supportive Services 

Funding CDBG: $20,000 

Description Provide funding for LMI eligible youth to participate in before and after 

school programs as well as summer programs at a free or reduced cost. 

Page 560

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   32 | 

P a g e  

 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

40 LMI households with children under age 13. 

Location 

Description 

Services will be provided at the Meridian Boys & Girls Club, located at 

911 N. Meridian Road in Meridian. 

Planned Activities (05L) Child Care Services 

3 Project Name Homeowner Repair 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Enhance Homeownership Opportunities 

Needs Addressed Improved Housing Options and Supportive Services 

Improved Weatherization of Housing Stock 

Better Accessibility in Meridian 

Housing Rehabilitation Opportunities 

Improve Accessibility in Meridian 

Funding CDBG: $171,000 

Description The Homeowner Repair Program will improve the weatherization, 

accessibility and visitability of existing homes of LMI Meridian residents, 

making them safer and more economically sustainable. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

10 LMI households. 

Location 

Description 

Services will be provided at NeighborWorks Boise offices located at 3380 

W. Americana Terrace, Ste 120 in Boise and will benefit households 

throughout Meridian.  Services may also be provided virtually. 

Planned Activities (14A) Rehabilitation: Single-Unit Residential 

4 Project Name Chateau Park All Abilities Playground and Pathway 

Target Area   

Page 561

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   33 | 

P a g e  

 

Goals Supported Improve Accessibility 

Needs Addressed Better Accessibility in Meridian 

Improve Accessibility in Meridian 

Funding CDBG: PY21 $240,559 

PY20 $95,687 

Description Replace existing playground in Chateau Park with an all abilities 
playground to offer recreational opportunities to children with 
disabilities.  This project will also create a pathway that connects the 
park to LMI neighborhoods to the north and west that do not have 
amenities.  

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

An estimated 2,068 households with an average of three people per 

household who reside in an LMI area. 

 

Location 

Description 

2640 W Chateau Drive, Meridian 

Planned Activities (03F) Parks, Recreational Facilities 

5 Project Name Alternate: Peregrine Elementary Streetlights 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Improve Accessibility 

Needs Addressed Better Accessibility in Meridian 

Improve Accessibility in Meridian 

Funding CDBG: $125,000 

Description Design and install and/or upgrade streetlights in LMI area.  This is a 

backup project. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

An estimated 2,222 households with an average of 3 people per 

household who reside in an LMI area. 

Page 562

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   34 | 

P a g e  

 

Location 

Description 

Landing Subdivisions No. 1,2,3,4 and 7 

Planned Activities (03K) Street Improvements 

6 Project Name Alternate: E. MHS/MMS Streetlights 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Improve Accessibility 

Needs Addressed Better Accessibility in Meridian 

Improve Accessibility in Meridian 

Funding CDBG: $125,000 

Description Design and install and/or upgrade streetlights in LMI area.  This is a 

backup project. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

An estimated 1,162 households with an average of 3 people per 

household who reside in an LMI area. 

Location 

Description 

Neighborhoods to the east and south of Meridian Middle School 

extending to Meridian Road and Pine Avenue 

Planned Activities (03K) Street Improvements 

7 Project Name Alternate: Homebuyer Assistance 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Enhance Homeownership Opportunities 

Needs Addressed Homeownership Opportunities: 80-120 Percent of AMI 

Down Payment Assistance Opportunities 

Funding CDBG: $65,000 

Description Provide assistance for eligible LMI persons to purchase homes in 

Meridian, with preference being given to public housing residents.  

Assistance will include down payment assistance, closing costs, and 

other eligible activities.  

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Page 563

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   35 | 

P a g e  

 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

2 LMI households purchasing a home in Meridian. 

Location 

Description 

Services will be provided at NeighborWorks Boise offices located at 3380 

W. Americana Terrace, Ste 120 in Boise and will benefit households 

throughout Meridian.  Services may also be provided virtually. 

Planned Activities (13B) Homeownership Assistance 

8 Project Name Administration 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Administration and Fair Housing Activities 

Needs Addressed   

Funding CDBG: $42,000 

Description This project will conduct activities that relate to the administrative, 

planning, and technical assistance for the CDBG program during PY21. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

n/a 

Location 

Description 

Administration office is located in Meridian City Hall at 33 E. Broadway 

Ave. suite 102. 

Planned Activities Administration and Planning 

9 Project Name Fair Housing 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Administration and Fair Housing Activities 

Needs Addressed   

Funding CDBG: $3,000 

Page 564

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   36 | 

P a g e  

 

Description This project will carry out activities that relate to fair housing.  At a 

minimum, CDBG funds will be used to implement a Fair Housing 

Campaign in April.  Other opportunities to promote fair housing 

activities will be evaluated as they arise. 

Target Date 9/30/2022 

Estimate the 

number and type of 

families that will 

benefit from the 

proposed activities 

n/a 

Location 

Description 

The Fair Housing Campaign will be promoted via television, radio, and 

social media. 

Planned Activities (21D) Fair Housing Activities 

Page 565

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   37 | 

P a g e  

 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f)  

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 

minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

The City of Meridian’s basis for allocating public service and housing projects is geographically 

delineated within its municipal boundaries. Funding is determined by meeting national objectives, 

qualifying eligible activities, and through a competitive application process. The City does not specify 

target areas by census tract or block group. The use of CDBG funding is not pre-determined on areas of 

low- and moderate- income concentration or racial characteristics. Service agencies providing CDBG 

funded services are primarily located in Boise; however, low- and moderate-income clients served reside 

in Meridian. 

Area benefit activities benefit at least one of the four (4) census tracts that fall within Meridian’s LMI 

area, which include census tracts: 0103.21; 0103.22; 0103.31; and 0103.35. 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

n/a n/a 
Table 8 - Geographic Distribution  

 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

Meridian has not identified a target area. 

Discussion 

The City allocates funds to assist low- to moderate-income (LMI) Meridian residents without targeting or 

prioritizing specific geographic locations outside of the LMI area for area benefit projects per HUD 

guidelines. 

Affordable Housing  

AP-55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g)  

Introduction 

The City of Meridian dedicates funding to providing LMI Meridian residents with affordable housing. 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 

Homeless 0 

Page 566

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   38 | 

P a g e  

 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 
Non-Homeless 15 

Special-Needs 0 

Total 15 

Table 9 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement 
 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 

Rental Assistance 0 

The Production of New Units 0 

Rehab of Existing Units 15 

Acquisition of Existing Units 0 

Total 15 

Table 10 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 
 

Discussion 

For homeowner rehabilitation, subrecipient(s) will utilize funding to assist homeowners with emergency 

repairs, accessibility, weatherization, and similar eligible projects to improve the safety and livability of 

their homes. 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 

Introduction 

The City of Meridian is served by the Ada County Housing Authority (ACHA), who administers the 

Homeownership Voucher Program, Housing Choice Voucher, Mainstream Voucher, as well as managing 

the Family Self Sufficiency Program. 

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

As part of the City’s overall Comprehensive Plan, Meridian has identified a goal of offering a diversity of 

housing types for all economic levels throughout the City. To accomplish this goal, Meridian encourages 

quality housing projects for all economic levels throughout the city. The City supports a variety of 

residential categories (low-, medium-, medium-high and high-density single family, multi-family, 

townhouses, duplexes, apartments, condominiums, etc.) for the purpose of providing the City with a 

range of opportunities to provide housing that is affordable to all. In spite of these efforts, ACHA has 

identified a lack of affordable units as one of the barriers to eligible renters and potential homeowners.  

Meridian is one of the towns within Ada County, which ACHA serves.   ACHA has a 72% success rate, 

whereas the national average is typically a 65-69% success rate.  This leaves an estimated 28% of 

households receiving Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) in Ada County unable to identify housing within 

Page 567

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   39 | 

P a g e  

 

120 days, requiring them to relinquish the voucher and return to the waiting list.  There are many 

reasons a participant may not be able to identify a housing unit including: 

• Landlords feel there is too much “red tape” associated with the vouchers; 

• Rents in this community are often above the fair market rents HUD allows; 

• Misperception that voucher holders make bad tenants; 

• Poor credit/rental history or criminal background may make some ineligible; or 

• Lack of units that will accommodate larger families. 

The City will continue to collaborate with ACHA, the CoC, and other partners during PY21. The City is in 

the process of updating its Strategic Plan, which will includes tasks related to housing affordability. 

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

ACHA encourages public housing residents to participate in homeownership by: 

• Referring families interested in homeownership to first-time homebuyer workshops covering 

the following topics: benefits of and preparation for homeownership, credit analysis, FICO 

scoring methodology, mortgage types and requirements, private mortgage insurance, loan-to-

value ratio, down payment assistance programs, escrow and title process, property taxes, home 

maintenance, and homeowner responsibilities. 

• Providing one-on-one meetings with a Homeownership Coordinator to determine short- and 

long-term goals in obtaining homeownership and to make a plan to reduce any barriers that 

need to be addressed. 

• Collaborating with nonprofit partner agencies, lenders, and realtors in the delivery of counseling 

services for low- to moderate-income first-time homebuyers in the FSS/HCV programs. 

Expanding partnerships with community organizations, lending institutions, and real estate 

professionals. 

• Actively marketing the Homeownership Assistance program to existing voucher holders through 

quarterly newsletters and attending the annual recertification meetings for voucher holders to 

explain the programs. 

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 

Page 568

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   40 | 

P a g e  

 

provided or other assistance  

ACHA is not a troubled PHA. 

Discussion 

The City is committed to helping LMI households access necessary services and homeownership as 

desired through a variety of methods. 

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i) 

Introduction 

The City coordinates with the Boise City/Ada County Continuum of Care (CoC) and the Region 4 

Behavioral Health Board (BHB) to identify the strategies to address needs of those who are at risk of or 

currently experiencing homelessness. 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 

including 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

The City of Meridian has been a member of the CoC for the last six years to better understand and 

coordinate the needs that Meridian residents who are currently or at risk of experiencing homelessness 

face and how to better serve them. In addition, City representatives are frequently involved in public 

discussions, presentations, and meetings with citizens, other government officials, and local service 

providers including West Ada School District, Jesse Tree, and CATCH to provide support, understanding, 

and outreach to those who are experiencing homelessness in Meridian. 

In previous years, the City worked with the CoC to add data points to the CoC’s Homeless Management 

Information System (HMIS) to enable the City to determine how many Meridian residents are 

experiencing homelessness and the reasons for their housing crisis. This data and information was 

evaluated while developing the PY21 Action Plan to better inform strategies and partnerships for the 

City to implement. The City is committed to serving the individual needs of Meridian’s homeless 

population as identified by the CoC and local organizations. 

The City has also worked with the CoC to conduct the annual Point-in-Time Count, which helps 

determine the number of people who are experiencing homelessness on a given day. This information 

allows the City to understand the level of homelessness in Meridian and to develop a program that 

better serves those in need. The City will continue to assist with this process in upcoming years. 

Page 569

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   41 | 

P a g e  

 

The City intends to continue to use its partners to identify, understand, and support those experiencing 

homelessness (especially persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness) or at risk of homelessness 

with special needs in Meridian. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

While there are emergency shelter and transitional housing facilities located in other nearby cities in the 

Treasure Valley, none of these facilities are located within City of Meridian.  The City has prioritized 

funding homelessness prevention to mitigate the need for these services, but also works with the CoC to 

assist Meridian residents who are in need of emergency shelter.  The City encourages agencies who 

provide these services to apply for CDBG funding, but there were no applications during PY21 for 

projects directly related to emergency shelters or transitional housing projects.  However, all services to 

be funded are available to those who qualify. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The City will provide funding to NeighborWorks Boise to assist with homeowner repairs to Meridian 

residents with a low- and moderate-income to keep them in housing they can afford. In addition, 

Meridian’s work with Jesse Tree has helped provide rental and case management services aimed at 

preventing and resolving needs for those currently experiencing homelessness or at risk of 

homelessness in Meridian. 

The partnerships that the City has with local committees, organizations, and networks in evaluating, 

understanding, and addressing the many needs of Meridian residents experiencing homelessness 

include Meridian Police Department, Ada County Sheriff’s Office, City of Boise, City of Nampa, City of 

Caldwell, Women’s and Children’s Alliance, Jesse Tree, Boys & Girls Clubs of Ada County, West Ada 

School District, CATCH, Ada County Housing Authority, Local HUD office, CoC, Meridian Food Bank, 

United Way, NeighborWorks Boise, IHFA, Terry Riley, El-Ada Community Action, Our Path Home 

Connect, and many others. These partnerships are extensive and ongoing in order to help address and 

prevent homelessness in Meridian. 

These efforts, particularly coordination and participation with CATCH and the CoC, are designed to assist 

local service providers in helping persons experiencing homelessness make the transition to permanent 

housing and independent living while shortening the time individuals and families experience 

Page 570

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   42 | 

P a g e  

 

homelessness. 

In addition, the City's relationships with ACHA, CATCH, and Jesse Tree are aimed to develop activities 

through the Program that facilitate access for individuals and families experiencing homelessness to 

affordable housing units while also preventing individuals and families from becoming homeless. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 

funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 

foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education, or youth needs. 

The City is involved in the CoC, which is comprised of representation from ACHA, Health and Welfare, 

mental health service providers and other service agencies, including law enforcement and correctional 

agencies. The CoC coordinates, collects data, reviews data, and prioritizes strategies based on data and 

input from providers. Coordinated entry serves all communities within Ada County and case 

conferencing is conducted weekly.  

The City is also involved in the Behavioral Health Board (BHB), which focuses on mental health and 

substance use disorders. The BHB is a government entity established by the Idaho legislature in 2014 to 

advise Idaho’s behavioral health authority, identify gaps, and promote improvements to the delivery of 

integrated services for behavioral health in Idaho. The Board promotes and supports prevention, 

intervention, recovery and resiliency for individuals and families in need. It is composed of 23 

stakeholders, advocates, and professionals across the continuum of care. Involvement with this group 

allows the City to understand the broader needs of the community as related to behavioral health in 

general and specifically for those who are being discharged from institutional settings such as mental 

health facilities and corrections programs. 

During PY21 the City will also provide funding to Jesse Tree to keep families, individuals, and children 

who are at risk of eviction stably housed. Meridian partners with other organizations, such as the West 

Ada School District, to assess needs and provide services for those at risk of becoming homeless. 

Discussion 

Much of the work funded through the Program is directed at housing stability for Meridian’s LMI 

residents. In addition to the services previously mentioned, the City is focusing on public transportation 

for seniors, ADA compliance improvements to public facilities, and public facility improvements such as 

sidewalk and streetlight improvements in LMI areas to meet the needs of those in the community who 

Page 571

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   43 | 

P a g e  

 

may or may not be experiencing homelessness. 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing – 91.220(j) 

Introduction:  

Section V of the Consolidated Plan and Fair Housing Assessment analyzes public and private barriers to 

housing choice in Meridian. Stakeholders were also interviewed about housing barriers. Barriers 

associated with tax policies, land use controls and zoning, building codes, fees and charges, growth 

limits, and policies affecting the return on residential investment were not identified as barriers. On the 

contrary, the review found a favorable environment for development and a migration toward more 

diverse housing types. 

As such, the actions summarized below do NOT address the negative effects of public policies that serve 

as barriers to affordable housing (policies, procedures, processes). Instead, they focus on actions that 

address other types of identified barriers. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 

as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment 

The City has expressed a commitment to creating more diverse housing types through its 

redevelopment plan for downtown. The Destination Downtown plan states that creating diverse 

housing opportunities for different housing needs and life-cycles in downtown Meridian is important to 

support new businesses and activity. A healthy housing mix will also help to draw people downtown and 

ensure 24-7 activity. Housing created or redeveloped as part of the downtown plan is expected to 

include apartments, townhomes, condominiums, duplexes, and single-family homes. The City helped 

facilitate multiple RFPs over the past several years for a large portion of the publicly-owned properties in 

downtown Meridian with a priority given to proposals that focused on developing mixed use and high-

density housing. One project that was awarded, Downtown Lofts, will bring several affordable units to 

downtown Meridian including six (6) that will be dedicated to CATCH participants. This project is 

expected to be completed in 2021. 

In 2017, to evaluate potential fair housing concerns within the City’s zoning code, the City had BBC 

Consulting utilize a “Review of Public Policies and Practices (Zoning and Planning Codes)” form recently 

circulated by the Los Angeles fair housing office of HUD. The research did not reveal any negative effects 

of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing. This includes land use controls, tax policies 

affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies 

Page 572

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   44 | 

P a g e  

 

affecting returns on residential investment. 

Additionally, the City continues to review of potential policy and code changes that will incentivize the 

future development of multi-family and affordable housing units in Meridian. 

Discussion:  

The City will continue to identify areas to reduce barriers t affordable housing. 

AP-85 Other Actions – 91.220(k) 

Introduction:  

This section discusses the Other Actions the City will take to address the needs of low-income residents. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The City will continue to engage in conversations with neighboring communities and service providers to 

identify and address underserved needs, maintain affordable housing, and reduce the number of 

families living in poverty. 

During PY21, the City has allocated funding to provide housing stability for those at risk of homelessness 

and extended care programs that offer youth a positive place to go.  Additionally, the Economic 

Development Administrator works closely with the CDBG program in an effort to better align the needs 

of our residents.  

The City will increase relationships with private providers, developers, and social services providers to 

reduce the obstacles for Meridian residents to achieve decent housing, a suitable living environment, 

and expanded economic opportunities. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The City intends to partner with local service providers that will assist in fostering and maintaining 

affordable housing. Projects funded during PY21 will provide: emergency assistance to families who are 

at risk of eviction and homelessness; assistance for homeowners to make necessary improvements to 

maintain their current housing; and, scholarships for children to participate in extended care programs 

so their caregivers can work. Additionally, the City will be working with service providers that focus on 

providing stability to those with mental health and/or substance use disorders to allow them to gain or 

maintain affordable housing with access to care coordination. 

The City will also explore additional partnerships—including partnerships with mission-driven and 

Page 573

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   45 | 

P a g e  

 

private developers—to bring more workforce housing into downtown and underutilized land parcels. 

The City collaborates with the Economic Development Administrator to explore the development of 

workforce housing and opportunities for residents to increase their income in an effort to foster and 

maintain affordable housing. 

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

Over the course of the upcoming program year, the City will provide information regarding lead-based 

paint hazards to educate the public and continue to gauge the prevalence of lead paint contamination 

within the City.  There is a wealth of information already available from HUD, the State, neighboring 

communities, and various organizations that staff will gather and make available at City Hall, on the 

City’s website, and at other locations throughout the community as needed.  Additionally, City staff has 

reached out to CDH staff to ensure they have a contact person if lead-based paint hazards arise. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

The City will fund projects to assist poverty-level individuals and families access services that provide a 

support system and allow them to focus on the steps they need to take to improve their living situation. 

Projects include programs that provide emergency assistance to families who are at risk of 

homelessness and housing cost assistance for residents unable to cover the full costs of home 

purchases. The City's Strategic Plan also intends to address poverty-based issues through the expansion 

of necessary public services and the expansion of quality employment opportunities for the jurisdiction’s 

LMI population. 

As part of its Strategic Plan, the City is working on an in-depth socioeconomic profile of the City to help 

identify the needs of community members as it pertains to housing, finances, food, education, 

healthcare, and transportation. Completing this research will allow the City to better understand the 

factors that are contributing to residents who are facing poverty in Meridian, as well as help define 

solutions that could help mitigate those factors. The City’s hope is that this research will provide long-

term insights and strategies to reduce the number of poverty-level families in Meridian. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

In recent years the City made the CDBG Administrator position a full-time position and changed the 

position title to Community Development Program Coordinator. This position is now funded out of the 

City’s general fund. This institutional change is designed to provide more time to effectively manage the 

CDBG program and provide flexibility for the position to expand efforts into economic and other areas 

that can help meet the community development needs of the City. Staff will continue to work to attain 

relevant and appropriate professional development trainings during the program year to learn and 

address current and future institutional problems. Discussions will continue about the expansion and 

Page 574

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   46 | 

P a g e  

 

opportunities to add new program staff to assist in this community development work. 

The City has been involved in the institutional restructuring of the CoC as well as the implementation of 

new HMIS and Coordinated Entry standards for service providers in the County. These activities have 

dramatically altered the institutional framework of housing and other service providers in the region and 

has improved the efficiency and transparency of the coordinated work being done to address these 

needs. The City hopes to identify new institutional structures that can be developed, reformed or 

changed to better support the needs of those most at risk in the region (e.g. transitional and emergency 

housing networks). 

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies 

City staff will be working with the CoC to identify ways to enhance coordination between public and 

private housing and social service agencies. As in many communities, there is not enough funding to 

provide the level of services we’d like so the CoC plans to identify a way of coordinating services that are 

available and reducing duplication of services for a more effective use of funding. Multiple methods will 

be explored including phone apps and enhancing services that are already available. 

The City's partnership and funding relationship with local housing service organizations including 

NeighborWorks Boise, Jesse Tree, and Ada County Housing Authority will continue to expand in this 

program year. In addition, coordination with other organizations like CATCH, Boise Rescue Mission, 

Interfaith Sanctuary, Terry Reilley, El-Ada Community Action, Jannus, Idaho Office for Refugees, Agency 

for New Americans, Women’s and Children’s Alliance, and all members associated with the local CoC 

(including private housing developers) will continue to be built upon to improve networks, coordination, 

and problem solving in the jurisdiction. Meridian's participation in the local CoC, housing and 

homelessness roundtables, and other regional coordination efforts outlines the City's continued action 

plan for enhancing the networking and coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies. 

Discussion:  

The City intends to fund multiple projects that will improve access to affordable housing and suitable 

living environments for Meridian residents.  Staff will be working with subrecipients to identify barriers 

within their programs and find ways to address them to provide more effective services.  Staff will also 

Page 575

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   47 | 

P a g e  

 

identify ways to improve and expand Meridian’s CDBG Program for future years. 

Program Specific Requirements 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction:  

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 

program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 0 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to 

address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not 

been included in a prior statement or plan 0 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 

Total Program Income: 0 

 

Other CDBG Requirements  
 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 

  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that 

benefit persons of low and moderate income.  Overall Benefit - A consecutive 

period of one, two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum 

overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and 

moderate income. Specify the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 100.00% 

 
 

The City's certification period includes program years 2021, 2022, and 2023. Outside of admin and fair 

housing, the City will allocate all funding for PY21 to LMI projects.  The City commits to meet the 70% 

LMI benefit requirement of the federal CDBG program over the span of that three-year certification 

period. 

Page 576

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   48 | 

P a g e  

 

Attachments

Page 577

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   49 | P a g e  

 

Citizen Participation Comments 

To be included once they are received. 

     

     

     

     

Page 578

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   50 | 

P a g e  

 

Grantee Unique Appendices 

 

Public Notice 

Idaho Statesman 

 

Meridian Press Tribune 

 

Website 

 

Email to distribution list 

 

  

Page 579

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   51 | 

P a g e  

 

Resolution 

Will be included when received.  

Page 580

Item #26.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

PY21 Action Plan 

City of Meridian                                                                                   52 | 

P a g e  

 

SF 424’s and Certifications 

 Will be included when received. 

Page 581

Item #26.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Transportation Commission: Pathway Crossing Concerns

Page 582

Item #27.



PAGE 1 

 
MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Meridian Transportation Commission Date:  June 2, 2021 

Presenter: Walter Steed, Chair & Ryan Lancaster, Commissioner Estimated Time:  15 minutes 

Topic: Transportation Commission: Pathway Crossing Concerns 
 

 
The Meridian Transportation Commission recommends that Meridian City Council request ACHD 
to look at redesign of multiuse pathway and sidewalk crossings.  
 
Meridian staff have expressed concerns with ACHD staff about new designs placing pathway 
crossings behind and between cars at street intersections and the visibility conflicts it creates. ACHD 
staff responded recently that they are acting as they have been directed and any changes will have 
to come from the executive level. As such, Meridian staff brought their concerns forward to the 
Transportation Commission. 
 
In May 2021, the Meridian Transportation Commission discussed the pathway crossing in the 95% 
design for Lake Hazel Road and Eagle Road. After discussion of staff concerns, reflection of past 
Commission discussions, and review of the example in this project at E Levin Dr, the Commission 
felt that the issue warranted closer review.  
 
 As there are no similar urban examples, there is concern with committing to a treatment without 
testing/experiencing it first. While this treatment may make sense in certain conditions, staff is not 
convinced that residential corridors, with distractions such as landscaping, are the appropriate 

Page 583

Item #27.



PAGE 2 

settings for setback crossings. Bike and especially pedestrian supportive designs are very sensitive 
to perception, and human behavior can have significant implications on function.  
In the Lake Hazel Road and Eagle Road design shown, you can see the crossing is pulled back from 
the intersection. The perceived benefit is to allow vehicles to approach without blocking the 
crossing. However, a vehicle may still just as easily block the crosswalk, and if done, this negates the 
benefit of the design. It is possible signage, striping, or some other means of education could 
improve this, but drivers do not typically leave crosswalks open, unless pedestrians are already 
seen in them or they are beyond marked stop lines.  
  
Another concern is human behavior. People take shortcuts; especially pedestrians. You can see this 
in many poorly designed public spaces. Worn “cow paths” can often be seen through a grassy area, 
because the sidewalk was in a location determined less convenient to the target destination. People 
will often go to greater lengths to circumvent a process or design, than would otherwise be required 
to just adhere to it. People (bikes and pedestrians) might cross where a ramp is normally located, 
and also at the new setback location. You would then have multiple points of conflict, upset 
expectations, and reduced awareness of all. This could possibly be improved with additional 
controls for crossing, but they do not exist in the design. 
 
Lastly, landscaping, fencing, utility poles, and traffic signs all exist and complicate a driver’s ability 
to perceive pedestrians. That’s compounded when looking for pedestrians that are further from a 
driver’s area of focus and normal expectations. 
 
There may be some well-founded reasons why all of these concerns are less important than a more 
pressing design consideration, but it’s not been made evident to the Transportation Commission or 
Planning staff.  
 
Thank you for considering bringing this to ADHD’s attention. 
 

Page 584

Item #27.


	Top
	Item #1.	MIN 2021-06-22 Work Session
	Work Session Minutes

	Item #2.	MIN 2021-06-22 Regular Meeting
	Regular Meeting Minutes

	Item #3.	ESMT Bainbridge Subdivision No. 12 Water Main Easement No. 2
	Easement

	Item #4.	ESMT Idaho Central Credit Union - Ten Mile Branch Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #5.	ESMT Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #6.	ESMT Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #7.	ESMT Impressive East Ridge Subdivision No. 2 Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #8.	ESMT Lost Rapids Subdivision Water Main Easement No. 2
	Easement

	Item #9.	ESMT Millbrae Subdivision Pedestrian Pathway Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #10.	ORDER Aegean Estates No. 3 FP-2021-0031
	Order
	Exhibit A

	Item #11.	ORDER Oaks North Subdivision No. 10 FP-2021-0035
	Order
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	Item #12.	FFCL H-2021-0021 Prevail North Subdivision
	Findings
	Exhibit A

	Item #13.	DA Development Agreement between the City of Meridian and Shafer View North LLC (Owner/Developer) for Shafer View Terrace (H-2020-0117) located at the East side of S. Meridian Rd./SH 69, midway between E. Amity Rd. and E. Lake Hazel Rd.
	Agreement
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	Item #14.	DA Addendum to Development Agreement between the City of Meridian and High Desert Development Linder Village, LLC (Owner/Developer) located at 6308 N. Linder Road at the northeast corner of N. Linder Road and W. Chinden Blvd.
	Agreement
	Exhibit A

	Item #15.	DA 2nd Addendum to Development Agreement between the City of Meridian and William Bienapfl (Owner) and Flexspace, LLC (Developer) for Movado Mixed Use H-2020-0123 generally located on the south side of E. Overland Road between S. Eagle Road and S. Cloverdale Road
	Agreement
	Exhibit A

	Item #16.	PR Five Mile Drain at Quartet Sub NE #1 Pathway Agreement - 7/6/21
	Agreement

	Item #17.	Artwork License Agreements for the Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 Series
	Artist License Agreement_Green
	Artist License Agreement_Elmore
	Artist License Agreement_Almeida
	Artist License Agreement_Linquist
	Artist License Agreement_Galvan

	Item #18.	PW Sensus Professional Services Agreement Addendum #1
	Memo
	Agreement

	Item #19.	Professional Service Agreements for West Ada School District Student Artwork for Traffic Box Community Art Project 2021 Series
	Student License Agreement_Ochoa
	Student License Agreement_Meuser
	Student License Agreement_Delfin
	Student License Agreement_Bramlet
	Student License Agreement_Bauman

	Item #20.	CDBG PY19 NWB Homebuyer Assistance SRA
	Agreement

	Item #21.	Task Order #3 for February 2, 2010 Professional Services Agreement with Idaho Information Consortium, LLC, dba Access Idaho, for Electronic Transactions and Access for Transaction Payments to Meridian Police Department
	Memo
	Task Order

	Item #22.	RESO 21-2272: A Resolution (H-2021-0038 Roberts Annexation Vacation Easement) Vacating the 5-foot drainage, utility construction and maintenance easement within a portion of lots 2 and 3 as shown on Heritage Subdivision no. 2, book 23, page 1453, within the southwest ¼ of the northwest ¼ of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho;
	Resolution
	Exhibit A

	Item #23.	RESO 21-2273: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Northern Gateway Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; Determining the Area Identified in the Report to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, or a Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to Commence the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan for the Area Subject to Certain Conditions, which Plan May Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective Date
	Memo
	Northern Gateway Eligibility Report Resolution

	Item #24.	RESO 21-2274: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, Accepting that Certain Report on Eligibility for the Idaho Block Annexation Area as an Urban Renewal Area and Revenue Allocation Area and Justification for Designating the Area as Appropriate for an Urban Renewal Project; Determining that the Area Identified in the Report as the Proposed Amendment Area Adjacent and Contiguous to the Existing Union District Revenue Allocation Area Within the City of Meridian, to be a Deteriorated Area or a Deteriorating Area, or a Combination Thereof, as Defined by Idaho Code Sections 50-2018(9) and 50-2903(8); Directing the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Meridian, Idaho, also Known as the Meridian Development Corporation, to Commence the Preparation of an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment, which Plan Amendment May Include Revenue Allocation Provisions For All or Part of the Area; and Providing an Effective Date
	Memo
	Idaho Block Eligibility Report Resolution

	Item #25.	MAYOR Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Amendment in the Amount of $4,500 for Video Production Computer Replacement, Software and Equipment
	Memo
	Budget Amendment

	Item #26.	CDBG PY21 AP Public Presentation
	AP Presentation
	AP Overview
	PY21 AP Draft - Public Comment

	Item #27.	Transportation Commission: Pathway Crossing Concerns
	Memo

	Bottom

